
Date: Wednesday August 3, 2022, 

AGENDA 
City Council Meeting 
City of Middleton, Idaho 

Location: City Hall Council Chambers - 1103 W Main Street 

Call-to-order, Roll Call, Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation: 

Action Item: 
A. Approve Agenda 

Information Item: 
1.) Property Tax Rebate - Council Member Murray 

Time: 5:30 p.m. 

2.) Amended and Restated Lease Agreement with Knife River- Knife River 
Representative 

Action Items: 
1. Consent Agenda (items of routine administrative business) (Action Items) 

a. Consider approving minutes for City Council July 20, 2022, regular meeting. 
b. Consider ratifying payroll for July 29, 2022, in the amount of $98,512.28. 
c. Consider approving accounts payable thru July 29, 2022, in the amount of 

$334,411 .17. 
d. Consider approving written FCO for Channel Crossing Subdivision application. 

2. Third Reading: Consider adopting Ordinance No. 665 an ordinance enacted by the 
Middleton City Council amending Title 7, Chapter 6, Section 07-06-01 , Middleton City 
Code, pertaining to sidewalks and repairs of the City of Middleton; providing for an 
effective date; providing for severability; and repealing all ordinances, resolutions, 
orders, and parts thereof, in conflict herewith, and to approve the summary for 
publication as authorized by Idaho Code 50-901A. - Jason VanGilder 

3. Consider approving a quote from Premier Wireless Solutions for a 3-year NetCloud 
mobile essentials plan and IBR900 router with WiFi in an amount not to exceed 
$8,800.00. - Sargent Hilkey 

4. Continued Public Hearing: Applications by M3 and JUB Engineers for annexation/zone 
change, preliminary plat, development agreement, and comprehensive plan map 
amendment with respect to Quarry East Subdivision located at 21500 Middleton Road 
and 11436 Lincoln Road (Tax Parcel Nos. R34076 and R34077). The proposed 
preliminary plat consists of 466 single family homesites, 102 duplex homesites, 72 
cluster single family lots, 1 mini-self storage lot, 67 common lots, and 46 shared 
driveways/private roads lots on 236.60 acres of vacant land zoned County Agricultural, 
C-1 , and M-1 . Applicants are requesting a zone change to Mixed Use (M-U). In the 
comprehensive plan map amendment application, applicants are requesting that the 
"Residential Use" designated for the property be changed to "Industrial Use" to 
accommodate the mini-storage parcel. - Roberta Stewart 

5. Consider adopting ORDINANCE NO. 664: Quarry East Subdivision Annexation & 
Rezone - Parcel Nos. R34076 and R34077. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 

1 



MIDDLETON, CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, ANNEXING TO THE CITY OF 
MIDDLETON, IDAHO, CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY SITUATED IN THE 
UNINCORPORATED AREA OF CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, AND CONTIGUOUS TO 
THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO; ESTABLISHING 
THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF SAID REAL PROPERTY TO M-U (MIXED USE); 
DIRECTING THAT COPIES OF THIS ORDINANCE BE FILED AS PROVIDED BY LAW; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. - Roberta Stewart 

6. Consider approving Resolution No. 470-22 for Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment to 
change Future Land Use Map regarding Quarry East Application. - Roberta Stewart 

7. Consider approving the written Findings of Facts, Conclusions of Law and Order (FCO) 
for the Quarry East Subdivision. - Robert Stewart 

8. Public Hearing: Applications by Taylor Schmidt/SST DEV LLC for annexation/rezone, 
preliminary plat, and development agreement with respect to the Reed's Landing 
Subdivision located at 880 W. Main Street (Tax Parcel No. R17900010). The proposed 
preliminary plat consists of 12 single family residential lots, 25 townhome lots, three 
commercial lots, and six common lots on 9.69 acres of land zoned Canyon County 
Agricultural. Applicant is requesting zone changes to City of Middleton C-3 (2.35 acres 
"Heavy Commercial"), M-F (2.98 acres "Multi-Family") and R-3 ( 4.09 acres Single Family 
Residential). - Robert Stewart 

9. Consider adopting ORDINANCE NO. 669: AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
MIDDLETON, CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, ANNEXING TO THE CITY OF 
MIDDLETON, IDAHO, CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY SITUATED IN THE 
UNINCORPORATED AREA OF CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, AND CONTIGUOUS TO 
THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO; ESTABLISHING 
THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF SAID REAL PROPERTY AS 2.35 ACRES TO C-3 
(HEAVY COMMERCIAL), 2.98 ACRES TO M-F (MULTI-FAMILY) AND 4.09 ACRES TO 
R-3 (SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL); DIRECTING THAT COPIES OF THIS 
ORDINANCE BE FILED AS PROVIDED BY LAW; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. - Roberta Stewart 

10. Consider approving the written Findings of Facts, Conclusions of Law and Order (FCO) 
for the Reed's Landing Subdivision. - Roberta Stewart 

11 . Public Comments, Mayor and Council Comments, Adjourn 

/J ~ - ~ 2 -Posted by: }lti ("!?L ~ awn M. Goodwin, Deputy Clerk 

Date: July 29, 2022, 2: 15 p.m. 

Please contact the City Clerk at (208) 585-3133 if you have special needs or require 
assistance. 

2 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1a 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting July 20, 2022 Page 1 
 

MIDDLETON CITY COUNCIL 
JULY 20, 2022 

 
The Middleton City Council meeting on July 20, 2022, was called-to-order at 5:31 p.m. by 
Council Mayor Steve Rule.  
 
Roll Call: Council President Kiser, Council Members Huggins, Murray and O’Meara were present. 
City Attorney Taylor Yett, City Clerk Becky Crofts, City Treasure Wendy Miles, Planning Official 
Roberta Stewart, Public Works Director Jason Van Gilder and Deputy Clerk Dawn Goodwin were 
present.  
 
Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation:  Mark Christiansen 
 
Action Items 

A. Approve Amended Agenda 
 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve the agenda as posted July 18, 2022, 
at 1:45 p.m. Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara and approved unanimously. 
 

Information Item:  
Middleton Middle School Drop-off and Pick-up parking lot. – Jason Van Gilder 
  
Mayor Rule called the item and Public Works Director Jason Van Gilder gave a brief overview 
of the project concept and the progress made in terms of potentially making the concept a 
reality. A brief council discussion followed after Mr. Van Gilder concluded his presentation.  

 
Action Items:       

1. Consent Agenda (items of routine administrative business) (Action Items) 
a. Consider approving minutes for City Council July 6, 2022, regular meeting. 
b. Consider ratifying payroll for June 17, 2022, in the amount of $125,939.80. 
c. Consider approving accounts payable thru July 15, 2022, in the amount of 

$1,020,800.04. 
d. Consider approving contract with Curtis Clean Sweep for roadway striping along  

South Middleton Road and along Cornell Street in an amount not to exceed 
$5,352.40. 

e. Consider approving contract with Integrity Solutions for 2022 Manhole Infiltration 
Repairs in an amount not to exceed $9,800.00 
 

Mayor Rule called the items. Council President Kiser stated he had gone through the 

accounts payable, and nothing had changed since the check registers had been 

uploaded to the council drobox. Council President Kiser stated that the large accounts 

payable amount was due to normal monthly pass throughs such as the Republic 

Services payment but also due payments from projects such as the Hartley Sewer Line. 

 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve Consent Agenda Items 1 a-e. 
Motion seconded by Council Member Huggins and approved unanimously.  
 

2. Consider a motion to accept the resignation of Mark Christiansen and appoint Marisela 
Shumway to the Middleton Library Board as his replacement. – Mayor Rule 
 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting July 20, 2022 Page 2 
 

Mayor Rule called the agenda item and explained Mark Christiansen had done a 
wonderful job on the library board but was also on the Planning and Zoning Committee, 
so he was asking for council approval for replacement of Mr. Christiansen on the library 
board. 
 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to accept the resignation of accept the 
resignation of Mark Christiansen and appoint Marisela Shumway to the Middleton 
Library Board as his replacement. Motion seconded by Council Member O’Meara and 
approved unanimously.  

 
3. Consider approving a proposed FY2023 budget to be published according to law prior to 

the City Council’s August 17, 2022 public hearing to consider adopting an annual 
appropriations ordinance. – Wendy Miles 

 
Mayor Rule called the agenda item and City Treasure Wendy Miles presented to council 
the proposed FY2023 budget needing approval for publication in order to hold the public 
hearing on August 17, 2022.  
 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve the proposed FY2023 budget to 
be published according to law prior to the City Council’s August 17,2022 public hearing. 
Motion seconded by Council Member Huggins and approved unanimously by roll call 
vote.  
 

4. Consider approving the Revised Purchase Agreement between the City of Middleton 
and the Wetlands Group LLC for 1.9 acres wetlands for the Middleton Road 
Realignment project in an amount not to exceed $150,000.00 – Mayor Rule  
 
Mayor Rule called the agenda item and gave a brief explanation as to why the item was 
back before council. 
 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve the Revised Purchase Agreement 
between the City of Middleton and the Wetlands Group LLC for 1.9 acres of wetlands for 
the Middleton Road Realignment project in an amount not to exceed $150,000.00. Motion 
was seconded by Council Member O’Meara and approved unanimously by roll call vote. 

 
5. Second Reading: Consider adopting Ordinance No. 665 an ordinance enacted by the 

Middleton City Council amending Title 7, Chapter 6, Section 07-06-01, Middleton City 
Code, pertaining to sidewalks and repairs of the City of Middleton; providing for an 
effective date; providing for severability; and repealing all ordinances, resolutions, 
orders, and parts thereof, in conflict herewith, and to approve the summary for 
publication as authorized by Idaho Code 50-901A. – Jason VanGilder 
 
Mayor Rule called the agenda item and Council President Kiser read Ordinance No. 665 

by title only for the second reading. 

 
6. Consider approving final plat for West Highlands Ranch Subdivision No. 15. –  Roberta 

Stewart 
 
Mayor Rule called the agenda item and Planning and Zoning Official Roberta Stewart 

presented the final Plat for West Highlands Ranch Subdivision No. 15. 

 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting July 20, 2022 Page 3 
 

Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser approve the final plat for West Highlands 
Ranch Subdivision No. 15. Motion was seconded by Council Member Huggins and 
approved unanimously by roll call vote. 
 

7. Public Hearing: Applications by M3 and JUB Engineers for annexation/zone change, 
preliminary plat, development agreement, and comprehensive plan map amendment 
with respect to Quarry East Subdivision located at 21500 Middleton Road and 11436 
Lincoln Road (Tax Parcel Nos. R34076 and R34077).  The proposed preliminary plat 
consists of 466 single family homesites, 102 duplex homesites, 72 cluster single family 
lots, 1 mini-self storage lot, 67 common lots, and 46 shared driveways/private roads lots 
on 236.60 acres of vacant land zoned County Agricultural, C-1, and M-1.  Applicants are 
requesting a zone change to Mixed Use (M-U).  In the comprehensive plan map 
amendment application, applicants are requesting that the “Residential Use” designated 
for the property be changed to “Industrial Use” to accommodate the mini-storage parcel. 
– Roberta Stewart 
 
Mayor Rule called the item and opened the public hearing at 6:34 p.m. Planning and 

Zoning Official Robert Stewart presented Exhibit E and entered into the record “Exhibit 

G” City Engineer Amy Woodruff’s engineering comments pertaining to the preliminary plat 

for the Quarry East Subdivision. 

 

Mayor Rule called for a brief break at 7:15 p.m. and resumed the hearing at 7:24 p.m. 

 

Council and Mayor asked Mrs. Stewart clarifying question regarding the agenda item 

particularly pertaining to the development agreement. 

 

Applicant Remarks – Mark Tate M3 Companies  

• 55+ active adult community which targets recently retired buyers who live 

active lifestyles, who are seeking a highly amenity rich community.    

• Community has an 8% open space above and beyond the open lake space. 

• Community provides reduce traffic especially during peak traffic hours. 

Council comments for the applicant followed. 

 

Public Comments – 

Mike Graefe – 1889 Ridge Way, Middleton, ID – Mr. Graefe stated that he was not in favor 

for waivers being granted for setbacks or for the lot size requirements, that city code 

needed to be followed. 

Jeanie Meholchick – 21500 Wells Rd, Caldwell, ID – Ms. Mecholchick stated that she was 

in favor of the project, and she really likes the idea of the 55+ community. 

Randy Wood – 11505 Bass Lane, Caldwell, ID – Mr. Wood stated that he owned the land 

and that for over 20 years while he mined the property, he was keeping this exact type of 

future project in mind and that he would love to see Middleton take advantage of this 

project. 

 

Applicant Rebuttal – Mark Tate M3 Companies 

• Mr. Tate stated that M3 was excited to get going with the proposed project. 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting July 20, 2022 Page 4 
 

Mr. Tate went on to state that it would be two to three years before you 

would see any residents living at the site. 

Mayor Rule closed the public hearing at 8:45 p.m. and a council discission followed. 

Motion:  Motion by Council President Kiser to accept the findings of facts and conclusions 

of law set fourth in the Staff Report and presentation for the July 20, 2022, public hearing. 

Motion was seconded by Council Member O’Meara and carried unanimously by roll call 

vote. 

8. Consider adopting ORDINANCE NO. 664: Quarry East Subdivision Annexation & 
Rezone – Parcel Nos. R34076 and R34077. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
MIDDLETON, CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, ANNEXING TO THE CITY OF 
MIDDLETON, IDAHO, CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY SITUATED IN THE 
UNINCORPORATED AREA OF CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, AND CONTIGUOUS TO 
THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO; ESTABLISHING 
THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF SAID REAL PROPERTY TO M-U (MIXED USE); 
DIRECTING THAT COPIES OF THIS ORDINANCE BE FILED AS PROVIDED BY LAW; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. - Roberta Stewart 
 
Mayor Rule called the agenda item. 

 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to continue the annexation, rezone, 
development agreement, preliminary plat, and comprehensive plan map amendment to 
the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting to be held on August 3, 2022, at 5:30 
p.m. Motion was seconded by Council Member Huggins and carried unanimously by roll 
call vote.  
 

9. Consider approving Resolution No. 470-22 for Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment to 
change Future Land Use Map regarding Quarry East Application. - Roberta Stewart 
Council President Kiser called the item. Meghan Conrad attorney for the Middleton Urban 

Renewal Agency presented Exhibit H which explained both agenda item number nine 

and ten. Council Member Huggins disclosed that herself and Council President Kiser were 

also on the Middleton Urban Renewal Agency board. 

 

Mayor Rule called the agenda item. The item was continued to August 3, 2022, at 5:30 

p.m. per the pervious motion. 

 

Mayor Rule called a break at 9:10 p.m. and resumed the session at 9:18 p.m. 

 
10. Public Hearing: Application by Middleton Rivers, LLC and Jay Gibbons/South Beck & 

Baird for preliminary plat with respect to the Channel Crossing Subdivision located at 
22457 So. Middleton Road and 0 So. Middleton Road (Tax Parcel Nos.R180350, 
R18035011, R180340 & 18036010).  The proposed preliminary plat is zoned Mixed Use 
(M-U) and consists of five commercial lots, 119 single family attached (townhome) lots, 
and seven common lots on 15.19 acres. – Roberta Stewart 
Council President Kiser called the agenda item. 

 

Mayor Rule called the agenda item. Planning and Zoning Official Roberta Stewart 

presented Exhibit F. Following Mrs. Stewart’s presentation, Council and Mayor asked 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting July 20, 2022 Page 5 
 

Mrs. Stewart clarifying questions. 

 

Applicant Remarks – Jay Gibbons -South Beck & Baird 

• 15.19 acre subdivision that is currently zoned M/U. The subdivision 

consists of 119 single family attached town homes. 

• The subdivision has 5 lots set to be used as retail/commercial space. 

• The subdivision has extensive pedestrian and bike paths which connect to 

the public greenbelt space. 

 

Council comments for the applicant followed. 

Public Comments – 

Louise Dankel – 616 Hidden Lake Ct., Middleton, ID – Ms. Dankel read into the record a 

statement that requested the city look at the long-term effects of this development in 

regard to the quick growth in the area asking for particular consideration for issues such 

as improvements to roadways and the bridge at Middleton Road. 

Applicant Rebuttal – Jay Gibbons -South Beck & Baird 

• Mr. Gibbons wanted to remind the council that regarding the takeout for future 
floating the development had in fact given the city an additional 50 feet of right-of-
way. 

Mayor Rule closed the public hearing at 10:12 p.m. A brief council discussion followed. 
 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to accept the findings of facts and 
conclusions of law set forth in the Staff Report and presentation for the July 20, 2022, 
public hearing. Motion seconded by Council Member Huggins and approved 
unanimously by roll call vote. 
 
Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to approve the application of Middleton 
Lakes, LLC and Jay Gibbons for preliminary plat with respect to the Channel Crossing 
Subdivision, subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the July 
20, 2022 public hearing. Motion seconded by Council Member Huggins and approved 
unanimously by roll call vote. 

 
Public Comments 

• Mike Graefe – 1889 Ridge Way, Middleton, ID – Mr. Graefe wanted to know the 
number of current officers on staff with the Middleton Police Department. Mr. 
Graefe voiced his concerns on being short staffed in the department and the with 
the current residents and the continued growth of the city that the wanted to 
make sure that the Police were not going to have a reduction in force. 

 
Mayor and Council Comments; NONE 
 
Executive Session pursuant to Idaho Code: 
74-206(1)(a-b): Pertaining to Personnel. 
 
Mayor Rule called the agenda item. 
 



      

 

Middleton City Council Meeting July 20, 2022 Page 6 
 

Motion: Motion by Council President Kiser to enter executive sessions by Code and 74-
206(1)(b) to consider evaluation, dismissal or disciplining of, or to hear complaints or 
charges brought against, a public officer, employee, staff member or individual agent, or 
public-school student. Motion was seconded by Council Member Huggins and carried 
unanimously by roll call vote. Council entered executive session at 10:17 p.m. 
 
Mayor brought the Council out of executive session and back on the record at 5:99p.m. 
Mayor Rule stated that there was considerable discussion amongst the Council but that 
there were no votes taken or decisions made. 

 
 

Adjourn: Mayor adjourned the city council meeting at 10:32 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
             
ATTEST:      Steven J. Rule, Mayor  
 
      
Dawn Goodwin, Deputy Clerk 
Minutes Approved: July 20, 2022 
 



EXHIBIT “A” 



Idaho Public Works  -  13294-A- 4 (09950, 02761, 02785, 01570, 18800, 02890)

Oregon Construction License - 129615

DBE Authority - 49 CFR  26

RCE - 1922

City of Middleton (208) 631-5639

6 N Dewey St 2022 Roadway Markings - S Middleton Rd

Middleton, Idaho 83644 Middleton, Idaho 

Darrel dgehring@middletoncity.com
   

ITEM # UNIT BID AMOUNT

This bid may expire if notice of intent is not given within 10  days of the bid opening.

This bid excludes business signs, sign & delineator survey, testing, and traffic control.

These prices reflect all line items as a total package and cannot be broken up individually.

Obliteration of pavement markings excludes fog seal and any damage caused to joint sealant.

Bid Bond not included in price. If required add 3% to overall quote total.

General contractor responsible for layout of all lines, crosswalks, stop bars, and symbols. Layout of lines must consist of a control point every 

50 ft on a tangent, and every 25 ft on a curve. All layout must be approved  before we can proceed with any striping. Please plan accordingly.

unavailable, Curtis Clean Sweep Inc will be held harmless.

We propose hereby to furnish material and labor - complete in accordance with the above specification's for the sum of: 

   Payment is to be made as follows: 

Authorized Signature:

   Acceptance of Proposal  - The prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are here by accepted.  You are authorized to do the 

            work as specified.  Payment will be made as specified above

4" WIDE PAINTED MARKINGS

24" THERMOPLASTIC STOP BAR MARKINGS

This is a unit price proposal. This contract is based on estimated quantities. Actual payment will be based on final quantities completed.

Work cannot be guaranteed unless performed at specified minimum temperatures.

Due to the instability of the traffic paint industry with the associated price increases and material shortages, Curtis Clean Sweep Inc reserves the 

right to adjust the pricing for the pavement marking products quoted above as we receive these increases. In the event that traffic paint becomes 

All material is guaranteed to be as specified. All work to be completed in a workmanlike manner according to 

standard practices. Any alteration or deviation from above specifications involving extra costs will be executed 

only upon written orders, and will become and extra charge over and above the estimate. All agreements 

contingent upon strikes, accidents, or delays beyond our control.. Owner to carry fire, tornado and other necessary 

insurance. Our workers are fully covered by Workman's Compensation Insurance.  

Striping prices do not include obliteration, preparation, cleaning or brooming of surfaces, or layout for control points of lines.

Prices exclude any and all traffic control.

Delays or layout of control points shall be charged an hourly rate of $250.00/hr per crew.

4" WIDE PAINTED MARKINGS - RED HIGLIGHTED AREA

MOBILIZATION

QUANTITY UNIT PRICE

24" THERMOPLASTIC CROSSWALK MARKINGS

4" WIDE PAINTED MARKINGS - YELLOW HIGLIGHTED AREA

THERMOPLASTIC LEFT TURN ARROWS

ITEM DESCRIPTION

P.O. Box 44112 Boise, ID 83711 
PHONE: (208)343-7600 

FAX: (208)343-2159 

PROPOSAi. SUBMITTED TO 

STREET 

CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE 

CONTACT 

BASE BID 

1 

2 

3 
4 
5 

6 
7 

SPECIAL. NOTES 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

PHONE 

JOB NAME 

JOB I.OCA TION 

EMAIL 

13,500.0 
70.0 
180.0 
2.0 

628.0 
432.0 

1.0 

PROPOSAL 

LNFT 
SQFT 
SQFT 

EA 
LNFT 
LNFT 

LS 

$0.165 
$8.00 
$8.00 

$225.00 
$0.165 
$0.165 

$500.00 

DATE 

5/31/2022 

$2,227.50 
$560.00 

$1,440.00 
$450.00 
$103.62 
$71.28 
$500.00 

$5,352.40 

UPON INVOICE 

~~ RYZUBIZARETA 

Note: This proposal will be withdrawn by us if not accepted within___JQ_days. 

SIGNATURE: DATE: 



X 

Distance @ 

1,257 ft .,.. {[) 

0 Start new 



Cell: 208-960-2883 
Office: 208442-4470 
Fax: 844-351-6902

QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

CUSTOMER
Repair active infiltration in (6) existing sanitary sewer 
manholes listed below  

$0.00 $0.00

City of Middleton
1 MH 3717 - Eastimated 75 GPM $2,200.00 $2,200.00

DATE 1 MH 3719 - Estimated 75 GPM $2,200.00 $2,200.00

7/15/2022
1 MH 4046 - Estimated 15 GPM $950.00 $950.00

ADDRESS 1 MH 3720 - Estimated 15 GPM $950.00 $950.00

1 MH 3762 - Estimated 15 GPM $950.00 $950.00

PHONE 1 MH 3728 - Estimated 25 GPM $1,050.00 $1,050.00

1 Estimated cost for permitting and traffic control $1,500.00 $1,500.00

E-MAIL $0.00

tmendive@middletoncity.c
om

$0.00

SALESPERSON $0.00

Richard Mason 
$0.00

PROJECT $0.00

Infiltration Repairs 2022
$0.00

PREPARED BY: $0.00

Richard Mason 
$0.00

ATTENTION $0.00

Terrell $0.00

PAYMENT TERMS $0.00

Net 30 $0.00

TOTA L $9,800.00

THIS PROPOSAL INCLUDES THE CONDITIONS NOTED:

Date

Sign Below to Accept Quote:

Authorized Rep

Thank You For You Business  

PROPOSAL
Integrity Inspection Solutions, Inc. 

204 S Dudley Ln Nampa, ID 83687                                                                  
integrity@iispipeline.com 

Owner must provide clear access to the upstream and downstream manholes. • 
Integrity Inspection Solutions is not responsible for any Traffic Control, Bypass 
Pumping or Permitting unless otherwise stated in the proposal portion of this 
document.

Public Works Contractors License Number 036543-C-4 



EXHIBIT “B” 



City of Middleton Proposed Budget 2022 - 2023
Council 07/20/2022

Account Number 2022-23 2%

Budget
Increase for 
Publishing

Account Title
GENERAL FUND
01-311-402 PROPERTY TAX COLLECTIONS 1,459,721.94$     1,488,916.38$         
01-311-403 County Circuit Breaker 30,000.00$           30,600.00$              
01-311-405 Property Tax Reserves 144,957.49$         147,856.64$            
01-315-404 STATE & COUNTY REV SHARE-SALES TAX 592,129.59$         603,972.19$            
01-316-501 GAS FRANCHISE 50,000.00$           51,000.00$              
01-316-503 TV FRANCHISE 4,200.00$             4,284.00$                 
01-321-006 BUSINESS LICENSES 1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
01-321-303 LIQUOR LICENSE FEES 2,500.00$             2,550.00$                 
01-322-005 BUILDING PERMITS/INSPECTIONS 660,975.00$         674,194.50$            
01-322-150 ELECTRICAL PERMITS/INSPECTIONS 80,500.00$           82,110.00$              
01-322-151 MECHANICAL PERMITS/INSPECTIONS 67,000.00$           68,340.00$              
01-322-152 PLUMBING PERMITS/INSPECTIONS 61,000.00$           62,220.00$              
01-335-403 STATE LIQUOR REVENUE SHARE 95,000.00$           96,900.00$              
01-341-002 ANNEXING, PLANNING & ZONING 225,000.00$         229,500.00$            
01-341-003 INTERFUND OVERHEAD 429,276.71$         437,862.25$            
01-347-900 GRANTS (OHS) -$                       -$                           
01-349-011 TROLLEY STATION RENT 5,000.00$             5,100.00$                 
01-349-012 PROPERTY RENTAL 8,000.00$             8,160.00$                 
01-351-402 ADMIN. IMPACT FEE 3,500.00$             3,570.00$                 
01-361-050 POLICE IMPACT FEE 175,000.00$         178,500.00$            
01-361-300 FINES & FORFEITURES 20,000.00$           20,400.00$              
01-361-700 INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 5,000.00$             5,100.00$                 
01-363-101 CODE ENFORCEMENT REIMBURSEMENT -$                           
01-365-610 REIMBURSEMENT SRO SERVICES 160,500.00$         163,710.00$            
01-369-080 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 15,000.00$           15,300.00$              
01-369-100 ENGIN/ATTORNEY REIMBURSEMENT -$                           
01-369-200 CREDIT CARD FEE REVENUE 25,000.00$           25,500.00$              
01-371-700 INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 5.00$                     5.10$                         
01-379-011 PARK FACILITY RENT 1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
01-379-799 CITY PARKS IMPACT FEE 163,000.00$         166,260.00$            
01-381-700 INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS -$                           

TRANSFER IN 75,000.00$           76,500.00$              
          Total Revenue:  4,559,265.74$     4,650,451.06$         
Admin - Elected Officials
01-410-110 SALARIES 122,734.00$         125,188.68$            
01-410-122 FICA 7,879.52$             8,037.11$                 
01-410-124 MEDICAL REIMBURSMENT HRA 2,750.00$             2,805.00$                 
01-410-125 MEDICAL INSURANCE 7,715.40$             7,869.71$                 
01-410-126 DENTAL INSURANCE 747.36$                 762.31$                    
01-410-127 RETIREMENT 5,762.01$             5,877.25$                 
01-410-128 MEDICARE 1,779.64$             1,815.24$                 
01-410-130 EE ASSISTANCE BENEFITS 263.04$                 268.30$                    
01-410-132 Workers Comp. 172.31$                 175.75$                    
          Total Admin - Council:  149,803.28$         152,799.35$            



ADMINISTRATION
01-415-110 SALARIES 366,577.82$         373,909.38$            
01-415-122 FICA 23,534.30$           24,004.98$              
01-415-124 MEDICAL REIMBURSMENT HRA 16,500.00$           16,830.00$              
01-415-125 INSURANCE-MEDICAL 59,408.40$           60,596.57$              
01-415-126 INSURANCE-DENTAL 2,857.44$             2,914.59$                 
01-415-127 RETIREMENT 43,769.39$           44,644.78$              
01-415-128 MEDICARE 5,315.38$             5,421.69$                 
01-415-130 EE ASSISTANCE BENEFITS 369.12$                 376.50$                    
01-415-132 WORKERS COMP 5,275.53$             5,381.04$                 
01-415-135 Employee  Recognition 1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
01-415-210 BANK FEES 700.00$                 714.00$                    
01-415-211 COMPUTER HARDWARE 7,000.00$             7,140.00$                 
01-415-212 GASOLINE 400.00$                 408.00$                    
01-415-213 MARKETING - ECON DEVELOPMENT 15,000.00$           15,300.00$              
01-415-220 IRRIGATION 6,000.00$             6,120.00$                 
01-415-229 MEMBERSHIPS 16,012.00$           16,332.24$              
01-415-240 SUPPLIES 7,500.00$             7,650.00$                 
01-415-250 TRAINING/CONF/CERTIFICATION 6,000.00$             6,120.00$                 
01-415-252 TRAVEL 4,400.00$             4,488.00$                 
01-415-253 MEETING EXPENSE - MAYOR 1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
01-415-301 PUBLICATION LEGAL NOTICES 8,500.00$             8,670.00$                 
01-415-310 AUTO REPAIR/MAINT 1,800.00$             1,836.00$                 
01-415-312 BILLING SERVICE 33,537.00$           34,207.74$              
01-415-336 COMPUTER SOFTWARE 16,321.00$           16,647.42$              
01-415-337 COMPUTER SUPPORT 14,315.00$           14,601.30$              
01-415-338 DATA ACCESS 5,100.00$             5,202.00$                 
01-415-339 CELL PHONE 441.12$                 449.94$                    
01-415-350 LIABILITY INSURANCE 4,853.00$             4,950.06$                 
01-415-361 SIGNAGE 1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
01-415-363 MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT (OFFICE) 5,700.00$             5,814.00$                 
01-415-364 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 9,000.00$             9,180.00$                 
01-415-370 PLANNING & ZONING - PER DIEM 3,000.00$             3,060.00$                 
01-415-372 POSTAGE 1,550.00$             1,581.00$                 
01-415-401 DATA COLLECT/MAPPING 5,000.00$             5,100.00$                 
01-415-420 PROF FEES ATTORNEY 95,460.00$           97,369.20$              
01-415-422 PROF FEES AUDITOR 4,380.00$             4,467.60$                 
01-415-424 PROF FEES LITIGATION 200,000.00$         204,000.00$            
01-415-430 PROF FEES ENGINEER 300,000.00$         306,000.00$            
01-415-530 CAPITAL OUTLAY -$                       -$                           
01-415-725 COMMUNITY SUPPORT 14,000.00$           14,280.00$              
01-415-750 RESERVE FOR OPERATIONS 52,537.60$           53,588.35$              
01-415-800 MISCELLANEOUS 3,000.00$             3,060.00$                 
01-415-850 INDIRECT COSTS -$                           
          Total ADMINISTRATION:  1,368,114.11$     1,395,476.39$         
POLICE
01-421-110 SALARIES 843,852.18$         860,729.22$            
01-421-122 FICA 54,175.31$           55,258.82$              
01-421-124 MEDICAL REIMBURSMENT HRA 38,500.00$           39,270.00$              
01-421-125 INSURANCE-MEDICAL 142,734.48$         145,589.17$            
01-421-126 INSURANCE-DENTAL 6,906.24$             7,044.36$                 
01-421-127 RETIREMENT 101,920.25$         103,958.65$            
01-421-128 MEDICARE 12,235.86$           12,480.57$              



01-421-130 EE ASSISTANCE BENEFITS 780.24$                 795.84$                    
01-421-132 WORKERS COMP 27,266.53$           27,811.86$              
01-421-140 PRE EMPLOYMENT SCREENING 1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
01-421-211 COMPUTER HARDWARE 3,000.00$             3,060.00$                 
01-421-212 GASOLINE 65,000.00$           66,300.00$              
01-421-229 MEMBERSHIPS 325.00$                 331.50$                    
01-421-240 SUPPLIES 5,000.00$             5,100.00$                 
01-421-250 TRAINING/CONF/CERTIFICATION 6,000.00$             6,120.00$                 
01-421-252 TRAVEL 1,400.00$             1,428.00$                 
01-421-260 UNIFORMS 7,000.00$             7,140.00$                 
01-421-310 AUTO REPAIR/MAINT 30,000.00$           30,600.00$              
01-421-312 BILLING SERVICE 5,589.50$             5,701.29$                 
01-421-335 COMPUTER LICENSE -$                       -$                           
01-421-336 COMPUTER SOFTWARE 11,282.00$           11,507.64$              
01-421-337 COMPUTER SUPPORT 9,057.50$             9,238.65$                 
01-421-338 DATA ACCESS 3,850.00$             3,927.00$                 
01-421-339 CELL PHONE 5,293.44$             5,399.31$                 
01-421-342 EQUIPMENT 12,500.00$           12,750.00$              
01-421-344 EQUIPMENT REPAIR/MAINT 1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
01-421-345 K-9 PROGRAM -$                       -$                           
01-421-350 LIABILITY INSURANCE 9,706.00$             9,900.12$                 
01-421-371 LEASE PAYMENTS 64,487.97$           65,777.73$              
01-421-372 POSTAGE 1,200.00$             1,224.00$                 
01-421-420 PROF FEES ATTORNEY 1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
01-421-530 CAPITAL OUTLAY -$                       -$                           
01-421-531 IMPACT FEE ELIGIBLE 175,000.00$         178,500.00$            
01-421-800 MISCELLANEOUS 2,500.00$             2,550.00$                 
          Total POLICE:  1,649,562.49$     1,682,553.74$         
PUBLIC SAFETY
01-423-110 SALARIES 152,530.56$         155,581.17$            
01-423-122 FICA 9,792.46$             9,988.31$                 
01-423-124 MEDICAL REIMBURSMENT HRA 11,000.00$           11,220.00$              
01-423-125 MEDICAL INSURANCE 37,805.28$           38,561.39$              
01-423-126 INSURANCE-DENTAL 1,779.84$             1,815.44$                 
01-423-127 RETIREMENT 18,212.15$           18,576.39$              
01-423-128 MEDICARE 2,211.69$             2,255.93$                 
01-423-130 EE ASSISTANCE BENEFITS 190.08$                 193.88$                    
01-423-132 WORKERS COMP INS 1,200.00$             1,224.00$                 
01-423-210 CODE ENFORCEMENT 1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
01-423-211 COMPUTER HARDWARE 1,500.00$             1,530.00$                 
01-423-212 GASOLINE 3,500.00$             3,570.00$                 
01-423-229 MEMBERSHIPS 900.00$                 918.00$                    
01-423-240 SUPPLIES 5,000.00$             5,100.00$                 
01-423-250 TRAINING/CERTIFICATION 1,800.00$             1,836.00$                 
01-423-260 UNIFORMS 540.00$                 550.80$                    
01-423-312 AUTO REPAIR/MAINT 2,500.00$             2,550.00$                 
01-423-336 COMPUTER SOFTWARE 17,698.00$           18,051.96$              
01-423-337 COMPUTER SUPPORT 8,507.50$             8,677.65$                 
01-423-338 DATA ACCESS 1,250.00$             1,275.00$                 
01-423-339 CELL PHONE 1,030.08$             1,050.68$                 
01-423-350 LIABILITY INSURANCE 4,853.00$             4,950.06$                 
01-423-372 POSTAGE 700.00$                 714.00$                    
01-423-423 PROF FEES BUILDING PERM/INSP 9,000.00$             9,180.00$                 



01-423-425 PROF FEES ELECTRICAL PERM/INSP 52,800.00$           53,856.00$              
01-423-432 PROF FEES MECHANICAL PERM/INSP 40,200.00$           41,004.00$              
01-423-433 PROF FEES PLUMBING PERM/INSP 36,600.00$           37,332.00$              
01-423-435 PROF FEES PROSECUTING ATTORNEY 15,000.00$           15,300.00$              
01-423-450 FLOOD MAINTENANCE CONTROL 10,000.00$           10,200.00$              
01-423-530 CAPITAL OUTLAY 40,000.00$           40,800.00$              
01-423-621 ELECTRICITY 1,100.00$             1,122.00$                 
01-423-622 STREET LIGHTS -$                       -$                           
01-423-800 MISCELLANEOUS 1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
          Total PUBLIC SAFETY:  491,200.64$         501,024.66$            
BUILDING
01-424-240 SUPPLIES 2,500.00$             2,550.00$                 
01-424-321 BUILDING REPAIRS 10,000.00$           10,200.00$              
01-424-322 BUILDING SECURITY 500.00$                 510.00$                    
01-424-327 CLEANING SERVICES 9,250.00$             9,435.00$                 
01-424-350 LIABILITY INSURANCE 4,853.00$             4,950.06$                 
01-424-351 MAINTENANCE 39,750.00$           40,545.00$              
01-424-381 WATER USAGE 5,000.00$             5,100.00$                 
01-424-383 BUILDING TELEPHONE SERVICE 150.00$                 153.00$                    
01-424-530 CAPITAL OUTLAY 25,000.00$           25,500.00$              
01-424-620 NATURAL GAS 3,780.00$             3,855.60$                 
01-424-621 ELECTRICITY 9,600.00$             9,792.00$                 
01-424-800 MISCELLANEOUS 1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
          Total BUILDING:  111,383.00$         113,610.66$            
PARKS
01-538-110 SALARIES 65,383.84$           66,691.52$              
01-538-120 ANNUAL PHYSICAL 100.00$                 102.00$                    
01-538-122 FICA                          4,197.64$             4,281.60$                 
01-538-124 MEDICAL REIMBURSMENT HRA 5,500.00$             5,610.00$                 
01-538-125 INSURANCE-MEDICAL 22,374.60$           22,822.09$              
01-538-126 INSURANCE-DENTAL 1,032.48$             1,053.13$                 
01-538-127 RETIREMENT 5,944.19$             6,063.07$                 
01-538-128 MEDICARE 948.07$                 967.03$                    
01-538-130 EE ASSISTANCE BENEFITS 95.04$                   96.94$                      
01-538-132 WORKERS COMP                  3,256.54$             3,321.68$                 
01-538-212 GASOLINE 10,000.00$           10,200.00$              
01-538-240 SUPPLIES 5,000.00$             5,100.00$                 
01-538-260 UNIFORMS 500.00$                 510.00$                    
01-538-301 PUBLICATION OF LEGAL NOTICE 300.00$                 306.00$                    
01-538-310 AUTO REPAIR/MAINT 2,500.00$             2,550.00$                 
01-538-312 BILLING SERVICE 5,589.50$             5,701.29$                 
01-538-336 COMPUTER SOFTWARE 199.00$                 202.98$                    
01-538-337 COMPUTER SUPPORT 8,507.50$             8,677.65$                 
01-538-338 DATA ACCESS 1,250.00$             1,275.00$                 
01-538-339 CELL PHONE 441.12$                 449.94$                    
01-538-343 EQUIPMENT RENTAL 3,000.00$             3,060.00$                 
01-538-344 EQUIPMENT REPAIR/MAINT 6,000.00$             6,120.00$                 
01-538-350 LIABILITY INSURANCE           4,853.00$             4,950.06$                 
01-538-351 MAINTENANCE 44,600.00$           45,492.00$              
01-538-352 MINOR EQUIPMENT 3,000.00$             3,060.00$                 
01-538-363 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 200.00$                 204.00$                    
01-538-371 LEASE PAYMENTS 2,337.70$             2,384.45$                 
01-538-372 POSTAGE                       480.00$                 489.60$                    



01-538-381 WATER USAGE 5,500.00$             5,610.00$                 
01-538-384 SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL 1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
01-538-422 PROF FEES AUDITOR 1,620.00$             1,652.40$                 
01-538-430 PROF FEES ENGINEER 20,000.00$           20,400.00$              
01-538-437 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 500.00$                 510.00$                    
01-538-440 SURVEYING 4,000.00$             4,080.00$                 
01-538-530 CAPITAL OUTLAY 105,000.00$         107,100.00$            
01-538-531 IMPACT FEE ELIGIBLE 163,000.00$         166,260.00$            
01-538-621 ELECTRICITY 7,500.00$             7,650.00$                 
01-538-623 PROPANE 4,800.00$             4,896.00$                 
01-538-800 MISCELLANEOUS 702.00$                 716.04$                    
          Total PARKS:  521,212.22$         531,636.47$            
Department: 590
01-590-991 TRANSFER OUT TO LIBRARY 267,990.00$         273,349.80$            
          Total Department: 590:  267,990.00$         273,349.80$            
          Total LIBRARY:  
          Total Expenditure:  4,559,265.74$     4,650,451.06$         
          GENERAL FUND Revenue Total:  4,559,265.74$     4,650,451.06$         
          GENERAL FUND Expenditure Total:  4,559,265.74$     4,650,451.06$         
          Net Total GENERAL FUND:  (0.00)$                    (0.00)$                       
STREETS & ALLEYS FUND
02-311-402 PROPERTY TAX COLLECTIONS 1,294,470.40$     1,320,359.81$         
02-311-405 RESERVES 88,638.60$           90,411.37$              
02-315-404 STATE REVENUE SHARE-SALES TAX 525,096.06$         535,597.98$            
02-315-502 IDAHO POWER FRANCHISE         54,000.00$           55,080.00$              
02-335-250 HIGHWAY USERS 337,139.80$         343,882.60$            
02-335-251 HIGHWAY USERS - HB 312 106,036.15$         108,156.87$            
02-335-252 HIGHWAY USERS - HB 362 61,981.80$           63,221.44$              
02-335-900 GRANT -$                           
02-338-015 COUNTY ROAD & BRIDGE          61,750.00$           62,985.00$              
02-343-100 GRAVEL PIT REVENUE -$                       -$                           
02-369-080 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 10,000.00$           10,200.00$              
02-381-700 INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS       1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
02-390-007 CASH CARRY OVER 867,500.00$         884,850.00$            
02-390-991 TRANSFER IN 1,456,000.00$     1,485,120.00$         
          Total Revenue:  4,863,612.81$     4,960,885.07$         
STREETS & ALLEYS FUND
02-431-110 SALARIES 239,114.61$         243,896.90$            
02-431-120 ANNUAL PHYSICAL 250.00$                 255.00$                    
02-431-122 FICA 15,351.16$           15,658.18$              
02-431-124 MEDICAL REIMBURSMENT HRA 10,083.33$           10,285.00$              
02-431-125 INSURANCE-MEDICAL 30,604.28$           31,216.37$              
02-431-126 INSURANCE-DENTAL 1,589.76$             1,621.56$                 
02-431-127 RETIREMENT 26,687.64$           27,221.40$              
02-431-128 MEDICARE 3,467.16$             3,536.51$                 
02-431-130 EE ASSISTANCE BENEFITS 263.76$                 269.04$                    
02-431-132 WORKERS COMP 11,557.60$           11,788.75$              
02-431-133 CONTRIB TO GEN F 123,464.43$         125,933.72$            
02-431-211 COMPUTER HARDWARE 1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
02-431-212 GASOLINE                      23,185.44$           23,649.15$              
02-431-240 SUPPLIES 4,320.00$             4,406.40$                 
02-431-241 SIGNAGE SUPPLIES 3,780.00$             3,855.60$                 
02-431-250 TRAINING/CONF/CERTIFICATION 500.00$                 510.00$                    



02-431-260 UNIFORMS 900.00$                 918.00$                    
02-431-301 PUBLICATION OF LEGAL NOTICE 800.00$                 816.00$                    
02-431-310 AUTO REPAIR/MAINT 5,940.00$             6,058.80$                 
02-431-312 BILLING SERVICE 11,179.00$           11,402.58$              
02-431-316 BRIDGE INSPECTION             9,500.00$             9,690.00$                 
02-431-320 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 2,000.00$             2,040.00$                 
02-431-327 CLEANING SERVICE 250.00$                 255.00$                    
02-431-336 COMPUTER SOFTWARE 1,040.00$             1,060.80$                 
02-431-337 COMPUTER SUPPORT 8,507.50$             8,677.65$                 
02-431-338 DATA ACCESS 2,550.00$             2,601.00$                 
02-431-339 CELL PHONE 1,897.56$             1,935.51$                 
02-431-344 EQUIPMENT REPAIR/MAINT 79,489.08$           81,078.86$              
02-431-350 LIABILITY INSURANCE           4,853.00$             4,950.06$                 
02-431-351 MAINTENANCE 492,800.00$         502,656.00$            
02-431-352 MINOR EQUIPMENT (UNDER $500) 3,075.84$             3,137.36$                 
02-431-363 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 1,050.00$             1,071.00$                 
02-431-364 OFFICE EQUIPMENT -$                       -$                           
02-431-371 LEASE PAYMENTS 2,337.70$             2,384.45$                 
02-431-372 POSTAGE                       648.00$                 660.96$                    
02-431-381 WATER USAGE 1,600.00$             1,632.00$                 
02-431-384 SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL 4,000.00$             4,080.00$                 
02-431-401 DATA COLLECT/MAPPING 2,160.00$             2,203.20$                 
02-431-420 PROF FEES ATTORNEY 1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
02-431-422 PROF FEES AUDITOR 1,800.00$             1,836.00$                 
02-431-424 PROF FEES LITIGATION 15,000.00$           15,300.00$              
02-431-430 PROF FEES ENGINEER 746,015.96$         760,936.28$            
02-431-440 SURVEYING 1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
02-431-530 CAPITAL OUTLAY 310,000.00$         316,200.00$            
02-431-531 IMPACT FEE ELIGIBLE 1,800,000.00$     1,836,000.00$         
02-431-540 LAND ACQUISITION 803,000.00$         819,060.00$            
02-431-622 STREET LIGHTS 42,000.00$           42,840.00$              
02-431-623 PROPANE 11,000.00$           11,220.00$              
02-431-800 MISCELLANEOUS 1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
          Total Department:STREETS:  4,863,612.81$     4,960,885.06$         
Department: 590
02-590-991 TRANSFER OUT
          Total Department: 590:  -$                       -$                           
Department: 660
          Total Expenditure:  4,863,612.81$     4,960,885.06$         
          STREETS & ALLEYS FUND Revenue Total: 4,863,612.81$     4,960,885.07$         
          STREETS & ALLEYS FUND Expenditure Total: 4,863,612.81$     4,960,885.06$         
          Net Total STREETS & ALLEYS FUND:  0.00$                     0.00$                         
SPECIAL REVENUE LIBRARY
04-380-080 COPY/PRINT 1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
04-381-202 FINES 750.00$                 765.00$                    
04-381-402 PROPERTY TAX COLLECTIONS 267,990.00$         273,349.80$            
04-381-550 FUNDRAISING/LIBRARY PROGRAMS 713.00$                 727.26$                    
04-381-700 INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 125.00$                 127.50$                    
04-386-312 NON RESIDENT FEES 3,000.00$             3,060.00$                 
04-387-900 GRANTS 5,000.00$             5,100.00$                 
04-390-007 CASH CARRY OVER 25,000.00$           25,500.00$              
          Total Revenue:  303,578.00$         309,649.56$            
MIDDLETON PUBLIC LIBRARY



04-660-110 SALARIES 141,509.00$         144,339.18$            
04-660-122 FICA 9,084.87$             9,266.57$                 
04-660-129 MEDICAL REIMBURSMENT HRA 5,500.00$             5,610.00$                 
04-660-125 INSURANCE-MEDICAL 15,430.68$           15,739.29$              
04-660-126 INSURANCE-DENTAL 747.36$                 762.31$                    
04-660-127 RETIREMENT 12,445.42$           12,694.33$              
04-660-128 MEDICARE 2,051.88$             2,092.92$                 
04-660-130 EE ASSISTANCE BENEFITS 95.04$                   96.94$                      
04-660-131 RESERVE-UNEMPLOYMENT CLAIMS 500.00$                 510.00$                    
04-660-132 WORKERS COMP 525.00$                 535.50$                    
04-660-133 CONTRIB GEN FUND 12,365.17$           12,612.47$              
04-660-211 COMPUTER HARDWARE 3,000.00$             3,060.00$                 
04-660-212 GASOLINE 450.00$                 459.00$                    
04-660-213 MARKETING 1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
04-660-227 LIBRARY PROGRAMS 3,500.00$             3,570.00$                 
04-660-229 MEMBERSHIPS 500.00$                 510.00$                    
04-660-240 SUPPLIES 5,600.00$             5,712.00$                 
04-660-250 TRAINING/CONF/CERTIFICATION 600.00$                 612.00$                    
04-660-260 UNIFORMS 130.00$                 132.60$                    
04-660-310 AUTO REPAIR/MAINT 1,250.00$             1,275.00$                 
04-660-320 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 2,500.00$             2,550.00$                 
04-660-321 BUILDING REPAIRS 3,000.00$             3,060.00$                 
04-660-322 BUILDING SECURITY 2,000.00$             2,040.00$                 
04-660-325 CATALOGING SERVICE/RESOURCE SH 3,100.00$             3,162.00$                 
04-660-327 CLEANING SERVICE 1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
04-660-336 COMPUTER SOFTWARE 3,000.00$             3,060.00$                 
04-660-337 COMPUTER SUPPORT 4,000.00$             4,080.00$                 
04-660-338 DATA ACCESS 2,200.00$             2,244.00$                 
04-660-350 LIABILITY INSURANCE 5,670.00$             5,783.40$                 
04-660-363 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 950.00$                 969.00$                    
04-660-364 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 2,000.00$             2,040.00$                 
04-660-372 POSTAGE 1,600.00$             1,632.00$                 
04-660-381 WATER USAGE 620.00$                 632.40$                    
04-660-382 WASTE WATER 741.00$                 755.82$                    
04-660-383 TELEPHONE SERVICE 900.00$                 918.00$                    
04-660-384 SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL 618.00$                 630.36$                    
04-660-410 GRANTS 5,000.00$             5,100.00$                 
04-660-420 PROF FEES ATTORNEY 1,750.00$             1,785.00$                 
04-660-422 PROF FEES AUDITOR 1,717.00$             1,751.34$                 
04-660-500 Asset Management Acquisition A (Tax) 113.00$                 115.26$                    
04-660-530 CAPITAL OUTLAY 19,052.58$           19,433.63$              
04-660-535 COLLECTIONS 20,000.00$           20,400.00$              
04-660-620 NATURAL GAS 412.00$                 420.24$                    
04-660-621 ELECTRICITY 4,750.00$             4,845.00$                 
04-660-800 MISCELLANEOUS - LIBRARY 600.00$                 612.00$                    
          Total PUBLIC LIBRARY EXPENSE:  303,578.00$         309,649.56$            
          TOTAL PUBLIC LIBRARY REVENUE:  303,578.00$         309,649.56$            
          Net TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE:  -$                       -$                           
GARBAGE FUND
30-346-500 GARBAGE COLLECTIONS 700,000.00$         714,000.00$            
30-369-080 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 14,000.00$           14,280.00$              
30-381-700 INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS       25.00$                   25.50$                      
30-390-007 CASH CARRY OVER -$                           



          Total Revenue:  714,025.00$         728,305.50$            
GARBAGE EXPENSE
30-433-133 CONTRIB GEN FUND SAL OVERHEAD 22,435.58$           22,884.30$              
30-433-200 FRANCHISE PAYABLE             665,356.62$         678,663.75$            
30-433-240 SUPPLIES 100.00$                 102.00$                    
30-433-312 BILLING SERVICE 14,125.30$           14,407.80$              
30-433-337 COMPUTER SUPPORT 6,257.50$             6,382.65$                 
30-433-338 DATA ACCESS 1,250.00$             1,275.00$                 
30-433-372 POSTAGE                       1,700.00$             1,734.00$                 
30-433-422 PROF FEES AUDITOR 1,800.00$             1,836.00$                 
30-433-800 MISCELLANEOUS 1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
          Total Department: 433:  714,025.00$         728,305.50$            
Department: 590
30-590-991 TRANSFER OUT
          Total Department: 590:  
          Total Expenditure:  714,025.00$         728,305.50$            
          GARBAGE FUND Revenue Total:  714,025.00$         728,305.50$            
          GARBAGE FUND Expenditure Total:  714,025.00$         728,305.50$            
          Net Total GARBAGE FUND:  (0.00)$                    0.00$                         
WATER FUND
60-346-001 AFTER HOUR FEE - OTHER 750.00$                 765.00$                    
60-346-301 LATE FEES                     20,000.00$           20,400.00$              
60-346-805 WATER COLLECTIONS             950,000.00$         969,000.00$            
60-346-806 WATER HOOKUPS 710,559.41$         724,770.60$            
60-369-080 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 5,000.00$             5,100.00$                 
60-373-153 INSPECTIONS-WATER SYSTEM 2,187.50$             2,231.25$                 
60-380-203 RENT                          10,591.08$           10,802.90$              
60-381-700 INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 2,500.00$             2,550.00$                 
60-390-990 TRANSFER-IN 561,347.53$         572,574.48$            
          Total Revenue:  2,262,935.52$     2,308,194.23$         
Department: 434
60-434-110 SALARIES                      334,223.91$         340,908.39$            
60-434-120 ANNUAL PHYSICAL               200.00$                 204.00$                    
60-434-122 FICA                          21,457.18$           21,886.32$              
60-434-124 MEDICAL REIMBURSMENT HRA 18,333.33$           18,700.00$              
60-434-125 INSURANCE-MEDICAL 67,638.20$           68,990.96$              
60-434-126 INSURANCE-DENTAL 3,405.60$             3,473.71$                 
60-434-127 RETIREMENT 39,906.34$           40,704.46$              
60-434-128 MEDICARE                      4,846.25$             4,943.17$                 
60-434-130 EE ASSISTANCE BENEFITS 453.84$                 462.92$                    
60-434-132 WORKERS COMP 12,769.59$           13,024.98$              
60-434-133 CONTRIB GEN FUND SAL OVERHEAD 135,505.76$         138,215.88$            
60-434-211 COMPUTER HARDWARE 1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
60-434-212 GASOLINE                      18,000.00$           18,360.00$              
60-434-229 MEMBERSHIPS 2,125.00$             2,167.50$                 
60-434-240 SUPPLIES 6,500.00$             6,630.00$                 
60-434-250 TRAINING/CONF/CERTIFICATION 5,000.00$             5,100.00$                 
60-434-260 UNIFORMS 850.00$                 867.00$                    
60-434-301 PUBLICATION OF LEGAL NOTICE 750.00$                 765.00$                    
60-434-310 AUTO REPAIR/MAINT 10,000.00$           10,200.00$              
60-434-312 BILLING SERVICE 28,658.00$           29,231.16$              
60-434-320 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 3,112.00$             3,174.24$                 
60-434-327 CLEANING SERVICE 400.00$                 408.00$                    



60-434-336 COMPUTER SOFTWARE 4,955.00$             5,054.10$                 
60-434-337 COMPUTER SUPPORT 13,411.25$           13,679.48$              
60-434-338 DATA ACCESS 4,500.00$             4,590.00$                 
60-434-339 CELL PHONE 2,087.28$             2,129.03$                 
60-434-344 EQUIPMENT REPAIR/MAINT 1,050.00$             1,071.00$                 
60-434-350 LIABILITY INSURANCE           4,853.00$             4,950.06$                 
60-434-351 MAINTENANCE 92,000.00$           93,840.00$              
60-434-352 MINOR EQUIPMENT (UNDER $500) 1,200.00$             1,224.00$                 
60-434-363 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 1,263.00$             1,288.26$                 
60-434-371 LEASE PAYMENTS 9,500.00$             9,690.00$                 
60-434-372 POSTAGE                       850.00$                 867.00$                    
60-434-374 RENTAL              1,500.00$             1,530.00$                 
60-434-375 SAMPLE TESTING/INSPECTION 2,500.00$             2,550.00$                 
60-434-381 WATER USAGE 1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
60-434-383 TELEPHONE SERVICE 300.00$                 306.00$                    
60-434-384 SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL 1,500.00$             1,530.00$                 
60-434-401 DATA COLLECT/MAPPING 1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
60-434-422 PROF FEES AUDITOR 1,950.00$             1,989.00$                 
60-434-430 PROF FEES ENGINEER 188,900.00$         192,678.00$            
60-434-530 CAPITAL OUTLAY 1,042,481.00$     1,063,330.62$         
60-434-621 ELECTRICITY 60,000.00$           61,200.00$              
60-434-623 PROPANE 10,500.00$           10,710.00$              
60-434-801 DEPRECIATION 100,000.00$         102,000.00$            
60-434-800 MISCELLANEOUS 500.00$                 510.00$                    
          Total Department: 434:  2,262,935.52$     2,308,194.23$         
Department: 590
60-590-991 TRANSFER OUT -$                       -$                           
          Total Department: 590:  -$                       -$                           
          Total Expenditure:  2,262,935.52$     2,308,194.23$         
          WATER FUND Revenue Total:  2,262,935.52$     2,308,194.23$         
          WATER FUND Expenditure Total:  2,262,935.52$     2,308,194.23$         
          Net Total WATER FUND:  0.00$                     0.00$                         
SEWER FUND
61-346-800 SEWER COLLECTIONS             2,300,000.00$     2,346,000.00$         
61-346-801 SEWER HOOKUPS                 1,169,418.08$     1,192,806.44$         
61-373-153 INSPECTIONS-SEWER SYSTEM 2,187.50$             2,231.25$                 
61-381-700 INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS       3,000.00$             3,060.00$                 
61-390-007 CASH CARRY OVER               2,769,967.36$     2,825,366.71$         
          Total Revenue:  6,244,572.94$     6,369,464.39$         
Department: 435
61-435-110 SALARIES                      423,390.55$         431,858.36$            
61-435-120 ANNUAL PHYSICAL               195.00$                 198.90$                    
61-435-122 FICA                          27,181.67$           27,725.31$              
61-435-124 MEDICAL REIMBURSMENT HRA 29,333.34$           29,920.01$              
61-435-125 INSURANCE-MEDICAL 104,671.88$         106,765.32$            
61-435-126 INSURANCE-DENTAL 5,021.04$             5,121.46$                 
61-435-127 RETIREMENT 50,552.83$           51,563.89$              
61-435-128 MEDICARE                      6,139.16$             6,261.95$                 
61-435-130 EE ASSISTANCE BENEFITS 548.88$                 559.86$                    
61-435-132 WORKERS COMP                7,821.11$             7,977.54$                 
61-435-133 CONTRIB GEN FUND SAL OVERHEAD 135,505.76$         138,215.88$            
61-435-211 COMPUTER HARDWARE 2,000.00$             2,040.00$                 
61-435-212 GASOLINE                      10,000.00$           10,200.00$              



61-435-229 MEMBERSHIPS 2,570.00$             2,621.40$                 
61-435-240 SUPPLIES 5,500.00$             5,610.00$                 
61-435-250 TRAINING/CONF/CERTIFICATION 5,000.00$             5,100.00$                 
61-435-260 UNIFORMS 1,300.00$             1,326.00$                 
61-435-301 PUBLICATION OF LEGAL NOTICE 1,300.00$             1,326.00$                 
61-435-310 AUTO REPAIR/MAINT 3,500.00$             3,570.00$                 
61-435-312 BILLING SERVICE 28,658.00$           29,231.16$              
61-435-320 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 3,112.00$             3,174.24$                 
61-435-327 CLEANING SERVICE 520.00$                 530.40$                    
61-435-336 COMPUTER SOFTWARE 15,040.00$           15,340.80$              
61-435-337 COMPUTER SUPPORT 13,411.25$           13,679.48$              
61-435-338 DATA ACCESS 4,500.00$             4,590.00$                 
61-435-339 CELL PHONE 1,897.56$             1,935.51$                 
61-435-341 CONTRACTED SERVICES 104,735.00$         106,829.70$            
61-435-344 EQUIPMENT REPAIR/MAINT 12,000.00$           12,240.00$              
61-435-350 LIABILITY INSURANCE           4,853.00$             4,950.06$                 
61-435-351 MAINTENANCE 55,000.00$           56,100.00$              
61-435-352 MINOR EQUIPMENT (UNDER $500)  6,500.00$             6,630.00$                 
61-435-353 Maintenance - Collections 525,650.00$         536,163.00$            
61-435-363 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 1,263.00$             1,288.26$                 
61-435-371 LEASE PAYMENTS 9,400.00$             9,588.00$                 
61-435-372 POSTAGE                       1,700.00$             1,734.00$                 
61-435-374 RENTAL              1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
61-435-375 SAMPLE TESTING/INSPECTION 48,000.00$           48,960.00$              
61-435-381 WATER USAGE -$                       -$                           
61-435-383 TELEPHONE SERVICE 400.00$                 408.00$                    
61-435-384 SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL 5,000.00$             5,100.00$                 
61-435-401 DATA COLLECTION/MAPPING 5,000.00$             5,100.00$                 
61-435-420 PROF FEES ATTORNEY 1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
61-435-422 PROF FEES AUDITOR 1,950.00$             1,989.00$                 
61-435-430 PROF FEES ENGINEER 2,674,000.00$     2,727,480.00$         
61-435-440 SURVEYING 2,500.00$             2,550.00$                 
61-435-510 BUILDINGS 2,500.00$             2,550.00$                 
61-435-530 CAPITAL OUTLAY 846,000.00$         862,920.00$            
61-435-531 COLLECTIONS - CAPITAL OUTLAY 810,459.89$         826,669.09$            
61-435-610 SEWER BOND PAYMENT 138,292.00$         141,057.84$            
61-435-620 NATURAL GAS 1,700.00$             1,734.00$                 
61-435-621 ELECTRICITY 75,000.00$           76,500.00$              
61-435-623 PROPANE 13,000.00$           13,260.00$              
61-435-801 DEPRECIATION -$                       -$                           
61-435-725 IPDES ANNUAL FEE 8,000.00$             8,160.00$                 
61-435-800 MISCELLANEOUS 1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
          Total Department: 435:  6,244,572.94$     6,369,464.40$         
Department: 590
61-590-991 TRANSFER OUT -$                       -$                           
          Total Department: 590:  -$                       -$                           
          Total Expenditure:  6,244,572.94$     6,369,464.40$         
          SEWER FUND Revenue Total:  6,244,572.94$     6,369,464.39$         
          SEWER FUND Expenditure Total:  6,244,572.94$     6,369,464.40$         
          Net Total SEWER FUND:  (0.00)$                    (0.00)$                       
STORM WATER MANAGEMENT FUND
62-346-803 STORM WATER COLLECTIONS 71,000.00$           72,420.00$              
62-390-007 Cash Carry Forward 25,000.00$           25,500.00$              



          Total Revenue:  96,000.00$           97,920.00$              
STORM WATER MANAGEMENT
62-436-133 CONTRIB TO GEN FUND SAL OVERHEAD 
62-436-312 BILLING SERVICE 5,453.70$             5,562.77$                 
62-436-351 MAINTENANCE 32,500.00$           33,150.00$              
62-436-430 PROF FEES ENGINEER 57,046.30$           58,187.23$              
62-436-530 CAPITAL OUTLAY -$                       -$                           
62-436-800 MISCELLANEOUS 1,000.00$             1,020.00$                 
          Total STORM WATER MANAGEMENT: 
          Total Expenditure:  96,000.00$           97,920.00$              
          STORM WATER MANAGEMENT FUND Revenue Total: 96,000.00$           97,920.00$              
          STORM WATER MANAGEMENT FUND Expenditure Total: 96,000.00$           97,920.00$              
          Net Total STORM WATER MANAGEMENT FUND: -$                       -$                           
IMPACT FEE FUND
70-399-010 CITY TRANSPORTATION IMPACT FEE 505,000.00$         515,100.00$            
70-399-030 DEVELOPER PRO-RATA FEES -$                           
70-399-050 CITY POLICE IMPACT FEE 53,200.00$           54,264.00$              
70-399-799 CITY PARKS IMPACT FEE 163,000.00$         166,260.00$            
70-390-991 TRANSFER IN/CARRY FORWARD 1,515,300.00$     1,545,606.00$         
          Total Revenue:  2,236,500.00$     2,281,230.00$         
Department: 590
70-590-991 TRANSFER OUT 2,061,500.00$     2,102,730.00$         
Middleton Police TRANSFER OUT 175,000.00$         178,500.00$            
          Total Department: 590:  2,236,500.00$     2,281,230.00$         
          Total Expenditure:  2,236,500.00$     2,281,230.00$         
          IMPACT FEE FUND Revenue Total:  2,236,500.00$     2,281,230.00$         
          IMPACT FEE FUND Expenditure Total: 2,236,500.00$     2,281,230.00$         
          Net Total IMPACT FEE FUND:  -$                       -$                           

          Grand Total Expenditure:  21,280,490.01$   21,706,099.80$       
         Grand Total Revenue: 21,280,490.01$   21,706,099.81$       

DIFFERENCE: (0.00)$                    0.00$                         



 

EXHIBIT “C” 



Kv.J&ot 
PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

This PURCHASE AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of 
this 11 t" day of June 2022 ("Effective Date") between The 
Wetlands Group, LLC hereinafter referred to as "Seller" and 
TWG) and City of Middleton, Idaho (hereinafter referred to as 
"Purchaser"). Seller agrees to sell, and purchaser agrees to buy 
wetlands mitigation credits in accordance with and pursuant to 
this Purchase Agreement ("Agreement"). 

FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the covenants and 
conditions herein contained, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
is hereby acknowledged by and between the parties hereto, 
Seller and Purchaser agree as follows: 

I.SALE 

Seller shall sell to Purchaser and Purchaser shall purchase from 
Seller wetland mitigation credits of 1/9 acres to compensate for 
wetland impacts from the Middleton Road Realignment Project. 
The United States Corps of Engineers project number is NWW-
2019-0298-BO3. See attached Exhibit A for a detailed 
explanation of credits required and credits purchased. 

2. PAYMENTS: 

Purchaser shall pay Seller for the credits in accordance with the 
terms and condition of the Agreement as folJows: 

A. Purchaser shall pay a sum total of $211,000. 
'16b, ()00 ~;t JuJ1.1, u, 21>z.:z. e,.RC1/J'llt..'t,., 

B. Purchaser shall deliver payment to Seller as Follows,$ 
50,000 due at signing, and ti 6i ,668 dut Nov 3 P 2022. 
The purchaser reserves the right to addend this 
agreement to satisfy the approved amount of mitigation 
acres. 

3. SELLERS SERVICE: 



Seller operates The Wetland Banks ofldaho and is authorized to 
and agrees to sell Credits to purchaser as follows; 

A. Seller shall provide wetland mitigation credits to 
compensate for 1.88 acres of unavoidable pennanent wetland 
impacts. TWG is required to provide credits in one tenth acre 
increments, therefore 1.9 acres of wetland credit will be 
provided. The credit quantities and ecotypes are detailed in 
Exhibit A. 

B. Upon receipt of the consideration specified in Paragraph 
2, Seller assumes the responsibility to provide the wetlands 
mitigation specified· in Paragraph 3 .A. 
C. Seller shall provide or has provided the wetlands 
mitigation in accordance with the terms and condition of 
the Umbrella Mitigation Banking Instrument approved by 
the corps. 

4. WARRANTY: 

A. Seller's Warranty. Seller warrants that it is a duly 
authorized Idaho Limited Liability corporation, is in 
good standing and has the authority and approval from 
the Corps to sell mitigation credits and warrants that the 
wetlands mitigation shall be in accordance with the tenns 
and conditions of the Umbre1la Mitigation Banking 
Instrument. Purchaser's sole remedy with respect to 
failure of SeJler to perform in accordance with the 
specifications of the Umbre11a Mitigation Banking 
Instrument shall be Purchaser can require Seller to 
provide alternative wetlands mitigation as agreed to by 
SeJler and the Corps at no additional cost to Purchaser. 

B.1. Purchaser's Warranty; Purchaser warrants that the 
undersigned representative is duly authorized to 
enter into the Agreement. Purchaser further warrant that it 
has 

The financial capability to perfonn under this 
Agreement and to it knowledge, there 

are no legal impediments restricting or otherwise 
exiting that would prevent 



Purchaser from performing. 

2. Purchaser further warrants that the Corps and/or 
Purchaser have calculated and 

Determined that the wetlands loss attributed to the 
project ( Middleton Road 

Realignment Project); Corps Pennit No. NWW-
2019-0298-803 is 1.88 acre. 

5. INSOLVENCY OF PURCHASER: 

In case of the filing of a petition in bankruptcy by or 
against Purchaser, or the appointment of a receiver for 
Purchaser, or the insolvency of Purchaser, prior to 
Purchaser's full perfonnance under this Agreement, Seller 
may tenninate this Agreement. 

6. SAVINGS AND SEYERABILITY PROVISIONS: 

The parties agree that if a portion of this Agreement or if 
the application of this Agreement to any person or 
circumstance shall to any extent be declared invalid by a 
court of competent jurisdiction, then the remainder of this 
Agreement and the application of such provisions to 
persons or circumstances other than those held to be 

Invalid shall not be affected thereby. Moreover, each 
provision of the Agreement shall be valid and enforced to 
the fullest extent permitted by applicable law. 

7, ASSIGNMENT: 

This Agreement is not assignable, and the duties hereunder 
are not delegable without Seller's written consent. 

8. ENTIRE AFREEMENT: 



This Agreement contains the entire understanding between 
the parties with respect to 

The subject matter hereof. Furthennore, this Agreement 
supersedes and revokes all 

Previous communications, negotiations, and agreements, 
whether oral or written, between the parties with respect to 
the subject matter of the Agreement. No addition, 
Modification or deletion of or to this Agreement or any 
waiver of any of its provisions 
Shall be binding on either party unless made in writing and 
executed by Seller and Purchaser by addendum to this 
Agreement. 

9. JURISDICITON: 

This Agreement shall be governed and construed for all 
purposes under and in accordance with the laws of the State 
ofldaho. 

10. NOTICE: 

Any notice required under this Agreement shall be sent to 
the following persons at the addresses indicated: 

The Address of the Seller is: 

The Wetlands Group, LLC 
13023 NE Hwy 99 Suite #255 
Vancouver, WA 98686 

The Address of the Purchaser is: 

City of Middleton 
1103 W Main Street 
Middleton, ID 83644 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this 
Purchase Agreement, the day and year first above written. 



The Wetlands Group, LLC 

.Signature 

____..-;, ~ 7 lL-----7',I 

Gary Howard 

Date b _ //- J. 'J. 

WENDY S MILES 
COMM.# 20182198 

NOTARY PUBLIC 
STATE OF IDAHO 

MY COMM. EXP. NOV. 5, 2024 



Jennica Reynolds 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

----~Original Message-----

Becky Crofts 
Monday, July 18, 2022 1:32 PM 
Jennica Reynolds 
FW: Wetlands PSA 

From: Gary Howard <GHoward@thewetlandsgroup.com> 
Sent: Monday, July 11, 2022 4:54 PM 
To: Becky Crofts <bcrofts@middletoncity.com> 
Cc: Steve Rule <srule@middletoncity.com>; Wendy Miles <wmiles@middletoncity.com> 
Subject: Re: Wetlands PSA 

Thanks Becky. Appreciate it 

Sent from my iPhone 

> On Jul 11, 2022, at 3:51 PM, Becky Crofts <bcrofts@middletoncity.com> wrote: 
> 
> Hi Gary-­
> 

> Mayor Rule asked me to respond to your request to pay the balance of the wetland credits in this fiscal year. The city 
council will consider this item at the July 20, 2022 meeting. lf approved by the council, a check will be ready in the 
amount of $150,000.00 July 21, 2022. Thank you for working with the city to reduce the amount needed for this 
purchase. 
> 
> Becky 
> 

> -----0 rigina I Message-----
> From: Steve Rule <srule@middletoncity.com> 
> Sent: Friday, July 1, 2022 8:46 AM 
> To: Wendy Miles <wmiles@middletoncity.com>; Becky Crofts <bcrofts@middletoncity.com> 
> Subject: FW: Wetlands PSA 
> 

> Thoughts? 
>SR 
> 
> -----Original Message-----
> From: Gary Howard <GHoward@thewetlandsgroup.com> 
> Sent: Friday, July 1, 2022 8:17 AM 
> To: Steve Rule <srule@middletoncity.com> 
> Subject: Wetlands PSA 
> 
> Good morning Steve. Thanks for your time yesterday. As I mentioned I am trying to pay off some medical bills so if the 
city wants to save a little money I can offer a discount for the wetland credits. There is $161,000 dollars due in 
November of 2022. If the city can pay the PSA next week, I could reduce that to $150,000 dollars, a savings of $11,000 



dollars for the city. That would be a total discount of $37,000 dollars from the original quote . Thanks for your 
consideration and r look forward to hearing back from you. Have a good 4th of July holiday. 
> 

> Sent from my iPhone 

2 



EXHIBIT “D” 



WEST HIGHLANDS RANCH SUBDIVISION NO. 15

(208) 288-2040   fax (208) 288-2557
MERIDIAN, ID  83642

231 E. 5TH ST., STE. A

www.landsolutions.biz

BOOK ____ , PAGE _____

SHEET 1 OF 4

LEGEND

NOTES

A PORTION OF GOVERNMENT LOT 4 OF SECTION 36, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 3 WEST, B.M.
CITY OF MIDDLETON, CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO

2022

CLINTON W. HANSEN
PLS 11118

PLASTIC CAP
SET 5/8" REBAR WITH PLS 11118

FOUND ALUMINUM CAP MONUMENT

SECTION LINE

PLASTIC CAP EASEMENT MARKER
SET 1/2" REBAR WITH PLS 11118

CALCULATED POINT, NOT SET

CENTER LINE

PLASTIC CAP, OR AS NOTED
FOUND 1/2" REBAR WITH PLS 11118

PLASTIC CAP, OR AS NOTED
FOUND 5/8" REBAR WITH PLS 11118

SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY LINE
LOT LINE

LOT NUMBER

SURVEY TIE LINE

ADJACENT PROPERTY LINE

FOUND BRASS CAP MONUMENT
SURVEYOR'S NARRATIVE
THE BOUNDARY FOR THIS SUBDIVISION WAS DEVELOPED FROM SURVEYED TIES TO
CONTROLLING SECTION CORNER MONUMENTATION, THE PLATTED SUBDIVISION
BOUNDARIES OF WEST HIGHLANDS RANCH SUBDIVISION NO. 13, WEST HIGHLANDS
RANCH SUBDIVISION NO. 14, INFORMATION FROM RECORD OF SURVEY NUMBERS
200010162, 200260111, 200428075, 200556086, AND 2012002618, AND CURRENT DEEDS
OF RECORD.  THE SURVEYED MONUMENTATION AND CONTROLLING BOUNDARIES
FIT THE RECORDS WELL AND WERE ACCEPTED TO ESTABLISH THE BOUNDARY FOR
THIS SUBDIVISION SHOWN HEREON.

50' 200'100'0'

SCALE: 1" = 100'

1. ALL LOTS ARE HEREBY DESIGNATED AS HAVING A PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES, CITY OF MIDDLETON
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT, AND SIDEWALKS OVER THE SIXTEEN (16) FEET ADJACENT TO ANY PUBLIC STREET. THIS
EASEMENT SHALL NOT PRECLUDE THE CONSTRUCTION OF HARD-SURFACED DRIVEWAYS AND WALKWAYS TO EACH
LOT.

2. UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN AND DIMENSIONED, ALL LOTS ARE HEREBY DESIGNATED AS HAVING A PERMANENT
EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES, PRESSURE IRRIGATION AND LOT DRAINAGE OVER THE FIVE (5) FEET ADJACENT TO
ANY INTERIOR SIDE LOT LINE, AND OVER THE TEN (10) FEET ADJACENT TO ANY REAR LOT LINE OR SUBDIVISION
BOUNDARY.

3. THE OWNER HAS PROVIDED IRRIGATION WATER TO EACH LOT THROUGH A PRESSURIZED IRRIGATION SYSTEM, TO BE
OWNED AND MAINTAINED BY THE MEADOWS AT WEST HIGHLANDS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION IN COMPLIANCE WITH
THE IDAHO CODE SECTION 31-3805(1)(b).  ALL LOTS WILL BE SUBJECT TO ASSESSMENTS OF THE BLACK CANYON
IRRIGATION DISTRICT.

4. BUILDING SETBACKS AND DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE
APPLICABLE ZONING REGULATIONS OF THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT OR AS SPECIFICALLY APPROVED.

5. MAINTENANCE OF ANY IRRIGATION OR DRAINAGE PIPE OR DITCH CROSSING A LOT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE LOT
OWNER UNLESS SUCH RESPONSIBILITY IS ASSUMED BY AN IRRIGATION/DRAINAGE ENTITY OR THE HOMEOWNERS
ASSOCIATION.

6. THE BOTTOM ELEVATION OF STRUCTURAL FOOTINGS SHALL BE SET A MINIMUM OF 12 INCHES ABOVE THE HIGHEST
ESTABLISHED GROUND WATER ELEVATION.

7. LOTS 22, 34 AND 42, BLOCK 37; LOT 84, BLOCK 49; LOT 1, BLOCK 50 AND LOT 10, BLOCK 57 ARE COMMON LOTS TO BE
OWNED AND MAINTAINED BY THE MEADOWS AT WEST HIGHLANDS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, OR ITS ASSIGNS.
SAID LOTS ARE COVERED BY BLANKET PUBLIC UTILITIES, IRRIGATION, PEDESTRIAN ACCESS AND HOMEOWNERS
ASSOCIATION LANDSCAPING EASEMENTS.  ALL OTHER LOTS ARE FOR SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLINGS.

8. THIS DEVELOPMENT IS SUBJECT TO THE TERMS OF A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT RECORDED AS INSTRUMENT NO.
2009015525, RECORDS OF CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO.

9. DIRECT LOT OR PARCEL ACCESS TO EMMETT ROAD OR HIGHLAND RANCH PARKWAY IS PROHIBITED.
11.   ANY FENCES, LANDSCAPING OR ANY OTHER STRUCTURES INSTALLED IN AN EASEMENT AREA MAY BE REMOVED BY

THE CITY OF MIDDLETON AND UTILITY COMPANIES AND REPLACED AT THE LANDOWNER'S EXPENSE.
12.   LOT 22, BLOCK 37 AND PORTIONS OF LOTS 23, 26, 27, 33, 34, 42 AND 43, BLOCK 37; LOTS 83, 84, 85, 92, 93 AND 97, BLOCK

49 AND LOT 1, BLOCK 50 ARE SUBJECT TO CITY OF MIDDLETON STORM DRAIN EASEMENTS AS SHOWN HEREON FOR
MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION OF CITY OWNED STORM DRAIN FACILITIES OR OTHER PIPELINES OR INFRASTRUCTURE
AS HAS OR WILL BE CONSTRUCTED INCIDENT TO THE CITY OF MIDDLETON'S GENERAL PLAN OF MUNICIPAL UTILITY
SERVICE.

13. ANY RE-SUBDIVISION OF THIS PLAT SHALL COMPLY WITH THE APPLICABLE ZONING REGULATIONS IN EFFECT AT THE
TIME OF RE-SUBDIVISION.

14. THE HOME OWNER'S ASSOCIATION (HOA) OWNS AND MANAGES THE COMMON AREAS WHICH INCLUDE STORMWATER
FACILITIES. A PLAN FOR OPERATION, MAINTENANCE, AND REPAIR OF STORMWATER FACILITIES (O&M PLAN) HAS BEEN
PREPARED FOR ALL STORMWATER FACILITIES MAINTAINED BY THE HOA. THE O&M PLAN SHALL BE RECORDED WITH
THE DECLARATIONS OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS, AND RESTRICTIONS (CC&RS). THE O&M PLANS SHALL BE USED FOR
MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION OF THE STORMWATER FACILITY.

OTHER EASEMENT LINE AS NOTED

PUBLIC UTILITY, PRESSURE IRRIGATION
& LOT DRAINAGE EASEMENT LINE -
SEE NOTES 1 & 2

SEE SHEET 2 OF 4 FOR LINE & CURVE DATA

RECORD DISTANCE

PLASTIC CAP
SET 1/2" REBAR WITH PLS 11118

























WEST HIGHLANDS RANCH SUBDIVISION NO. 15

(208) 288-2040   fax (208) 288-2557
MERIDIAN, ID  83642

231 E. 5TH ST., STE. A

www.landsolutions.biz

BOOK ____ , PAGE _____

SHEET 2 OF 4

CLINTON W. HANSEN
PLS 11118

























SHEET 3 OF 4

BOOK ____ , PAGE _____

CERTIFICATE OF SURVEYOR

CERTIFICATE OF OWNERS

CLINTON W. HANSEN

PLS 11118

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF IDAHO

COUNTY OF ADA

S.S.

NOTARY PUBLIC FOR THE STATE OF IDAHO

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES

RESIDING AT

ON THIS ____ DAY OF ____________ , 20___, BEFORE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED, A NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR SAID

STATE PERSONALLY APPEARED SUSAN STANLEY, KNOWN OR IDENTIFIED TO ME TO BE A DIVISION PRESIDENT

OF TOLL SOUTHWEST LLC, AN IDAHO LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, THAT EXECUTED THE FOREGOING

"CERTIFICATE OF OWNERS" AND ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT SAID LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY EXECUTED

THE SAME.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL THE DAY AND YEAR IN

THIS CERTIFICATE FIRST ABOVE WRITTEN.

I, CLINTON W. HANSEN, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I AM A LICENSED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR IN THE

STATE OF IDAHO, AND THAT THIS PLAT AS DESCRIBED IN THE "CERTIFICATE OF OWNERS" WAS DRAWN FROM

THE FIELD NOTES OF A SURVEY MADE ON THE GROUND UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND ACCURATELY

REPRESENTS THE POINTS PLATTED THEREON, AND IS IN CONFORMITY WITH THE STATE OF IDAHO CODE

RELATING TO PLATS AND SURVEYS.

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:   THAT WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, ARE THE OWNERS OF THE REAL PROPERTY DESCRIBED BELOW IN CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, AND THAT WE

INTEND TO INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY IN THIS PLAT OF WEST HIGHLANDS RANCH SUBDIVISION NO. 15;

A PARCEL BEING A PORTION OF GOVERNMENT LOT 4 OF SECTION 36, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 3 WEST, BOISE MERIDIAN, CITY OF MIDDLETON, CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, AND

MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT AN ALUMINUM CAP MONUMENT MARKING THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 36, FROM WHICH A BRASS CAP MONUMENT MARKING THE SOUTHEAST

CORNER OF THE SW ¼ (S ¼ CORNER) OF SAID SECTION BEARS S 89°45'43” E A DISTANCE OF 2659.68 FEET;

THENCE ALONG THE WESTERLY BOUNDARY OF THE SW ¼ OF SAID SECTION 36 N 0°46'45” E A DISTANCE OF 343.50 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE LEAVING SAID WESTERLY BOUNDARY S 89°45'43” E A DISTANCE OF 42.43 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF N. EMMETT ROAD MARKING THE

NORTHWESTERLY CORNER OF WEST HIGHLANDS RANCH SUBDIVISION NO. 13, AS SHOWN IN BOOK ___ OF PLATS ON PAGE _______, RECORDS OF CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, AND

BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE ALONG SAID EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY THE FOLLOWING COURSES AND DISTANCES:

THENCE N 3°13'40” W (FORMERLY N 3°13'47” W) A DISTANCE OF 106.35 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 1°03'13” W (FORMERLY N 1°13'20” W) A DISTANCE OF 250.13 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 89°13'15” W (FORMERLY N 89°13'22” W) A DISTANCE OF 2.00 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 0°46'45” E (FORMERLY N 0°46'38” E) A DISTANCE OF 365.16 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE LEAVING SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY S 89°13'32” E A DISTANCE OF 120.00 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 89°04'35” E A DISTANCE OF 75.00 FEET TO A POINT ON A CURVE;

THENCE A DISTANCE OF 270.73 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A 1060.00 FOOT RADIUS NON-TANGENT CURVE RIGHT, SAID CURVE HAVING A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 14°38'01” AND A LONG

CHORD BEARING S 80°48'33” E A DISTANCE OF 269.99 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 72°53'25” E A DISTANCE OF 33.18 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 72°06'35” E A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 27°06'35” E A DISTANCE OF 37.66 FEET TO A POINT ON A CURVE;

THENCE A DISTANCE OF 78.88 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A 1055.00 FOOT RADIUS NON-TANGENT CURVE RIGHT, SAID CURVE HAVING A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 4°17'02” AND A LONG

CHORD BEARING S 65°42'54” E A DISTANCE OF 78.86 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY BOUNDARY OF WEST HIGHLANDS RANCH SUBDIVISION NO. 14, AS SHOWN IN BOOK ___ OF

PLATS ON PAGE ______, RECORDS OF CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO;

THENCE ALONG THE WESTERLY AND SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID WEST HIGHLANDS RANCH SUBDIVISION NO. 14 THE FOLLOWING COURSES AND DISTANCES:

THENCE S 26°25'37” W A DISTANCE OF 110.00 FEET TO A POINT ON A CURVE;

THENCE A DISTANCE OF 220.89 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A 945.00 FOOT RADIUS NON-TANGENT CURVE RIGHT, SAID CURVE HAVING A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 13°23'33” AND A

LONG CHORD BEARING S 56°52'37” E A DISTANCE OF 220.39 FEET TO A POINT ON A CURVE;

THENCE A DISTANCE OF 34.24 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A 62.00 FOOT RADIUS NON-TANGENT CURVE RIGHT, SAID CURVE HAVING A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 31°38'39" AND A LONG

CHORD BEARING S 49°40'47" E A DISTANCE OF 33.81 FEET TO A POINT ON A CURVE;

THENCE A DISTANCE OF 435.77 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A 1255.00 FOOT RADIUS NON-TANGENT CURVE LEFT, SAID CURVE HAVING A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 19°53'40” AND A LONG

CHORD BEARING S 60°15'34” E A DISTANCE OF 433.58 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID WEST HIGHLANDS RANCH SUBDIVISION NO. 13;

THENCE ALONG THE NORTHERLY BOUNDARY OF SAID WEST HIGHLANDS RANCH SUBDIVISION NO. 13 THE FOLLOWING COURSES AND DISTANCES:

THENCE S 22°17'26” W A DISTANCE OF 163.26 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 89°45'43” W A DISTANCE OF 635.09 FEET TO A POINT ON A CURVE;

THENCE A DISTANCE OF 10.90 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A 124.71 FOOT RADIUS NON-TANGENT CURVE RIGHT, SAID CURVE HAVING A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 5°00'25” AND A LONG

CHORD BEARING N 1°43'27” W A DISTANCE OF 10.89 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 89°13'15” W A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO A POINT ON A CURVE;

THENCE A DISTANCE OF 11.37 FEET ALONG THE ARC OF A 174.71 FOOT RADIUS NON-TANGENT CURVE LEFT, SAID CURVE HAVING A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 3°43'38” AND A LONG

CHORD BEARING S 1°05'04” E A DISTANCE OF 11.36 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE N 89°45'43” W A DISTANCE OF 388.01 FEET TO A POINT;

THENCE S 86°46'20” W A DISTANCE OF 25.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

THIS PARCEL CONTAINS 13.55 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

ALL THE LOTS IN THIS SUBDIVISION WILL BE ELIGIBLE TO RECEIVE WATER SERVICE FROM THE CITY OF MIDDLETON.  THE CITY OF MIDDLETON HAS AGREED IN WRITING TO SERVE

ALL THE LOTS IN THIS SUBDIVISION.

THE PUBLIC STREETS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT ARE HEREBY DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC.  PUBLIC UTILITY, IRRIGATION AND DRAINAGE EASEMENTS ON THIS PLAT ARE NOT

DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC, BUT THE RIGHT OF ACCESS TO, AND USE OF, THESE EASEMENTS IS HEREBY RESERVED FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES, DRAINAGE AND FOR ANY OTHER USES

AS MAY BE DESIGNATED HEREON AND NO PERMANENT STRUCTURES OTHER THAN FOR SAID USES ARE TO BE ERECTED WITHIN THE LIMITS OF SAID EASEMENTS.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF WE HAVE HEREUNTO SET OUR HAND THIS ____ DAY OF _________________________ , 20___.

TOLL SOUTHWEST LLC, AN IDAHO LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

____________________________________________________________

BY SUSAN STANLEY, DIVISION PRESIDENT

(208) 288-2040   fax (208) 288-2557

MERIDIAN, ID  83642

231 E. 5TH ST., STE. A

www.landsolutions.biz

WEST HIGHLANDS RANCH SUBDIVISION NO. 15

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen



WEST HIGHLANDS RANCH SUBDIVISION NO. 15

BOOK ____ , PAGE _____

(208) 288-2040   fax (208) 288-2557

MERIDIAN, ID  83642

231 E. 5TH ST., STE. A

www.landsolutions.biz

SHEET 4 OF 4

CLINTON W. HANSEN

PLS 11118

CERTIFICATE OF THE COUNTY TREASURER

CERTIFICATE OF THE COUNTY SURVEYOR

CANYON COUNTY SURVEYOR                                          DATE

DATE: ______________________              ______________________________________________

COUNTY TREASURER

APPROVAL OF MIDDLETON CITY COUNCIL

MIDDLETON CITY MAYOR                                                 DATE

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, CITY ENGINEER IN AND FOR THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO,

HEREBY APPROVE THIS PLAT.

MIDDLETON CITY ENGINEER                                           DATE

APPROVAL OF THE CITY ENGINEER

HEALTH CERTIFICATE

SOUTHWEST DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT                DATE

SANITARY RESTRICTIONS AS REQUIRED BY IDAHO CODE, TITLE 50, CHAPTER 13, HAVE BEEN SATISFIED

BASED ON A REVIEW BY A QUALIFIED LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER (QLPE) REPRESENTING THE CITY

OF MIDDLETON AND THE QLPE APPROVAL OF THE DESIGN PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS AND THE

CONDITIONS IMPOSED ON THE DEVELOPER FOR CONTINUED SATISFACTIONS OF THE SANITARY

RESTRICTIONS. BUYER IS CAUTIONED THAT AT THE TIME OF THIS APPROVAL, NO DRINKING WATER

EXTENSIONS OR SEWER EXTENSIONS WERE CONSTRUCTED. BUILDING CONSTRUCTION CAN BE ALLOWED

WITH APPROPRIATE BUILDING PERMITS IF DRINKING WATER EXTENSIONS OR SEWER EXTENSIONS HAVE

SINCE BEEN CONSTRUCTED, OR IF THE DEVELOPER IS SIMULTANEOUSLY CONSTRUCTING THOSE

FACILITIES. IF THE DEVELOPER FAILS TO CONSTRUCT FACILITIES, THEN THE SANITARY RESTRICTIONS MAY

BE RE-IMPOSED, IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 50-1326, IDAHO CODE, BY THE ISSUANCE OF A

CERTIFICATE OF DISAPPROVAL, AND NO CONSTRUCTION OF ANY BUILDING OR SHELTER REQUIRING

DRINKING WATER OR SEWER/SEPTIC FACILITIES SHALL BE ALLOWED.

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, CITY CLERK IN AND FOR THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, DO

HEREBY CERTIFY THAT AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL HELD ON THE ____ DAY OF

____________ , 20___, THIS PLAT WAS DULY ACCEPTED AND APPROVED.

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR FOR CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, HEREBY CERTIFY

THAT I HAVE CHECKED THIS PLAT AND FIND THAT IT COMPLIES WITH THE STATE OF IDAHO CODE RELATING

TO PLATS AND SURVEYS.

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, COUNTY TREASURER IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CANYON, STATE OF  IDAHO, PER

THE REQUIREMENTS OF I.C. 50-1308, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT ANY AND ALL CURRENT AND OR

DELINQUENT COUNTY PROPERTY TAXES FOR THE PROPERTY INCLUDED IN THIS SUBDIVISION HAVE BEEN

PAID IN FULL.  THIS CERTIFICATION IS VALID FOR THE NEXT THIRTY (30) DAYS ONLY.

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen

ClintHansen



EXHIBIT “E” 



Quarry East Subdivision 
Middleton City Council    - Public Hearing July 20, 2022

Annexation/Rezone, Preliminary Plat, Development Agreement, & Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment

1~,, -
* * * City of * * * 

MIDDLETON 
~ 
~ 

Established 1910 

* 

1111111111111111111 1111111111111111111 11111111111· ' 

1-w-----....• ---· 1111111 
I 

I 

l j 1111111111111 
-= 



Project Description: This is a 55+ resort style community 
to be developed by M3. The project involves 640 residential 
lots, one mini-self storage lot, 67 common area lots, 37 
shared driveway lots, and nine private road lots.

There are three housing types proposed:
466 traditional single-family home
102 duplex home lots, and 
72 “cluster-pack home lots”, which are four home lots 

clustered around a single shared driveway. 



Developer is proposing a gated community with private 
streets. The HOA, not the City, will be responsible for 
maintaining and repairing the streets.

The amenities include three large lakes, beaches, clubhouse, 
swimming pool, picnic areas, and six pickleball courts.

A mini self-storage and RV storage facility is proposed for a 
lot on the northern tip of the project next to the Middleton 
Industrial Park.

,.!v,,.; 
* * * City of * * * 

MIDDLETON 
~ · 

~ 
Established 1910 

* 



APPLICATIONS: Developer has four applications before City Council: (1) annexation and rezone to M-U (“Mixed Use”), (2) preliminary 
plat, (3) Development Agreement, and (4) Comprehensive Plan Map amendment to change “residential use” to “industrial use” on the
Future Land Use Map to accommodate the self-storage site. A floodplain application is also proceeding administratively with these 
applications. On April 11, 2022, the Planning & Zoning Commission approved Developer’s special use permit applications to construct 
duplex homes and a mini-self storage facility inside the project. 

ZONING & PROPERTY CONDITION:  The project 
property is located in Canyon County, and it is zoned 
Agricultural, C-1 “Neighborhood Commercial,” and M-
1 “Light Industrial.”  Applicant is seeking City “Mixed 
Use” zoning, which allows a variety of housing types 
to be combined with other uses such as commercial 
uses.  M-U also accommodates more dense housing.

The project property is currently vacant land, but it 
was once the site of a quarry operation. Middleton’s 
planning documents contemplate a significant 
amount of industrial use to the east and north of the 
project. Residential growth is planned for the 
western side. Caldwell’s planning documents show 
residential uses to the south of the project. 



City Services:  City water and sewer are located 
immediately east of the project in Middleton Road.

In order to provide sewer to the project, Developer will 
need to construct a sewer lift station on the project site 
and expand an existing lift station near the Boise 
River.

Proper water service will also require Developer to 
bore a water line under the Boise River to create a 
necessary water loop. 

If City requires Developer to oversize the sewer and/or 
water facilities, City will be required to reimburse 
Developer for the over capacity by way of a latecomer 
agreement or other similar reimbursement agreement.  

Sewer 

Wat er 



STREET FRONTAGE & ACCESS:

S. Middleton Road and Lincoln Road 
front the project site.  The main entrance 
is at Quarry St. & Middleton Road.  
Another planned access is at Lincoln 
Road & Hammerstone Ave.

Developer will be required to construct 
the ½ road frontage improvements along 
Middleton Road and Lincoln Road. The 
improvement to Lincoln Road will be at 
Developer’s sole cost and expense.  
However, because the portion of 
Middleton Road fronting the subdivision 
is on the Mid-Star Transportation CIP, 
The Mid-Star fund will be required to 
reimburse the Developer 100% for 
Middleton Road Improvements 
that are also included 
in the Mid-Star CIP. 

Lincoln Rd
Lincoln Rd

M
iddleton Rd.

_!j ,)~iji;;-

* * * City of * * * 

MIDDLETON 
~~ 
,~ ~ .:,;~ .'._:~ 

~ 
Establi shed 19 I 0 

* 



During the initial stages of the project, 
access will be through the Middleton 
Road/Quarry St. access.  Left and right 
turn lanes will be sufficient to handle the 
traffic during that time period. However, as 
phases are developed and residents move 
in, an intersection control will be required 
at the intersection to handle the increased 
traffic.  

Pursuant to the 2016 Middleton Road 
Corridor Study, there is a multi-lane 
roundabout planned at the approximate 
location of the Quarry St., entrance on 
Middleton Road. A second multi-lane 
roundabout is planned about ½ mile to the 
south at the intersection of Middleton Road 
and the southern “leg” of Lincoln Road.  

Both roundabouts are on the Mid-Star CIP, 
and they will eventually be built by 
Middleton or CHD4 once sufficient traffic 
impact fees are collected. 

However, it is more efficient and 
economical to have developer build 
the roundabout, so staff is proposing 
that City require Developer to build 
the roundabout at the Quarry 
entrance if the City obtains the 
needed right of way prior to issuing 
100 building permits to Developer. 
City will have to reimburse Developer 
for the roundabout construction, and it 
can do so via credits to future traffic 
impact fees or a reimbursement out of 
the Mid-Star fund.

Alternatively, City may only be able to 
obtain smaller right of way for a traffic 
light. If it does, Staff proposes that 
City require Developer to build a 
traffic light at the Quarry entrance. 
There will be no reimbursement for 
this traffic signal. 

Quarry 

a .. - ---. - , __ ,:1 

~ 
Established 1910 

* 



There is a 2nd roundabout to be discussed. It is the roundabout located at Middleton Road and the southern leg of Lincoln Road. That 
roundabout will be built by public agencies sometime in the future through the Mid-Star program. 

In the interim, a traffic control at the current intersection of Middleton Road and the northern leg of Lincoln Road will be needed to help 
with road safety. The proposed Development Agreement provides that when the Developer constructs an access on to Lincoln Road, the 
Developer shall be required to design and construct a traffic signal at Middleton Road and Lincoln Road.  It shall remain in place until the 
more comprehensive roundabout is constructed a few hundred feet to the south. Developer will not be reimbursed for constructing this 
traffic signal.                            

There is a final access to 
consider at Phase 10 of the 
project. Phase 10 involves a 
single lot dedicated to mini-
self storage and RV parking.  
CHD4 has recommended a 
RI/RO only access at that 
juncture.  That proposed 
provision has been added to 
the DA. 

j':!~·~ "--
* * * City of * * * 

MIDDLETON 
~ 
~~ :;\7:,.: /~ !':::1·? 

~ 
Established 19 I 0 

* 



Applicant completed a Traffic Study. The Traffic Study does not recommend any mitigation measures that are not already 
contemplated by the City. 

Middleton requires development to pay for itself so the taxpayers will not be burdened with the cost.  Therefore, Developer will be 
required to pay a Transportation Impact fee per the Mid-Star CIP program. The fee is $5050 per residential lot, which amounts to
$3,232,000 paid to improve the roads in and around the City of Middleton.  The estimated Mid-Star transportation impact fee for the 
mini-storage is over $108,000.00. 

For pro-rata traffic fees pursuant to MCC 4-5-3, Developer shall pay an additional $456,355.00, making Developer’s total contribution 
to future road improvements $3,688,355.00. 

,!1;,~ 

* * * City of * * * 

MIDDLETON _ , 
~ 

Established 1910 

* 



Pathway, Sidewalks & Open Space: 

Developer has provided over 26% open space 
in the form of three recreational lakes, 
clubhouse, parks and six pickleball courts. This 
far exceeds the minimum code requirement of 
5% open space. 

No specific pathways are required by the 
Comprehensive Plan maps; however, internal 
sidewalks and the pathway along Middleton 
Road will connect residents to Middleton’s  
River Walk District planned to the north. 

Schools:  The Quarry project is in the Vallivue
School District, not the Middleton School 
District.  



Annexation and Rezone: Applicant is requesting that the entire 237-acre project be annexed into the City of Middleton with a zone change to 
Mixed Use “M-U”.  Mixed Use zoning is designed to accommodate a variety of uses such as commercial uses combined with a variety of housing 
types. It also contemplates a higher density of housing. 

There are three findings that must be made before Annexation can be approved: (1) the property must be contiguous to City limits (2) City services 
such as sewer and water can be extended to serve the site, and (3) the annexation is deemed to be an orderly development of the City allowing 
efficient and economical extension of City services. (Idaho Code 50-222.)

Planning Staff finds that Applicant’s project meets all three findings for annexation: (1) the property is contiguous and (2) sewer and water are 
already contiguous to the site as shown above.  Additionally, this project’s sewer and water needs are already included in the City’s capacity 
analyses.

As to finding #3, the annexation is an orderly and economical extension of City services for the following reasons: (1) the Developer will be 
constructing needed road improvements and intersection controls on Middleton Road sooner than would occur through the Mid-Star road 
improvement program, (2) Developer will be designing and constructing extensive water and sewer facilities that will connect property on the 
south side of the Boise River to Middleton property on the north side of the Boise River, (3) taxpayers will not be burdened with the cost of 
development because Developer will pay impact fees for roads, parks,  and police protection, (4) the project supplies housing for 55+, which 
fills a need for housing in the City, (5) the 55+ community will place very minimal pressure on the school district and emergency services such 
as police protection, and (6) the private streets will relieve the City from repair and maintenance costs, which are costs normally placed upon 
the shoulders of the taxpayers. 

On the flip side, potential adverse impacts to be considered are (1) increased traffic congestion, (2) over-crowding, 
(3) pressure imposed upon City services like sewer, water, fire protection and police and (4) loss of rural property.  



An application for rezone requires two findings before City Council can recommend 
approval: 

(1) the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s delivery of services and 
(2) the rezone request is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan. (Idaho 

Code 67-6511)

Planning Staff finds that the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s ability to 
deliver sewer and water as already noted above.  Additionally, Developer will bear 
the cost of impacting city services by paying impact fees for transportation, parks,  
and police, which were designed to proportionately cover the impacts imposed by 
developers. 

As to finding #2, Staff finds that the proposed rezone is not in conflict with the 
Comprehensive Plan, and I’ll show that in more detail in the section below on the 
Comprehensive Plan. 

* * * City of * * * 

MIDDLETON 

Established 1910 

* 



Preliminary Plat:  The preliminary plat shows 10 phases for development. 

Before the Council can approve a preliminary plat, it must find that the preliminary 
plat complies with all Middleton City codes and standards. However, Middleton 
City Code section 1-15-2 allows the governing bodies to waive specific codes and 
standards and still approve a preliminary plat. Specifically, MCC 1-15-2 provides 
as follows:

1-15-2: EXCEPTIONS OR WAIVERS OF STANDARDS: @®@® 
A. Exceptions or waivers of standards, other than land uses according to me 5, ChaRter 4, Table 1 of this code, may be approved through one of the following public hearing 

processes: 

1. Special use permit, 

2. Development agreement accompanying a rezone application, 

3. Variance, 

4. Condition of approval as part of a land use application, or 

5. Approval of a preliminary plat, with or without conditions. 

(Ord. 609, 7-3-2018; amd. Ord. 619, 7-17-2019) j~"i..-
* * * City of * * * 

MIDDLETON 
~ 
~ 

Established 1910 

* 

r-••---·---------------- ----
PHASE 10 i 



Staff finds that Applicant’s preliminary plat does not comply with 
all Middleton City codes and standards. However, Applicant is 
seeking specific waivers to the code under MCC 1-15-2. 

The next four slides contain an itemized description of 
Applicant’s waiver requests. Planning Staff has relied on City 
Engineer, Amy Woodruff, Caldwell Fire Marshal Alan Perry and 
City attorney, Douglas Waterman to work with planning staff and 
Applicant’s staff to make sure that none of the requested 
waivers are unreasonable or violate general engineering 
standards. City Engineer and Fire Marshall have concentrated 
on the many waivers pertaining to roads and other technical 
items.  City Attorney has assisted staff with handling more legal 
issues involving bonding and other legal procedures and 
requirements.  



LIST OF REQUESTED WAIVERS

1. Setbacks & Dimensions (MCC 5-4-1, Table 2): The one exception. Minimum standards for lot dimensions and setbacks are set forth in 
MCC 5-4-1, Table 2.  Developer is requesting that the annexed project be zoned Mixed Use (M-U).  The dimensions and setbacks for M-U 
are as follows:   

M-U Setbacks & Dimensions

Front setback- 20’                       Street-side setback – 20’
Rear setback – 20’  Minimum lot size – 6000 sf
Interior Side setback– 12’           Minimum lot width – 50’

Duplex Lot 
Front (to residence or side-load garage 1 10 feet 
Front (to garage 1 20 feet 
Rear 15 feet 
Side 5 feet (0 feet for attached) 
Minimum Lot Size 4,000 square feet 
Minimum Width (N / A for irregular shaped lots 1 40 feet 

Cluster 4 Pack Lots 
TABLE 2 Front [to street or side-load garage) 10 feet 
HEIGHT, SETBACK AND COVERAGE SCHEDULE 

Front (to garage 1 20 feet or 5 feet 
District Maximum Maximum Minimum front Minimum Rear Minimum Interior Minimum Side Minimum Interior Minimum lot Maximum Lot 

Density Height8 Setback3.4,S,G, 7 Setback4•6• 7 Side Setback4,6, Street Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) Width 1 Coverage2 
(Units(Gross 7 Setback3•4• 6.7 

Acre) 
II 

A-R 0.5 40' 30' 30' 30' 30' 87,120 150' 50% 

Rear (back of back lot1 10 feet 
Side [ all interior property lines) 5 feet [3 feet to shared drive) 
Minimum Lot Size 4,000 square feet 

(2 acres) 

C-3 55' 10' 0' 0' 10' 0 90% 
Minimum Width [N / A for irregular shaped lots) 45 feet 

M-1 75' 10' 0' 0' 10' 0 90% 

M-2 75' 10' 0' 0' 10' 0 90% Single Family Standard Detached Lot 
R-19 1.0 40' 30' 30' 30' 30' 43,560 100' 50% Front [to residence or side-load garage) 10 feet 
R-29 2.0 35' 25' 25' 25' 25' 21,780 90' 50% 

R-39 3.0 30' 25' 20' 10' 20' 8,000 75' 60% 

RRR 55' 0' 0' 0' 0' 0 0' 90% 

Front (to garage) 20 feet 
Rear 15 feet 

TOD 55' 0' 0' 0' 0' 0 0' 90% Side 5 feet 
M-F10, 11 12.0 35' 20' 20' 12' 20' 10,000 75' 75% Minimum Lot Size 5,000 square feet 
M-uB 10 12.0 55' 20' 20' 12' 20' 6,000 50' 75% Minimum Width [NJ A for irregular shaped lots) 40 feet 



2.  Private Streets: City Code does not allow Private Roads other than small private lanes (or shared driveways). 
Allowing private streets will be an exception to the Code.

3. Driveways and Frontage (MCC 4-1-1.H & Supplement to ISPWC): Applicant is requesting an exception to the 
requirement that all lots front a “public road”.  Because the roads within the subdivision are requested to be “private,” 
this code section will also need to be waived. Additionally, Developer is requesting a waiver to allow narrower 
driveways.

4. Roadway width & gutters (MCC 5-4-10-2.D.2 & Supplement to ISPWC): City Code requires local public right-of-
way/roads to be 50’ wide. Developer is requesting a narrower width of 47’, and a narrower width from back of curb to 
back of curb of 33’, so long as the narrower width meets minimum requirements of emergency services. Additionally, 
Developer is requesting that valley curbs be narrower than city required 4’ width so long as the capacity remains 
adequate.

5. Cul de sac length (MCC 5-4-10-2.E): Per the code, cul de sac roads cannot exceed 600’.  Because of the large 
lakes and narrow channels created by the lakes, Developer is requesting that the cul de sac maximum length be 
extended to 1000’.  

6. Radius turns (MCC 5-4-10-2.H.2): Code allows radius turns of 90’.  Developer is requesting radius turns as low as 
45’.  Caldwell Fire has required Applicant to provide an auto-turn analysis to prove that all radius turns can 
accommodate the Fire Department’s emergency vehicles. 



7. Block lengths (MCC 5-4-10-3.A.1): The code prevents any long linear block lengths extending past 1100’.  
Because the large lakes create peninsula-like strips of land, Developer is requesting that the block length maximum 
be expanded to 1700’.

8. Dead-end Roads (MCC 5-4-10-2.F): Code prohibits dead end roads, but due to the extensive use of private lanes, 
which are allowed, Developer has created a few short dead-end roads.

9. Tree Planting (Supplement to ISPWC): Developer is requesting that it be allowed to plant trees within 3’ from a 
sidewalk with a root barrier and 4’ from a sidewalk without a root barrier.

11.Street lights & Street Signs (Supplement to ISPWC):  Developer is requesting that alternative styles for street 
lights and street signs be allowed on the private streets for aesthetic purposes. 

12.Timing for final plat approval & DA Termination (MCC 5-4-4.F): Under the current code, Developers may take up  
to four years to obtain final plat approval for their first phase in order to avoid the nullification of their preliminary plat.  
Quarry Developer is requesting six years to reach final plat approval in light of the extensive infrastructure 
construction required before Phase 1 final plat.  Code also allows a Developer to take up to four years for each 
successive final plat after Developer utilizes two extension requests, one of which must be granted by City Council. 
Applicant is requesting the same four year period for final plat, but Applicant is requesting that the two extension 
requests be submitted only to Administrative staff.  



13. Amendments to Pre-Plat (MCC 5-4-4): If a Developer desires to change an approved preliminary plat in any way, the Developer 
must go through the public hearing procedures for preliminary plat.  Developer is requesting a waiver to this requirement so 
Develop may submit only an administrative application to the Planning & Zoning Director to make minor amendments to the 
preliminary plat. The allowed minor amendments would be (1) reduction or increase in the size of phases, (2) decreases in 
number of lots so long as the decrease does not exceed a 10% decrease in overall lots, and (3) minor changes to roads and lot
lines to accommodate the changed phasing or lot count so long as the final plat still substantially conforms to the approved 
preliminary plat. The request is based upon the fact that this large subdivision may take 10 or more years to develop, and a 
minimal amount of flexibility will help Developer and City to efficiently and economically negotiate those minor changes. If the
Planning & Zoning Director deems the proposed revisions more than “minor”, the Planning & Zoning Director shall require 
Developer to use the public hearing process to amend the preliminary plat.

14. Model Home Building Permits: Building Permits are not issued until after final plat is approved. However, Developer is seeking 
authorization to obtain building permits for up to 10 model homes prior to final plat approval. This will allow Developer to begin 
constructing its model row in tandem with infrastructure construction, which will allow it to begin marketing with model homes as 
soon as final plat is approved.

15. Bonding: (MCC 5-4-7.A.3) Currently, the code allows bonding for only landscaping and irrigation improvements and only during 
inclement weather. Fencing has generally been considered part of the landscaping.  Developer is requesting that it be allowed to
bond for these items even if inclement weather is not present.  This will address issues raised by the supply chain breakdown.

16. Proportionate Share Fee $456,335.00: Under the MCC 5-4-3, a Developer must pay pro-rata fees prior to final plat approval for 
phase 1. This fee pertains to both Quarry East and Quarry West because that is how ITD broke it down. Because of the large size 
of the fee, Developer is requesting that the fee be prorated across lots in both Quarry East and Quarry West and paid per phase 
at final plat approval. 



City Engineer Amy Woodruff has worked 
closely with Developer on the preliminary 
plat, fine tuning the engineering 
standards for roads and determining the 
best way to bring sewer and water to the 
project site.

Ms. Woodruff issued a “recommendation 
of approval” letter last Friday.  

(Late addition to Record - Exhibit “G”)

July 15 , 2022 

~Civil~ 
DynamiCP 

FROM: Cwil Dynamics PC, Amy Woodruff, PE / JI \ . , ,.L )/i 
TO: Roberta Stewart, Plann ing and Zoning O~i'.I;) r)f 

City Engineer ~ r- -
RE: QUARRY EAST SUBDIVISION PRELIMINARY PLAT 

Thank you for Ille opportunity to review the above referenced preliminary plat submitta l 

The preliminary plat appears to be prepared in c•nf• nmance with, and meet, the applicable 
sections of Middleton City Code and cornmon platting piactices. Civil Dynarnici. 11;K;1.11rn11e11tts 
City Council approval. 



Development Agreement Application:  Developer has submitted an application for Development Agreement to accompany its application for 
Annexation/Rezone.  Developer has used the City’s form for the DA, and has added the following provisions to Article III:

1. Various Waivers: All the variances or waivers from City Code noted in the preliminary plat section above are individually set forth 
in the DA as permissible waivers from code.

2. Concept Plan: A concept plan shall be attached to the DA. The future development must be built substantially consistent with the 
concept plan.  

3. Concept Renderings: Design Guidelines and Concept renderings of home styles and community amenities will be attached to the 
DA, and Developer will build homes and amenities to the standards set forth in the DA.  The designs show a higher than normal
building product.  Even if this Developer sells the subdivision, the next Developer will have to build to the same standards, ensuring 
that the high-quality nature of the community remains intact regardless of who owns the property in the future. 

4. Amenities: DA requires the Developer to build the following amenities: clubhouse, swimming pool, community beach, picnic areas, 
and six pickleball courts. The swimming pool, 6 pickleball courts, beaches and picnic areas must be completed by the 134th

building permit (Phase 2 permits) and the clubhouse must be completed by the 272nd building permit (Phase 4 permits). 

5. 55+ Community: The community shall remain a 55+ community as allowed by Federal Code and State Statute.  The requirement 
shall be set forth in the recorded CC&Rs.

6. Allowed Uses: although the M-U zone allows a large number of different commercial and residential uses, the DA will limit 
Applicant to only these uses: (1) single family residential, (2) duplex residential, (3) model complex and sales 
office/marketing/construction trailers, (4) community recreational amenities, and (5) mini-warehouse storage, including RV storage. 



Development Agreement con’t. 

7. Mini-Storage: the storage facility must undergo the Design Review process before a building permit will be issued.  The mini-storage 
buildings may only be single story buildings.

8. Private Streets Reserve Study: Because the private streets will be maintained and repaired by the HOA, City will require Developer to 
submit a reserve study at Phase 1 final plat to prove that sufficient money will be collected by the HOA to maintain and repair the streets 
to industry standards. At each phase thereafter, the Developer will update and show that the reserve account is adequate. After build-out, 
the City can request the HOA to continue to submit reserve studies, but no more than every 3 years.  If the Developer or HOA fails to 
maintain the private streets to industry standards, the City may bring an action at law to force the HOA to properly maintain the streets. If 
City is the prevailing party in the lawsuit, HOA will owe City attorney’s fees to ensure that taxpayers are not burdened with this cost of 
litigation.

9. Emergency Access/Service:  Developer/HOA will ensure that the private streets are accessible to emergency services and other public 
services.

10. Sewer & Water improvements: As indicated earlier, Developer shall extend city sewer and water to the site and possibly improve utility 
facilities over and above what is required to serve The Quarry East. The DA provides that any improvements over and above 
Developer’s proportionate share will be reimbursed to Developer via a latecomer agreement or other similar reimbursement.

11. Natural Gas: DA provides that Developer will extend natural gas service to the project site.



Development Agreement con’t. 

12. Urban Renewal Revenue Allocation Area: Developer and City agree that Developer may seek 
reimbursement from the Urban Renewal District for public infrastructure.  If reimbursement is granted 
by the Urban Renewal District, then Developer is not entitled to any credit or reimbursement under a 
late-comer fee and Developer will pay back any credit or reimbursements received to date.

13. Road/Frontage Improvements: the DA requires Developer to construct all code required frontage 
improvements, including the potential roundabout/traffic signals at Lincoln & Middleton Road and at 
the Quarry entrance.  The DA sets forth the timing and process for frontage improvements, traffic light 
construction, and roundabout construction as already discussed above in the section on “Streets and 
Traffic.” 

14. Notice of surrounding industrial use: Developer shall place language in every purchase 
agreement and in the CC&Rs notifying prospective purchasers that the City’s planning documents 
show industrial uses to the north and east of the project.  This will prevent future residents from being 
surprised.



Planning Staff finds that the proposed change from “Residential” to “Industrial” on the Future Land Use Map is in 
harmony with the Comprehensive Plan because the location of the changed designation directly abuts the industrial park 
located at Bass Lane and Middleton Road, which is deemed an industrial use on the FLUM.  In other words, the 
proposed change would result in a small expansion of an industrial use that already exists at that location. 

The use also complies with Goal 4 to use space for privacy considerations and to allow mixed use in appropriate 
locations. The storage facility will undergo design review and will create a more attractive buffer between the more 
intense industrial uses to the north of the subdivision. It also meets Goal 7 to promote economic growth and opportunity, 
while creating neighborhood storage and convenience for the Quarry subdivision. 

Comprehensive Plan & Land Use Map Amendment Application:  The 
vast majority of Applicant’s project complies with the Comprehensive 
Plan’s Future Land Use Map because the vast  majority of the parcel is 
dedicated to residential use and the FLUM shows residential use at that 
location.  However, Developer is proposing a mini-self storage and RV 
storage facility along the northern border of the project.  To accommodate 
this, the Future Land Use Map must be changed to remove a small sliver 
of “residential use” and replace it with “industrial use.”

Pursuant to MCC 1-14-3, an application for Comprehensive Plan Map 
Amendment cannot be approved without a finding that the proposed 
amendment is “in harmony” with the Comprehensive Plan.



. 

Developer’s other applications require a finding that the project complies with the Goals, Objectives, and Strategies of the 2019 
Middleton Comprehensive Plan.  Planning Staff finds that the proposed project complies with the following goals:

Goal 1: the project is a new development that helps extend city services in an environmentally and fiscally-responsible manner.

Goals 3 and 23: The project provides safe vehicle and pedestrian facilities in light of the street improvements and sidewalks shown on 
the preliminary plat. 

Goal 4: The project will establish a good quality of life with development that pays through impact fees and property taxes for the 
public services it receives when infrastructure is installed. Additionally, recreational activities and quality lots for residential use 
increase the quality of life and general welfare of the City.

Goal 5: “…[e]ncourage[s] annexation of property whose property tax revenue and other benefits match or exceed the cost to provide 
public services.”  This project will generate a great deal of property tax income that will exceed the services received from the City 
because the City will not be maintaining and repairing the streets inside the community and the residents will generally not be utilizing 
the school system. 

Goal 6: the project promotes the goal to “expand water, sewer, and road systems in an orderly manner consistent with population 
growth in the City”. 

Goal 7: The commercial/industrial storage facility promotes economic growth.

Goal 10: Project provides open space and pathways that connect to a pedestrian system and provide outdoor recreational activities.

Goal 11: Project provides a variety of housing types and lot sizes for residents.



. 

Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  None.

Comments from Agencies:  CHD4 submitted five comment responses 
dated 11/29/2021, 6/1/2021, 2/4/2022, 3/24/2022, and 4/11/2022.  
Caldwell Fire Department submitted a response dated 2/14/2022 and 
comment letter received 3/8/2022.  On March 29, 2022, Greater Middleton 
Parks & Recreation submitted a comment letter. ITD submitted comment 
letter/emails dated 5/25/2021 and 6/8/2021. Vallivue School District 
submitted comment letters dated 5/18/2022 and 6/1/2022. 

All comments were attached as Exhibit C to the Staff Report for Council 
consideration and for public viewing.

Comments from City Engineer and Planning Staff were attached as 
Exhibit “D” to the Staff Report and Agenda for Council consideration and 
public viewing.

Applicant Information:  Application was accepted March 1, 2021. 
Applicants are M3 Companies and JUB Engineers; 2760 W. Excursion 
Lane, Meridian, Id. 208.376.7330.

,!~,~ 
* * * City of * * * 

MIDDLETON 
~ 
~ 

Established 1910 

* 



. 

Notices & Neighborhood Meeting: Dates:

Newspaper Notification 3/27/2022

Radius notification mailed to
Adjacent landowners within 300’ 3/24/2022

Circulation to Agencies 3/24/2022

Sign Posting property 3/24/2022

Neighborhood Meeting 6/30/2021 & 7/13/2020

Applicable Codes and Standards: Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the 
Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, Middleton City 
Code 1-14, 1-16, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4, and Idaho Code Title 67, Chapter 65 & Title 50, 
Chapters 2 and 13

,!~,, 
* * * City of * * * 

MIDDLETON 
~ 
~ 

Established 1910 

* 



Planning & Zoning Recommendations & Order:  

The Planning & Zoning Commission considered the Quarry 
East applications at the April 11, 2022, public hearing.  The 
Commission approved applicant’s special use permit 
applications to construct duplex homes and a mini-
storage/RV parking facility within the project.

The Commission further recommended that City Council 
approve the applications for (1) annexation/rezone, (2) 
development agreement, (3) preliminary plat, and (4) 
comprehensive plan map amendment subject to the 
conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the 
hearing.  

The Recommendation and Order were attached as Exhibit 
“E” to the Staff Report.

,!~,, 
* * * City of * * * 

MIDDLETON 
~ 
~ 

Established 1910 

* 



. 

Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:

Council’s decision to approve or deny Developer’s applications must be based 
upon findings of facts and conclusions of law.  

As to Findings of Facts, Planning staff has set forth findings of facts in the 
Staff Report and in this presentation.  If the Council agrees with these findings of 
facts and further agrees with the general facts presented at the public hearing, 
then the Council may create a record by making and approving a motion to 
accept the findings of facts presented. 

As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that the Council has the 
authority to hear these applications and to approve or deny the applications, 
with or without conditions.  Additionally, Planning Staff notes that all public notice 
requirements were met. Planning Staff further set forth the portions of the Idaho 
State Code and Middleton City Code to be considered in making an order or 
recommendation on the applications.   If the hearing tonight is conducted in 
compliance with Idaho State Statute and the Middleton City Code, then the 
Council may accept these conclusions of law and create a record by passing a 
motion to accept the conclusions of law presented.   

,!~, 
* * * City of * * * 

MIDDLETON 
~ 
~ 

Established 1910 

* 



. 

Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval con’t:

Applications for Annexation/Rezone, Preliminary Plat, Development Agreement, & Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment. If 
the Council chooses to approve these four applications based upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, then 
Planning Staff recommends that any approval be subject to the following conditions: 

1. City sewer and water facilities to be extended to the Project site.
2. Developer to provide City with a stamped copy of the approved preliminary plat.
3. Developer to comply with all provisions and terms set forth in the Development Agreement City Council approves during the 

public hearing on the matter.
4. Developer to install landscaping per landscape plan submitted December 2021, including traffic buffer and berm as required 

by MCC 5-4-10-6 and set forth in the approved preliminary plat.
5. All City Engineering comments are to be completed and approved.
6. All Planner comments are to be completed and approved
7. Developer to comply with all FEMA, Middleton City Code, and Floodplain Administrator requirements.
8. All Caldwell Fire Department comments are to be completed and approved.
9. Sufficient emergency access shall be provided to all emergency response providers.
10. The access to the mini-storage lot and facility is conditioned on City and CHD4 determining an appropriate access, which 

may include right in/right out only access.
11. Sewer and water capacity to be reserved at the time City approves the construction drawings for each phase.

If the Council chooses to deny the applications, then pursuant to Middleton City Code 1-14(E)(8), the Council should state on the
record what Applicant can do, if anything, to gain a recommendation for approval of the application(s).



,, 

July 15, 2022 

~Civil~ 
Dynami~ 

FROM: Civil Dynamics PC, Amy Woodruff, PE \ • 
1 
,,,__L ~ 

TO: Roberta Stewart, Planning and Zoning O~icia r)f 
City Engineer O - -

RE: QUARRY EAST SUBDIVISION PRELIMINARY PLAT 

Thank you for the opportunity to review the above referenced preliminary plat submittal. 

The preliminary plat appears to be prepared in conformance with, and meet, the applicable 
sections of Middleton City Code and common platting practices. Civil Dynamics recommends 
City Council approval. 



EXHIBIT “F” 



Channel Crossing Subdivision 
Preliminary Plat Application 

Middleton City Council
Public Hearing July 20, 2022

.:~)''1iiit. 

* * * City of * * * 

MIDDLETON -n :;.\z: .. _:/ '~~? 

~ 
Established 1910 

* 



Project Description & Zoning: This is a Preliminary Plat Application by Middleton Rivers, LLC and Jay 
Gibbons/South Beck & Baird with respect to the Channel Crossing Subdivision located at 22457 So. Middleton 
Road and 0 So. Middleton Road.

The project property is vacant land, approximately 15 acres, that 
was zoned “Mixed-Use”/M-U when it was annexed into the City in 
2016.  M-U zoning is designed to accommodate a mix of higher 
density housing with commercial uses. 

Applicant is proposing 5 commercial lots, 119 townhome lots, and 
7 common lots. Amenities include clubhouse & swimming pool, 
community pond, large open space common lots and greenbelt 
trail system.

Surrounding zoning 
includes M-U to the north. 
C-3 “heavy commercial” to 
the east,  R-3 residential 
to the west, and Industrial 
uses to the south.



City Services:  City water and sewer are accessible to the project. Both will tie into sewer and water facilities already located in 
Sawtooth Lake Drive.     

Sewer and water capacity are contemplated in the City’s current capacity study. However, sewer and water capacity will not be
reserved until Applicant’s construction drawings are approved.

1 Sewer 

Water 

J 



A. Traffic, Access & Streets:  Access to the subdivision is through So. Middleton Road and E. Sawtooth Lake Drive.  The frontage 
improvements on E. Sawtooth Lake Drive are in place, but the Developer will construct a 24’ wide landscape buffer along E. 
Sawtooth Lake Drive as required by code.

A large multi-lane roundabout is planned for the intersection of Middleton Road and E. Sawtooth Lake Drive. The City may begin 
construction on that roundabout and road frontage improvements in a few weeks.  Developer/Applicant will pay its proportionate 
share of the improvement by paying a Mid-Star transportation impact fee with each building permit application.  

Any right-of-way frontage improvements that are not 
included in the Mid-Star CIP shall be constructed by 
Developer at its own cost.

!Sawtooth Lake Dr. 

.!,!'....., 
* * * City of * * * 

MIDDLETON 
I • I 

= -JCJL. .._ ·-· ,,; 

~ 
Established 1910 

* 



Middleton requires Development “to pay for itself” so the taxpayers will not be burdened with the cost of developing roads and 
infrastructure.  In light of this, Developer/builders will pay $600,950 in Mid-Star Transportation Impact Fees by the time all 119 
residential building permits are issued ($119 x $5050).  Additional fees for commercial uses will also total somewhere between 
$75,000 and $200,000, depending on the commercial uses ultimately constructed on site. 

Applicant has also completed a Traffic Study, and pursuant to the impact percentages set forth in the study, Applicant will pay 
approximately $181,000 in additional “pro-rata traffic fees” pursuant to MCC 5-4-3. These fees cover the development’s direct 
impact on intersections near the project that are not already included in the Mid-Star program. Payment of this fee should be a 
condition of final plat approval for Phase 1.  

In total, Developer/Builder will pay approximately $950,000 towards traffic improvements in and around the City of Middleton.



Pathway, Sidewalks & Open Space: 
Developer has provided over 30% open 
space, which exceeds the 5% required by 
code.  (MCC 5-4-10-10) The open space 
includes a clubhouse with outdoor 
swimming pool and two other large 
common lots with small pathways that are 
landscaped for open play. 

Developer will also construct a 
community pond and greenbelt trail 
system on a large wetland lot inside the 
project parcel. The greenbelt pathway will 
be encumbered with a public access 
easement, and it will be integrated into 
the six mile pathway loop planned for the 
City’s “River Walk District.”  The project’s 
HOA will be responsible for maintaining 
and repairing the pathway.  

Staff recommends that Developer be 
required to use only wrought iron fencing 
along the rear of home lots adjacent to 
the trail system to ensure the pathways 
stay open and attractive.  



Pathway, Sidewalks & Open Space con’t: Developer will also 
provide a public river raft access near the southeast corner of the 
plat. City is working with the Developer to enlarge the access area by 
combining adjacent City property with Developer’s property to make 
an area adequate for public use and enjoyment.   

River Access



Preliminary Plat: The preliminary plat shows three phases of 
development.

City Engineer has reviewed the preliminary plat and has 
issued a “recommendation for approval” letter that was 
attached to the Staff Report as Exhibit “G”.

Planning Staff finds that the preliminary plat complies with all 
Middleton codes and standards with one exception: (1) 
Developer is requesting that perimeter fencing be installed on 
the rear of some residential lots rather than on the perimeter 
boundary of the entire subdivision to ensure that the pathways 
and open spaces remain open and unobstructed.  (MCC 5-4-
11-2) (See red line for proposed fence configuration.)

Middleton governing bodies are allowed to approve 
“exceptions” or “waivers” to the City’s codes and standards 
during the preliminary plat process. (MCC 1-15-2).  

Planning Staff finds that the “waiver” request to change the 
location of the perimeter fence is a reasonable request in light 
of the fact that:
1. it will open the greenspace and make a more attractive 

trail system. 
2. the location change will minimize trapped debris and 

possible increased water levels during a flood event.

--..;.-.,, . ..., ,, .. I • -..;, I ~ .... MERID1AN---~ Q • • =~ 

CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO 
MARCH 2022 



Comprehensive Plan & Land Use Map:  
Applicant’s project complies with the 
Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map. The 
project parcel is designated “Mixed- Use” on the 
Land Use Map, which matches the mixed 
residential and commercial use proposed for the 
site. 

Additionally, the Comprehensive Plan’s 
Transportation, Schools & Recreation Map shows 
a river raft access at the southeastern corner of 
the Project parcel together with a greenbelt trail.  
Developer’s preliminary plat includes both of these 
recreational amenities in compliance with the 
Comprehensive Plan.



Comprehensive Plan con’t: 

Applicant’s project also complies with the Goals, Objectives, and Strategies of the 2019 Middleton Comprehensive 
Plan as follows:

a. Goals 3 and 23: The project provides safe vehicle and pedestrian facilities in light of the street improvements and 
public pathways shown on the preliminary plat. It will also reduce traffic trips because of the close proximity to 
commercial/retail development. 

b. Goal 4: The project will establish a good quality of life with development that pays through impact fees and 
property taxes for the public services it receives when infrastructure is installed. The project also provides a 
buffer between residential and commercial development. The Comprehensive Plan encourages commercial uses 
near major roads. Additionally, quality lots for residential use increase the quality of life and general welfare of the 
City.

c. Goal 6: Water, sewer, and road systems have been expanded in an orderly manner consistent with population 
growth. 

d. Goal 7: the project promotes commercial development and employment opportunities.
e. Goal 8: the project establishes a new commercial area without detracting from existing businesses.
f. Goal 10: Project provides playgrounds and pathways that connect to a pedestrian system and provides outdoor 

recreational activities.
g. Goal 11: The housing type matches the residents’ lifestyle in the area the project is located. 
h. Goal 16: The public pathways create a scenic and usable waterfront on the north side of the Boise River. 



Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  Staff received public 
comments from Angeli Butler on 6/10/2022, David Dissinger on 4/5/2022, and Janet 
Richards on 6/16/2022.  (Copies of the comments were attached as Exhibit “C” to the 
Staff Report for Council’s consideration and for public viewing.)

Comments from Agencies:  COMPASS submitted comments on 3/3/2022. Canyon 
Highway District 4 sent comments on 4/11/2022.  Greater Middleton Parks & 
Recreation submitted comments on 3/29/2022, and Middleton School District #134 
submitted comments on 4/8/2022.  (Copies of the Agency comments were attached as 
Exhibit “D” to the Staff Report for Council consideration and public viewing.)

Comments from City Engineer and Planning Staff: See copies of all Engineering 
and planning comments attached as Exhibit “E” to the Staff Report.

* * * City of * * * 

MIDDLETON 

Established 1910 

* 



Notices & Neighborhood Meeting: Dates:

Newspaper Notification 5/29/2022

Radius notification mailed to
Adjacent landowners within 500’ 5/31/2022

Circulation to Agencies 5/27/2022

Sign Posting property 5/27/2022  

Neighborhood Meeting 8/23/2021

On June 15, 2022, this application was tabled to July 20th in light of the Moratorium. 

Pertinent Codes and Standards:

Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the
Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-16, 5-1,
5-2, 5-3, and 5-4, and Idaho Code Title 67, Chapter 65 & Title 50, Chapter 13.

* * * City of * * * 

MIDDLETON 

Established 1910 

* 



Planning & Zoning Recommendation:  The Planning & Zoning Commission approved Developer’s special use permit to build townhomes 
during the May 9, 2022, public hearing. The Commission also recommended approval of the preliminary plat application on the following 
condition:

1. Developer/Owner meets with the staff of Middleton School District 134 to determine if there are any measures or actions 
Developer/Owner should take to mitigate any adverse impacts on the school district, and

2. Developer/Owner to comply with all conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report.  

* * * City of * * * 

MIDDLETON 

.. 
Established 1910 

* 



Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:  
Per State law and the Middleton City Code, any final order must 
be based upon findings of facts and conclusions of law.  

As to Findings of Facts, Planning Staff has set forth 
findings of facts above in parentheses.  If City Council 
agrees with those findings of facts and further agrees with 
the general facts presented at the public hearing, then the 
Council may make a motion to accept the findings of facts 
presented by planning staff. 

As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that City 
Council has the authority to hear the preliminary plat 
application and to approve or deny the application. 
Additionally, Planning Staff notes that all public notice 
requirements were met. Planning Staff further set forth the 
portions of the Idaho State Code and Middleton City Code 
to be considered in making an order on the applications.   
If the hearing tonight is conducted in compliance with 
Idaho State Statute and the Middleton City Code, then the 
Council may accept these conclusions of law by passing a 
motion to accept the conclusions of law set forth in the 
staff report and at the public hearing. 



Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval con’t:

Preliminary Plat Application: If City Council is inclined to recommend approval of the preliminary plat based upon 
the above findings of facts and conclusions of law, then Planning Staff recommends that any approval be subject to 
the following conditions: 

1. Developer to fulfill and comply with all local, state, and federal requirements for wetlands remediation and 
mitigation.

2. Landscape to be installed in compliance with the submitted Landscape Plan, and Pursuant to MCC 5-4-10-6, a 
traffic buffer that includes fence, berm, and landscaping must be installed along Sawtooth Lake Dr., except at 
the location of the commercial lots. The combination of berm and fence must extend to a height of at least 9’ but 
no more than 11’. 

3. City municipal domestic water, fire flow and sanitary sewer services are to be extended to serve the subdivision.
4. Developer/owner to grant a cross-access easement for vehicle and pedestrian traffic over the commercial lots to 

ensure there are no land-locked commercial parcels.
5. Developer/owner to work, in good faith, with the City to provide public river access for a rafting “drop-off/pick-up” 

zone at the southeastern portion of the project near Middleton bridge prior to final plat approval for Phase 1. If, 
however, the final configuration of the river access cannot be established by Phase 1 final plat approval because 
the City will not have acquired the parcel adjacent to the project, then Developer will not be required to provide 
the river access until final plat approval of Phase 3.

MiDDUTON 
~ 
~ 

Established 1910 

* 



Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval con’t:

7. Developer/HOA to take measures to ensure that townhome parking stalls will not be used by the public 
for river access.   

8. All pathways must be paved with asphalt per Middleton Supplement to ISPWC. The greenbelt pathway 
must be encumbered by a public access easement. The HOA shall be responsible for the maintenance 
and repair of the pathways. 

9. Only wrought iron style fencing may be used on the rear of home lots along the greenbelt pathway and 
connected trail system to keep an open and attractive appearance along the greenspace.

10. Owner/Developer to pay all City required pro-rata share traffic fees as required by MCC 5-4-3 prior to 
approval of final plat for phase 1.

11. All City Engineer review comments are to be completed and approved.
12. All Planner comments are to be completed and approved.
13. All requirements of the Middleton Rural Fire District are to be completed and approved.
14. Developer to comply with all FEMA, Middleton Floodplain Code and Floodplain Administrator 

requirements.
15. Development to grant temporary easement area across Phase 3 to re-route S. Middleton Road traffic 

during construction of the Sawtooth Lake/S. Middleton Road roundabout. The condition will expire at the 
completion of construction of the roundabout or no later than the approval of construction drawings for 
Phase 3.

Finally, if City Council denies the preliminary plat application, then pursuant to Middleton City Code 1-
14(E)(8), the Council should state on the record what Applicant can do, if anything, to gain approval of the 
application.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1d 



 
 
 
 
 

1 
 

 

                          Middleton City Council 
              Findings of Facts, Conclusions of Law & Order 
 
 

 

 

                          
 
 
 
 
In the Matter of the application of Middleton Rivers, LLC and Jay Gibbons/South Beck & Baird 
for preliminary plat with respect to the Channel Crossing Subdivision located at 22457 So. 
Middleton Road and 0 So. Middleton Road (Tax Parcel Nos. R180350, R18035011, R180340 & 
18036010): 

 
A. Findings of Fact:   

 
1. Hearing Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of July 20, 2022, which Report is 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A’ and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

2. Process Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of July 20, 2022, Exhibit “A”. 
 

3. Application and Property Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of July 20, 2022, 
Exhibit “A”. 

 
4. Required Findings per Middleton City Code 1-14-2(E)(7), Idaho State Statue Title 67, 

Chapter 65, Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction and Middleton Supplement 
thereto, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3 & 5-4 and Idaho Code Title 67, 
Chapter 65 & Title 50, Chapters 2 and 13:  See Staff Report for the hearing date of 
May 9, 2022, Exhibit “A”. 
 

B. Conclusions of Law: 
 

1. That the City of Middleton has exercised the powers conferred upon it by the “Local 
Land Use Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (I.C. §67-
6503). 
 

2. That due consideration has been given to the comments received from the 
governmental subdivisions providing services in the City of Middleton planning 
jurisdiction, comments received from individuals of the public, and comments from City 
Planning Staff and City Engineer. 

 
3. That notice of the application and public hearing was given according to law.   

 
4. That City Council’s public hearing was conducted according to law, and the City has 

kept a record of the application and related documents.  
 

5. That codes and standards pertinent to the application are the Idaho Standards for 
Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for 
Public Works Construction, and Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4 
and Idaho Code Title 67, Chapter 65 and Idaho Code Title 50, chapters 2 and 13. 

 
 



             
        

2 
 

6. That public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not 
impose expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed.  
 

C. Decision & Order: 
 
Pursuant to the City Council’s authority as provided in Middleton City Code 1-5-2, and based 
upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, it is hereby Ordered that: 
 

1. The application of Middleton Rivers, LLC and Jay Gibbons/South, Beck & Baird for 
preliminary plat is approved subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff 
Report for the July 20, 2022, hearing. 

 
WRITTEN ORDER APPROVED ON: _________________, 2022. 
 
 
 
            
      Steven J. Rule, Mayor 
      City of Middleton 
 
Attest: 
 
      
Roberta Stewart 
Planning and Zoning Official 
 
 
Please take notice that pursuant to MCC 1-14-2(E)(10), applicant shall have 14 days after a 
signed final decision to request reconsideration by the final-decision maker. Such request 
must identify specific deficiencies in the final decision. Failure to request reconsideration 
may invalidate a subsequent judicial appeal. Additionally, pursuant to Idaho State Statute 
67-6521, any affected person aggrieved by a final decision may, within 28 days after all 
remedies have been exhausted under local ordinances, seek judicial review as provided in 
chapter 52, Title 67.  

 
Additionally, please take notice that Applicant has a right to request a regulatory taking 
analysis pursuant to Idaho State Statute section 67-8003.  
 

https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH80/SECT67-8003


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2 



ORD. NO. 665 - Page 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 665 

 

AN ORDINANCE ENACTED BY THE MIDDLETON CITY COUNCIL AMENDING 

TITLE 7, CHAPTER 6, SETION 7-6-1, MIDDLETON CITY CODE, PERTAINING TO 

SIDEWALKS AND SIDEWALK REPAIRS OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON; 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 

REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS, ORDERS AND PARTS THEREOF, 

IN CONFLICT HEREWITH. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Middleton, County of 

Canyon, State of Idaho: 

 

Section 1. That Title 7, Chapter 6, Section 7-6-1 of the Middleton City Code is hereby 

amended, as follows: 

 

7-6-1: SIDEWALKS: 

 

A. Duty Of Owners: Property owners shall maintain sidewalks and pathways on or in public right 

of way adjacent to their property. their properties. 

B. No Obstructions In Public Rights Of Way: Property owners shall not obstruct or allow others 

to obstruct sidewalks or pathways on or adjacent to their property.  (Ord. 553, 3-18-2015) 

C. Trees: No trees shall be planted within fifteen feet (15') of a public right of way unless approved 

in writing by the city. 

D. Clear Surface: A property owner shall clear sidewalks, curbs and gutters, and roads abutting 

pathways, alleys, and parking within curbing; on private property or in public right of way 

abutting their his/her property from snow, ice, rubbish, weeds, grass, grass clippings, leaves, 

tree limbs and roots, shrubbery or other vegetation. Property owners shall also clear sidewalks 

of snow and ice. (Ord. 569, 12-21-2015). 

E. Repairs:  

1) Council-Directed Repairs: The City Council may by resolution passed by a two-thirds (2/3) 

majority of all the members elected to the Council deem any sidewalk or pathway in public 

right of way or dedicated for public travel as unsafe or dangerous, order such sidewalk or 

pathway replaced or repaired, and assess the cost of replacing or repairing same against the 

property in front of which the same shall be constructed, repaired, or laid. 

2) Notice Required: Notice to repair or replace any sidewalk or pathway shall be given to the 

property owners in front of or on which property the sidewalk or pathway has been ordered 

replaced or repaired via certified mail. Said property owner shall commence replacement 

or repair of the sidewalk or pathway within sixty (60) days following the date of notice. 

Repairs shall be completed within thirty (30) days of commencement, unless approval of 

an extension is granted by the City. 

3) When City Makes Repairs: Whenever a sidewalk, pathway, or any portion thereof which 

has been ordered replaced or repaired shall not be repaired or replaced within the time 

specified, then the City shall construct, replace, or repair the same by contract and assess 

the cost and expense thereof in the manner provided by this article. Nothing herein 



ORD. NO. 665 - Page 2 

contained shall be construed so as to prevent giving any notice required to be given by this 

article.  

 

Section 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 

approval, and publication, according to law. 

 

Section 3. This ordinance is hereby declared to be severable. If any portion of this 

ordinance is declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall 

continue in full force and effect and shall be read to carry out the purposes of the ordinance before 

the declaration of partial invalidity. 

 

Section 4. All ordinances, resolutions, orders and parts thereof in conflict herewith are 

repealed. 

 

 

PASSED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, this 6th day 

of July, 2022. 

 

APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, this 6th 

day of July, 2022. 

 

       ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

Steve Rule, Mayor     City Clerk (or Deputy) 

  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3 



Date: April 18, 2022 

Regional Sales Manager: Rich Smith 

Customer: Canyon County Sheriff's Office 

Attention: SGT Rob Whitney, for Middleton Police Department 

Subject: Quotation with Order Information (signature required) 

PWS is pleased to offer the following pricing for your pending order. 

Part Number Description 

MA3- 3-yr NetCloud Mobile Essentials Plan and IBR900 router with WiFi 

0900120B-NNA (1000Mbps modem), no AC power supply or antennas, North 
America 

Shipping Ground Shipping Estimate 
Total 

1. The quote is valid for a term of 30 days from the date of issuance. 
2. Net 30 terms. 

Price/U 
$1,100.00 

TBD 

3. Free ground shipping for orders greater than $1000 and less than 10 boxes (10 units/ box). 

Prepared by: Rich Smith 

Premier Wireless Solutions 

88 Bonaventura Drive 

San Jose CA, 95134 
0 : 650-230-1300 
F: 650-230-1301 

QTY Extended 

8 $8,800.00 

1 TBD 

$8,800.00 
plus 
shipping 



ORDER FORM 
(Sign, Scan, and return all pages of this document to Rich Smith for binding order) 

Date: 4/18/22 

Account Manager: Rich Smith 

PURCHASE ORDER: 

Bill to address: 
Canyon County Sheriffs Office 
1115 Albany St 
Caldwell, ID 83605 

Ship to address: 
Canyon County Sheriff's Office 
C/O Robert Whitney 
1115 Albany St 
Caldwell, Idaho 83605 
208-455-5908 

Terms: Net 30 days 
FOB: San Jose, CA 
Ship instructions: Ship via ground. Include shipping and insurance on invoice. 

I, Robert Whitney, hereby acknowledge this binding order for $8,800.00 plus shipping. 

Signature: ____ _ _______ Date: ____ _ 

Premier Wireless Solutions 

88 Bonaventura Drive 

San Jose CA, 95134 
0 : 650-230-1300 
F: 650-230-1301 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4 



       

 

1 
 

             SUPPLEMENTAL STAFF REVIEW AND REPORT 
      Middleton City Council 

 
 

 

 

 
   QUARRY EAST SUBDIVISION 

 
Snapshot Summary 

  
 
 
                     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    
 

A. Continued City Council Hearing Date:  August 3, 2022   

B. Project Description & Applications: A 55+ resort style community involving 640 
residential lots, one mini-self storage lot, 67 common area lots, 37 shared driveway 
lots, and nine private road lots located at 21500 Middleton Road and 11436 Lincoln 
Road (Tax Parcels Nos. R34076 and R34077).   

Applicant has four applications before City Council: (1) annexation and rezone to M-U 
(“Mixed Use”), (2) preliminary plat, (3) Development Agreement, and (4) 

VICINITY MAP - BENCHMARKS 

DESCRIPTION DETAILS 

Acreage Approx . 237 acres 

County Agricultural, M-1 ("Light 

Current Zon ing Indust rial", and C-1 ("Neighborhood 

Commercial") 

Proposed Zoning M-U ("Mixed Use") 

Current Land Use County - "Industrial" 

Proposed Land Use City - Residential & M ixed Use 

640 Resident ial Lots (including 102 

Lots 
duplex lots, 72 cl uster lots, and 466 

single fami ly lots), 1 mini-storage M-U 

lot , 67 Common Area lots, 37 shared 

driveway lots, and 9 private road lots 

Density 2.7 

Open Space over 25% 

clubhouse, swimming poo l, 62 acres of 

Amenities lakes and beaches, 6 pick le bal l courts, 

& picnic areas 

---~-···"-------­•• ,,. . m,-, • "~" ""''"' .,.,,-

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
IIIIIlIIIIIlIIl IIIIIlIIIIIlIIl IIIIIIlillif.t! S ..s.1.LJIID IIIIIlIIIIIlIIl IIIIIlIIIIIlIIl ITlIIIlllIIliil -lilIIIllIIIlIDI -. 



             
        

2 
 

Comprehensive Plan Map amendment to change the “Residential” use on the Future 
Land Use Map to “Industrial”.  
 

C. Development Agreement:  At the July 20, 2022 public hearing on the applications, 
Council requested Staff and Developer to make two changes to the proposed 
Development Agreement (“DA”).  The hearing was continued to August 3, 2022 to give 
Staff time to revise the DA.  The two changes are as follows: 
 

1. In section 3.4 of the original draft, Developer is not required to complete the 
water line bore under the Boise River until approval of final plat for Phase 2 of 
the project.  The newly revised DA ties completion of the water bore to a 
specific number of building permits rather than to final plat approval for Phase 
2.  The current preliminary plat contains 134 building lots in Phases 1 and 2.  
Therefore, in the newly revised DA, the water bore completion is tied to 
issuance of the 135th building permit.  See revised section 3.4 highlighted in 
yellow in the Development Agreement attached as Exhibit “A”. 
 

2. In section 3.11 of the previous DA, Developer was allowed to pay the Traffic 
pro-rata fee of $456,335 by phase rather than paying up front at Phase 1 final 
plat approval.  The revised DA provides that Developer will pay the pro-rata fee 
for all lots in Quarry East prior to final plat approval of Phase 1; however, the 
City will not require Developer to pay the portion of the fee attributable to 
Quarry West lots until final plat approval for Phase 1 of Quarry West.  See 
revised section 3.11 highlighted in yellow in the Development Agreement 
attached as Exhibit “A”   

Prepared by Middleton Planning & Zoning Director, Roberta Stewart  Dated: 7/28/2022 



rstewart
Typewritten Text
    EXHIBIT "A"





rstewart
Typewritten Text
Proposed Development Agreement



 
Development Agreement – The Quarry East  
Page 1 
   

When recorded, send copy to: 
Middleton City Hall 
1103 W. Main St. 
Middleton, ID 83644 

 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 This Development Agreement (this Agreement) is entered into this ___ day of 
_______________, 2022 (the Effective Date), by and between the CITY OF MIDDLETON, a 
municipal corporation in the State of Idaho (City), WOODLAND PROPERTIES LIMITED 
PARTNERSHIP, an Idaho limited partnership (Owner), and M3 ID WOODLAND, L.L.C., an 
Arizona limited liability company (Developer). 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, Owner owns approximately 236.5 acres legally described in Exhibit A 
attached hereto and made a part hereof (Property).  The Property is intended to be 
developed by Developer and referred to as “Quarry East”; 
  

WHEREAS, Developer has applied to the City to rezone the Property from County 
Agricultural, C-1, and M-1 to Mixed Use (M-U) (the Applications).   
 
 WHEREAS, Developer intends to improve the Property (the Project) in accordance 
with the Middleton City Code and the City’s public works standards in effect at the time the 
construction drawings are approved (collectively City Code), except as modified by this 
Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City, pursuant to Idaho Code Section 67-6511A, has the authority to 
annex and conditionally rezone the Property and to enter into a development agreement for 
the purpose of allowing, by agreement, a specific development to proceed in a specific area 
and for a specific purpose or use which is appropriate in the area, but for which all allowed 
uses for the requested zoning may not be appropriate pursuant to the Idaho Code and City 
Code. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 
of which is hereby acknowledged, and in consideration of the recitals above, which are 
incorporated below, and the mutual covenants, representations, and performances herein 
bargained for, relied on, and expected, the parties agree as follows: 
 
 



 
Development Agreement – The Quarry East  
Page 2 
   

ARTICLE I 
LEGAL AUTHORITY 

 
 This Agreement is made pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of Idaho 
Code §67-6511A and City Code, Title 5, Chapter 2. 
 

ARTICLE II 
ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 

 
 The City will adopt an ordinance amending the Middleton Zoning Ordinance (the 
Code) to rezone the Property Mixed-Use (M-U) (the Ordinance).  The Ordinance will 
become effective after it is approved, signed, published and recorded according to law, all of 
which actions the City will perform with the Developer’s cooperation. 
 

ARTICLE III 
CONDITIONS OF DEVELOPMENT 

 
 3.1 Zoning.  The entirety of the Property shall be zoned Mixed-Use (M-U).   
 
 3.2 Development Density and Concept Master Plan.  Quarry East shall contain no 
more than 650 residential units (the Maximum Density).  The configuration of such units 
shall be substantially consistent with the approved Master Plan of the Project, attached as 
Exhibit B and made a part hereof by this reference.  Developer, and its heirs, successors, and 
assigns, shall develop the Project substantially consistent with the Master Plan concept.   
 

3.2.1 Re-Allocation of Density.  Developer may apply administratively to the 
Planning & Zoning Official for an amended preliminary plat in order to change the 
phasing plan and/or make minor adjustments to roadways and lot lines.  Developer 
may revise roadways and lot lines to a minimal degree so long as the final plat 
substantially conforms to the approved preliminary plat, which adjustments may 
include changes to accommodate orderly utility installation (such as where gravity 
sewer versus pressure sewer services are located) or traffic circulation.  The minor 
adjustments may also include a reduction or increase in the size of phases (whether 
by number of lots or land area).  Developer may also modify lot configurations 
administratively so long as such modifications do not result in an increase in density 
from the approved preliminary plat and any decrease in number of lots does not 
exceed a ten percent (10%) reduction of lots shown on the approved preliminary plat.  
The administrative fee for the amended preliminary plat application shall be the same 
fee set forth in the City’s codified Fee Schedule for an application to amend a 
preliminary plat.  If the Planning & Zoning Official deems the change to road design 
and/or lot lines to be more than a minor adjustment as outlined herein, then 
Developer must apply for an amended preliminary plat and/or phasing plan in 
compliance with the public hearing procedures set forth in the Middleton City Code. 

 



 
Development Agreement – The Quarry East  
Page 3 
   

3.2.2 Elevations.  The single-family and duplex home elevation designs shall 
be of similar quality and design with the examples of higher quality elevation designs 
shown on Exhibit C, which exhibit is made a part hereof by this reference.  City 
acknowledges and agrees that the foregoing elevations are conceptual in nature but 
show the intent of the Developer in connection with the Project. 

 
3.2.3 Quality of Design.  Developer, its successors, heirs, and assigns, shall 

construct the residential product, community infrastructure, and community 
amenities substantially consistent with the standards set forth in the Design 
Guidelines attached hereto as Exhibit D, which exhibit is made a part hereof by this 
reference. This provision does not prevent Developer from unilaterally amending its 
Design Guidelines with provisions that require equivalent quality or better. Rather, 
the Design Guidelines attached as Exhibit D shall set a minimum base level of quality 
that must be constructed by Developer, its successors, heirs, and assigns. 

 
 3.3 Modifications to Standards.  Approved modifications of the requirements of 
the City’s development density, lot size, and setback standards, as set forth in the Code, are 
attached as Exhibit E or are set forth in this Section 3.3.  In the event of any inconsistency 
between the Code and this Agreement, this Agreement shall control. 
 

3.3.1 Setback and Lot Size Standards.  The following setback and lot size 
standards shall apply in Quarry East (if not specified below, general Code 
requirements shall apply): 

 
Duplex Lot  
Front (to residence or side-load garage) 10 feet 
Front (to garage) 20 feet 
Rear 15 feet 
Side 5 feet (0 feet for attached) 
Minimum Lot Size 4,000 square feet 
Minimum Width (N/A for irregular shaped lots) 40 feet 
Cluster 4 Pack Lots  
Front (to street or side-load garage) 10 feet 
Front (to garage) 20 feet or 5 feet 
Rear (back of back lot) 10 feet 
Side (all interior property lines) 5 feet (3 feet to shared drive) 
Minimum Lot Size 4,000 square feet 
Minimum Width (N/A for irregular shaped lots) 45 feet 
  
Single Family Standard Detached Lot  
Front (to residence or side-load garage) 10 feet 
Front (to garage) 20 feet 
Rear 15 feet 
Side 5 feet  
Minimum Lot Size 5,000 square feet 
Minimum Width (N/A for irregular shaped lots) 40 feet 



 
Development Agreement – The Quarry East  
Page 4 
   

 
 A depiction of the Cluster 4 Pack Lot setbacks is included below: 
 

  
 

 3.3.2 Additional Use Standards.  Notwithstanding the uses set forth in 
Middleton City Code for the Mixed-Use zone, the only uses allowed in the Project shall 
be (a) single-family residential homes, (b) duplex residential homes, (c) sales offices, 
including marketing trailers, model home complexes, and construction trailers during 
the marketing phase of the Project, (d) community recreational facilities and (e) mini 
self-storage, including RV storage at such intensities and at such locations as 
identified in this Agreement and its exhibits, including, but not limited to, the 
preliminary plat.  The mini self-storage is subject to the Design Review Process as set 
forth in the Middleton City Code, and Developer may not apply for a building permit 
until Developer obtains approval for the design from the Middleton Design 
Committee.  The design for the mini-self storage facility may not exceed a single story. 
 

3.3.3 Initial Building Permits.  Upon Developer’s notice of completion of all-
weather access roads and fire protection facilities for any phase of the Project (and 
City Engineer’s approval of the same), Developer shall be eligible to submit 
applications for building permits for the construction of up to ten (10) model homes 
and community facilities, collectively, which will be processed and approved upon 
completion of applicable City requirements.  Developer and City agree that the model 
homes and community facilities cannot receive a certificate of occupancy until 
Developer obtains final plat approval for the phase in which the model homes and/or 

~7 , - 55.0·-

~-~ 7 
I ~I ~ - I 

,,, 
I I~ 

- ~ 
I 

5.00' <D 

8 s.oo· • I · I 0 

J 
,,;I I 300•] J l L _ 46.5" _ ~ t_· 

J 7 i - 46.5' - 7 
~I I I I 

, - J 7 1 
I ~I I I 

I lg gJ I· 3.oo· I I~ 
s.oo· •

1 
I 

J L 46.5' J - --. I . s.oo· • 1 

L!J _ . J l 
. 



 
Development Agreement – The Quarry East  
Page 5 
   

community facilities are located. A model home may not be operated as a model home 
for public entrance and viewing until Developer obtains a Certificate of Occupancy for 
the model home. During the construction of the model homes and/or community 
facilities, Developer shall provide access to the Caldwell Fire Department and City in 
accordance with then-applicable emergency service standards or as otherwise 
provided in this Agreement. 

 
3.3.4  Private/Public Streets & Storm Facilities.  City acknowledges and agrees 

that private streets with gated entries may be used in Quarry East, subject to the 
following standards:     

 
3.3.4.1  Public Service Providers.  Private streets shall be accessible to 

public service providers, including without limitation, police, fire, ambulance, 
garbage collection, electrical, cable and telephone line installation and repair, 
domestic and irrigation water, sewer line installation and repair, and other 
similar public purposes. 

   
3.3.4.2  Street Standards.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in 

City Code, street sections shall be built in accordance with the approved 
preliminary plat and standards shown on Exhibits E & F attached hereto and 
made a part hereof by this reference.   

 
3.3.4.3 Private Street & Stormwater Facilities Reserve Study.  The 

Project’s restrictive covenants shall include a requirement that a maintenance 
plan be developed and maintained by the homeowners’ association 
responsible for maintaining and repairing the private streets and stormwater 
facilities, including open water bodies receiving storm water.  Said restrictive 
covenants shall also state that the City may, at its sole discretion, bring an 
action at law or in equity to cause the homeowners association to fulfill its 
obligation to repair and maintain the streets and storm facilities in good 
condition. Such rights of enforcement shall be limited to the failure of the 
homeowners association to provide for reasonable and customary 
maintenance of the private streets and storm facilities, and shall require 
written notice citing the repairs the homeowners association needs to make 
to the private streets and storm facilities and a reasonable time period during 
which the homeowners association may cure the alleged defect(s), which time 
shall not exceed ninety (90) days unless the homeowners association is 
undertaking commercially reasonable efforts to resolve the same and cannot, 
due to factors not within its control, complete such resolution within said 90-
day time period.  Any award by a court with jurisdiction associated with such 
enforcement action shall only be used to cause the homeowners association to 
conduct (and pay for) such maintenance, which may include requiring the 
homeowners association to levy a special assessment in the event that the 
reserve funds are inadequate for required repairs and replacement costs.  In 
the event the City brings an action at law or in equity as outlined in this section, 



 
Development Agreement – The Quarry East  
Page 6 
   

the unsuccessful party to such litigation shall pay to the prevailing party all 
costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred therein.   

 
For clarity, in no way shall the provisions set forth in this section be 
deemed to require the City to take any particular action, nor shall it be 
deemed an assignment to any extent of the homeowners association declarant 
rights to the City. 
 
Prior to approval of phase 1 final plat, Developer shall submit a reserve study 
for the Project to the City showing the monetary amount required to 
adequately maintain, repair and replace the private streets and storm 
facilities, including in phase 1. The reserve study shall also set forth a method 
or timing of collection that will ensure said reserve amount will be collected 
in a sufficient amount of time to cover reasonably anticipated and customary 
maintenance, repair and replacement costs for said streets and storm facilities 
in accordance with industry standards. Prior to the final plat approval for each 
phase thereafter, Developer shall submit financial information showing that 
such amounts are being collected and such budgeted amounts are in 
accordance with the reserve study in an amount required to adequately 
maintain, repair and replace the private streets and storm facilities 
constructed to date.   Prior to approval of the final phase final plat, the 
Developer shall submit an updated reserve study and shall provide evidence 
that the reserves have been funded current.  If the foregoing is not the case, 
Developer shall deposit funds identified as deficient or required in the study 
to fund the reserves due as of the time of such review.   Upon the request of 
the City, but no more frequently than every three years, the homeowners’ 
association shall be required to submit to the City financial statements and 
budgets showing that the required funds are being set aside in the reserve 
account for repair and maintenance of all the private streets and storm 
facilities in the community unless the City and the homeowners’ association 
mutually determine that such reserve studies are no longer necessary.  The 
association shall be responsible for the ongoing maintenance, 
replacement, and repair of the private streets and storm facilities and 
shall keep the private streets and storm facilities in good condition per 
state, municipal and industry standards and consistent, at the very least, 
with similar subdivisions in the City of Middleton.  The association shall 
be responsible for ensuring the ongoing safe operation and maintenance 
of the private streets and storm facilities and shall indemnify, defend, 
and hold the City harmless regarding any claims associated with the 
operation and maintenance of the same.  In no event is the City obligated 
to take on the operation or maintenance or operation of the private 
streets and storm facilities within the Project. 

 
3.3.4.4  Secondary Access.  Developer shall provide a secondary access 

suitable for public use and approved by City Engineer and Canyon County 



 
Development Agreement – The Quarry East  
Page 7 
   

Highway District 4 (“CHD4”), prior to the 51st building permit.  This second 
access may be re-located so long as City Engineer and CHD4 approve any 
changed location.   

 
 3.4 Domestic Water and Sewer Facilities. City will reserve sewer and water 
capacity at approval of construction drawings for each phase as the Project progresses to 
completion.  Developer is responsible for all planning, engineering, and costs associated with 
extending City utilities, including sewer and water facilities, “to and through” the Property 
and tying the same into the existing City sewer and water systems.  Such costs shall include, 
but not be limited to, the cost to design and construct the facilities, cost to obtain all 
necessary permits, and cost to acquire necessary utility easements outside of City-controlled 
property.  City will permit installation of City utilities in areas controlled by the City (in fee 
or by easement).  If City requires Developer to oversize the utility facilities to accommodate 
future growth off-site involving unrelated development, City shall reimburse Developer for 
over-size work or additional lines (beyond the capacity required for the Project) by entering 
into a mutually agreeable latecomer’s fee agreement to be negotiated between Developer 
and City pursuant to MCC 1-17-1 or by some other mutually agreeable reimbursement 
agreement as allowed by law and mutually agreed to by the parties.  Said reimbursement 
agreement shall provide for reimbursement on mutually agreeable terms for design, 
permitting, and acquisition of necessary easements, and shall further contain a provision 
wherein City will reserve sufficient capacity for Developer to fully complete the Project 
construction in the future. Sewer and water main lines larger than eight inches (8”) are not 
presumed oversized and shall require evaluation on a case-by-case basis. Installation of a 
12” main in Middleton Road, Lincoln Road, under, over or through the Boise River and one 
12” main through the development is not considered oversized and subject to 
reimbursement. 
 
A water line extension under, through or across the Boise River will be necessary to serve 
the Property. Developer will be responsible for constructing the water line and shall build 
the water line in compliance with the specifications set forth in the City’s Water System Plan 
and/or project specific plans and specifications for the project in effect at the time of 
construction.  The water line extension must be operational prior to the issuance of the one 
hundred and thirty fifth (135th) building permit.  Failure to meet this timeline will result in 
the City withholding any further building permits until the water line is operational. City 
Administration, in its sole discretion, may elect to allow Developer to complete the water 
line extension at a date and time after the one hundred and thirty fifth (135th) building 
permit is issued.    
 
Developer will be responsible for only its proportionate share of the water line improvement 
costs (based on overall volume, including fire flow, required to serve Quarry East as 
compared to the volume made available by such an improvement).  Therefore, Developer 
shall be reimbursed for any costs over and above its proportionate share via a latecomer fee 
agreement as set forth in MCC 1-17-1 or other mutually agreeable reimbursement 
agreement, which agreement shall provide for the reservation of domestic water capacity 
sufficient for Developer to fully complete the Project construction in the future.     



 
Development Agreement – The Quarry East  
Page 8 
   

 
Developer anticipates constructing a sewer lift station inside the project to serve the 
Property and a future Quarry subdivision.  The Developer will also be required to reconstruct 
and expand the Boise River Lift Station for purposes of completing sewer service to the 
Property.  To the extent such on site lift station or Boise River lift station expansion provides 
capacity to City’s sewer system beyond what is required to serve the Project based on peak 
hour flows, such additional capacity shall be subject to reimbursement via latecomer fee 
agreement set forth in MCC 1-17-1 or other mutually agreeable reimbursement agreement, 
which agreement shall provide for reservation of sewer capacity sufficient for Developer to 
fully complete the Project construction in the future.   
 
If, prior to construction of any of the water or sewer improvements described above, the City 
adopts a water impact fee and/or sewer impact fee, and if any of the foregoing improvements 
are included on a capital improvements plan, reimbursement to the Developer for 
construction of eligible improvements will be permitted in accordance the terms of such 
impact fee ordinance for capacity greater than required to serve the Project.  
 
 3.5 Natural Gas.    Developer is responsible for extending natural gas service to the 
Property. The City shall not share in the cost of extending the natural gas service to the 
Property.   
 
 3.6 Irrigation.  Developer will provide its own private pressurized irrigation 
system for the Property in conformance with Idaho Code 38-3105.b.  No irrigation hookups 
within the Project will connect to City domestic water, and the CC&Rs for the Project shall 
indicate that domestic water shall not be used for irrigation and landscaping on any 
common/open space lots, residential lots, or commercial/industrial lots in the community. 
 
 3.7  Open Space.  The Project shall contain a minimum of twenty-five percent 
(25%) open space that includes ponds, common area parks, clubs, and landscape frontage 
along Middleton and Lincoln Roads.   
 
 3.8 Urban Renewal Revenue Allocation Area.   The parties agree and acknowledge 
that the City of Middleton Urban Renewal Agency, an independent body, corporate and 
politic (the “Agency”) and the City may form an Urban Renewal Revenue Allocation Area 
(“RAA”), as authorized by Chapters 20 and 29, Title 50, Idaho Code, as amended, which RAA 
boundary may include all, or a portion, of the Project. In the event Urban Renewal Plan is 
adopted by City Council ordinance, then the RAA shall be administered and implemented by 
the Agency.  Depending on Idaho law and the adopted Urban Renewal Plan, certain public 
infrastructure projects may be eligible for reimbursement as determined by the Agency, not 
the City.  The Agency is a separate and distinct entity from the City.  The City acknowledges 
that it will not hinder Developer from seeking reimbursement from the Agency for certain 
public infrastructure projects, including those identified in Section 3.4 hereof, but eligibility 
for reimbursement and related terms cannot be guaranteed.  Nothing contained herein shall 
be construed as a waiver by Developer of its ability to pursue reimbursement as provided 
above. 



 
Development Agreement – The Quarry East  
Page 9 
   

 
If Developer receives any reimbursement from RAA for any infrastructure improvement 
constructed by Developer, then to the extent such reimbursement encompasses payments 
previously made to Developer pursuant to latecomer fees, credits (including impact fee 
credits), or reimbursements, Developer shall pay back any such latecomer fees, credits or 
reimbursement actually received by Developer for said infrastructure improvements.   
 
 3.9 Age Restriction.  All residential lots shall be age-restricted to 55+ ownership 
and occupancy to the extent allowed under the laws of the State of Idaho or the United States.    
The CCRs for the Project will include said restrictions, which shall identify the authority for 
such restrictions, qualification requirements for occupants, disclosure requirements in 
connection with transfer or sale, as well as monitoring requirements.  For clarity, the CCRs 
will require, in accordance with the Fair Housing Amendments Act, 42 U.S.C. § 3601, et seq. 
(1988), as amended (the “Fair Housing Act”) and the exemption therefrom provided by 
42 U.S.C. § 3607(b)(2)(C) regarding discrimination based on familial status and that at least 
eighty percent (80%) of the occupied residential units within the project be occupied by at 
least one person who is 55 years of age or older.  No lot shall be occupied by any person 
under the age of 18, where “occupied” refers to any person who stays overnight in the lot for 
more than 60 days in any 12-month period.  The homeowners’ association shall be solely 
responsible for enforcement of the foregoing restrictions in accordance with the CCRs. 
 
 3.10 Roadway Construction Requirements.   
 

3.10.1 Frontage Improvements.  Except as otherwise set forth herein 
or as required by City or Idaho code, Developer shall be required to construct 
the half road  improvements along Middleton Road and Lincoln Road  and 
dedicate the fully improved rights-of-way to the City.  The Road frontage 
improvements shall be constructed in compliance with the requirements of 
Canyon Highway District No. 4 (“CHD4”) or the City, depending on who has 
jurisdiction at the time of construction.   

 
3.10.2 Middleton Road Frontage:  The Middleton Road frontage is 

included in a capital improvement plan covering the Mid-Star Service Area 
(“Mid-Star CIP”). In order to avoid duplicate development requirements,  
Developer is entitled to reimbursement for all portions of the Middleton Road 
frontage improvements Developer constructs that are included in the Mid-Star 
CIP. Improvements that are not included in the Mid-Star CIP and would not be 
subject to reimbursement may include, but are not limited to, sidewalks, 
landscaping, storm facilities, pedestrian/bike facilities, and turn lanes to serve 
the project. Such improvements are considered “project improvements” 
rather than “system improvements”. Any reimbursement shall be in 
compliance with the provisions set forth in Idaho Code § 67-8209.  
Additionally, prior to Developer constructing the impact-fee eligible frontage 
improvements, Developer, City and/or CHD4 shall enter into a written 



 
Development Agreement – The Quarry East  
Page 10 
   

reimbursement agreement that will address reimbursement sources and 
timing that is mutually agreeable to the parties and allowed by law.  

 
3.10.3 Quarry Street Intersection Control. The Mid-Star CIP includes a 

multi-lane roundabout at the intersection of Middleton Road and what is 
referred to on the preliminary plat as E. Quarry Street.  Developer shall reserve 
on its preliminary plat and any subsequent final plats sufficient right of way 
for the construction of said multi-lane roundabout. The multi-lane roundabout 
may be built by public agencies, including the City, pursuant to the procedures 
set forth in the Mid-Star CIP.  However, if the City is able to obtain sufficient 
right of way for the full construction of the roundabout prior to issuing 
Developer one hundred (100) building permits, then Developer shall be 
required to design and construct the roundabout and dedicate its half-road 
portion of the roundabout to the City.  Once City notifies Developer in writing 
that it has obtained the necessary right of way for roundabout construction, 
Developer will have eighteen (18) months to design and construct the 
roundabout. The roundabout design must be in compliance with City 
specifications and be approved by the City. Failure to construct the 
roundabout within eighteen (18) months of City’s written notice will result in 
the City denying Developer final plat approval for any subsequent final plats 
at the time the eighteen (18) month period expires.  Completion of the 
roundabout and dedication of the same shall thereafter become a condition of 
final plat approval for the next phase.  Because the multi-lane roundabout is 
part of the Mid-Star CIP, Developer shall be entitled to reimbursement 
pursuant to Idaho Code § 67-8209 for the portion of the roundabout design 
and construction included in the Mid-Star CIP, with such reimbursement to 
occur as soon as reasonably possible and may occur through Transportation 
impact fee credits (in strict compliance with the reimbursement provisions set 
forth in Idaho Code § 67-8209)  to be issued to Developer as Developer pulls 
building permits on an ongoing basis within the Project .   

 
3.10.4 If City ultimately does not obtain right of way for the 

roundabout by the issuance of one hundred (100) building permits, then 
Developer shall not be required to construct the roundabout at any time in the 
future.  However, developer shall be required to construct sufficient turn lanes 
and connected frontage improvements to ensure safe ingress and egress to the 
Project prior to final plat approval for phase 1.  Additionally, Developer shall 
be required to design and construct a fully actuated four-way traffic signal at 
the intersection of E. Quarry Street and Middleton Road once the City obtains 
sufficient right of way for the construction of said traffic signal.  Developer is 
not entitled to any reimbursement for the traffic signal, and Developer shall 
design and construct the traffic signal at its sole cost and expense. The traffic 
signal shall be a pole traffic signal designed to the specifications of the City. 
Span wire will not be allowed. The traffic signal shall include two (2) 
luminaries to light the intersection and pedestrian facilities with detectable 



 
Development Agreement – The Quarry East  
Page 11 
   

domes. The poles shall be installed within the right of way existing at the time 
of construction. There will be no requirement to install the poles in locations 
that would accommodate future widening of Middleton Road.  Developer will 
not be required to construct the traffic signal until after two hundred (200) 
building permits have been issued and City has notified Developer in writing 
that it has obtained sufficient right of way for the traffic signal construction.  
Developer will have twelve (12) months after said written notice to complete 
the traffic signal construction.  Failure to construct the traffic signal within 
twelve (12) months will result in the City denying Developer final plat 
approval for any subsequent final plats at the time the twelve (12) month 
period expires.  Construction of the traffic signal will thereafter become a 
condition of approval for final plat approval of the next phase. 

 
3.10.5 Notwithstanding the above, Developer may elect at any time to 

construct the roundabout planned for Middleton Road and E. Quarry Street 
subject to a reimbursement agreement as set forth in Idaho Code §67-8209 for 
any impact-fee eligible design and construction costs.  

 
3.10.6 Lincoln Road & Middleton Road Intersection.  The Lincoln Road 

and Middleton Road intersection design shown in the Middleton Road 2016 
Corridor Study includes a re-alignment of Lincoln Road to the south and the 
construction of a multi-lane roundabout where there is currently no public 
right-of-way.  Because the Lincoln Road/Middleton Road roundabout may not 
be constructed for a number of years, Developer agrees to design and 
construct a fully actuated traffic signal at the intersection of Middleton Road 
and the northern leg of Lincoln Road. Right of way for this traffic signal shall 
be shown on the Project’s preliminary plat and final plat.  Developer will not 
be entitled to reimbursement for the cost of designing and constructing the 
traffic signal, and Developer shall construct the traffic signal at its sole cost and 
expense. Developer’s obligation to design and construct said traffic signal will 
be triggered by the occurrence of two events: (1) Developer has submitted 
construction drawings for the Phase that contains the first public access on to 
Lincoln Road and (2) City has notified Developer in writing that it has acquired 
sufficient right of way for the construction of the traffic signal. Once Developer 
receives said written notice, Developer shall have twelve (12) months to 
complete construction of the traffic signal.  The signal shall be a pole traffic 
signal designed to the specification of the City. Span wire construction will not 
be allowed. The signal shall include two (2) luminaries to light the intersection 
and pedestrian facilities with detectable domes. The traffic signal shall be 
installed within the then existing right of way.  Failure to construct the traffic 
signal within twelve (12) months will result in the City denying Developer final 
plat approval for any subsequent phase at the time the twelve (12) month 



 
Development Agreement – The Quarry East  
Page 12 
   

period expires.  Construction of the traffic signal will thereafter become a 
condition of approval for final plat approval of the next phase.  

 
3.10.7 Developer may also elect to construct the roundabout planned 

for Middleton Road and Lincoln Road subject to a reimbursement agreement 
as set forth in Idaho Code §67-8209.  

 
3.10.8 Access for Storage Facility.  Access shall be allowed from 

Middleton Road into the storage facility lot currently shown as Phase 10 of 
the preliminary plat. The City shall determine the degree of access allowed, 
including the possibility of a limitation of access to right in/right out only and 
the construction of a permanent barrier to prevent left turn movement.  
 

 3.11 ITD Traffic Fee Requirement.  The intersection of Hwy 20/26 and Middleton 
Road is not included in the Mid-Star CIP. Therefore, Developer shall pay the four hundred 
fifty six thousand three hundred thirty five dollar ($456,335.00) pro-rata traffic fee set forth 
in Idaho Transportation Department’s June 8, 2021, Development Conditions Memo.  The 
amount due was based upon the initial seven hundred seventy nine (779) buildable lots 
included in both The Quarry East and The Quarry West subdivisions. Therefore, the amount 
due should be divided equally across the buildable lots approved in both subdivisions (“ITD 
Fee”).  The ITD fee per unit is five hundred eighty five dollars and seventy nine cents 
($585.79), which is $456,335.00 ÷ 779 (initial proposed units).  Quarry East contains six 
hundred forty (640) residential lots. The final residential lot count for Quarry West has not 
yet been determined but is anticipated to be approximately two hundred and ninety (290) 
units.   Based upon the unit ITD Fee, the ITD fee ascribed to Quarry East is three hundred 
seventy four nine hundred five dollars and sixty cents ($374,905.60). Developer shall remit 
the $374,905.60 payment to the City prior to final plat recording for Phase 1 of Quarry East.  
Developer shall pay the remaining balance ascribed to Quarry West prior to Phase 1 
recording for the Quarry West project.  The amount shall be the ITD unit fee of $585.79 
multiplied by the number of residential units shown in the approved preliminary plat for 
Quarry West.  If ITD revises the fee amount or eliminates the fee, City will require Developer 
to pay only what ITD requires after said revision.  Any reduced amount should be prorated 
similarly to what is described in this paragraph.  
  
 3.12 Final Plat Requirements.  Notwithstanding the provisions in Article IV, 
Developer shall obtain City Engineer’s signature on the Phase 1 final plat within four (4) 
years of the preliminary plat approval. Said signature shall be processed expeditiously by 
City and in no event later than six (6) months from the time the Developer submits a 
“Completion Packet” with all items required by the Supplement to the ISPWC and final plat 
application.  The six (6) month period will not be triggered if any information required by 
the Supplement is missing.   Developer may obtain a two (2) year extension to obtain the City 
Engineer’s signature on Phase 1 final plat by submitting an administrative written request 
for extension to the Middleton Planning & Zoning Official before the expiration of the initial 
four-year period, which approval shall not be withheld if Developer submits its request in a 
timely manner.  The application request before City Council does not require a public 



 
Development Agreement – The Quarry East  
Page 13 
   

hearing.   If Developer does not obtain City Engineer’s signature on final plat for Phase 1 
within the time frame noted above, City may, at its sole discretion, terminate the entire 
Development Agreement, and the Project property will revert to M-1 (light industrial) or R-
3 (single family residential) zoning, as determined by City, after following the notice and 
hearing provisions set forth in the Middleton City Code.  Additionally, the preliminary plat 
will automatically become null and void. City may seek termination of the Development 
Agreement at any time after the noted time periods expire, and City’s delay in terminating 
the Development Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of its right to terminate the 
Development Agreement. 
 
After final plat approval for the first phase, Developer shall obtain City Engineer’s signature 
on the final plat for each phase in two (2) year intervals (subject to the requirement by the 
City to process such applications expeditiously and in no event later than six months from 
the time Developer submits a fully completed “Completion Packet” application and final plat 
application).  Developer may obtain a two (2) year extension to obtain the City Engineer’s 
signature on the final plat for the subsequent phase by submitting an administrative written 
request for extension to the Middleton Planning & Zoning Official before the expiration of 
the previous time period, which approval shall not be withheld if Developer submits its 
request in a timely manner.  If Developer fails to comply with said timelines, the portions of 
the preliminary plat yet to be final platted will become null and void.  The zoning for the 
unplatted area shall revert to R-3 (single family residential) zoning. 
 
 3.13 LOMR Requirements.  Developer shall comply with all FEMA requirements, 
including completion of a letter of map revision (LOMR) to remove all lots with 
improvements out of the flood plain.  Pending LOMR approval, the Developer may receive 
building permits if elevation certificates are provided in connection with the same.  However, 
Developer shall still comply fully with MCC 4-3-7-5(D), which requires elevation certificates 
for individual lots even after the LOMR is approved. 
 
 3.14 Community Amenities.  Developer shall provide, at a minimum, the following 
community amenities: community swimming pool, six (6) pickleball courts, picnic area, and 
community beach (collectively, the “Phase 1 Amenities”), and a clubhouse (the “Phase 2 
Amenities”).  Swimming Pool/clubhouse shall be located on common lot 62, Block 1 and 
shall be built generally consistent with the site plan attached hereto as Exhibit G.   The Phase 
1 Amenities shall be completed no later than the issuance of the one hundred and thirty 
fourth (134th)  building permit.  The Phase 2 Amenities shall be completed no later than the 
issuance of the two hundred and seventy second (272) building permit. 
 
 3.15 Utility Easements and Ownerships.  All constructed utilities are public and 
Developer shall grant access and utility easement at width requested by agency having 
jurisdiction covering the constructed utilities in locations identified on the plat and as 
required by public utilities or agencies having jurisdiction, including the City. 
 
 3.16 CCR & Purchase Agreement Disclosure Requirement.  Developer shall state the 
following disclosure in every purchase agreement and in the CC&Rs:  “City of Middleton and 



 
Development Agreement – The Quarry East  
Page 14 
   

Canyon County Planning documents show that the area directly north and east of The Quarry 
will be the location of a significant amount of light and heavy industrial businesses. Pursuant 
to the City’s Future Land Use Map and Zoning Map, the City of Middleton will be actively seeking 
industrial users to locate in the areas surrounding The Quarry.” 
 
 3.17 Additional Conditions.  The Project shall be subject to those further conditions 
of approval associated with the approval of the Application as contained on Exhibit H 
attached hereto and made a part hereof. 
 
 
 
 

ARTICLE IV 
FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH AGREEMENT 

 
 4.1 Event of Default.  If Developer fails to comply with any of the terms or 
conditions in this Agreement, then the portion(s) of this Agreement pertaining to the breach 
may be modified or terminated by the Middleton City Council, after complying with the 
notice and hearing requirement contained in Middleton City Code and Idaho Code.   
 

If after a breach, the City Council determines that the terms of this Agreement 
applicable to the breach should be modified, the term(s) of this Agreement shall be amended 
and the Developer shall comply with the amended terms.   

 
Any breach waived by the City shall apply solely to the breach waived and shall not 

bar any other rights or remedies of the City or apply to any subsequent breach of any such 
or other covenants and conditions. 
 
 4.2 Reversion of Zoning.  If after a breach and failure to cure as provided in Section 
4.4, the City, after complying with the public hearing requirements of the Middleton City 
Code, may change the zoning for the Property as follows:  (a) if prior to final plat approval 
for phase 1, then the City may change the zoning to M-1 (light industrial) or R-3 (single family 
residential) in its sole discretion, and the Developer hereby consents to such change; (b) if 
after final plat approval for phase 1, then the City may change the zoning to R-3 and the 
Developer hereby consents to such change.   
  
 4.3 Judicial Enforcement.  Upon a breach of this Agreement, any of the parties in 
any court of competent jurisdiction, by action or proceeding at law or in equity, may secure 
the specific performance of the covenants and agreements herein contained, may be 
awarded damages for failure of performance of both, or may obtain rescission, 
disconnection, and damages for repudiation or material failure of performance. 
 
 4.4 Notice of Failed Performance and Opportunity to Cure.  Upon any failure of any 
party to this Agreement to perform its obligations under this Agreement, the party claiming 
such failure shall notify, in writing, the party alleged to have failed to perform of the alleged 



 
Development Agreement – The Quarry East  
Page 15 
   

failure and shall demand performance.  No breach of this Agreement may be found to have 
occurred if performance has commenced to the reasonable satisfaction of the complaining 
party within thirty (30) days of the receipt of such notice. 
 

ARTICLE V 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
 5.1 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the 
parties respecting the Property and supersedes all prior discussions and written and verbal 
agreements between the parties respecting the Property. 
 
 
 5.2 Amendment; Annexation.   
 

5.2.1 Any amendment or addendum to this Agreement shall be in writing and 
made only after City has complied with the notice and hearing provisions of Idaho 
Code §67-6509 and Middleton City Code Title 5, Chapter 2.   

 
5.2.2 Additional real property may be added to the definition of Property 

with such amendment, and the additional property identified shall, thereafter, be 
subject to this Agreement.  If additional property is to be included with such 
amendment, Developer shall apply for annexation and zone change following the 
public hearing process set forth in the Middleton City Code.  Any property annexed 
into Quarry East shall be subject to all provisions of the Development Agreement.  A 
new concept plan for the additional property shall be appended to the amended 
development agreement.   

 
 5.3 Notice.  Any notice that a party may desire to give to another party must be in 
writing and may be given by personal delivery, by mailing the same registered or certified 
mail with a return receipt requested, or by Federal Express or other reputable overnight 
delivery service.  Notice shall be given to the parties at the following addresses or such other 
address and to such other persons as the parties may designate after giving notice.  Any such 
notice shall be deemed given upon delivery if by personal delivery, upon deposit in the 
United States mail if sent by mail pursuant to the forgoing: 
 
   Middleton:  City Clerk 
      City of Middleton 
      P.O. Box 487 
      Middleton, Idaho 83644 
 
   Developer:  M3 ID Woodland, LLC 
      Attn: William Brownlee 
      7033 E. Greenway Parkway, Suite 100 
      Scottsdale, Arizona 85254 
 



 
Development Agreement – The Quarry East  
Page 16 
   

   With a copy to: M3 Companies 
      Attn: Mark Tate 
      1087 W. River Street, Suite 310 
      Boise, Idaho 83702 
  
   With a copy to: Clark Wardle LLP 
      Attn: Hethe Clark 
      PO Box 639 
      Boise, Idaho 83701 
      
 5.4 Enforcement Costs.  If either party shall fail to perform under this Agreement 
and said failure is cured with the assistance of an attorney for the other party, as a part of 
curing said failure, the reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by the other party shall be 
reimbursed to the other party upon demand.  In the event a suit or action is filed by either 
party against the other to interpret or enforce this Agreement, the unsuccessful party to such 
litigation agrees to pay to the prevailing party all costs and expenses, including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees incurred therein, including the same with respect to an appeal. 
 
 5.5 Effective Date; Recordation.  The Agreement shall be effective only after 
approval by the City Council and execution by Developer, the Mayor, and City Clerk.  After its 
execution, this Agreement shall be recorded in the office of the County Recorded at the 
expense of Developer. 
 
 5.6 Binding Effect.  Each commitment and restriction described in this Agreement 
shall be a burden on the Property and run with the land and shall be appurtenant to and for 
the benefit of the Property, adjacent property and other residential land near the Property.  
This Agreement shall be binding on City and Developer, and their respective heirs, 
administrators, executors, agents, legal representatives, successors and assigns.  Provided, 
however, that if all or any portion of the Property is divided, then each owner of a legal lot 
shall only be responsible for duties and obligations or breaches as to their own parcels or 
lots.  Any owner of the Property or any portion thereof (including, without limitation, any 
owner who acquires its interest by foreclosure, trustee’s sale or otherwise) shall be liable for 
all commitments and other obligations arising under this Agreement with respect only to 
such owner’s lot or parcel. 
 
 5.7 Interpretation.  The Property that is the subject of this Agreement is located in 
Canyon County, Idaho and the terms of this Agreement shall be construed according to the 
laws of the State of Idaho in effect at this time this Agreement is executed.  Any action brought 
in connection with this Agreement shall be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction 
located in Canyon County, Idaho. 
 
 5.8 Severability.  If any term, provision, commitment or restriction of this 
Agreement or the application thereof to any party or circumstance shall to any extent be held 
invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this instrument shall remain in full force and 
effect. 



 
Development Agreement – The Quarry East  
Page 17 
   

 
 5.9 Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence for performance of each obligation 
in this Agreement. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto caused this Agreement to be executed 
on the Effective Date.   
 
 
 

[Signatures and notary on following pages] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CITY OF MIDDLETON:    ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By: _______________________________________  By: ____________________________________ 

Steven J. Rule, Mayor               Becky Crofts, City Clerk 
Date: ____________________________________  Date: _________________________________ 
 
 
 
State of IDAHO  ) 
     ss. 
County of    ) 
 
I, a notary public, do hereby certify that on this    day of ______________, 2022, 
personally appeared before me Steven J. Rule, who, being first duly sworn, declared that he 
is the Mayor of the City of Middleton, Idaho and signed it as Mayor of the City of Middleton.   
 
      ________________________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
      My Commission Expires: ___________________ 
 
 
 
  



 
Development Agreement – The Quarry East  
Page 18 
   

OWNER: 
 
WOODLAND PROPERTIES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, 
an Idaho limited partnership 
 
 
By:        
 Randy Wood, President  
 
 
 
State of IDAHO  ) 
     ss. 
County of    ) 
 
I, a notary public, do hereby certify that on this    day of ________________, 2022, 
personally appeared before me Randy Wood, the President of Woodland Properties Limited 
Partnership, the Idaho limited partnership, who, being first duly sworn, declared that he 
signed.   
 
 
      ________________________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
      My Commission Expires: ___________________ 
  



 
Development Agreement – The Quarry East  
Page 19 
   

DEVELOPER: 
 
M3 ID WOODLAND, LLC,  
an Arizona limited liability company 
 
By: M3 Builders, LLC, 
 an Arizona limited liability company 
Its: Manager 
 
 By: The M3 Companies, L.L.C., 
  an Arizona limited liability company 
 Its: Member 
 
        
  By: William I. Brownlee 
  Its: Manager 
 
  Date:       
 
 
State of ARIZONA  ) 
     ss. 
County of    ) 
 
I, a notary public, do hereby certify that on this    day of ________________, 2020, 
personally appeared before me William I. Brownlee, the Manager of The M3 Companies, 
L.L.C, the Arizona limited liability company who is the Member of M3 Builders, LLC, the 
Arizona limited liability company, who is the Manager of M3 ID Moon Valley, LLC, an Arizona 
limited liability company, who, being first duly sworn, declared that he signed.   
 
 
      ________________________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
      My Commission Expires: ___________________ 
 
 
SCHEDULE OF EXHIBITS: 
Exhibit A: Legal Description of Property 
Exhibit B: Master Plan 
Exhibit C: Elevations 
Exhibit D: Design Guidelines 
Exhibit E: Approved Code Modifications 
Exhibit F:  Street Standards 
Exhibit G: Site Plan and Renderings of Clubhouse Property 
Exhibit H: Conditions of Approval 



 

EXHIBIT A 
Legal Description of Property 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

IDAHO 
SURVEY 
GROUP 

Quarry East 
Boundary Description 

Project Number 22·056 March 29, 2022 

9955 W Emerald St 
Boise, ID 83704 

Phone: (208) 84o·8570 
Fax: (208) 884·5399 

A parcel of land situated in Section 18, Township 4 North, kange 2 West, Boise Meridian, Canyon 
County, Idaho, and beill$ more pafticular1y desCfibed as follows. 

BEGINNING at the south quarter-section corner of Section 18, Township 4 North, Range 2 West, 
Boise Meridian: 

Thence Noo•40•41•E, 36.00 feet along the north-south centerline of Section 18; 

Thence S89"44'28"E, 16.72 feet; 

Thence N00"15'32"E, 209.00 feet; 

Thence S89°44'28"E, 11.S0 feet; 

Thence N00"15'32"E, 760.54 feet; 

Thence N89"19'19"W, 21.13 feet to the north-south centerline of Section 18; 

Thence N00°40'41 "E, 1625.72 feet along the north-south centerline of Section 18 to the 
center quarter-section corner of Section 18; 

Thence continuing N00.40'41'"E, 1315.68 feet to center-north sixteenth-section corner of 
Section 18; 

Thence S89°30'28"E, 2643.62 feet along the east•west centerline of the northeast 
quarter of Section 18 to the west right-of-way line of Middleton Rd.; 

Thence so1•21'46"W, 3936.98 feet along the west right-of-way line of M iddleton Rd to 
the south line of Section 18; 

Thence N89'44 '28"W, 2596.62 feet along t he south line of Section 18 to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING. 

The above-described parcel contains 236.60 acres, more or less. 

Page I of I 



 

 
Add sketch of 2022 legal description 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Exhibit “B” 
Concept Master Plan 

 

           



EXHIBIT C 
 

 
EXHIBIT C 
Elevations 

 





















) 





























EXHIBIT D 
 

EXHIBIT D 
Design Guidelines 

 



QUARRY EAST SUBDIVISION 

(Marketing Name TBD) 

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN GUIDELINES & 

CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS 

City of Middleton, State of Idaho 
County of Canyonf State of Idaho 

Effective: _ __ _ 

1 

Quarry East-Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, V. 1.2 



I. INTRODUCTION ....................................................................................................................................... 1 
II. SUB MITT AL AND APPROVAL PROCEDURES ................................................................................. 2 

A. Submittal Requirements ............................................................................................... 2 
B. Notification of Action .................................................................................................... 4 

C. Expiration of Approval .................................................................................................. 4 
D. Resubmittals and Substantially Revised Submittals ............................................... 4 
E. Alterations to an Approved Submittal ........................................................................ 5 
F. Construction lnspections ............................................................................................... 5 
G. Enforcement ..................................................................................................................... 5 

III. DESIGN GUIDELINES .............................................................................................................................. 5 
A. Lot Types .......................................................................................................................... 5 
B. Street Side Setbacks ....................................................................................................... 5 
C. Driveways ........................................................................................................................ 6 
D. Minimum Square Feet ................................................................................................... 6 
E. Exterior Elevations .......................................................................................................... 7 

F. Exterior Finishes and Colors ......................................................................................... 8 
G. Solar Panels ...................................................................................................................... 9 
H. Rain Gutters and Downspouts ................................................................................... 10 
I. Fascia & Trim ................................................................................................................. 10 
J. Architectural Detail/ Accents ....................................................................................... 10 
K. Chimneys ........................................................................................................................ 10 
L. Garages, General ........................................................................................................... 10 
M. RV Garages & Tall Garage Doors .............................................................................. 11 
N. Detached Storage Structures ....................................................................................... 13 
0. Fences .............................................................................................................................. 13 
P. DogRuns ........................................................................................................................ 14 

Q. Patios ............................................................................................................................... 14 

R. Landscaping of Small, Medium, and Large Lots .................................................... 14 
S. Landscaping of Duplex & Cluster Lots ..................................................................... 17 

T. Lake Front Lots .............................................................................................................. 19 
U. Lakes, Generally ........................................................................................................... 22 
V. Boulder Retaining Walls ............................................................................................. 22 
W. Exterior Lighting ........................................................................................................... 23 
X. Mailboxes ....................................................................................................................... 23 
Y. Miscellaneous Equipment and Signage ................................................................... 23 

IV. CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS ......................................................................................................... 24 
A. Condition of Lot ............................................................................................................ 24 
B. Excavation ...................................................................................................................... 24 

C. Elevation of Foundations ............................................................................................ 24 
D. Tirneline to Complete Construction .......................................................................... 25 
E. Lot Drainage .................................................................................................................. 25 

F. Construction Standards and Jobsite Maintenance ................................................. 25 

G. Complaints ..................................................................................................................... 27 

EXHIBIT A. VIEW FENCE ..................................................................................................................................... 28 

EXlllBJT B. BUILDER/OWNER SCREEN FENCE ............................................................................................ 29 

EXHIBIT C. DEVELOPER SCREEN FENCE ...................................................................................................... 30 
EXHIBIT D. DEMI-SCREEN FENCE ................................................................................................................... 31 
EXHIBIT E. FENCE PLANS BY PHASE .............................................................................................................. 32 
EXHIBIT F. FINAL LOT GRADING & DRAINAGE DETAILS ..................................................................... 33 

Quarry East - Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, 1/, 1.2 



EXHIBIT G. PLANTER STRIP TREE PLANTING RESTRICTIONS ............................................................ 34 
EXHIBIT H. ROCK COLOR/TYPE & BOULDER WALL DESIGN EXAMPLES ......................................... 35 

EXHIBIT I. DIRECT ENTRY LAKE FRONT LOTS BY PHASE ..................................................................... 36 
EXHIBIT J. LAKE EDGE IMPROVEMENTS ..................................................................................................... 37 
EXHIBIT K. POND WATER LEVEL ILLUSTRATlONS & TYPICAL CROSS-SECTION ........................ 40 
ATTACHMENT 1. APPLICATION FOR DESIGN REVIEW ......................................................................... .41 

ii 

Quarry East - Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, v. 1.2 



I. INTRODUCTION 

These Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards ("Design 
Guidelines") are to be used as guidelines for the owner and builder in preparing plans and 
specifications for any proposed Improvement, construction, or installation within the Quarry East 
neighborhood and for maintaining an orderly construction environment. These guidelines are 
used by the Architectural Reviewer in conjunction with the Declaration. The Quarry East 
neighborhood will be comprised of various individual areas, each of which may have similar but 
varying requirements. The Architectural Reviewer reserves the right to grant variances or modify 
these standards as it deems appropriate and in accordance with the Declaration. 

The Quarry East Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, Restrictions, and Easements, 
recorded as Document No. _____ _, Official Records of Canyon County, Idaho, as the same 
may be amended from time to time (the "Declaration") provides that no Owner may commence 
the construction of any Improvement without the prior written approval of the "Architectural 
Reviewer", which shall mean the Architectural Control Committee or ACC as defined in the 
Declaration. Pursuant to the Declaration, M3 ID WOODLAND, LLC, an Arizona limited liability 
company ("Declarant") retains the right to appoint all individuals comprising the Architectural 
Reviewer until one hundred percent (100%) of the Property has been developed and conveyed to 
Owners other than builders, unless such right is surrendered prior to such time in accordance 
with the provisions in the Declaration. As long as the Declarant retains such right, the 
Architectural Reviewer shall in no event be a committee created by or appointed by the Board or 
the _ _ _____ Homeowners' Association, Inc., an Idaho nonprofit corporation 
(" _____ HOA"). 

The Architectural Reviewer will not be required to review any plans until a complete 
review package, as required by the Declaration and these Architectural Design Guidelines and 
Construction Standards ("Design Guidelines"), is assembled and submitted to the Architectural 
Reviewer. The Declaration outlines other specific requirements governing architectural control 
imposed by the Architectural Reviewer which are not repeated in these Design Guidelines and 
which bind each and every Owner. The Architectural Reviewer has the authority to adopt such 
additional or alternate procedural and substantive rules and guidelines as it may deem necessary 
or appropriate in connection with exercising its rights hereunder. 

The approval of the Architectural Reviewer of any plans or specifications for any work 
done or proposed in connection with any matter requiring the approval or consent of the 
Architectural Reviewer will not be deemed to constitute a waiver of any right to withhold 
approval or consent as to any plans and specifications on any other matter, subsequently or 
additionally submitted for approval by the same or a different person, nor will such approval or 
consent be deemed to establish a precedent for future approvals by the Architectural Reviewer. 

The Architectural Reviewer may grant variances from compliance with any provisions in 
these Design Guidelines, when, in the opinion of the Architectural Reviewer, in its sole and 
absolute discretion, such variance is justified. All variances granted will be evidenced in writing 
to the builder or owner. The granting of such a variance will in not operate to waive or amend 

1 

Quarry East-Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, V. 1.2 



any of the terms and provisions hereunder for any purpose, except as to the particular property 
and the particular instance covered by the variance, and such variance will not be considered to 
establish a precedent for any future waiver, modification, or amendment to these Design 
Guidelines. 

The Architectural Reviewer is not responsible for: (i) errors in or omissions from the plans 
and specifications submitted for architectural review; (ii) supervising construction for the owner's 
compliance with approved plans and specifications; or (iii) the compliance of the owner's plans 
and specifications with applicable governmental statutes, codes, and ordinances, and municipal, 
county, state, and federal laws. 

Capitalized words used in these Design Guidelines, but not otherwise defined herein shall 
have the same meaning ascribed to such terms in the Declaration. 

II. SUBMITTAL AND APPROVAL PROCEDURES 

A. Submittal Requirements. All submittals shall include the plans, specifications, 
application, and other information described below, as may be applicable. Construction 
may not commence until written approval is granted by the Architectural Reviewer. 

The submittal plans and materials shall include specifications, dimensions, a 
legend of all symbols and abbreviations, and other applicable information necessary to 
perform such a review. Elevation views shall be provided for any proposed vertical 
Improvements (e.g. built-in BBQ water feature). 

The items listed below shall be digitally submitted to the Architectural Reviewer 
for approval (e.g. pdf, jpeg). The Architectural Reviewer may request physical samples at 
and/or additional material to be submitted at its discretion. 

1. Application. Each submittal shall be accompanied by a completed design 
review application and checklist adopted by the Architectural Reviewer, (the 
"Application"), attached to these Design Guidelines as Attachment 1. 

2. Site Plan. Show the Building Lot ("Lot") boundaries, the proposed location of 
all Improvements (including, but not limited to, all structures, driveways, 
sidewalks, fences, dog runs, patios, decks, outdoor lighting, utility meters, 
mechanical equipment, etc.), all easements, and all proposed setbacks. Include a 
roof plan as part of the site plan if a separate roof plan is not submitted. Use arrows 
to indicate the proposed grading and drainage flows off of the lot and away from 
the proposed residence and adjacent Lots. The Architectural Reviewer may 
require a separate grading and drainage plan be provided. (Minimum scale of 1/8" 
= 1'-0" .) 

3. Grading Plan. A separate grading plan must be provided in conjunction with 
an architectural submittal as well as with a landscape submittal for any Lake Front 
Lot (as defined below in Section III.1). Overlay the proposed grades over the 

2 

Quarry East - Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, v. 1.2 



existing grades on a Lot plan showing all boundaries, easements, and applicable 
setbacks. Use arrows to indicate the proposed grading and drainage flow 
directions off of the Lot and away from adjacent Lots. (Minimum scale of 1/8" = 
1 '-0" .) 

4. Roof Plan(s). Depict roof masses, ridgelines, and roof pitches including 
pertinent dimensions (e.g. gable span, overhang depths) if not provided 
elsewhere. Show the locations of any roof drains or scuppers, as applicable. The 
roof plan may be included on the site plan in lieu of a separate roof plan. 
(Minimum scale of 1/8" = 1'-0".) 

5. Floor Plan(s). Include the per floor square feet and total finished square feet 
of the residence, exclusive of garages, covered patios, storage areas, etc. Provide 
exterior dimensions on all floor plans. (Minimum scale of 1/4" = 1 '-0".) 

6. Building Elevations. Illustrate front, rear and side views, showing the 
maximum building height and include proposed exterior finish material 
descriptions. (Minimum scale of 1/8" = 1 '-0".) 

7. Specifications. Include the specifications and descriptions of any proposed 
exterior materials, finishes, equipment, etc. 

8. Exterior Materials and Colors. Include digital samples of the color of proposed 
exterior material colors, (e.g. paint, stain). Samples of all other materials (e.g. brick, 
stone) shall be shown on the elevations. All proposed exterior materials and colors 
shall by identified by name, number, color, and manufacturer. The Architectural 
Reviewer may request physical samples of any proposed exterior colors or 
materials in which case the submittal will not be considered complete until all 
requested materials have been received. 

9. Landsca pe Plan. Show the proposed landscape and hardscape including 
dimensions and any proposed fencing and include a legend of the plant types, 
sizes and quantities. A legend shall be included for plant types, sizes and 
quantities. Elevation views of each side shall be included for any vertical 
Improvement not reflected elsewhere in the submittal. Use arrows to indicate the 
proposed grading and drainage flows off of the lot and away from the proposed 
residence and adjacent Lots. It is preferred that the landscape plan be submitted 
with the initial architectural plan submittal, but it may be submitted up to sixty 
(60) days after the initial submittal. (Minimum scale of 1/8" = 1'-0".) 

10. Design Review Fees. An initial design review fee of Four Hundred Fifty and 
No/100 Dollars ($450.00) shall be paid to the Architectural Reviewer at the close of 
escrow for such Lot. If, for any reason, the initial design review fee was not paid 
at dose of escrow for such Lot, then the applicable fee shall be paid at the time of 
the submittal. All design review fees are immediately non~refundable. 

3 

Quarry East - Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, v. 1.2 



An additional design review fee of Two Hundred and No/100 Dollars 
($200.00) shall be due with the following types of submittals and payable to 
Declarant: 

(i) A Substantially Revised Submittal as defined in Section 11.D below, 
and 

(ii) An Alteration Submittal to alter a previously approved submittal 
as described in Section Il.E below. 

All owner submittals and inquiries shall be made to the community manager. 

All initial builder submittals and inquiries shall be made to: 

The Quarry East Architectural Reviewer 
c/o _______ _ 

EMAIL 

PHONE 

An online repository may be available for digital submittal uploads. Please inquire 
with the Architectural Reviewer for additional information if desired. 

B. Notification of Action. The Owner or Builder shall be notified of the decision of 
the Architectural Reviewer within ten (10) business days of receipt of a complete 
submittal. The Architectural Reviewer may request additional information or materials 
and a submittal will not be considered complete until all requested items have been 
received. Revisions required by the Architectural Reviewer must be resubmitted and 
reviewed by the Architectural Reviewer prior to issuance of a formal approval unless the 
revisions are noted as a condition of approval on the Architectural Reviewer approval 
letter. Should notification of the Architectural Reviewer's decision not be received within 
ten (10) business days, it does not mean, nor may be construed to mean, the submittal was 
approved. 

C. Expiration of Approval. The approval of the Architectural Reviewer shall be valid 
for a period of one (1) year at which time it shall expire. 

D. Resubmittals and Substantially Revised Submittals. The Architectural Reviewer 
will review one (1) resubmittal from an Owner or Builder, if necessary, following the first 
formal review and response. After the resubmittal has been reviewed and the Builder or 
Owner has been notified of the decision regarding such resubmittal, the Architectural 
Reviewer's approval or denial shall be considered final. 

If a submittal and subsequent resubmittal are both denied, the Architectural 
Reviewer will not perform any additional reviews unless the proposed Improvements are 
substantially revised. Provided the proposed Improvements are substantially revised, the 
revised designs shall be submitted for review as a "Substantially Revised Submittal" 

4 

Quarry East-Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
487 4-2584-4492, V. 1 .2 



and will be subject to an additional review fee as outlined in Section II.A.9 above. Any 
Substantially Revised Submittal must include all applicable plans, specifications and 
submittal requirements set forth herein. 

E. Alterations to an Approved Submittal. Proposed alterations or modifications to 
a previously approved submittal must be submitted as an "Alteration Submittal" to the 
Architectural Reviewer, and written approval from the Architectural Reviewer must be 
received prior to starting such work. Alteration Submittals must include the applicable 
plans, specifications and submittal requirements set forth herein and shall dearly identify 
those elements proposed to be altered or modified. Each Alteration Submittal will be 
subject to an additional review fee described in Section Il.A.9 above. 

F. Construction Inspections. The Architectural Reviewer may make a physical on­
site inspection during or at the completion of construction to verify compliance with the 
approved submittal. 

G. Enforcement. If the Architectural Reviewer finds that the Improvements were not 
done in substantial compliance with the approved submittal corrective measures shall be 
taken as outlined in the Declaration, including, but not limited to, stopping construction 
and making physical changes to bring the Improvements into compliance with the 
approved plans. 

A. 
types: 

III. DESIGN GUIDELINES 

Lot Types. For the purposes of design review, Lots are divided into the following 

(i) "Cluster Lot"; Lots with a shared drive in areas designated as a 
cluster subdivision (typically 55' or 65' wide); 

(ii) "Duplex Lot; Typically forty feet (40') wide at the front setback 
with one shared wall; 

(iii) "Small Lot": Less than sixty feet (60') wide at the front building 
setback; 

(iv) "Medium Lot": Greater than or equal to sixty feet (60') wide but 
less than seventy feet (70') wide at the front setback; 

(v) "Large Lot": Greater than or equal to seventy feet (70') wide at the 
front building setback; and 

B. Street Side Setbacks. If there is additional width on a Lot with a side yard adjacent 
to a street, including where there is a common lot between the street and Lot, the residence 
shall have the building set back from such property line more than the minimum five foot 

5 

Quarry East- Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, V. 1.2 



(5') setback and such area should include additional landscape where adequate space 
exists. 

Residential Setbacks. 

Duplex Lots 

Front 10 feet to living or side load garage, 20 feet to garage door 

Rear 10 feet 

Side 5 feet 

Street Side 12 feet (ifno common lot on side) 

Cluster Lot Setback (4 lot cluster on shared driveway) 

Front (to street of 

front lot) 10 feet 

Rear (rear of back 

lot) 10 feet 

Sides & Interior 5 feet 

To Common Drive 3 feet 

Single Family 

Front 10 feet to living or side load garage, 20 feet to garage door 

Rear 20 feet 

Side 5 feet 

Street Side 12 feet 

Street Side Setbacks with no Common Lot. If there is a Lot with a side yard facing a street, 
where there is not a common lot between the street/sidewalk and Lot, the residence 
should be aligned along the opposite side yard setback and any fence adjacent to the street 
side is to be aligned 5' from the side of the home. The area between the fence and the 
sidewalk shall be a minimum of 7' for a total minimum 12' side yard setback and is to 
include additional landscape, including trees with a maximum spacing of 45', where 
adequate space exists. 

C. Driveways. The builder will be responsible for installing a concrete driveway for 
any Cluster, Duplex, Small, or Large Lot. The builder will be responsible for installing a 
shared concrete driveway per the attached detail on Exhibit ____ for the applicable 
Cluster Lots. 

Unless otherwise approved, driveways may not extend past the edges of the 
garage to which they lead to allow room for more landscaping. Building lots are limited 
to one driveway cut at the street unless otherwise approved by the Architectural 
Reviewer. 

D. Minimum Square Feet. Two-story homes shall have a minimum of 60% of the 
square footage, including garage, and excluding basements, storage rooms

1 
covered 

patios, etc. on the first floor. 

6 

Quarry East - Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, v. 1.2 



Finished space is exclusive of basements, garages, storage rooms, covered patios, 
etc. and each residence shall include a minimum amount of finished square feet based on 
Lot type, as set forth below. 

Minimum Finished Square Feet of Residence 
Cluster Duplex Small Lot Medium Large Lot 

Lot Lot (<60') Lot (~O'+) 

(~60'& 
<'70') 

One- 1,200 1,200 1,300 1,600 2,200 
Story 
Plan 
Two- 1,600 1,600 1,800 2,000 2,600 
Story 
Plan 

The Architechtral Reviewer may require additional square feet of finish space 
depending on compatibility with existing homes or otherwise at its discretion. 

E. Exterior Elevations. 

The use of honest architectural elements relative to each architectural style is 
critical. Elements, such as boxed out windows, dormer windows and covered entries, are 
encouraged. Double gables over the entire width of a three (3) car garage are discouraged. 
Stacked rooms over garages shall incorporate a change in the front plane of the garage to 
avoid large, unbroken vertical surfaces. Where siding is used, batten boards or trim shall 
be located as inconspicuously and symmetrically as possible. Windows shall be consistent 
in type, style, trim and proportion. 

Lots with rear or side elevations that face a street or Common Area are required 
to provide a higher level of articulation and detailing, including vertical and horizontal 
offsets along with breaks in the roof plane. The side of a residence on a Cluster Lot 
adjacent to or facing the street, highly visible common area, or open space should feature 
detailing, articulation (e.g. jogs in the architecture), and an overall design and appearance 
equivalent to a typical "front" elevation. Large expanses of flat, unbroken surfaces are not 
permitted on elevations facing a street or Common Area. Intermediate horizontal bands 
are encouraged at all two-story elements. Covered patios and balconies, horizontal offsets, 
overhangs and other methods to create visual depth and contrast are highly encouraged. 
Rear elevations that face streets or Common Areas must include covered patios. 

Any "standard" (non-custom) floorplan approved for repetitive use should 
include multiple elevation styles that are substantially different. Similar architectural 
styles proposed for more than one floorplan shall have substantially different elevations. 
Elevation styles may be repeated within Quarry East provided a minimum of four (4) Lots 
with completely different floorplans and/or elevation styles separate the similar layouts 

7 

Quarry East- Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, V. 1.2 



and the color schemes are different. However, the Architectural Reviewer may require 
some additional differentiation between any like floorplans and elevations. The 
requirements set forth in this paragraph are intended to mitigate undesirable monotony 
in the community design and finishes. Therefore, a Builder submitting for standard plan 
review should consider the total quantity of floorplans, elevation styles, and 
color/material schemes necessary to meet these requirements. 

Broken roof lines and no less than three (3) primary roof masses are required. 
Unless otherwise approved by the Architectural Reviewer as compatible with a particular 
architectural design or style, the minimum pitch for roofs, excluding roofs at porches and 
deck covers, shall be 4:12. Steeper front-to-back roof pitches may be required on shorte1· 
roof spans if needed to provide greater street presence. Mixing or differing roof pitches 
on the same elevation is discouraged. Roof vents and other ventilation pipes shall be 
located on the rear elevation except where impractical, shall be painted to match or blend 
with the roof color, and shall otherwise be installed in an inconspiruous location and 
manner. Roof and attic vents shall be shown on the elevations. 

Roof eaves are required to be a minimum of 16" deep, and gable ends are required 
to be a minimum of 12" deep. 

Low-profile roofs with predominant pitch of 4/12 or 5/12 must be consistent with 
a specific architectural style and must have significant architectural details, such as: 

(i) Heavier Stacked Fascia-minimum 12"; and/or 

(ii) Corbels, exposed rafters or other details that are true to this style 

Architectural detailing should be consistent with the architectural style and avoid 
the appearance of an over or under worked design. 

Transitional 2-story or 1-1/2 story residences may be located on comer Lots 
provided that the single-story portion of the residence is located adjacent to the comer or 
side street and is approved by the Architectural Reviewer. Two-story residences are 
prohibited on Lots backing up to or with a side facing a main arterial street, clubhouse, or 
open space unless the elevation has a single story or stepped appearance. 

F. Exterior Finishes and Colors. Exterior finishes should be cohesive with the 
architecture styles. Exterior finish materials and colors shall be consistent and continuous 
on all elevations of a dwelling to achieve a uniform and complete design. Hardy / Tru 
Lap / Louisiana Pacific or equivalent, stucco, local stone and brick are preferred exterior 
materials. The Architectural Reviewer will also consider high quality manufactured stone. 

Architectural and aesthetic balance shall be primary concern in determining 
placement of materials. All materials will be required to terminate at an inside corner 
whenever possible or wrap the comers a minimum of thirty-six inches (36"). Materials 

8 

Quarry East - Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, V. 1.2 



may be required to extend further in cases where there is a more logical terminus point. 
Designs are encouraged to use materials to define building forms. 

1. Stone and Brick. Subject to compatibility with the overall architectural style 
and design, all residences, except as noted below, shall be required to incorporate 
brick or stone. A minimum of twenty percent (20%) of elevations that face a 
street(s) will be required to be stone or brick. The requirement for the use of such 
accent materials on exterior elevations may be waived by the Architectural 
Reviewer for exceptional design concepts that establish a very high quality 
through other elements of architectural design. The Architectural Reviewer may 
require upgraded siding, additional landscaping, or other elements at its 
discretion. 

Materials shall be compatible with the exterior paint colors approved by 
the Architectural Reviewer. Darker brick shades are encouraged. White or gray 
brick will be considered when consistent with the architectural style. 

2. Siding & Stucco. Proposed siding shall be eight inches (8") hardy / cement, 
cedar shake or board and batten. Cottage lap siding is not permitted; other types 
of siding not contemplated herein are subject to written approval by the 
Architectural Reviewer. Steel, aluminum, or vinyl siding are prohibited. If siding 
is used on an elevation it shall be used on all elevations. 

Stucco exteriors shall incorporate appropriate articulation and accents, 
such as one and on-half inch (1-1/2") deep by six inch (6") wide trim around 
windows, twelve inches (12") intermediate horizontal bands at 2-story elements, 
belly bands, frieze boards, etc. If stucco is used on an elevation it shall be used on 
all elevations. 

3. Exterior Paint Colors. Exterior wall colors and trim colors must be selected for 
their harmony with each other and the overall aesthetic goals of the community. 
Rain gutters and downspouts shall match the color of the surface to which they 
are attached. 

Exterior colors of earth tones, warm tones or grays shall be required for the 
body of the residence. Bright, bold or very dark colors shall be reviewed on a case 
by case basis by the Architectural Reviewer. 

4. Roof Materials. Roofs shall be thirty (30) year or better architectural asphalt 
shingles, slate, concrete tile, or clay tile and must have high-definition ridge caps. 
Roof colors must be black or dark grey unless otherwise approved by the 
Architectural Reviewer. Other roofing materials are subject to written approval by 
the Architectural Reviewer. 

G. Solar Panels. Solar panel locations must be approved by Architectural Reviewer 
prior to installation. Panels shall be commercially manufactured and well maintained. 

9 

Quarry East -Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874·2584·4492, V. 1.2 



Solar panels shall not be visible from the front elevation of the home if possible. Solar 
panels and associated hardware shall be an integral part of the design of the home. The 
color of solar panels, frames, and associated hardware shall be black and shall be recess 
mounted (flush) into the roof structure or low profile and para1lel to the roof with no 
visible piping. If solar panels are proposed, the roofing material shall be of a hue that 
minimizes the contrast between the roof and the solar panels. 

H. Rain Gutters and Downspouts. Rain gutters and downspouts are required on all 
residences, shall be continuous, and shall be painted to match the color of the surface to 
which they are attached. The use of chains or copper gutters and downspouts will be 
considered when appropriate with the architectural style. 

I. Fascia & Trim. Roof fascia shall be a minimum of eight inches (8") wide. Certain 
architectural styles may require wider fascia. Gables shall incorporate stacked trim 
detailing. Fascia and trim shall be constructed of nominal one inch (l") thick material. 
Stacking is not required on eaves where gutter covers the additional fascia. 

J. Architectural Detail/Accents. Focus should be placed on architectural design that 
is true to the character or style submitted. Details and accents should represent the 
historical integrity of each style and should be consistent with the style on all elevations. 
Over-worked or unrelated detailing is prohibited. 

K. Chimneys. Chimneys may be restricted for size and location. All full height 
chimneys shall have an architectural metal chimney cap that fully encloses the chimney 
pipes and painted pursuant to the written approval of the Architectural Reviewer. 

L. Garages. General. Designs should de-emphasize the garage, and the main living 
areas of a residence should be visually dominant. Accordingly, builders are encouraged 
to locate front-loaded garages behind the front of the rest of the home, e.g. livable finished 
area, side-load garages, and/or front patios. Side load garages are encouraged, and when 
possible, designs should avoid placing garage doors where they are visible from the street. 
Side loaded garages are highly encouraged, but not required, on Lots that are deeper than 
one hundred thirty feet (130'). All garage doors are subject to written approval of the 
Architectural Reviewer. 

All garage doors, including RV or oversize garage doors, should be recessed a 
minimum of six inches (6"). When feasible, a minimum garage door recess of twelve 
inches (12") is recommended. Flush or flat panel garage doors are not allowed. Garage 
doors are to have detailing that is consistent with the architectural style and design of the 
residence. Interiors of garages shall be sheet rocked, taped, sanded and painted or sheet 
rocked, taped sanded and textured. Trim around doors and windows shall be painted. 

If a front-load garage extends in front of the rest of the home, enhanced 
architecture will be required. If front load garage(s) occupy more than 50% of the width 
of the front elevation, upgraded garage doors may be required. Taller garages will require 
a greater setback from the other garages as described below. 

10 

Quarry East-Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, V. 1.2 



Garages on Duplex, Small or Cluster Lots shall be limited to a single two-car 
garage door or two single-car garage doors. Small, Cluster, and Medium Lots are limited 
to a maximum garage door height of eight feet (8'). Garages on Medium Lots and Large 
Lots may have a single two-car garage door plus a single one-car garage door, or three 
one-car garage doors. If a home features tlU'ee garage bays, the front of at least one of the 
garage bays should be set back a minimum of eighteen inches (18") from the face of the 
other garage(s). If an RV garage is proposed on a Large Lot, typically, only a single 
additional, one-car garage door will be permitted. The Architectural Reviewer may elect 
to allow a front facing garage if it is set back behind the home and another side loaded 
garage. 

Detached garages are prohibited. 

Garage Doors by Lot Type 
Cluster, Medium Lot Large Lot 

Duplex& 
Small Lot 

Max Number (1) 2-car garage (1) 2-car garage (1) 2-car garage 
of Garage door, or door and (1) 1- door and (1) 1-

Doors (2) 1-car garage car garage car garage door, 
doors door, or (3) 1- or (3) 1-car 

car garage garage doors 
doors 

Max RV/fall 8' 10' 12' 
Garage Door 

Heil?ht 

M. RV Garages & Tall Garage Doors. Although taller garage doors and RV garages 
may be considered on certain Lots (or Lot types as described herein), this does not 
guarantee approval. Plans submitted with RV garages will be subject to a more detailed 
review process and may be denied by the Architectural Reviewer in its sole discretion. 

The Architectural Reviewer will allow and evaluate proposed architectural RV or 
oversize garage doors on specific Lots, subject to any restrictions and the below 
guidelines. The Architectural Reviewer's review of any proposed RV or oversize garages 
will be subjective and in the sole discretion of the Architectural Reviewer. 

1. The Architectural Reviewer will typically pre-designate specific Lots that 
may feature an oversized or RV garage door as well as the maximum height of 
such door. If there is any question relating to RV or oversize garage doors on a 
specific Lot, and/or the maximum oversize/RV garage door height permitted, 
please contact the Architectural Reviewer. 

2. Except as may be otherwise specified by the Architectural Reviewer, Large 
Lot types that are less than seventy-five feet (75') in width at the front setback may 

11 

Quarry East-Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, V. 1,2 



have a single one-car garage door higher than eight feet (8') up to a maximum 
height of twelve feet (12'), subject to the standards set forth below. 

3. Except as may be otherwise specified by the Architectural Reviewer, one­
story homes with garage doors greater than twelve feet (12') in height and up to a 
maximum height of fourteen feet (14') will only be considered on Large Lot types 
that are seventy-five feet (75') or wider at the front setback. 

4. For an RV or oversize garage to be considered, it must meet the following 
minimum setbacks from the front of any other garage on the Lot: 

(i) Three feet (3') for doors taller than eight feet (8') and up to ten-feet 
(10') in height, 

(ii) Five feet (5') for doors taller than ten feet (10'). 

5. A garage door should not be one of the most prominent features on the fa~ade. 
The intent is to minimize the impact as much as possible by keeping the taller 
garage door behind both the front of the residence and the eight-foot (8') garage 
door. If the front of an RV garage or taller garage extends in front of the finished 
livable area, enhanced architecture will be required. 

6. Turning the other garages into side-load garages are encouraged. 

7. Incorporating an architectural pop-out with a lower roof line on the side of a 
tall garage is strongly encouraged on 12' doors and required on 14' doors and may 
be required depending on the particular site and proposed location. Tall garages 
should incorporate other architectural elements to provide visual interest, such as 
windows, banding at the level of the roof line, etc. 

8. Upgraded, architectural garage doors are encouraged. 

9. The overall mass and roof shall be integrated with and in harmony with the 
rest of the residence. The top of the RV garage should not exceed the roof height 
of the residence. 

10. RV and oversized garage spacing will be designated by the Architectural 
Reviewer. Notwithstanding any designation the Architectural Reviewer may 
make to the contrary, Lots with RV garages will typically be required to be 
separated by a minimum of three (3) Lots on the same side of the street and a 
minimum of two (2) Lots to each side of an opposite Lot, where applicable. 

11. If an RV garage is proposed on an end Lot condition adjacent to Common Area 
and/or streets, the RV garage shall be located on the side of the Lot opposite such 
adjacency. 

12 

Quarry East-Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, V. 1.2 



N. Detached Storage Structures. All vehicles, trailers, tools, and equipment shall be 
stored out of view in enclosed structures. A maximum of one (1) detached storage facility 
per Lot will be considered, such as a storage shed, provided it is of the same construction, 
finish, and color as proposed and approved for the residence. Metal storage sheds or other 
structures that do not reflect the architectural style and quality of the residence on such a 
Lot are prohibited. 

Such a detached storage facility may not exceed two-hundred (200) square feet in 
area, and detached structures may not be located within three feet (3') of the property line 
on a Lot. Any such structure shall be placed on a concrete pad in a location approved by 
the Architectural Reviewer and may not back to a neighboring view fence. Depending on 
location, additional landscaping may also be required. 

The Architectural Reviewer encourages the storage of boats, RV's, camp trailers 
and other similar vehicles or trailers in offsite storage facilities. 

0. Fences. Prior to the construction of any fence, plans shall be submitted as part of 
the landscape plans to and approved in writing by the Architectural Reviewer. The 
submittal shall include a site plan showing the location of fencing proposed, including 
setback dimensions, and designate the type and height of fence proposed. The only fence 
types permitted are those specified by these Design Guidelines, and no fence may be 
installed prior to approval by the Architectural Reviewer. Refer to Exhibit A through 
Exhibit C attached to these Design Guidelines for the permitted fencing types for most 
Builder and Owner installations. The developer may install an alternate style screen 
fencing shown in Exhibit D in select locations, and where such exists, it may not be 
replaced with any other type of fencing, including a Builder/Owner style screen fence. 

1. General fence requirements include: 

(i) Wherever possible, adjoining Lots shall use common corner posts. 

(ii) Fence returns terminating into the side of a house shall be a 
minimum of four feet ( 4') behind the front of the residence on the side 
where the return is located. 

(iii) Transitions in fence height shall be accomplished by stepping, (not 
angling), the fence top. 

(iv) Where view fence is used along rear lot lines adjacent to Common 
Areas, view fence should also be used for a minimum of two fence panels 
on the adjacent side yard fence. 

2. Permitted locations for each fence type are as follows: 

13 

Quarry East - Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, v. 1.2 



(i) All Lots located adjacent to club, Common Area, and/or open space, 
including water features, hillsides, etc. shall install view fencing along such 
rear or side property line(s). 

(ii) All Lots located adjacent to any Common Area or streets shall 
install screen fencing or demi-screen fencing along such adjacent boundary 
line(s). 

(iii) Screen fence may be installed on or alongside property lines 
between residential Lots, except where view fence is required as described 
above in Section III.O.l(iv). 

(iv) Where view fence is opted to be installed along a rear boundary of 
a Lake Front Lot, the view fence shall be located at the top of the slope 
leading down to the water, as applicable, and should include a gate to 
accommodate maintenance access. 

Refer to Exhibit E for a depiction of the Fence Plan by Phase. Depending on 
location, the Architectural Reviewer may require an on-site inspection prior to fence 
construction. 

P. Dog Runs. Dog runs must be approved by the Architectural Reviewer prior to 
installation. The size and location may be restricted. If approved, they shall be 
commercially manufactured and well maintained. Coated chain-link, galvanized and 
stainless steel are the only approved materials unless constructed of one of the permitted 
fence styles. 

Q. Patios. All residences are recommended to include covered rear patios. All 
exterior patios are required to be a minimum of ten feet (10') deep and shall be covered. 
Covered patios may be a minimum of eight feet (8') deep ( or equivalent alternate 
dimension) where Lot depth is a constraint. Patio covers shall extend to the edges of the 
patio and be integral to the design and appear as extensions of the architecture of the 
residence. Patios and covers on comers shall extend past and wrap the comer of the 
building. All columns must be a minimum size of twelve inches by twelve inches (12" x 
12"). 

R. Landscaping of Small, Medium, and Large Lots. A landscape plan shall be 
prepared and submitted to the Architectural Reviewer for approval. Although certain 
minimum standards have been established, additional landscaping is encouraged and 
may be required by the Architectural Reviewer. 

Builders and Owners are encouraged to consider adjacent yards when formulating 
a landscape plan and to the extent practical, shall blend the Improvements with the 
neighboring yard landscape Improvements, including planters and berms. The 
Architectural Reviewer will consider how the proposed landscaping blends with and 
promoted the overall aesthetics of the site in conjunction with structures. The use of berms 

14 

Quarry East-Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, V. 1.2 



and clustered planting groups such as garden beds with trees, shrubs and flowers are 
encouraged. 

Exterior mounted utility meters, heat pumps, air conditioners, and other such 
equipment shall be properly screened from view of the street and surrounding homes by 
landscaping or fencing. 

Landscaping in front, rear, and side yards is required to be completed in 
accordance with these standards within 30 days of substantial completion of the home, 
except in the event weather makes installation unfeasible, in which case written waiver 
from the Architectural Reviewer is required. 

1. Trees shall be planted in front yards, comer yards and rear yards according to 
the following minimum standards: 

(i) Deciduous trees shall be 2" caliper or larger and evergreen trees 
shall be 8' high or higher 

(ii) An ornamental tree or 5 additional 2-gallon shrubs may be 
substituted for one of the trees required in the front yard if approved by 
the Architectural Reviewer. 

(iii) A Lot on which the residence is required to have an increased side 
setback as described in Section Ill.B shall have additional trees planted 
within such area along the property line provided the width of the side 
yard is a minimum of ten (10) feet, and such trees shall have a maximum 
spacing of forty ( 40) feet. 

MINIMUM TREE QUANTITIES 
Small Lot Medium Lot Large Lot 

(<60') (~60' & <70') (~70' & <90') 
Front 2 trees, one 2 trees, at least 3 trees, at least 
Yard deciduous tree one deciduous one deciduous 

and one tree and one tree and one 
evergreen tree. evergreen tree evergreen tree 

Rear 1 tree per 1500 1 tree per 1500 1 tree per 1500 
Yard square feet of square feet of square feet of 

rear yard rear yard rear vard 

2. Shrubs shall be planted in the front yards, corner yards and rear yards 
according to the following minimum standards: 

MINIMUM SHRUB QUANTITIES 
Small Lot Medium Lot Large Lot 

(<60') (:e?:60' & <70') (~70' & <90') 

15 

Quarry East-Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, V. 1.2 



Front Minimum 16- Minimum 18- Minimum20-
Yard 20, 2 gallon or 22, 2 gallon or 24, 2 gallon or 

larger shrubs larger shrubs larger shrubs 
Comer Minimum 10, Minimum 12, Minimum 14, 

Lot Side 2 gallon or 2 gallon or 2 gallon or 
Yard larger shrubs larger shrubs larger shrubs 
Rear Minimum 8, 2 Minimum 9, 2 Minimum 10, 
Yard gallon or gallon or 2 gallon or 

larger shrubs larger shrubs larger shrubs 

3. Planter beds planted with shrubs and flowers shall cover a minimum of 25% 

of the front yard, 20% of the side yard on corner lots, and 15% of the rear yard. 

4. Except at planter bed locations or side yards, sod shall be laid throughout 
(excluding driveways, walks, and patios). 

5. Sod or turf grass shall be planted covering a minimum of 50% of the front yard 
and 50% of the rear yard. Artificial turf is prohibited in front yards. 

6. Ground cover used in planter beds shall either be a natural wood or soil 
product with no dyes or color added, or a grey/ dark colored perma bark/rock 
chips no larger than 1 inch in size. There shall be no red, white, or light-colored 
rock chips. 

7. An automatic underground irrigation system shall be installed throughout. 
Such irrigation system shall include appropriate backflow prevention and utilize 
zones for landscape with different water demands. Sprinkler systems shall be 
designed to minimize overspray and are encouraged to incorporate low trajectory 
spray nozzles. 

8. Builders are responsible for installing irrigation and landscaping in the planter 
strips located between sidewalks and curbs adjacent to their lot if applicable. One 
street tree shall be planted on each property line within the planter strip, except in 
restricted areas. Refer to Exhibit G for a depiction of those Lots where trees are 
prohibited within the planter strip. Street trees should be selected from the 
Treasure Valley Tree Selection Guide as appropriate for the proposed location. 
Trees in the planter strip are in addition to minimum standards. Turf grass shall 
be planted in the planter strip except where the driveway and street trees are 
located. 

9. Landscape grading shall be designed to produce a graceful contouring; harsh 
geometric shapes and slopes will not be approved. Mounding or contouring used 
to add interest to the landscaping must be an appropriate scale in relation to the 
rest of the yard and be sufficiently compacted and covered to prevent erosion. 
Any imported soil shall be free of weeds and debris and equal to the quality of the 

16 

Quarry East - Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, V, 1,2 



existing soil on the Lot. Driveway site coverage shall be minimized to provide 
additional area for landscaping. Gravel pads for parking of vehicles, trailers, etc. 
are not acceptable. 

10. If a raised patio is proposed as part of the landscape, it must be a minimum of 
three (3) feet from any property line, and the height may not exceed twenty-four 
(24) inches in order to be considered. 

11. Lots backing to a lake ed~e must also comply with the standards set forth in 
Section Ill. T below. 

12. In no event shall the landscape and/or grading alter the Lot drainage as 
approved by the City of Middleton, Idaho. All drainage water must be retained on 
the Lot or directed off the Lot in accordance with the drainage details attached as 
Exhibit F: no Lot drainage may be permitted to flow onto or across an adjacent Lot. 

Variances to the landscape requirements set forth herein may be granted in cases 
such as flag lots or pie shaped lots with narrow street frontages. Extensions for 
completion of landscaping may be granted when weather conditions hamper landscape 
construction from December 1 through April 1. 

S. Landscaping of Duplex & Cluster Lots. A cohesive landscape plan shall be 
developed and submitted to the Architectural Reviewer for each group of Duplex or 
Cluster Lots that is accessible from a single shared drive or adjacent drives. Although 
certain minimum standards have been established, additional landscaping is encouraged 
and may be required by the Architectural Reviewer. The Ardtitectural Reviewer will 
consider how the proposed landscaping blends with and promoted the overall aesthetics 
of the site in conjunction with structures. The use of berms and clustered planting groups 
such as garden beds with trees, shrubs and flowers are encouraged. 

Builders and Owners are encouraged to consider adjacent yards when formulating 
a landscape plan and to the extent practical, shall blend the Improvements with the 
neighboring yard landscape Improvements, including planters and berms. Exterior 
mounted utility meters, heat pumps, air conditioners, and other such equipment shall be 
properly screened from view of the street and surrounding homes by landscaping or 
fencing. 

Landscaping in front, rear, and side yards of each Duplex or Cluster Lot shall be 
completed to these minimum standards within thirty (30) days of substantial completion 
of the residence on such lot, except in the event weather makes installation unfeasible, in 
which case written waiver from the Architectural Reviewer is required. 

1. Trees and shrubs shall be planted in front yards, comer yards and rear yards 
according to the minimum standards described below. 

17 

Quarry East - Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, V. 1.2 



(i) Deciduous trees shall be 2" caliper or larger and evergreen trees 
shall be 8' high or higher 

(ii) An ornamental tree or 5 additional 2-gallon shrubs may be 
substituted for one of the trees required in the front yard if approved by 
the Architectural Reviewer. 

(iii) A Lot on which the residence is required to have an increased side 
setback as described in Section III.B shall have additional trees planted 
within such area along the property line provided the width of the side 
yard is a minimum of ten (10) feet, and such trees shall have a maximum 
spacing of forty (40) feet. 

DUPLEX & CLUSTER LOT 
MINIMUM TREE AND SHRUB QUANTITIES 

Trees Shrubs 
Front Yard 2 trees, one deciduous tree Minimum 16-20, 2 gallon 

and one ever1rreen tree. or larger shrubs 
Corner Lot See Section 111.S.l(iii) above Minimum 10, 2 gallon or 
Side Yard larger shrubs 
Rear Yard 1 tree per 1500 square feet Minimum 8, 2 gallon or 

of rear vard larger shrubs 

2. Planter beds planted with shrubs and flowers shall cover a minimum of 25% 
of the front yard, 20% of the side yard on comer lots, and 15% of the rear yard. 

3. Except at planter bed locations or side yards, sod shall be laid throughout 
(excluding driveways, walks, and patios). 

4. Sod or turf grass shall be planted covering a minimum of 50% of the front yard 
and 50% of the rear yard. Artificial turf is prohibited in front yards, but would be 
considered in rear yards. 

5. Ground cover on planter beds shall be rock chips no larger than 1 inch in size 
and match or be substantially similar in appearance to the boulders re.fleeted in 
Exhibit H. 

6. An automatic underground irrigation system shall be installed throughout. 
Such irrigation system shall include appropriate backflow prevention and utilize 
zones for landscape with different water demands. Sprinkler systems shall be 
designed to minimize overspray and are encouraged to incorporate low trajectory 
spray nozzles. 

18 

Quarry East-Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, v. 1.2 



7. Builders are responsible for installing irrigation and landscaping in the planter 
strips located between sidewalks and curbs adjacent to their Lot if applicable. One 
street tree shall be planted every thirty-five (35) feet within the planter strip along 
each property line or right-of-way that borders such Lot as applicable. For street 
tree specifications, contact the design review committee. Trees in the planter strip 
are in addition to minimum standards. Turf grass shall be planted in the planter 
strip except where the driveway and street trees are located. 

8. Landscape grading shall be designed to produce a graceful contouring; harsh 
geometric shapes and slopes will not be approved. Mounding or contouring used 
to add interest to the landscaping must be an appropriate scale in relation to the 
rest of the yard and be sufficiently compacted and covered to prevent erosion. 
Any imported soil shall be free of weeds and debris and equal to the quality of the 
existing soil on the Lot. Driveway site coverage shall be minimized to provide 
additional area for landscaping. Gravel pads for parking of vehicles, trailers, etc. 
are not acceptable. 

9. If a raised patio is proposed as part of the landscape, it must be a minimum of 
three (3) feet from any property line, and the height may not exceed twenty-four 
(24) inches in order to be considered. 

10. In no event shall the landscape and/or grading of a Lot alter the Lot drainage 
as approved by the City of Middleton, Idaho. All drainage water must be retained 
on the Lot or directed off the Lot in accordance with the approved grading and 
drainage plans; no Lot drainage may be pennitted to flow onto or across any 
adjacent Lot. 

Variances to the landscape requirements above may be granted in cases such as 
flag lots or pie shaped lots with narrow street frontages. Extensions for completion of 
landscaping may be granted when weather conditions hamper landscape construction 
from December 1 through April 1. 

T. Lake Front Lots. The rear or side property line of a Lot may be located along a 
body of water or "lake", and where there is no landscaped common area between the Lot 
and water's edge, such a Lot may be specifically referred to herein as a "Lake Front Lot". 
(A Lot with landscaped common area between the Lot and a body of water, would not be 
considered a Lake Front Lot as it pertains to these Design Guidelines.) 

As the Property is developed, certain Lake Front Lots may be permitted entry into 
a lake directly from the Lot, subject to any applicable rules and restrictions. Refer to 
Exhibit I identifying by phase any Lake Front Lots where direct entry into a lake is 
permitted. 

A grading plan must be included with (a) the architectural submittal and (b) the 
landscape submittal for each Lake Front Lot when grade changes are proposed or if 
requested by the Architectural Reviewer. The Architechlral Reviewer may require a 

19 

Quarry East - Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, V. 1.2 



grading plan be provided with a submittal for an alteration, reconstruction, modification, 
and/or addition to the rear yard Improvements, in its discretion. 

The overall design of a rear yard should provide a gracious transition between the 
residence and the water's edge. Refer to Exhibit T for illustrations of lake edge 
Improvements and refer to Exhibit K for illustrated approximate high and low water 
levels. 

The standards described below will apply to proposed Improvements near or 
along the water's edge on a Lake Front Lot. 

1. Retaining Walls. Local, surface select boulders are the preferred material for 
retaining walls; poured in place concrete will also be considered. Block retaining 
walls are discouraged but may be approved provided such are designed to be an 
extension of the residential architecture on the Lot. 

2. Beach Areas. A recessed sand "beach front" may be constructed on a Lot, 
provided it is substantially level and does not exceed 40% of the Lot width at the 
rear property line. Beach front sand should be natural yellow, tan, or white hues; 
specialty colors, including black, will not be approved. The sand "beach front" 
should be setback from the side property line a minimum of five (5) feet. 

3. Docks. If direct entry from a Lot into a lake is permitted per Exhibit La dock 
may be considered for such a Lake Front Lot provided the Lot is greater than one­
hundred feet (100') wide at the rear property line meeting the water's edge. The 
Architectural Reviewer may adopt a standard style, color, size, or other dock 
specification(s). A dock may be consttucted of wood or composite wood, such as 
Trex decking or similar, and should be a natural wood color or other earth tone. 
White, bright, or very light colors will not be approved. 

4. Diving Boards & Slides. Diving boards and/or slides leading into the lake are 
not permitted. 

5. Patios. A patio located near the water's edge is to be harmonious with the lake 
edge and will be subject to a higher level of scrutiny. Covered structures must be 
kept within the residential setbacks unless otherwise approved. 

6. Water Levels. Water levels are expected to regularly fluctuate by several feet 
and any vertical portion of a proposed Improvement in or along the water should 
appear consistent and cohesive both when the water level is high as well as when 
it is low. Refer to Exhibit K for illustrated approximate high and low water levels. 

7. Setbacks and Width. Patios, retaining walls, docks, and other Improvements, 
excluding landscape, along the water's edge will typically be required to be 
setback at least five (5) feet from the nearest side property line and be limited to 
no more than 40% of the Lot width at the rear property line. 

20 

Quarry East - Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, V. 1.2 



8. Shore Rock. The landscape for each Lake Front Lot shall include local river 
cobble installed along the water's edge, in a 3" to 8" size blend, available from 
Premier Aggregates in Emmett, ID (208-901-8189). Shoreline cobble must be the 
specified size range, and a single size or alternate size/range is not permitted. 
Boulders along the shore and slope are to match the color/appearance of the river 
cobble. 

9. Shore Planter Bed Cover. Ground cover in planter beds along the rear of the 
Lot is to match the color of the ground cover used in planter areas elsewhere on 
the Lot and shall be rock chips (perma bark) between 1" and 1-1/2" in size. Bark 
chips may not be used in planter beds located along the back of Lot and shore. 

10. Grasses. Grasses may be planted from the top of the slope down to the edge of 
the water, which is subject to seasonal fluctuation. Due to the grade of the slope, 
fescue is recommended. 

11. Boulder Retaining Walls. Owners are encouraged to install boulder retaining 
walls to create raised planter beds along the water behind such Owner's Lake 
Front Lot. In addition, the developer may have installed or may install boulder 
retaining walls for raised planter beds along the water behind some, but not all, 
Lake Front Lots. Where there is a raised boulder planter bed behind a Lake Front 
Lot, the initial landscape for such Lot must include the planter area behind such 
Lot to meet the following minimum standards, which are in addition to any other 
minimum landscape requirements on the Lot: 

(iv) At least one tree is to be planted meeting or exceeding the minimum 
tree size for the type (evergreen or deciduous) as specified in Section lII.R; 

(v) Plant at least one (1) shrub per one-hundred (100) square feet of 
planter area or a minimum of five (5) shrubs, whichever is greater, and 
such shrubs shall be two-gallon size or larger; 

(vi) Unplanted areas are to be covered with ground cover as described 
in Section Ill. T.9 above. 

12. Appearance of Lake Edge. Each Owner of a Lake Front Lot is responsible for 
maintaining the water's edge adjacent to or along the Lot in a sightly manner, 
removing any trash or debris, weed abatement, and replacing rock as necessary. 

Direct lake entry will not be allowed from all Lake Front Lots, and where 
permissible, the accessibility to a lake from a Lot may vary throughout a year and/or 
change over time. Not all Lake Front Lots will have water's edge along the entirety of the 
adjacent Lot boundary. If there is any dispute as to whether a Lot is considered a Lake 
Front Lot or whether direct entry to a lake from a Lot may be permitted, the Architectural 
Reviewer's decision shall be final, conclusive, and binding. 

21 

Quarry East - Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, V. 1.2 



U. Lakes, Generally. Each Lot Owner must follow all applicable rules and standards 
set forth by the Association for each individual lake, without exception. Physical entry 
and/or recreational activities in or on the water, (e.g. swimming, boating, rafting, paddle 
boarding, kitesurfing, jet-skiing) may be permitted on some, but not all, of the community 
lakes. Dumping of trash, debris, dirt (to include any spoils from regrading or excavation), 
or other materials into a body of water is strictly prohibited. Owners may not introduce 
or allow any foreign substance or additive, including fertilizers, that may alter the water 
quality to enter any body of water. 

V. Boulder Retaining Walls. A well-designed natural boulder retaining wall brings 
a thoughtful, natural element to a landscape concept. Local, surface select boulders are 
the preferred material for retaining walls; poured in place concrete will also be considered. 
Block retaining walls are generally discouraged but may be approved in side yards, or 
provided such are designed to be an extension of the residential architecture on the Lot. 
If proposed, boulder retaining walls are to be comprised of surface select boulders to 
match the boulders shown in Exhibit H. Boulder retaining walls are to be substantially 
similar in design and appearance those seen in Exhibit H. General design principles for 
boulder retaining walls include: 

1. Locate each rock to have a minimum of three bearing points, two in front and 
one in back; 

2. Place each rock so it is in contact with at least two rocks below it; 

3. A void continuous vertical seams or "columns" of rocks; 

4. Avoid continuous horizontal planes in the rockery; 

5. Use larger base rocks than used in the upper rocks; 

6. Incline rocks back into the slope; 

7. Use smaller rocks ("chink rocks") to fill in voids; and 

8. Select rocks free from obvious signs of distress, (e.g. fracturing, disintegrating). 

Where boulders are used for slope stabilization, the boulders must be naturally 
spaced and installed so that the lower circumference is in contact with the grade. 
Additionally, plants that have a strong root system to help lock soil into place should be 
incorporated around and between boulders, such as approved vines, grasses, and annual 
flowering plants. 

All retaining walls should be designed to accommodate proper lot drainage and 
control surface water as necessary. Each Owner is solely responsible for obtaining any 
engineering and/or governmental approvals that may be necessary. 

22 

Quarry East-Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, v. 1.2 



W. Exterior Lighting. Exterior lighting that is visible from streets, neighboring lots or 
Common Areas must have a concealed light source (e.g. covered, shielded) and shall not 
illuminate neighboring properties. Exterior light fixtures may cast light upward only if 
they are located under a roof and the beam of light does not extend beyond such roof. 
Exterior lighting shall be harmonious with the building design. Individual lights are 
limited to 100 watts. All exterior lighting must be identified on the submittal and is subject 
to approval by the Architectural Reviewer. 

met: 
Exterior security lighting will be permitted provided the following standards are 

(i) Security lighting shall be limited to lighting that is triggered by 
motion on such Lot and may not be triggered by motion on neighboring 
properties. 

(ii) Such lighting shall not be directed at any neighboring properties 
and shall be mounted no higher than ten feet (10') above ground. 

(iii) The motion detector shall be programmed to shut off the light(s) no 
longer than five (5) minutes after motion is detected and the light has been 
illuminated. 

X. Mailboxes. Mailboxes shall be in cluster boxes provided by the HOA and may be 
subject to a mailbox fee. 

Y. Miscellaneous Equipment and Signage. 

1. Satellite Dishes. A satellite dish should be located in consideration of neighbors 
and potential views. Wherever possible, the satellite dish should be installed on a 
rear comer of the home, in a location selected to minimize visibility from common 
areas and streets. Satellite dishes are prohibited on the front of the home or within 
the front yard. If mounted on a building, the top of the satellite dish may not 
exceed the highest part of the nearest roof. In the absence of adequate reception in 
such a location described, the Owner may request approval for an alternate 
location. Other types of antennae are generally not permitted unless approved. 

2. Basketball Equipment. Basketball backboards and hoops are not permitted on 
the roof or walls of the residence. Basketball hoops with glass or plexiglass 
backboards may be installed on fixed poles adjacent to a driveway but are 
encouraged to be installed in less prominent areas such as rear or side yards. 
Moveable basketball hoops are not permitted in front yards. 

3. Si~ns. An Owner may not display signs to public view without advance 
approval from the Architectural Reviewer, except as described below. 

(i) One (1) commercially manufactured sign indicating the residence is for 
sale or lease may be placed on the applicable Lot without advance 

23 

Quarry East - Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492. v. 1.2 



approval from the Architectural Reviewer, provided the dimensions 
do not exceed three (3) feet by two (2) feet; 

(ii) Up to a maximum of two (2) commercially manufactured signs in 

support of or in opposition to a candidate for public office or a ballot 
measure, provided the criteria below is met. 

a. The sign(s) may not exceed two (2) feet in height or width; 

b. Sign(s) may be displayed no earlier than twenty-one (21) 
days prior to the date voting takes place for the associated 
election or ballot measure; 

c. Any such sign displayed on an Owner's Lot must be 
applicable to the voting district in which the Lot is located; 
and 

d. The sign(s) must be removed within three (3) days after 
such election date. 

Additional rules and standards related to signs are set forth in the 
Declaration. 

IV. CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS 

A. Condition of Lot. An Owner or Builder shall inspect the Lot prior to purchase 
and construction of Improvements for condition of all utilities, location of property pins, 
and general conditions and report any defects or damages to the developer. Unless 
otherwise notified, all Improvements shall be considered in good repair and all damages 
or deficiencies thereafter shall be the sole responsibility of the Owner or Builder. 

The developer or its engineer shall relocate missing property pins, utility 
connections or sewer markers, that cannot be located by ordinary inspection (including 
light digging to uncover buried pins or markers) prior to closing or commencement of 
construction. Resetting property pins or locating pressure irrigation, utility services, or 
sewer markers after possession will carry a minimum charge of Two Hundred and No/100 
Dollars ($200.00) from the developer. 

B. Excavation. Excavators are required to contact Dig Line at 208-342-1585 prior to 
commencing excavation on the Lot. Lots shall be excavated in a manner that will not 
adversely impact neighboring Lots. Excess dirt shall be removed from the community 
and may not be deposited or dumped on other Lots, Common Areas, any portion of the 
community or any other vacant ground slated for future development. 

C. Elevation of Foundations. Unless otherwise approved, foundations shall be set a 
maximum of eighteen inches (18") to twenty-four inches (24") above the back of the curb 

24 

Quarry East-Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874~2584-4492, V. 1.2 



elevation. An Owner or Builder shall take all necessary steps in setting the foundation 
elevation to ensure that drainage onto neighboring properties will be eliminated. All 
drainage from a Lot will be retained on site or drained into the adjoining street. It is the 
responsibility of the Builder to ensure proper elevations as it relates to the base flood 
elevation and any code or requirement related to the elevation of a home, if applicable. 

D. Timeline to Complete Construction. Upon commencement of construction, the 
construction of the Improvements shall be diligently pursued in accordance with the 
submittal approved by the Architectural Reviewer, including all conditions of approval. 
Construction shall be completed within one (1) year from date construction commences. 
The Architectural Reviewer may require a completion deposit and such funds may be 
used toward any construction related violations, including to return the Lot to its original 
condition as described below. 

If construction is not completed within one (1) year from the date construction 
commences and an Owner or Builder is not diligently pursuing completion (with no 
activity on site for thirty (30) days), the Architectural Reviewer and/or _____ _ 

HOA shall have the option to require the Owner and/or the Builder to return the Lot to 
its original condition within twenty (20) days. If an Owner and/or Builder has not 
returned the Lot to its original condition within the timeframe required, the Architectural 
Reviewer and the ______ HOA has the right to immediately access the site and 
return the Lot to its original condition at the Owners and/or Builder's expense. Should 
any applicable completion deposit not be sufficient to cover the associated expense of such 
corrective action, any remaining amount due shall earn interest at the rate of eighteen 
percent (18%) per annum and may be assessed against the Owner and/or Builder as an 
Individual Assessment as contemplated by the Declaration. 

E. Lot Drainage. The Owner and/or Builder are responsible for constructing and/or 
maintaining proper Lot grading and drainage in accordance with the grading and 
drainage plans approved by the City of Middleton, Idaho both during and after any 
construction, including, but not limited to, landscape. All water on a Lot shall be directed 
to the street and/or retained on such Lot, and no Lot is permitted to drain onto an adjacent 
Lot. The grading and drainage detail(s) as may be applicable are attached hereto as Exhibit 

E. 

Modifications to the approved grading and drainage plans approved by the City 
of .Middleton will require approval by the Architectural Reviewer prior to modifications 
taking place. Builder and/or Owner assumes responsibility for such modifications. 

F. Construction Standards and Jobsite Maintenance. It is important to the 
community and the Dedarant that the community experience is a positive one for all 
Builders, contractors, Owners and their guests. In order to facilitate such, any entity 
and/or individual performing work within the community shall comply with the 
guidelines set forth below. 

25 

Quarry East - Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, V. 1.2 



1. Washout of concrete trucks and equipment will be performed outside of the 
subdivision or in a designated concrete washout area. Developer will determine 
a location and provide direction to the concrete washout area within the 
community. Contractors are required to utilize this area to clean concrete trucks, 
pumpers, or other concrete coated equipment if washed within the subdivision. 

2. Construction shall not begin prior to 7:00 a.m. or continue after sunset; 
however, during the mid-summer months (June-August), contractors may begin 
as early as 6:00 a.m. as long as they are sensitive to Owners and Occupants and 
comply with all applicable jurisdictional and municipal requirements and laws. 

3. Jobsites shall be tidied up and free of debris each evening and prior to each 
weekend. Each Builder shall provide a trash bin and/or dumpster at the jobsite. 
Jobsite trash or debris that may be scattered by wind shall be properly contained 
in trash bins and/or dumpsters or by other means. Builders and Owners who fail 
to maintain the Lot in an orderly manner or allow construction debris to clutter 
surrounding properties may be subject to appropriate action from the 
Architectural Reviewer or the ______ HOA. 

4. Temporary toilets, construction equipment, and construction material shall be 
contained within the Lot boundaries. 

5. All vehicles will be parked within the Lot boundaries or on public streets 
adjacent to the jobsite and shall not block traffic, mailboxes, or otherwise interfere 
with existing Owners or Occupants. 

6. Dogs shall not be allowed at the construction site. 

7. Inappropriate language, shouting, or other inappropriate behavior -will not be 
allowed. 

8. Radios or other music must be kept to a minimum volume and should not be 
audible outside of the Lot limits. 

9. Power and water must not be used from existing residences without 
permission from the Owner. 

10. All personnel shall comply with the maximum speed limit within the 
community. Speeding or unsafe driving will not be tolerated. 

1 l. Streets shall remain free from dirt, gravel, or other excavation material and 
shall be maintained by the Owner or Builder in a clean and orderly manner. 
Washing of equipment or materials may not occur in the street or any Common 
Areas. 

26 

Quarry East - Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4B74-2584-4492, V. 1.2 



12. Materials or equipment may not be stored on any other Lot or Common Area. 
Access to a Lot across any other Lot or Common Areas is prohibited. 

13. Contractors shall be fully clothed at all times, including, but not limited to, 
shirts and footwear. Notwithstanding the foregoing, attire shall be appropriate 
for the work being performed. 

14. Appropriate safety equipment including, but not limited to, hard hats, safety 
eyewear, and high visibility clothing, shall be used while work is being performed. 

15. No fires are permitted anywhere in the community for the purpose of 
construction. 

16. At their own discretion, Builders may seek a Temporary Right-of-Way Use 
Permit from the City of Middleton to temporarily block the sidewalk in front of a 
residence under construction. For more information and specific requirements, 
please call _______ , 

G. Complaints. Any complaints will be conveyed to the applicable Builder or Owner, 
and each Builder or Owner will be he]d responsible by the Architectural Reviewer to 
ensure their contractors and subcontractors remain compliant with these Design 
Guidelines at all times. 

27 

Quarry East - Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, V. 1.2 



EXHIBIT A. 
VIEW FENCE 

Manufacturer: ____ B"'"o""i""se"--'>R...,iv'-'e,,_r_.,_F_,,,en"-"c,,,e...._ _____ ______ _ _ 

Product:. _____ ----'-'M""3"'-'-W'-'r-"o""u.i,,gh,.,,t"---'l"'r""on'-'---------------

1-l/2''x 1-1/2" -
TOP RAIL ~ FLAT CAP 

3/8" X 3/[5' 
''X'' DETAIL 

TYP. AS SHOWN 

1" .x 1" 
MIDDLE RAIL 

1/2" x 1/Z' 
STEEL PICKET 

'Z' X 'Z' 
STEEL POSTS 

1-1/2'' X 1-1/2'' 
BOTTOM RAIL 

r-.. 

" ~ ------ "'~I I)' 

_____ I, 
V 

/ / 
~ 

/ 

- -

8'-2" 
-

- 4·· N 
,..L; .. TYP. ....... 

~ 

= 
\\ 

IY IYI IXI l:XI IYI M IYI IYI IYI ll! ,,.--: 
_I • I 
'<:t ;.... 

7 
'<t 

N ....... 
~ 

'l 

FINISH GRADE ~ 
. .. ..__ _( 

POST INSTALLED 
PER STRUCTlJRAL 

ENGINEERING 
------

NOTE: 
ALL METAL TO BE FINISHED WITH POWDER COAT COLOR "RUST TEXTURE 
T09l -BR47' BY CARDINAL 

28 

Quarry East - Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, v. 1.2 

N 

= 
I -

M 
I 

V) 



EXHIBIT B. 
BUILDER/OWNER SCREEN FENCE 

Manufacturer: ___ ___,_B,.,_o,.,,,is""e---'R"'-i'-'v..,.e"--r _.._F""'en,__.,c,.,e'----------------
Product:. ______ ""M,_,.3,_C"--"'u""st""o"-'mc,___e._P_,_,ic'""'tu""r"-"e'-'F'-'r""a'°'m.,,e""'C"-='ede,;;a""r'-w"-'-"'it""h...,,S"--'t""'ee,,_,l,...,P"""o""s'""ts'----

l" x 4" WOOD TRIM 
ON FRONT SIDE WITH 

2" x 4" WOOD RAIL 
ON REAR SIDE 

STEEL CAP 

1" x 6" VERTICAL 
WOOD PICKETS 

2" x 4" WOOD RAIL 
CENTERED 

ON REAR SIDE 

4" X 4"X 96" 
STEEL POSTS 

1" x 4'' WOOD TRIM 
ON FRONT SIDE WITH 

2" x 4" WOOD RAIL 
ON REAR SIDE 

FINISH GRADE 

FOOTING SIZE AND 
REINFORCING 

PER STRUCTURAL 
ENGINEERING 

8'-4" 
/ 

• .:= 

- - - - -
~ 

- - - - - -
' 

....-;:: .... 
., 

~ 

~ 

NOTES: 

- - - - -
- - - - - -

~ 

-/ 

.:= 

-

N 
_ , " ____ , 

---)< 
~ --... 

f--,... 

~ 

~ 

l. ALL METAL TO BE FINISHED WITH POWDER COAT COLOR "RUST TEXTURE 
T091-BR47" BY CARDINAL. 

2. All WOOD TO BE STAINED WITH STAIN COLOR "PECAN" 8Y READY-SEAL. 

29 

Quarry East - Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, V. 1.2 



EXHIBITC. 
DEVELOPER SCREEN FENCE 

Manufacturer: _ ___ B""o""i""se"'---'"-'Ri"'-'.v'--'e"'"r-"'F..,,en..,,.,ce.__ ____________ _ 

Product: _____ __._,M""3.c.....LV-"'er._,t,.,ic,.,a,,_l P....._.ri_...v..:a<;y,:,,w2.,,_.0"'-------------

1-1/2"x 1-1/2" 
STEEL TOP RAIL ~ ;L-

FLATSTEEL CAP ~ "-.__I I "' -
7'-8" 

3/4" X Z' '"'- -~"- - , 'l<' 
STEEL CHANNEL ,..... t:;:::;:=; ~==:;::=:::;:::::::;::::::::;::::::::;::::::::;:::::::::;::=:;::::::::;::::::::;::::::::;::::::::;:::::1,=_,_.:_::_::_::: _':'. """i_: I 

~~ - -- ~- -- ...__ -- ~ - -~ .,_ _ - ~ I 

1" x 6" VERTICAL -
WOOD PICKETS 

1" x 4" HORIZONTAL 
WOOD TRIM CENTERED 

ON REAR SIDE 

4" X 4"x 96" 
STEEL POSTS 

3/4" X 2'' STEEL 
CHANNEL 

1-1/2"x 1-1/2" 
STEEL BOTTOM RAIL 

FINISH GRADE 

FOOTING SIZE AND 
REINFORCING 

PER STRUCTURAL 
ENGINEERING 

....... 
... 

f---.,. -- -- 1--- -- -- ~- 1---·--
-- t-- - -- 1-- -

' .,__...., 1--- -- 1--- -~ 1---- -- i.- - -- --- j 

--;:- ..... ~ t::- ~·'I-

, 

NOTES: 
1. ALL METAL TO BE FINISHED WITH POWDER COAT COLOR "RUST TEXTURE 

T091-BR47" BY CARDINAL 
2. ALL WOOD TO BE STAINED WITH STAIN COLOR "PECAN" BY READY-SEAL 

30 

Quarry East - Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, v. 1.2 



EXHIBITD. 
DEMI-SCREEN FENCE 

Manufacturer:, _ ___ B"'"""oi,.,se......,R"'"iv,._,,e,.._r-"-F..,._en._.c,..,e~-- -----------
Product:. _____ __.M~3_._P..,ic..,k.,._et._T,._,o~pi<-A-P.,_.ri..,_v""ac,._y'--'2.,_,."""0 __________ _ 

1-1/2"x 1-1/2'' -"\. 
STEEL TOP RAIL '\\ 

1 /2"x 1/2" f 
FLAT STEEL CAP -\·) 

VERTICAL "\_ \ 

STEEL PICKETS "'\., , \ 

-~ 1 -I /2" X 1-l /2" 
STEEL MIDDLE RAIL 

3/4" X 2' 
STEEL CHANNEL 

l" x 6" VERTICAL 
WOOD PICKETS 

4" X 4" X 96" 
STEEL POSTS 

3/4" X 2" STEEL 
CHANNEL 

1-1/2" X 1-1/2" 
STEEL BOTTOM RAIL 

FINISH GRADE __ / 

FOOTING SIZE AND 
REINFORCING 

PER S7RUCTURAL 
ENGINEERING 

-. 
' 

\ 
' 

' .... 
---

. -
I- ._ -

..... . 
- . 

~ .... --... 

~ .__ 

,, 

--
NOTES: 

- -

- -

7'-8" 

= -

½i -,-
- ----.__ - - - - - - - ,_ - - - I- - - -

N -,-
,-

N --,-
0-. 

I 

C') 

,_ _ - - ~- - - ~ - - - >- - -
- - ...-- ... -' 

4N 

~ -

,-

~ I 

- I 
N --
,-

) 

1. All METAL TO BE FINISHED WITH POWDER COAT COLOR "RUST TEXTURE 
T091-BR47'' BY CARDINAL. 

2. ALL WOOD TO BE STAINED WITH STAIN COLOR "PECAN" BY READY-SEAL. 

31 

Quarry East-Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, V. 1.2 



EXHIBITE. 
FENCE PLANS BY PHASE 

32 

Quarry East - Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, V. 1.2 



EXHIBIT F. 
FINAL LOT GRADING & DRAINAGE DETAILS 

All excess surface water on any Lot shall be directed to the street in accordance with the below 
detail and/or retained on such Lot, and no Lot is permitted to drain onto an adjacent Lot or 
Common Area. 

Detail 1 - All Lots 

REAR LOT LINE 

1. SHEET FLOW FROM REAR TO SWALE 
2. SLOPE FROM HOUSE TO SWALE (2% MIN.) 
J. SLOPE FROM HOUSE TO SIDE SWALE (2% MIN.) 
4. REAR SWALE (LOT 10' MIN. FROM REAR OF HOUSE) 
5. SIDE SWALE (LOT 1% MIN.) 
6. SLOPE FROM HOUSE TO SIDEWALK (VARIES) 
7. SLOPE OF STREET (SEE PLANS) 
8. DRIVEWAY SLOPE (VARIES) 

TYPICAL LOT GRADING 
SCALE:NTS 

33 

Quarry East - Architectural Design Guidelines and Construction Standards 
4874-2584-4492, V. 1.2 



EXHIBITG. 
PLANTER STRIP TREE PLANTING RESTRICTIONS 

Quarry East - Design Review Application 
4874-2584-4492, v. 1.2 

34 

01.27.2021 



EXHIBITH. 
ROCK COLOR/TYPE & BOULDER WALL DESIGN EXAMPLES 

Rock chips, rip-rap, and boulders, including boulders used for retaining, are to match or be 

substantially similar to the rock color/type shown below. Additionally, boulder retaining walls 

shall be substantially similar in design and appearance as those constructed below. 

Quarry East - Design Review Application 
4874-2584-4492, V. 1.2 

35 

01.27.2021 



EXHIBIT I. 
DIRECT ENTRY LAKE FRONT LOTS BY PHASE 

Quarry East - Design Review Application 
4874-2584-4492, V. 1.2 

36 

01.27.2021 



EXHIBIT l 
LAKE EDGE. IMPROVEMENTS 

ge of Water Cobble Along Ed 

REAR YARD 

POND 

Quarry East_ -~~~::~--~i?_ 
4874-2584-4492 Design Review A 1· 37 ,v.1 .2 pp rcation - --- --- -- Ol.27.2021 



Recessed Pati o by Water's Edge 

PATIO AREA 

POND 

Quarry East - D -~~;:::=---.-:---~ 
4874-2584-4492 v ~s21gn Review Appli . 38 

' · • canon -------- 0l.27.2021 



Recessed Sand "B ch ea " at Water's Ed ge 

Quarry East- D -~~~==--:-:----~ 
4874-2584-4492 v e1s21gn Review Appl· . 39 

, . . re~~ ----- 0l.27.2021 



EXHIBITK. 
POND WATER LEVEL ILLUSTRATIONS & TYPICAL CROSS-SECTION 

Illustrative use only. Water levels shown are approximate. 

Actual water levels and conditions will vary and are subject to change over time. 

TYPICAL CROSS-SECTION - ALL PONDS 

FESCUE GRASS 
COBBLE -

r HINGE POINT 
/ TOP OF SLOPE 

/ 
HIGH GROUNDWATER 

LOW GROUNDWATER SLOPE FROM LOT 

BOTTOM OF POND 
\ 
~ ,: 

SLOPE ABOVE BENCH 

BENCH , <-.; . 
'-, 
'-SLOPE TO POND BOTTOM 

Quarry East - Design Review Application 
4874-2584-4492, V. 1.2 

40 

01.27.2021 



ATTACHMENT 1. 
APPLICATION FOR DESIGN REVIEW 

Part 1 • D esign Review Application 

Submittal Type: 
• Initial Design Review Submittal 

• Alteration Submittal 

Owner/ Builder Information: 

• Substantially Revised Submittal 

• Other: _ _ ___________ _ 

Builder _____________ Email __________ .Phone ______ _ 

Address _________________________ .Zip ____ ___ _ 

Owner ______________ Email __________ Phone ______ _ 

Address ________________________ ~Zip _______ _ 

Site Information: 
Project Address. ____________________________ __ _ 

Lot/Block/Sub Number ___________ L.ot Width at Front Setback. _______ _ 

Proposed Plan Information: 

Building Height ___ __,Number of Stories ____ _,Plan Name or# ________ _ 

Gross Square Feet (SF): Finished Square Feet (SF): 
First Floor ______________ _ First Floor ___ _______ _ 

Second Floor _____________ _ Second Floor _________ _ 

Other _ _____ __________ _ Other _ ________ _ _ _ 

Total: ________________ _ Total: _____ ____ ___ _ 

Exterior Materials and Colors: 
Roof __________________________________ _ 

Main Body _______________________________ _ 

Windows/Doors _______________________ ____ _ _ _ 

Fascia ______________ ___________________ _ 

Stone/Brick _____________________________ __ _ 

Trim. ___ ____________________________ _ __ _ 

Other __________ ________ ____ ___________ _ 

Proposed Improvements Included in Submitta1: 

• Residential Plan D RV Garage 

• Accessory Building • Detached Storage 

Quarry East - Design Review Application 
4874-2584-4492, v. 1.2 

41 

• Solar 

01.27.2021 



Part 2 - Design Review Checklist 

Each of the items listed below must be submitted along with this completed Application. This is not a 

complete list of submittal requirements; please refer to the applicable section of the Design Guidelines for 

specific guidelines and submittal requirements. The Architectural Reviewer may request additional 

information at its sole discretion, and no submittal is considered complete Wltil all requested items have 

been received. 

D l. Application. Each submittal shall be accompanied by this completed Application 

D 2. Sjte Plan - Show the Lot boundary, the proposed location of all Improvements (including, but not 

limited to, all structures, driveways, sidewalks, fences, dog runs, patios, decks, outdoor lighting, utility 

meters, mechanical equipment, etc.), all easements, and all proposed setbacks. Include a roof plan as part 

of the site plan if a separate roof plan is not submitted. Use arrows to indicate the proposed grading and 

drainage flows off the Lot .md away from the residence and adjacent Lots. (Minimum scale of 1/8" = 1'-0" .) 

• 3. Roof Plan(s) - Depict masses, ridgelines, and roof pitches and include pertinent dimensions (e.g. 
gable span, overhang depths) if not provided elsewhere. Show the locations of any roof drains or scuppers, 
as applicable. The roof plan may be included on the site plan in lieu of a separate roof plan. (Minimum 
scale of 1/8""' 1' -0" .) 

D 4. Floor Plan(s} - Include the per floor square feet and total finished square feet of the residence, 

exclusive of garages, covered patios, storage areas, etc. Show exterior residential lighting locations and 

specifications. Provide exterior dimensions on all plans. (Minimum scale of 1/4" = 1 '-0".) 

• 5. Building Elevations - Illustrate front, rear and side views, showing the maximum building height 
and include proposed exterior finish material descriptions. (Minimum scale of 1/8" = 1'-0'' .) 

D 6. Specifications - Include the specifications and descriptions of any proposed exterior materials, 
finishes, equipment, etc. 

D 7. Exterior Materials and Colors - Provide exact color samples of proposed exterior material colors, 
(e.g. paint, stain). Samples of all other materials (e.g. brick, stone) shall be shown on the elevations. All 
proposed exterior materials and colors shall by identified by name, number, color, and manufacturer. 

D 8. Landscape Plan - Show the proposed landscape layout including elevations and dimensions as 
applicable, along with any proposed fencing, landscape lighting, and a legend of the plant types, sizes and 
quantities. Use arrows to indicate the proposed grading and drainage away from the proposed residence 
and adjacent Lots. It is preferred that the landscape plan be submitted with the initial submittal, but it may 
be submitted up to sixty (60) days after the initial submittal. (Minimum scale of 1/8" = 1'-0" .} 

• Please mark this box if the landscape plan will be submitted separately. 

D 9. Design Review Fee - lf not already paid, include the applicable design review fee and mark the 
box below indicating the applicable fee type pursuant to Section II.A.9. 

D Initial design review fee - $450 

D Additional design review fee - $250 

Quarry East - Design Review Application 
4874-2584-4492, V. 1.2 

42 

01.27.2021 



rstewart
Typewritten Text
       Exhibit E



rstewart
Typewritten Text
                       Approved Modifications to Code




EXHIBIT E 

EXHIBIT E 
Approved Modifications to Code 

 
Original Code Redline Effective Changes to Code 
4-1-1.H (Driveways) 
 
All lots shall front upon a public road 
unless otherwise approved by the City. 
Residences having a garage shall have a 
hard surface of concrete or asphalt 
driveway and approach with a width at 
least equal to the garage width that extends 
from the garage to the abutting public road. 
Driveways from garages not facing the 
street shall be a minimum twelve feet (12') 
wide between the garage and publicly 
maintained roads. 
 

 
 
All lots shall front upon a public road or 
approved private road, unless otherwise 
approved by the City. Residences having a 
garage shall have a hard surface of concrete 
or asphalt driveway and approach with a 
width at least equal to the garage width 
that extends from the garage to the 
abutting public road. Driveways from 
garages not facing the street shall be a 
minimum twelve feet (12') wide between 
the garage and publicly maintained roads. 

5-4-7.A.3 (Final Plat – Letter of Credit) 
 
The City may accept an irrevocable letter of 
credit, cashier's check or other guarantee 
in the amount of one hundred fifty percent 
(150%) of the estimated costs to ensure 
completion of only landscaping and 
irrigation system improvements in the 
event that inclement weather precludes the 
successful installation of landscaping and 
irrigation. 
 

 
 
The City may accept an irrevocable letter of 
credit, cashier's check or other guarantee 
in the amount of one hundred fifty percent 
(150%) of the estimated costs to ensure 
completion of only landscaping, and 
irrigation system and fencing 
improvements for reasons that may include 
in the event that inclement weather that 
precludes the successful installation of 
landscaping and irrigation.   

5-4-10-2.D.2 (Roads) 
 
All other roads in the City are considered 
local roads and shall have a half road width 
of twenty five feet (25') and a total right-of-
way width of fifty feet (50') or as 
determined by the City, provided that a ten 
foot (10') permanent utility easement is 
given along each side of the right-of-way 
line. Roads with fifty foot (50') rights-of-
way shall have a right-of-way allowance for 
a minimum of twenty foot (20') curb radii 
and pedestrian ramps at the intersections. 

 
 
All other Interior roads in the City Quarry 
East are considered local roads and shall 
have a half road width of twenty five feet 
(25') and a total right-of-way width of fifty 
feet (50') forty-seven feet (47’) or as 
determined by the City, provided that a ten 
foot (10') permanent utility easement is 
given along each side of the right-of-way 
line. Roads with fifty foot (50') rights-of-
way shall have a right-of-way allowance for 
a minimum of twenty foot (20') curb radii 
and pedestrian ramps at the intersections.   
 

  



EXHIBIT E 

5-4-10-2.E (Cul-De-Sac Roads) 
 
Cul-de-sac roads shall terminate in a 
circular turnaround with a right-of-way 
radius of at least fifty feet (50'). The City 
may approve an equally convenient form of 
turning space where extreme conditions 
justify. The maximum length shall be six 
hundred feet (600') from the entrance to 
the center of a turnaround. 

 
 
Cul-de-sac roads shall terminate in a 
circular turnaround with a right-of-way 
radius of at least fifty feet (50'). The City 
may approve an equally convenient form of 
turning space where extreme conditions 
justify. The maximum length shall be six 
hundred feet (600')   one thousand feet 
(1,000’) from the entrance to the center of 
a turnaround. 
 

5-4-10-2.H.2 (Road Intersections and 
Alignments) 
 
Where any road deflects at an angle of ten 
degrees (10°) or more, a connecting curve 
shall be required having a minimum 
centerline radius of three hundred feet 
(300') for arterial and collector roads and 
one hundred twenty five feet (125') for 
local roads. 

 
 
 
Where any road deflects at an angle of ten 
degrees (10°) or more, a connecting curve 
shall be required having a minimum 
centerline radius of three hundred feet 
(300') for arterial and collector roads and 
one hundred twenty five feet (125') forty-
five feet (45’) for local roads, subject to 
approval by Caldwell Fire. 
 

5-4-10-3.A.1 (Block Lengths and Design) 
 
Block lengths shall not exceed one 
thousand one hundred feet (1,100') as 
measured along the road centerline from 
centerline intersection to centerline 
intersection. 

 
 
Block lengths shall not exceed one 
thousand one hundred feet (1,100') one 
thousand seven hundred feet (1,700’) as 
measured along the road centerline from 
centerline intersection to centerline 
intersection. 
 

5-4-10-4.A (Lot Requirements: Lot Design) 
 
Lot Design: The lot size, width, depth, 
shape and orientation and minimum 
setback lines shall comply with the 
minimum requirements of the zoning 
regulations of the City as shown in section 
5-4-1, Table 2 of this chapter. Lot lines shall 
be at right angles from the front, side and 
back property lines, unless otherwise 
approved as part of a preliminary plat. 
 

 
 
Lot Design: The lot size, width, depth, 
shape and orientation and minimum 
setback lines shall comply with the 
minimum requirements of the zoning 
regulations of the City as shown in section 
5-4-1, Table 2 of this chapter, unless 
otherwise approved by the City in 
connection with any preliminary plat, 
variance request, or in connection with an 
approved development agreement. Lot 
lines shall be at right angles from the front, 
side and back property lines, unless 
otherwise approved as part of a 
preliminary plat. 
 



EXHIBIT E 

5-4-10-4.C (Lot Requirements: Lot Access) 
 
Lot Access: All lots shall front on paved 
public roads, and no lots shall have direct 
access to collectors, boulevards, or 
arterials, unless otherwise approved by the 
City. 

 
 
Lot Access: All lots shall front on paved 
public roads, and nNo lots shall have direct 
access to collectors, boulevards, or 
arterials, unless otherwise approved by the 
City. 
 

5-4-10-2.F (Dead End Roads) 
 
Dead End Roads: Dead end roads will not 
be approved except in locations designated 
by the City as necessary to future 
extensions in development of adjacent 
lands. In any case, a dead end road serving 
more than four (4) lots shall provide by 
easement a temporary turning circle with a 
fifty foot (50') radius or other acceptable 
design to accomplish adequate access. 
Turnaround to be improved with an all 
weather surface meeting the requirements 
of the International Fire Code. 

 
 
Dead End Roads: Dead end roads will not 
be approved except in locations designated 
by an applicant and approved by the City as 
necessary to future extensions in 
development of adjacent lands. In any case, 
a dead end road serving more than four (4) 
lots shall provide by easement a temporary 
turning circle with a fifty foot (50') radius 
or other acceptable design to accomplish 
adequate access. Turnaround to be 
improved with an all weather surface 
meeting the requirements of the 
International Fire Code. 
 

 
 



rstewart
Typewritten Text
       Exhibit F


rstewart
Typewritten Text
        Street Standards




EXHIBIT F 
 

EXHIBIT F 
Street Standards 

(Modifications from ISPWC) 
 

 
Original Code Redline Effective Changes to Code  
B. 
 
Improved Section: All improved sections classified 
as local roads shall have widths from back-of-curb 
to back-of-curb of thirty-eight (38) feet. 
Developments that submit improved sections 
different from the standard may be evaluated and 
approved on a case-by-case basis 

B. 
 
Improved Section: All improved sections classified 
as local roads shall may have widths from back-of-
curb to back-of-curb of thirty-three (33) feet 
minimum. Developments that submit improved 
sections different from the standard may be 
evaluated and approved on a case-by-case basis. 
Private streets must meet the minimum street 
section of 3” of asphalt, 6” of road mix, and 15” of pit 
run or meet the City’s adopted local roadway 
section if different than above. 
 

 
4. Private Lane 
A. A private lane may be constructed to access up to 
3 (3) single-family residences. Private lanes will be 
reviewed on a  
Case -by-case basis and specifically approved b y the 
City. Private lanes will not be allowed to access 
more than three (3) single-family residences.  

 
4. Private Lane 
A. A private lane may be constructed to access up to 
four (4) single-family residences. Private lanes will 
be reviewed on a  
Case -by-case basis and specifically approved by the 
City. Private lanes will not be allowed to access 
more than four (4) single-family residences. 
 

6. 
D. Valley Gutters: Valley gutters shall be a minimum 
of 10” thick and 4’-0” wide with #4 rebar 
longitudinal at 12” on center and #4 rebar on both 
ends and in the middle. Valley gutter base shall be a 
minimum of 6” thick of three-quarter inch (3/4”) 
crushed aggregate gravel placed as specified in 
Section 802 ISPWC.  

 
D. Valley Gutters: Valley gutters shall be a minimum 
of 10” thick and 4’-0” wide with #4 rebar 
longitudinal at 12” on center and #4 rebar on both 
ends and in the middle. Valley gutter base shall be a 
minimum of 6” thick of three-quarter inch (3/4”) 
crushed aggregate gravel placed as specified in 
Section 802 ISPWC.  If a narrower valley gutter is 
requested, the revised width will be approved if 
conveyance capacity is adequate. 
 

7. 
D.  
3. Tree Planting of any type is prohibited within ten 
feet (10’) of any seepage bed or sand filter facility, 
structure, piping system, fire hydrant or utility box.   
4. Class I, class II, and class III trees (listed in 
Appendix A) may be planted a minimum of five (5’) 
away from sidewalk. All other trees not listed shall 
be planted at least fifteen (15’) feet behind the back 
of the sidewalk. 

7. 
D.  
3. Tree Planting of any type is prohibited within ten 
feet (10’) of any seepage bed or sand filter facility, 
structure, piping system, fire hydrant or utility box.   
4. Class I, Class II, and Class III trees in Appendix B  
may be planted a minimum of three (3’) away from 
sidewalk with the installation of root barriers and 4’ 
without root barriers. All other trees not listed shall 



EXHIBIT F 
 

be planted at least fifteen (15’) feet behind the back 
of the sidewalk. 
 

10. Street lights 
A. Street lights shall be installed at intersections, 
cul-de-sacs and at a maximum of 400-foot intervals, 
or as sufficient to support safety for all users, 
including pedestrians and non-motorized users.  

10. Street lights 
A. Street lights on private streets may be shall be 
installed at intersections, cul-de-sacs and at a 
maximum of 400-foot intervals, or as sufficient to 
support safety for all users, including pedestrians 
and non-motorized users.  Alternative styles or 
aesthetics of street lights may be permitted on 
private streets with prior review and approval of 
the City Engineer, but must otherwise meet 
dimensional standards. 
 

11. Street Signs. Post shall be type E-1 as shown in 
SD-1 130 of the ISPWC with 14-gauge wall 
thickness. Street signs shall be in conformance with 
Manual on Uniform Traffic control Devices and shall 
be a nine-inch (9”) blank, six-inch (6”) all capital 
lettering, no border, with retro-reflective, high 
intensity background, with the street type 
superscript (upper right). Submit a shop drawing to 
the City for approval. Speed limit signs shall be 
installed by the devoper-20 mph for subdivision 
roads.  
 

11. Street Signs.   Post shall be type E-1 as shown in 
SD-1 130 of the ISPWC with 14-gauge wall 
thickness. Street signs shall be in conformance with 
Manual on Uniform Traffic control Devices and shall 
be a nine-inch (9”) blank, six-inch (6”) all capital 
lettering, no border, with retro-reflective, high 
intensity background, with the street type 
superscript (upper right). Submit a shop drawing to 
the City for approval. Speed limit signs shall be 
installed by the devoper-20 mph for subdivision 
roads. Alternative styles or aesthetics of street signs 
may be permitted on private streets with prior 
review and approval of the City Engineer, but must 
otherwise meet dimensional standards. 
 

15 
1.  The width of the driveway abutting the public 
street shall match the width of the garage. 

15 
1. The width of the driveway abutting the public 
street shall match the width of the garage. 
Alternative driveway configurations, including 
configurations narrower than the garage, are 
allowed. 
 

Access 
Local Roads  
1. Residences having a three (3) car garage shall 
have a driveway width at least equal to the three (3) 
car garage that extends from the garage to the 
abutting public street 
 
2. Driveway spacing near intersections. Driveways 
on local roads shall be located a minimum of 
seventy-five (75) feet in width. 
 
 

Access 
Local Roads  
1. Residences having a three (3) car garage shall 
have a driveway width at least equal to the three (3) 
car garage that extends from the garage to the 
abutting public street.  Alternative configurations, 
including configurations narrower than the garage, 
are allowed. 
 
2. Driveway spacing near intersections. Driveways 
on local roads shall be located a minimum of 
seventy-five (75) feet from centerline of the 
applicable intersection in width. 
 
________ :-----,_ 



EXHIBIT G 

EXHIBIT G 
Site Plan of Clubhouse Property 

 
 
 



Exhibit G 

Amenity Site Plan 

 

 

• iil. 

... " ""'' ""°' 

..... -· -

..... -· -

"'ll _., ..... 

... " . ... , -
.... 

..... .... , -



EXHIBIT H 
 

EXHIBIT H 
Conditions of Approval 

 
 
 

 
[TBD at City Council Public Hearing] 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5 



Ordinance No.  664 Page 1 

 

 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 664 
Quarry East Subdivision Annexation & Rezone – Parcel Nos. R34076 and R34077   

 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, ANNEXING 
TO THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY SITUATED IN THE 
UNINCORPORATED AREA OF CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, AND CONTIGUOUS TO THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO; ESTABLISHING THE 
ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF SAID REAL PROPERTY TO M-U (MIXED USE); 
DIRECTING THAT COPIES OF THIS ORDINANCE BE FILED AS PROVIDED BY LAW; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MIDDLETON, COUNTY OF CANYON, STATE OF IDAHO: 

Section 1. That the Middleton City Council, upon recommendation of the Planning 
& Zoning Commission, and following the public notice and hearing procedures set forth in 
the Local Land Use Planning Act (Idaho Code, Title 67, Chapter  65) and Middleton City Code 
Title 1, Chapter 14, approved the Annexation and Rezone of the Quarry East Subdivision 
(Parcel Nos. R34076 and R34077) at a public hearing held on August 3, 2022. 

Section 2. The following described property, commonly known as 21500 Middleton 
Road and 11436 Lincoln Road (Tax Parcel Nos. R34076 and R34077), comprising 
approximately 236.60 acres, more or less, is contiguous to the City of Middleton, Idaho; 
the annexation enables the orderly development of the City; and the applicant has 
requested that the property described in Exhibit “A” should be annexed into the City of 
Middleton and zoned M-U (Mixed Use): 

 
See legal description attached hereto as Exhibit “A” 
and made a part hereof by this reference. 

 
Section 3. That the above-described property is hereby annexed into the 

corporate limits of the City of Middleton and zoned M-U (Mixed Use). 

Section 4. That the City Engineer and the Planning & Zoning Official of the City of 
Middleton, Idaho, are hereby instructed to so designate the same above-described 
property on the official zoning map and other area maps of the City of Middleton, Idaho 
as lying within the city limits and zoned M-U (Mixed Use). 

Section 5. All ordinances, resolutions, orders or parts thereof in conflict herewith 
are hereby repealed, rescinded and annulled. 

Section 6. This ordinance shall be in full force and in effect from and after its 
passage, approval and publication, according to law. 

 



Ordinance No.  664 Page 2 

 

Section 7. The Clerk of the City of Middleton, Idaho shall, within I0 days following 
the effective date of this ordinance, duly file a certified copy of this ordinance and a map 
prepared in a draftsman-like manner plainly and clearly designating the boundaries of the 
City of Middleton, including the land herein annexed, with the following officials of the 
County of Canyon, State of Idaho, to-wit: the Recorder, Auditor, Treasurer and Assessor 
and shall file simultaneously a certified copy of this ordinance with the State Tax 
Commission of the State of Idaho, all in compliance with Idaho Code§ 63-215. 

 

PASSED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, this ___ day 
of ___________, 2022. 

 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, this ____ 
day of _________, 2022. 
 

        Attest: 
 
 
 
__________________________   ____________________________ 
Steven J. Rule      Becky Crofts 
Mayor, City of Middleton    City Clerk 

 



Ordinance No.  664 Page 3  

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Legal Description of Annexed Property 



 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6 



Resolution 470-22                    Page 1 
 

RESOLUTION No. 470-22 
 

RESOLUTION PURSUANT TO IDAHO CODE § 67-6509(C), OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, AN IDAHO MUNICIPAL CORPORATION, 
MODIFYING THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP IN THE MIDDLETON CITY 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN. 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Council of the City of Middleton, Idaho, an 

Idaho municipal corporation, upon the recommendation of the Middleton Planning & Zoning 

Commission and following the public notice and hearing processes required by Idaho Code chapter 

65, Title 67, do hereby accept and confirm the following described amendments to the 

Comprehensive Plan Map for the City of Nampa, Idaho:   

 

I. Map 1, entitled “City of Middleton Future Land Use Map,” set forth on page 66 of the 

Middleton Comprehensive Plan as the seventh of ten Comprehensive Plan Maps of the 

Comprehensive Plan of the City of Middleton, Idaho, adopted December 4, 2021, and 

amended on November 15, 2021, is hereby removed and is of no further effect. In lieu of 

the removed map, the following new “City of Middleton Future Land Use Map” is hereby 

substituted: 

 

See Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof by this reference. 

 

 In all other respects, we hereby ratify and confirm all other remaining provisions of the 

Comprehensive Plan of the City of Middleton, Idaho. The City Clerk shall keep the original 

Resolution with a copy of the newly adopted map on file in the office of the City Clerk. 

 

PASSED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, this ____ 

day of ____________________, 2022.  

 
 
 
 
 



Resolution 470-22                    Page 2 
 

APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, this ___ 

day of _________________, 2022. 

 
 
       Attest: 
 
 
____________________________   ___________________________________ 
Steven J. Rule      Becky Crofts 
Mayor, City of Middleton    City Clerk, City of Middleton 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Resolution 470-22                    Page 3 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

City of Middleton Future Land Use Map 



0
0.5

0.25
M

iles

C
ity of M

iddleton
Future Land U

se M
ap

Emmett Rd

Hartley Ln

Middleton Rd

Duff Ln

Lansing Ln

Kingsbury Rd

Purple Sage R
d

Can-Ada Rd

Freezeout Rd

Old Highway 30

Blessinger Rd

44

84

Middleton Rd

Lincoln R
d

W
illis R

d
Foothill R

d

E Saw
tooth Lake St

C
oncord St

Purple Sage R
d

44

44

Landruff Ln

W
illis R

d

E 9th St
E 9th St

W
 9th St

M
eadow

 Park St
M

eadow
 Park St

C
ornell St

H
ighw

ay 44

Cemetery Rd

Lincoln R
d

C
ornell St

Canyon Ln

Ember Rd

Crossing Ave

Hall Ave

Lee Ave

Douglas Ave

W
 Saw

tooth Lake St

KCID Rd

B
ass Ln

EXPLA
N

ATIO
N

A
rea

R
esidential - Special Area

Subject to m
andatory public-record

disclosure: "C
ost of developm

ent
and flood hazard insurance m

ay be
higher because land is now, or in
the future m

ay be, in flood areas
and/or high ground w

ater areas."

C
om

m
ercial

Industrial

M
ixed U

se

Public

R
esidential

R
evision D

ate: 2022-06-07

M
iddleton C

ity Boundary

84
G

allow
ay R

d
G

allow
ay R

d

G
oodson R

d

Existing M
iddleton

Im
pact Area Boundary

C
aldw

ell C
ity Boundary

Star C
ity Boundary

C
aldw

ell

2007 Star
A

nnexation

G
allow

ay R
d

H
arvard St

H
arvard St

Sparks St

M
ain St

D
R

AFT

11111 

I 

ID•• 

rstewart
Text Box
AREA OF IMPACT BOUNDARY PENDING 
CANYON COUNTY APPROVAL



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7 



 
 
 
 
 

1 
 

 

                           Middleton City Council 
                  Findings of Facts, Conclusions of Law & Order 
 
 

 

 

                          
 
 
 
 
In the Matter of the applications of M3 and JUB Engineers for annexation/rezone, preliminary 
plat, development agreement, and comprehensive plan map amendment with respect to the 
Quarry East Subdivision located at 21500 Middleton Road and 11436 Lincoln Road: 

 
A. Findings of Fact:   

 
1. Hearing Facts: See Staff Reports for the hearing dates of July 20, 2022 and August 3, 

2022, which Reports are attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and “B”, respectively, and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

2. Process Facts: See Staff Reports for the hearing dates of July 20, 2022 and August 3, 
2022 (Exhibits “A” and “B”). 

 
3. Application and Property Facts: See Staff Reports for the hearing dates of July 20, 

2022 and August 3, 2022, Exhibits “A” and “B”. 
 

4. Required Findings per Middleton City Code 1-14-2(E)(7), Idaho State Statue Title 67, 
Chapter 65, Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction and Middleton Supplement 
thereto, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3 & 5-4 and Idaho Code Title 67, 
Chapter 65 & Title 50, Chapters 2 and 13:  See Staff Report for the hearing date of 
April 11, 2022, Exhibit “A”. 
 

B. Conclusions of Law: 
 

1. That the City of Middleton has exercised the powers conferred upon it by the “Local 
Land Use Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (I.C. §67-
6503). 
 

2. That due consideration has been given to the comments received from the 
governmental subdivisions providing services in the City of Middleton planning 
jurisdiction, comments received from individuals of the public, and comments from City 
Planning Staff and City Engineer. 

 
3. That notice of the application and public hearing was given according to law.   

 
4. That City Council’s public hearing was conducted according to law, and the City has 

kept a record of the application and related documents.  
 

5. That codes and standards pertinent to the application are the Idaho Standards for 
Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for 
Public Works Construction, and Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4 
and Idaho Code Title 67, Chapter 65 and Idaho Code Title 50, chapters 2 and 13. 

 
 

 



             
        

2 
 

6. That public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not 
impose expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed.  

 
C. Decision & Order: 

 
Pursuant to the City Council’s authority as provided in Middleton City Code 1-5-2, and based 
upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, it is hereby ordered that: 
 

1. The application of M3 and JUB Engineers for Annexation and Rezone to Mixed Use 
(M-U) is approved, subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for 
the July 20, 2022, public hearing (Exhibit “A”). 

 
2. The application of M3 and JUB Engineers for Development Agreement is approved 

subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the July 20, 2022, 
public hearing. 

 
3.  The application of M3 and JUB Engineers for preliminary plat is approved subject to 

the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the July 20, 2022, public 
hearing. 

 
4.  The application of M3 and JUB Engineers for Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment is 

approved subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the July 
20, 2022, public hearing. 

 
 
WRITTEN ORDER APPROVED ON: _________________, 2022. 
 
 
 
            
      Steven J. Rule, Mayor 
      City of Middleton 
Attest: 
 
      
Roberta Stewart 
Planning and Zoning Official 
 
Please take notice that pursuant to MCC 1-14-2(E)(10), applicant shall have 14 days after a 
signed final decision to request reconsideration by the final-decision maker. Such request 
must identify specific deficiencies in the final decision. Failure to request reconsideration 
may invalidate a subsequent judicial appeal. Additionally, pursuant to Idaho State Statute 
67-6521, any affected person aggrieved by a final decision may, within 28 days after all 
remedies have been exhausted under local ordinances, seek judicial review as provided in 
chapter 52, Title 67.  Additionally, please take notice that Applicant has a right to request a 
regulatory taking analysis pursuant to Idaho State Statute section 67-8003.  
 

 
 

https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH80/SECT67-8003


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8 



 
 
 

1 
 

             STAFF REVIEW AND REPORT 
                         Middleton City Council 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 
  
 

Reed’s Landing Subdivision 
 

Snapshot Summary 
   

                         
                                       

 
 
 
 

A. City Council Hearing: August 3, 2022  
  

B. Project Description: Applications by Taylor Schmidt/BST DEV LLC for 
annexation/rezone, preliminary plat, and development agreement with respect to the 
Reed’s Landing Subdivision located at 880 W. Main Street (Tax Parcel No. 
R17900010).  

  
The proposed preliminary plat consists of three commercial lots, 12 single family 
residential lots, 25 townhome lots on approximately 9.7 acres of land zoned Canyon 
County Agricultural.   
 

C. Application Requests:  Applicant is requesting annexation and zone changes from 
Canyon County “Agricultural” to City of Middleton C-3 “Heavy Commercial” (2.35 
acres”), M-F “Multi-Family” (2.98 acres) and R-3 “Single Family Residential (4.09 
acres).  Applicant has also submitted applications for preliminary plat, development 
agreement, and special use permit to construct townhomes in the M-F zone.  A 
floodplain application is proceeding administratively with these applications. 

DESCRIPTION DETAILS 

Acreage Approx. 9.70 acres (In-fill project) 

Current Zoning Canyon County Agricultural 

Proposed Zoning C-3, M-F and R-3 

Current Land Use Commercial & Mixed Use 

Proposed Land Use Remain the same 

Lots 3 commercial lots; 25 Town home 

lots, 12 Single-Family Residential 

lots, and 6 common lots 

Open Space 13% (Minimum required is 5%) 

Amenities Large grassy common lots with 

·1 

pathways, playground, benches and 

shade structure with picnic tables 



             
        

2 
 

 
D. Current Zoning & Property Condition:  The property is currently Canyon County 

property zoned Agricultural, and the project is an infill project surrounded entirely by 
property within City limits.  The northern half of the parcel is surrounded entirely by R-4 
zoning (Medium Density Residential or 4 homes per gross acre.)  The southern half of 
the property spanning along Hwy 44 is surrounded by C-1 and C-2 zones, which are 
neighborhood commercial and light commercial zones.   

                         

E. City Services:  City water and sewer are accessible to the project. The utilities are 
located in Shire St., Huckleberry St., and Lionheart St., immediately adjacent to the 
Project parcel.  

 

Sewer -

Water -



             
        

3 
 

Sewer and water capacity are already included in the current capacity analyses for this 
project. Capacity will be formally reserved when construction drawings are approved 
by City Engineer.        
 

F. Traffic, Access & Streets:   
 
Access to the residential part of the subdivision will be through Lionheart Street and 
Huckleberry Street.  Access to the commercial lots will be off of Hwy 44.   
 

                   
 
 
ITD has had the Reed’s Landing Subdivision under review for a number of months. 
Once ITD submits its comments, Developer will be required to improve, at its own 
cost, all Hwy 44 frontage improvements required by ITD and the City of Middleton.    
 
Developer has submitted a traffic study for the project. It revealed that the project will 
have “minimal impact” upon the roadways and intersections.  Frontage improvements 
and striping should “fully mitigate” the impact of the project, according to the study.   
 
Middleton requires Development “to pay for itself” so the taxpayers will not be 
burdened with the cost of developing roads and infrastructure.  In light of this, 
Developer/builders will pay $186,850 in Mid-Star Transportation Impact Fees by the 
time all 37 residential building permits are issued.  Developer/builder will also pay 
anywhere between $25,000 and $100,000 for the commercial uses under the Mid-Star 
program, depending on the type of commercial uses that ultimately occupy the site.  
Finally, Developer will be required to pay pro-rata traffic fees pursuant to MCC 5-4-3 in 
the amount of $77,567, for a total contribution to road improvements in an amount 
exceeding $275,000.00. 
 



             
        

4 
 

G. Pathway, Sidewalks & Open Space:  Developer has provided over 13% open space, 
which exceeds the 5% required by code.  Open space is calculated against only the 
residential portion of the plat, which in this case is 7.28 acres. Even if open space is 
calculated using the entire 9.7 acres, the open space still exceeds 9% in compliance 
with City code. 
 
Although the Code does not require the developer to provide amenities for the project, 
Developer has provided three large common lots for social gathering. One of the large 
common lots contains a playground, shade ramada with multiple picnic tables and 
benches. 
 
 
          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

!iii( 

-~~ [ 1---,--'· ·_ ,, ~ 7 . 

=-· ", J 

! , 

I I " 

' ' I 

• 
• .. 

. .. 

I 
"'- ~••" 'I l'!.,,H 

,, ,. 

@) 0 ,, .. ..., 
" SF 

0 0 0 © 
l2JI l2JI ... , ,,.,. 
" " $1' SF 

/ 
/ 

/ 
~ 



             
        

5 
 

H. Annexation and Rezone:  Applicant is requesting that the nine acre in-fill project be 
annexed into the City of Middleton with a zone change to C-3 “Heavy Commercial” 
(approx. 2.5 acres), M-F “Multi-Family” for the townhomes (approx. 3 acres) and R-3 
“Single Family Residential” (approx. 4 acres).   
 

 
 

There are three findings that must be made before Annexation can be approved: (1) 
the property must be contiguous to City limits (2) City services such as sewer and 
water can be extended to serve the site, and (3) the annexation is deemed to be an 
orderly development of the City allowing an efficient and economical extension of City 
services. (Idaho Code 50-222.) 
 
An application for rezone requires two findings before the Commission can 
recommend approval: (1) the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s delivery of 
services and (2) the rezone request is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan. 
(Idaho Code 67-6511) 
 
FINDINGS: 
 
Planning Staff finds that Applicant’s project meets all three findings for annexation.  
First, the property is contiguous and surrounded on all four sides by City property. 
Second, sewer and water are available and can be extended to the site as already 
noted above.  Third, the annexation is an “orderly and economical extension” of City 
services because the project is an in-fill project; therefore, the proposed development 
is very near existing resources and infrastructure.   
 
As to the rezone application, Planning Staff finds that the rezone will not adversely 
affect the City’s ability to deliver sewer and water as already noted above.  
Additionally, Developer will bear the cost of impacting city services by paying impact 
fees for transportation, parks, fire, and police, which were designed to proportionately 
cover the impacts imposed by developers.  
 
Finally, as will be shown below in the section regarding the Comprehensive Plan, the 
rezone is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan  
 

••,:=..:-"". _______ __ / --_·-_·_ --CC· r,: 

' . +-

• , l 

J· 



             
        

6 
 

I. Preliminary Plat Application:  
 
The preliminary plat shows two phases of development. The Multi-Family and R-3 
zones comprise Phase 1. The three commercial lots comprise Phase 2.  
 

  
      [A full copy of the proposed preliminary plat is attached as Exhibit “A”.] 
 
The plat complies with all Middleton codes and standards with one exception: (1) 
Developer is seeking a waiver to allow “perimeter” fencing to be set back from the 
perimeter on lots 1 – 4, Block 2 to allow unobstructed access to the ditch easement in 
that location.  (MCC 5-4-11-2).   
 
Middleton governing bodies are allowed to grant exceptions or waivers to the code 
during the preliminary plat process (MCC 1-15-2).  The proposed fencing waiver is a 
reasonable request because the ditch easement needs to be accommodated. 
However, a condition of the waiver should be a requirement that the Homeowners’ 
Association will maintain the swath of land between the rear fences and the canal/ditch 
to ensure it does not become an unsightly weed patch. 
 
Of Note, City Engineer, Amy Woodruff, has issued a letter indicating compliance with 
City Code, and she recommended approval of the preliminary plat. 
                               
Findings: 
 
Planning Staff finds that the preliminary plat complies with dimensional standards and 
requirements of the Middleton City Code, ISPWC, Supplement to ISPWC, and Idaho 
State Code except for the fence waiver noted above.   
 

J. Development Agreement:  Applications for annexation/rezone are generally 
accompanied by an application for Development Agreement (“DA”). Attached as 
Exhibit “B” is the proposed Development Agreement.  The Developer has used the 
City’s DA form, and Article III regarding conditions of development has been altered to 
add the following conditions: 

 
 

~=- ....... 
""""" ~ 

I : 

:I 
._.,--~--""! Iii 

~, • 



             
        

7 
 

 
 

 
1. Developer will develop the community and townhomes generally consistent with 

the concept site plan and elevation renderings attached to the DA.   
2. The differing styles of townhomes shall undergo design review pursuant to 

MCC 1-15-8. 
3. Developer shall construct the following amenities: park with benches and 

playground, and shade structure with at least 2 picnic tables. 
4. Developer shall cause the entire .24 acre parcel fronting Hwy 44 to be 

dedicated to ITD or the City of Middleton for right of way when Phase two is 
constructed. 

5. The Reed’s home on the commercial lots shall be deemed a non-conforming 
use. They may remain on site and use the commercial parcels for residential 
purposes, but they may not apply to the City for any improvement permits that 
would increase the non-conforming residential use more than is allowed in MCC 
5-1-3. Once the Reeds vacate the parcels, the parcels may be used, rented, or 
sold only for commercial purposes in compliance with uses set forth in the C-3 
zone. 

6. Developers will have two years to obtain final plat approval for Phase 1. 
Developer may seek two 1-year extensions, thereby allowing a total of 4 years 
to bring Phase 1 to final plat approval.  After Phase 1 final plat, Developer will 
have two years to obtain final plat for Phase 2. These time periods may also be 
extended with two 1-year extensions. Failure to meet these time-lines may 
result in the City terminating the DA and nullifying the preliminary plat.   

7. If ITD denies access on to Hwy 44 for the commercial lots, Developer will create 
an access connection between the residential parcels and the commercial 
parcels via Horsetail Court. 

8. Developer to grant a cross-access easement for vehicle and pedestrian traffic 
across the commercial lots to ensure that no lots are landlocked if ITD does not 
permit access off Hwy 44. 

9. Developer shall construct a temporary 5’ wide asphalt pathway across the 
commercial lot to connect the residential lots to Hwy 44.  Public access shall be 
granted via a temporary public access easement. Once the commercial lots are 
developed, the pathway and easement may be removed by Developer. 
 
//  // 
//  // 
 



             
        

8 
 

K. Comprehensive Plan & Land Use Map:  Applicant’s project complies with the 
Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map because the proposed zones correlate 
with the “Commercial” and “Mixed-Use” uses shown on the Comprehensive Plan Map. 
 

                                                  
 

Additionally, Applicant’s project complies with the Goals, Objectives, and Strategies of 
the 2019 Middleton Comprehensive Plan as follows: 
 

a. Goals 3 and 23: The project provides safe vehicle and pedestrian facilities in 
light of the street improvements, pathways and sidewalks shown on the 
preliminary plat.  
 

b. Goal 4: The project will establish a good quality of life with development that 
pays through impact fees and property taxes for the public services it receives 
when infrastructure is installed. Quality lots for residential use also increase the 
quality of life and general welfare of the City as a whole. Additionally, the project 
provides commercial uses near a “major” road.  
 

c. Goal 6: Water, sewer, and road systems have been expanded in an orderly 
manner consistent with population growth.  
 

d. Goal 7: the project promotes commercial development and employment 
opportunities. 

 
e. Goal 8: the project establishes a new commercial area without detracting from 

existing businesses. 
 

f. Goal 10: Project provides playgrounds, pathways and outdoor recreational 
activities. 
 

g. Goal 11: The housing type matches the residents’ lifestyle in the area the 
project is located.  
 

Commercial 

Mixed-Use 



             
        

9 
 

L. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  Letter received from 
Thomas Butler on July 20, 2022. (Copy of letter is attached as Exhibit “C”). 
 

M. Comments from Agencies:  City received the following comment letters from 
agencies: Greater Middleton Parks & Recreation letter delivered on 4/22/2022; 
Canyon Hill Ditch Co., letter dated 5/9/2022; and Middleton School District #134 letters 
dated 5/6/2022 and 7/26/2022. (Copies of Agency comments are attached as Exhibit 
“D”.) 

 
N. Comments from City Engineer and Planning Staff:   Copies of Engineering and 

planning comments are attached as Exhibit “E”. 
 
 

O. Applicant Information:  Application was accepted on November 16, 2021. Applicant 
is Taylor Schmidt/BST DEV LLC 1016 W. Sanetta St., Nampa, ID 83651. 
 
 

P. Notices & Neighborhood Meeting:    Dates: 
      

Newspaper Notification     7/17/2022 
 

 Radius notice to adjacent landowners   7/14/2022 
  
 Circulation to Agencies     7/12/2022  
 
 Sign Posting property     7/15/2022   

 
Neighborhood Meeting     9/8/2021 & 10/18/2022 
 

Q. Applicable Codes and Standards: 
  
Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho 
Standards for Public Works Construction, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-16, 5-1, 5-2, 5-
3, and 5-4, and Idaho Code Title 67, Chapter 65 & Title 50, Chapters 2 and 13. 
 

R. Planning & Zoning Recommendation:  The Planning & Zoning Commission 
considered the project applications at a public hearing on May 9, 2022.  The Commission 
is responsible for issuing a final order on the application for a special use permit (SUP) 
to construct townhomes.  They approved the SUP on the condition that the developer 
meets with the staff of Middleton School District #134 to discuss possible mitigation to 
school impacts and on the condition that no 2nd floor windows would be located in homes 



             
        

10 
 

built on the eastern boundary of Block 3.   
 
The townhome concept considered in the application is shown below.    
 

 
 
The Commission further recommended approval of Developer’s applications for 
Annexation/Rezone, Development Agreement, and Preliminary Plat subject to the 
conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report. (A copy of the Commission’s 
Recommendation and Order is attached as Exhibit “F”.) 
 

S. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval: 
 
Per State law and the Middleton City Code, any final order or recommendation must 
be based upon findings of facts and conclusions of law.   
 
As to Findings of Facts, Planning Staff has set forth findings of facts above in 
parentheses.  If the Council agrees with those findings of facts and further agrees with 
the general facts presented at the public hearing, then the Council may simply make a 
motion to accept the findings of facts presented by planning staff.  
 
As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that the City Council has the authority 
to hear these applications and to approve or deny the applications, with or without 
conditions of approval.  Additionally, Planning Staff notes that all public notice 
requirements were met. Planning Staff further set forth the portions of the Idaho State 
Code and Middleton City Code to be considered in making an order on the 
applications.   If the August 3rd public hearing is conducted in compliance with Idaho 
State Statute and the Middleton City Code, then the Council may accept these 
conclusions of law by passing a motion to accept the conclusions of law set forth in the 
staff report and at the public hearing.    
 



             
        

11 
 

Annexation/rezone, Preliminary Plat, and Development Agreement Applications: 
If the Council is inclined to approve the applications for annexation/rezone, preliminary 
plat, and development agreement based upon the above findings of facts and 
conclusions of law, then Planning Staff recommends that any approval be subject to 
the following conditions:  
 

1. City municipal domestic water, fire flow and sanitary sewer services are to be 
extended to serve the subdivision. 

2. Developer to comply with all terms of the Development Agreement approved by 
City Council for the project. 

3. All landscaping and amenities to be installed in compliance with submitted 
landscape plan dated 4/11/2022. 

4. Developer to construct, at its own cost, all frontage improvements to Hwy 44 if 
required by ITD and the City of Middleton. 

5. Developer to obtain a proper approach permit from ITD for the commercial 
parcel access prior to final plat approval for Phase 2. If ITD will not issue an 
approach permit, Developer to create a street or drive aisle off of Horsetail 
Court to provide access to the Commercial lots. 

6. Developer shall create a plan for operation, maintenance and repair of 
stormwater facilities (O&M Plan) contained on the project site.  The O&M Plan 
shall be recorded with the CC&Rs.  Developer and/or HOA must maintain and 
operate the subdivision stormwater facilities in compliance with the O&M Plan. 

7. Owner/Developer to pay the City required pro-rata traffic fee in the amount of 
$77,567 prior to Phase 1 final plat approval (MCC 5-4-3). 

8. All City Engineer review comments are to be completed and approved. 
9. All Planner comments are to be completed and approved. 
10. All requirements of the Middleton Rural Fire District are to be completed and 

approved. 
11. Developer/Owner to comply with all FEMA, Middleton City Code Floodplain 

Rules, and Floodplain Administrator requirements. 
12. The Homeowners’ Association’s CC&Rs shall mandate that the HOA is 

responsible for maintaining the ditch easement strip of ground sandwiched 
between the canal and the rear fence line of Lots 1-4, Block 2.   

13.  Sewer and water capacity to be reserved at the time City approves the 
construction drawings for the project. 
 

Finally, if the Council denies the special use permit application and/or recommends 
denial of the remaining applications, then pursuant to Middleton City Code 1-14(E)(8), 
the Council should state on the record what Applicant can do, if anything, to gain 
approval of the application(s). 

Prepared by Roberta Stewart         Dated: 7/29/2022 
Planning & Zoning Director 



rstewart
Typewritten Text
       APPENDIX


       EXHIBIT "A"



rstewart
Typewritten Text
      Preliminary Plat






t-- z 
oO w­-, ... 
0 c( 
0::0 
CLO 

OHWI 'UHOO~NOANV:> g fit j § 
'N0.1.:11001111 :10 A.11:> fl ~I'"' ,. -~ 

.l."1dAMlfNU1113~d "!"' ~,! 
ill;·; - "' ' ;la~~ 8 

NoIsIA1aans ~NlaN-Y7 s.a33~ i ! I ir! 

i 

~ ... o i:; :, Q .. ~ . i :5 o 2 a 
IE 

ti 
i!i 

~ 

_ .. ,_ .. taK_...,._._ _ _ 
.. ,-a--.i'"911-........n.• •~ olt-~~ ~-:':: 



! 
' i 
f 
t 

' 

t
l i . 

i 
I 

tt: 

PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR 

REED'S LANDING SUBDIVISION 
• PARal, OF \J,NO SIIUAmJ It TIit S0UlltEAST 1/4 OF 1Ht SOUtHEAS1 1/4 OF S£CllOH 1, 10'M<SIIP 4 NOR1H. 

RANCE 3 WESl. BOIS£ - CITY Of' IIC!llDON CNllOf< COUNlY, DA>IO. 
-2~ 

.!i.Q!.ll;. 

1. Q.lN10Ult MO SPOT nnM"IOM PATli II ~ 10 UW 'a,, DAU., 

2. "-1. !'nS:C-,, IIIIC;POII~ If 1HIS ~ ARL PlA.t: S1l'llffl MCI !!NAlL 
• CON$~ IN ACCORDilNtl •*"-'"an c, MeOU.• s~ roa .._.....,.. 

). ILDCIC1,LO'l':li: M.00Ci> l 41TI.Mll1)A1£00MWNUlB10ltU5tDF-11R 
~--~NT .-ND M,CCT l l) A ~T !,f'JIIJ'T" Ml) ~""' E:~m IN.OCK 2 l..tff$'; 111.0tX~l.01'1 NICI L0121 HI[ COlliltlll.O'l'S. 
~ :J ~TS 10-12 ME ocu«Rcu.t.. 

~. SlDf!WfM'tUI Rl.t4-0ff f.&DA'IQ ~ M 5nE SM"l.l. 1411'11 A Q.I~ C<:tlmot. 
i.r.titiel(t I'~ TT) Btlll. COMVU> "l'O ~ !'11'U,IX. l'A.Clftltl. 

~ PVIU. U1'll1U 9WJ.. !Na..WC IMff~ 11:Vin, D.(C'fllllt: ~OIIOI. lrUIT\llN. f;AS. 
~ .. UlU lDZIMltlN,, ~ ,-;II. ,... $HM.l. I( ,mu lffl'III.UD at 
aMLllt ~ If "1tOW:ltD rm nmc MSTJUa,:-. 

6. Ull,IUllC ,c'IMrxs -0 l-.>f.5'Qlll&.I. tfAW!,M9)5 SlC,IU. It N ~Q: WIN 
114£(f'TTOT ~ r.cMMtl QOIIC'IM.Ull!I IN !"1'C'T At M JIC er ~,a..,.~cr 

7. t,1;111EVIIC Ne '1Rl'. Pfl'O'lt(:"IIOfll .-u IHlll II( fi'IIIQ'l,'lpa, IY H CITY or 

'"""""" e. MI.ATIOfDIT'OG~M~$1tilJ. ~PffD ~1tfE'I'~ ~""''rt 'lllf1H AL"- ~MS LOCA1m Klam MIN P\aJC Ne.Ht..U-w.T. 
AtJ. lt!IOA'IOM Ate ~ t"OU"IIU SMJIU. et LWi'ITW GUfflCC ts Mt 
~-CF- WAY, 

._ :Vcu.ri~~.::slKF\A.J-c:~.::'!~lWND 
'° • owe W1. PRO'Wlflt ,_QA,..,. • n m rJ.eH ~(IT ""~cw 11. 

~li!IDP 1111"'-l'K»I ~-- 'rO 5C O'lltC MO Y_,.AJPG IY M RU0"t 
UIONCI IUK'I\IPOM MtwC~ AISOCMTION -., CIONPIJl,H(:I 1111H 'IH~ 1'.1-'HD 

WW:~"t.~IIU.~~"'1-::-~0l~CT~ aa,:e, 'ffl .... ~ Dr 

,,_ MCJllmlOINflllmCNSOF9l.!)O(l i Nea M.: lffJMIN laa: ll.»-J1ME: 
S0UIMDtH ll'IJl1~'7111.0CU1 ,1,e Jjjj0 Au. r, llOCIC J• WIIMlN f\.OCC, 
fCWE ~ 01 -C IU)0Do IGUIWU I.AW:: tMi' NQ. l-la27CG.ISY.. CCM,UIT't 
ltMt\ ~ ~ C ..,_ 1ltAII H" O'ftt'N" a.tltt f6 ....,..,_. _.-, IS .el' 
.. ~ ~ ,uao MoS.ZMID 1111(.,\. 

11. ALL U,5,,_,.~ IIO.U IW"U IE ~D fU .,_ fQIJLA~S. AU !1:1'1IC 
$"T$'ttNS !1W.L 9[ tcN'l!ltl.'f 00'0 NO 1Ht /tiff.A llt«WACffl) Pllt 
~,i'ICH,111£PORT, 

1l. IJlll.JTU IHOW ARI: MD 0tf K IU'I' A""'-"81...E INFO!bl.UM)ll. nu.I. DE:iD1 
MAY VI«'( !IUGHfl.T ~ .-CCUOl(X)ll1E ru:TOII$ ~t;JT 11:NOll'IN n M fMt "ft.llS 
Pllfl.llllMJlt"f "'-AT WAS Pftt,"llfP. nw, MSl(;W SH.-.U. ~ HJ. Clft U 
LII.WLCTOH ~OLRMOlll. 

14. SMIT.Ml K-0 ~ 111..1. IC ll"IIO!i1IOlb tY QJ'f OJ IIDDl.l'M-

~ ~ ~ •• CJll'Mff'f ~ • 1ll(Wll'«I> ""' 'Mt: ntt arr APF11CM:C wt 
~ ORAMNCS .V.lli Cl ,1"Ttll CWltfft t.OOCll1¢ 

14, ~ LOTS HA"E. ,. ~l CMDiutt FW! !'UIIJC \I~ Ate l"Q;IDna,ul 
~ D,or - 10' IOMralff 1Ct ~ ,...._ IIIOff Of -'t. N!i 
l MDiDfT SKlt.l N0'1' NlQ.WI'. W ~ Of N.Aa-HR"M!UJ 
~YS Ne -.ucu• '1V CKII un. 

1', ,,.,. ~ ~ ,\)6D ~ .-a. \#TS ,t,IIIC; "'10'( t:DHMll.'IQI 
d ltA'IOI;, I. pgwNU>ff CAil~ FOIi' PWUC ft1m,. M.uilAl,;ii. ,_,,., 
ftlCAllOW O'Q ll1IE 1-l'UT ~ 10 Nl'f INDOft WA: l.!FT Lilt (._.,. 
[lfCfl'TION 'II() 'N)at-ttw,lt L0'TS)- IIMD O'O to-Fffl M>JN%>,lf TO ANY CM LOT 
UNli' OIi ~ ~CMRY. 

1& MAI.AOk O.Umt TO • ....,Al.LU IY FM'l£1' Ali aHOltt Gril ~ll'IINNff PUit 

1t. N'T'CttANf ~llQt,I MO COfAQ,IIA'1Dil 10 U[ ~ Mb APNO\C..., 
ICIDl..f1l)lf IUtM.. ,__ MIOIIC'I~ DBlllltt. 

z 1l1tNS Ko.a:u, rm l:£lUIIOCWI W,;J fDICIC. \.OCAV CN ~ 
~ ~ (itC't b-.,_H-2) IN 01901 10 JICCOU~I[ llfTI;ll. 

U, NI W 1$' inll.'llDt l~ UX:"lD ON JCllffll Sil O' a.QQC t. 

U llr~ ~~Dr~ ~CQNH0.11~ 1W..~~5~ ~D ~MN 
CIJ,W,/fll'TOi. 

ZA, ~f ~ lie,« fl 'WIY .IOIOSS l<n .. &,OOI: J tt lN! l.'411T no 
t0 tllf. ~I.Cff - ACaSS NON lO N0Cm> 1MIOUUI 1K aMICN 
u,r ... 
ll[.Df[WIUQ..Ji/1£ ... 

,,. ~Alld.'l. IO fMntoCl011 S 0'9QI Bf.., ... RED MO IS lD II[ ~u 'TO 
l'O~ lW~!PORfiliT'IDN DIP'AAftlfNT 01t Oh' U MIPl,ll,.l'IQN Al ANAL Pl.AT. 

a, ~s,,r~ ~~ ~~ l-,BE J ~PI «>/flt rt.I, PU.cED ACM1R 
l1, lltS'l'NG $l'RUC"UlfS R.L K IIOIO'o(I) AS A <io.c:n!Clfil 0, fflilAL P(.Al IN.ISS 

AU CIX!l ~ NC:UJOllrilG K"IIM:ri:5 ,_ Dt~ JiAE ~ -

a~~~ .... ~~ r:-s,,.__~~~ ==~ 
=-:~r~~~~~HDk~~~= :a~ 
Ill:~ 'IIDI lH£ OCQJrAA '110N' ti'" IXM:IUH'II,, a,NOPll(>,IS_, ,t,,IC) ~OHi 
~~,¥:Nr~.lf,IAU 1K U5iD m'i N~ MD OPOl:°'1°' r;f! 

2t. ~~~~~T'~ ~ RI~ 'IO It ~ 

,0. Plll1Nfil2"' --...TIQll'ot"Di.M• PftltAi1 ...: Of~ 

C'llr11t 'hl_.. 

~ --~ ~ 
ON..M MM't-'"'"' 

IU4';14"r, .... _.----'-~ 

w vw:;,gv 1i14411,r,i~ 

r# 002.30 $4474"1'"! 

i:1111,IIID' acciP GM.PAI-~•---___ ..__ 
Dir I DM.M I IM4'1Y1rf'II -,,-------- ~.oa• I 

Ql.l..Sra N4't'll'Jl"1 .....-

, J 1111.s: I ...,,1 .... 

C11 .... ~ -

ao IOl.14' nM/ lftUliS s-t,"6"lt"lf' 

~ U.oo" -.fl' WJ'lt'«rt 

~ 1!!.00" Me.1T MJ'31'9$"1 

rfr=_.,.,. - 2~·-·r1 •--~ 1BS ~ ," . ,. h .. _ .. --13'.S f IU'~ 

l>~~~ LANC 12•~ 20· 20·--
5• ,a· ,e· 

CONCIOETC s,orn~,K i---::-. lAN~ •VEL tAN,..;; 
~TH fl8E~ M[~H 12·r ,1?.11 - :r,i: 7,2'~ 

CONC~Err ,Sll}(W,oll,'( .... ,-H ~ ¢-y<E-C~ .. er PLANT :?: ... ~t.ic,.N 
fl6E~ M[St-', ~- lHICJO;NfSS \ llCM 810.4 .1 . .\_1 

ll[IJ 70t:.4 .l .[. - 6· Of C~D A.~l[ BA.St ~ 1. 

, - Ol" C1'USHEO "-OORE~k 
SASE Tl'Pt 1, fll!M eC>2.4,1,1,,.1 

CD 50' ROAD SECTION 
><:All, .,.. 

, rT~ 8-l~.4.1,A.. 1 

'-15• C: \.INC~S•ED ACCitHOArC 9J88 ... SE, 
1,t:w t101.,,1.A..~ 

STMIOdt 3" ~CLLE·) euD:u & 
GU' 11::R. ITEM 7(.hl~.I.A,1 

115· 
C:0-Cll(Jt: Sl0£f!Al)( I ,-1=:-,.,vn. LONE 

~TH FIEICR u[SH I ,,m;_ -,-,ad 
CQt.•C::RE1E SiOEWALk wiiH ..I 

TIBER ~t£SH, !i'" THICKNESS 
l'Ttl.4 7C&.4,1.E.1 

-----

•- O? CRl 1$HCO AGGREGAl( ..., 
3ASE l\'P[ t. n:::u. &a?.'l 1.A. i 

0 37' ROAD SECTION 
IC.AU:"" 

'\""- :!,. OF' PLJl.~T Ml:< PAV[ ll.4E:NT 
\ 1l£l,I 81 0.4, · ,A.1 

~ 15• 0,: C=IU'SH~:r) AGGA'ECAlE El>.$[ lYPt 1, 
'\. ll'E'V ~ . 4.1.A.1 

1!) ti'' U<4CRUS1-IED ACQR(CATt Sl.BSASE. 
l(M 801."-1.A.I 

$ 11>,NOARO l. ROLLED CURI! 6:; 
mJli F'Jil ITF:~ 71"16 , •. ' . . A 1 

iiii 
,: 

L-2 

LINE f.un..£ 

L-3 INO"'l!1 

1i"iiM 

= ..,;;;; 

OE 
U II I~ I! 

z 1.: I 1111 l~U l:11 "' n 11, ~A• 

'Z' 'W 
i ~ 
<" o" 

~1~~~~,,=-
~~:,r::,~~;: .. ~- Mt 

z 
0 
U) 

> 
i5 
m 
:::::, 
Cl) 

C) 
z 
i5 z 
~ 
ti) 

b 
w 
w 
tt: 

~~-s:.~~ 

~ 
"-

i 
i 
~ 
Ill: 
D.. 

Cl 

~ zO 
~~ ... z 
g5 
:i (.) 
..,z 
0~ 
~:z 
u~ 

PR0.£CT NO,: PR:2,~C3SJ. 

DtS<CNED SY: ~NZ -- - ---
DR.AWN BY: T. GA'Etl/Z 
'[iiG CC BY- ,--- J.--;;Jio' 

~oc ev, ~= 

PREUMlNAllY PLAT 

tJOT~S & llFT41Ui. ~u 
j•J C1.01 
~1:i SHEET > or 2 



rstewart
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT "B"




rstewart
Typewritten Text
Proposed Development Agreement






 

Development Agreement – Reed’s Landing Subdivision – Page 1 Rev. 7-21-22   
4878-2520-1450, v. 2 

Once recorded, send to 
Middleton City Hall 
1103 W. Main Street 
Middleton, ID 83644 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 This Development Agreement (Agreement) is entered into by and between 
the CITY OF MIDDLETON, a municipal corporation in the State of Idaho (City); and 
BST DEV, LLC, an Idaho Limited Liability Company and GORDON and PENNY REED, 
husband and wife, individually and collectively referred to as Developer (Developer). 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, Developer owns approximately 9.68 acres of real property located 
at 880 W. Main Street, Middleton, Canyon County, Idaho, which parcel is commonly 
referred to in the Canyon County Assessor’s records as Parcel No. 17900010 and 
legally described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein (Property); 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, Developer has applied to the City to annex the Property and rezone 
the property from Canyon County “Agricultural” to City of Middleton C-3 (2.54 acres 
“Heavy Commercial”), M-F (3.04 acres “Multi-Family”) and R-3 (4.09 acres Single 
Family Residential; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Developer intends to improve the Property according to the 
Middleton City Code and the City’s public works standards at the time(s) the Property 
is improved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City, pursuant to Idaho Code §67-6511A, has the authority to 
annex and rezone the property and to enter into a development agreement for the 
purpose of allowing, by agreement, a specific development agreement to proceed in 
a specific area and for a specific purpose or use which is appropriate in the area, but 
for which all allowed uses for the requested zoning may not be appropriate pursuant 
to the Idaho Code and Middleton City Code. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and in consideration of the recitals 
above, which are incorporated below, and the mutual covenants, representations, and 
performances herein bargained for, relied on, and expected, the parties agree as 
follows: 



 

Development Agreement – Reed’s Landing Subdivision – Page 2 Rev. 7-21-22   
4878-2520-1450, v. 2 

ARTICLE I 
LEGAL AUTHORITY 

 
 This Agreement is made pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of 
Idaho Code §67-6511A and Middleton City Code, Title 5, Chapter 2. 
 

ARTICLE II 
ANNEXATION AND ZONING ORDINANCE  

 
 The City will adopt an ordinance to annex and rezone the Property from 
Canyon County “Agricultural” to City of Middleton C-3 (approximately 2.54 acres 
“Heavy Commercial”), M-F (approximately 3.04 acres “Multi-Family”) and R-3 
(approximately 4.09 acres Single Family Residential). The Ordinance will become 
effective after it is approved, signed, published and recorded according to law, all of 
which actions the City will perform at the city’s expense and with the Developer’s 
cooperation. 
 

ARTICLE III 
CONDITIONS OF DEVELOPMENT 

 
 3.1 Zoning.  The Property shall be zoned C-3 (approximately 2.54 acres 
“Heavy Commercial”), M-F (approximately 3.04 acres “Multi-Family”) and R-3 
(approximately 4.09 acres Single Family Residential). 
 
 3.2 Concept Plan.   The Concept Plan attached hereto as Exhibit B is 
incorporated herein by this reference. Developer shall be bound to abide by said 
Concept Plan and shall develop the Property substantially consistent with the 
Concept Plan.    
 
 3.3 Setbacks, Dimensions & Uses. Setbacks, dimensions and uses shall be 
those setbacks, dimensions and uses in effect at the time a building permit is issued 
by the City. 
 
 3.4 Townhome Design & Design Review. The Townhomes constructed 
shall generally match the style and quality of the townhome concept renderings 
attached hereto as Exhibit C and incorporated herein by this reference.  Each style of 
townhome structure shall undergo Design Review by the Middleton Design Review 
Committee pursuant to the procedures set forth in MCC 1-15-8 prior to building 
permit application submittal.    
 
 3.5 Floodplain/LOMR Requirements. Developer shall comply with all 
FEMA requirements in connection with completion of a letter of map revision (LOMR) 
to remove all buildable lots out of the flood plain, and Developer shall comply fully 
with MCC 4-3-7-5(D), which requires elevation certificates for individual lots after the 
LOMR is approved. 
 



 

Development Agreement – Reed’s Landing Subdivision – Page 3 Rev. 7-21-22   
4878-2520-1450, v. 2 

 3.6 Amenities. Developer shall provide a park with playground, at least 
three benches, and a shade structure with two or more picnic tables as community 
amenities. 
 
 3.7 Right of Way Dedication. Developer shall cause the title to the .24 
acre parcel owned by Joan B. Reed located at 0 Hwy 44 and commonly referred to in 
the Canyon County Assessor’s records as Parcel No. 17900011 to be transferred to 
the Idaho Transportation Department (“ITD”), or otherwise dedicated to ITD,  as right 
of way prior to, or at, approval of final plat for the phase including such property.  If 
ITD does not accept the dedication of said parcel, Developer shall dedicate said 
property to City prior to, or at, approval of final plat for the phase including such 
property. 
 
 3.8 Non-Conforming Use.  A residential home and residential outbuildings 
owned by Gordon and Penny Reed are currently located on the portion of the 
Property to be rezoned to C-3 (“Heavy Commercial”).  Once rezoned, the residential 
use will be a non-conforming use on the commercial lots.  Therefore,  
 

3.8.1  Developer agrees that the residential non-conforming use 
cannot be changed or intensified beyond what is permitted by Middleton City 
Code Section 5-1-3. 

 
3.8.2 Once the Reed family vacates the premises, the commercial 

parcels may not be rented or sold to another party for any residential purpose. 
Instead, said parcels may be rented or sold for only commercial uses set forth 
in the City’s Land Use Table for the C-3 Zone (MCC 5-4-1, Table 1).   

 
 3.9 Final Plat Requirements Notwithstanding the provisions in Article IV, 
Developer shall obtain City Engineer’s signature on the Phase 1 final plat within two 
(2) years of the preliminary plat approval. Said signature shall be processed 
expeditiously by City and in no event later than six (6) months from the time the 
Developer submits a “Completion Packet” with all items required by the Supplement 
to the ISPWC and final plat application.  The six (6) month period will not be triggered 
if any information required by the Supplement is missing.    
 

 3.9.1  Developer may obtain a one (1) year extension to obtain the City 
Engineer’s signature on the Phase 1 final plat by submitting an administrative 
written request for extension to the Middleton Planning & Zoning Official 
before the expiration of the initial two-year period, which approval shall not 
be withheld if Developer submits its request in a timely manner.  Thereafter, 
City Council may approve an additional time extension of one (1) year if 
developer submits a written request for extension prior to the expiration of 
the previous extension period.  Neither approval shall require a public hearing 
before City Council.  
 



 

Development Agreement – Reed’s Landing Subdivision – Page 4 Rev. 7-21-22   
4878-2520-1450, v. 2 

 3.9.2 If Developer does not obtain City Engineer’s signature on the 
Phase 1 final plat within the time frame noted above, City may, at its sole 
discretion, terminate the entire Development Agreement after complying with 
the Middleton City Code provisions for legal notice and public hearing. The 
zoning for the property shall be changed as follows: all the property north of 
the east/west through-road (“Lion Heart Street”) shall be changed to R-3 
zoning.  All the property south of the through-road (“Lion Heart Street”) shall 
be changed to C-3 zoning.  No M-F “Multi-Family” zoning shall remain on the 
Property. Additionally, the preliminary plat will automatically become null 
and void. City may seek termination of the Development Agreement at any 
time after the noted time periods expire, and City’s delay in terminating the 
Development Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of its right to terminate 
the Development Agreement. 
 
 3.9.3  After final plat approval for the first phase, Developer shall obtain 
City Engineer’s signature on the final plat for each subsequent phase in two  
(2) year intervals (subject to the requirement by the City to process such 
applications expeditiously and in no event later than six months from the time 
Developer submits a fully completed “Completion Packet” application and 
final plat application).  Developer may obtain a one (1) year extension to 
obtain the City Engineer’s signature on the final plat for the subsequent phase 
by submitting an administrative written request for extension to the 
Middleton Planning & Zoning Official before the expiration of the previous 
time period, which approval shall not be withheld if Developer submits its 
request in a timely manner.  Developer may request City Council to approve 
an additional time extension of one (1) year, which approval will not be 
unreasonably withheld if developer submits the request prior to the 
expiration of the previous extension. If Developer fails to comply with said 
timelines, the portions of the preliminary plat yet to be final platted will 
become null and void.  City may also, at its sole discretion, terminate the 
Development Agreement, after complying with the Middleton City Code 
provisions for legal notice and public hearing, to the extent of the property not 
final platted. The zoning for the unplatted area shall revert as set forth in 
Section 3.9.2, above. 
 

 3.10 Street Connectivity. Developer agrees that if City requires a street or 
drive aisle connection between the commercial parcel(s) and residential parcels to 
the north as a result of ITD’s denial of access to State Highway 44, Developer shall 
construct a street off Horsetail Court. Street intersection shall meet common 
engineering geometric standards and may require vacation of a portion of the cul-de- 
sac if already constructed. 
 
 3.11 Cross-Access Easement.  Developer shall grant a cross-access easement 
for vehicular and pedestrian traffic to ensure that none of the commercial parcels are 
land-locked, with such cross-access only to be effective in the event ITD denies access 
to State Highway 44.   



 

Development Agreement – Reed’s Landing Subdivision – Page 5 Rev. 7-21-22   
4878-2520-1450, v. 2 

 
 3.12 Pathway Connectivity. As a condition of Phase 1 final plat approval, 
Developer shall construct a temporary five (5) foot wide asphalt pathway that will 
cross the commercial lots to connect the residential lots to State Hwy 44.  Public 
access must be granted over and across the pathway via the cross-access easement 
noted in section 3.11 above or by some other temporary public easement grant.  
Developer may choose the appropriate location for the asphalt pathway. With the 
development and final plat approval of the Commercial lots (currently Phase 2), 
Developer may remove the asphalt pathway and accompanying easement so long as 
ADA compliant pedestrian connectivity from the residential lots to State Hwy 44 is 
provided.  
 

ARTICLE IV 
FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH AGREEMENT 

 
 4.1 If the Developer fails to comply with any of the terms or conditions in 
this Agreement, then the portion(s) of this Agreement pertaining to the breach may 
be modified or terminated by the Middleton City Council, after complying with the 
notice and hearing requirement contained in Middleton City Code and Idaho Code.   
 

4.2 If after a breach, the City Council determines that the terms of this 
Agreement applicable to the breach should be modified, the term(s) of this 
Agreement shall be amended and the Developer shall comply with the amended 
terms. 
   

4.3 Any breach waived by the City shall apply solely to the breach waived 
and shall not bar any other rights or remedies of the City or apply to any subsequent 
breach of any such or other covenants and conditions. 
 
 4.4 Upon a breach of this Agreement, any of the parties in any court of 
competent jurisdiction, by action or proceeding at law or in equity, may secure the 
specific performance of the covenants and agreements herein contained, may be 
awarded damages for failure of performance of both, or may obtain rescission, 
disconnection, and damages for repudiation or material failure of performance. 
 
 4.5 NOTICE OF FAILED PERFORMANCE.  Upon any failure of any party to 
this Agreement to perform its obligations under this Agreement, the party claiming 
such failure shall notify, in writing, the party alleged to have failed to perform of the 
alleged failure and shall demand performance.  No breach of this Agreement may be 
found to have occurred if performance has commenced to the satisfaction of the 
complaining party with thirty (30) days of the receipt of such notice. 

 
ARTICLE V 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 



 

Development Agreement – Reed’s Landing Subdivision – Page 6 Rev. 7-21-22   
4878-2520-1450, v. 2 

 5.1 This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties respecting 
the Property and supersedes all prior discussions and written and verbal agreements 
between the parties respecting the Property. 
 
 5.2 Any amendment or addendum to this Agreement shall be in writing and 
made only after the City has complied with the notice and hearing provisions of Idaho 
Code §67-6509 and Middleton City Code Title 5, Chapter 2. 
 
 5.3 Any notice that a party may desire to give to another party must be in 
writing and may be given by personal delivery, by mailing the same registered or 
certified mail with a return receipt requested, or by Federal Express or other 
reputable overnight delivery service.  Notice shall be given to the parties at the 
following addresses or such other address and to such other persons as the parties 
may designate after giving notice.  Any such notice shall be deemed given upon 
delivery if by personal delivery, upon deposit in the United States mail if sent by mail 
pursuant to the forgoing: 
    
   Middleton: City Clerk 
     City of Middleton 
     P.O. Box 487 
     Middleton, Idaho 83644 
    
   Developer: BST Dev LLC 
     1016 W. Sanetta St. 
     Nampa, ID 83651 
      
   Developer: Gordon and Penny Reed 
     ____________________ 
     ____________________ 
     _________________________ 
     _________________________ 
 
 5.4 If either party shall fail to perform under this Agreement and said 
failure is cured with the assistance of an attorney for the other party, as a part of 
curing said failure, the reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by the other party shall be 
reimbursed to the other party upon demand.  In the event a suit or action is filed by 
either party against the other to interpret or enforce this Agreement, the unsuccessful 
party to such litigation agrees to pay to the prevailing party all costs and expenses, 
including reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred therein, including the same with 
respect to an appeal. 
 
 5.5 The Agreement shall be effective after being fully executed.  This 
Agreement shall become valid and binding only upon its approval by the City Council 
and execution of the Mayor and City Clerk.  After its execution, the Agreement shall 
be recorded in the office of the County Recorded at the expense of the City. 
 



 

Development Agreement – Reed’s Landing Subdivision – Page 7 Rev. 7-21-22   
4878-2520-1450, v. 2 

 5.6 Each commitment and restriction described in this Agreement shall be 
a burden on the Property and run with the land and shall be appurtenant to and for 
the benefit of the Property, adjacent property and other residential land near the 
Property. 
   

5.6.1 This Agreement shall be binding on the City and Developer, and 
their respective heirs, administrators, executors, agents, legal representatives, 
successors and assigns.  Provided, however, that if all or any portion of the 
Property is divided, then each owner of a legal lot shall only be responsible for 
duties and obligations or breaches as to their owners’ parcels or lots. 

 
5.6.2 The new owner of the Property or any portion thereof 

(including, without limitation, any owner who acquires its interest by 
foreclosure, trustee’s sale or otherwise) shall be liable for all commitments 
and other obligations arising under this Agreement with respect only to such 
owner’s lot or parcel. 

 
 5.7 The Property that is the subject of this Agreement is located in Canyon 
County, Idaho and the terms of this Agreement shall be construed according to the 
laws of the State of Idaho in effect at this time this Agreement is executed.  Any action 
brought in connection with this Agreement shall be brought in a court of competent 
jurisdiction located in Canyon County, Idaho. 
 
 5.8 If any term, provision, commitment or restriction of this Agreement or 
the application thereof to any party or circumstance shall to any extent be held invalid 
or unenforceable, the remainder of this instrument shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
 5.9 Time is of the essence for performance of each obligation in this 
Agreement. 
 

[end of text; signatures on following page] 
 
 
  
  



 

Development Agreement – Reed’s Landing Subdivision – Page 8 Rev. 7-21-22   
4878-2520-1450, v. 2 

Dated this _____ day of _______________, 2022 and effective upon annexation and 
rezoning of the Property. 
 
 
CITY OF MIDDLETON    ATTEST 
 
 
 
By: _______________________________________  By: ____________________________________ 
       Steven J. Rule, Mayor           Becky Crofts, City Clerk 

 
State of IDAHO ) 
            ss. 
 
County of Canyon ) 
 
I, a notary public, do hereby certify that on this _________ day of _________________, 2022, 
personally appeared before me Steven J. Rule, who, being first duly sworn, declared that he 
is the Mayor of the City of Middleton, Idaho and signed it as Mayor of the City of Middleton.   
 
      ________________________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
      My Commission Expires: ___________________ 
 
 
  



 

Development Agreement – Reed’s Landing Subdivision – Page 9 Rev. 7-21-22   
4878-2520-1450, v. 2 

DEVELOPERS: 
 
BST DEV LLC 
 
 
 
By:________________________________________    
Its: _________________________________________      
 
State of Idaho  ) 
    ss. 
County of   ) 
 
I, a notary public, do hereby certify that on this ___ day of ________________, 2022, personally 
appeared before me ______________________________________ who, being first duly sworn, declared 
that he/she signed in the capacity of ___________________________________________________ for 
_________________________________________.   
 
            
      Notary Public 
      My Commission Expires:    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
By: _Reeds_______________________________________    
Its: _________________________________________      
 
State of Idaho  ) 
    ss. 
County of   ) 
 
I, a notary public, do hereby certify that on this ___ day of ________________, 2022, personally 
appeared before me ______________________________________ who, being first duly sworn, declared 
that he/she signed in the capacity of ___________________________________________________ for 
_________________________________________.   
 
            
      Notary Public 
      My Commission Expires:    
 



 

Development Agreement – Reed’s Landing Subdivision –Exhibit A Rev. 7-21-22   
4878-2520-1450, v. 2 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Legal Description and Sketch of the Property 
 
 

A portion of Blocks 6, 7 and 8, Hawthorn Plat of Middleton as filed in Book 
3 of Plats at Page 22, records of Canyon County, Idaho, lying in the Southeast 
1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 1, Township 4 North, Range 3 West, Boise 
Meridian, Canyon County, Idaho more particularly described as follows: 

 
Commencing at the Section corner common to Sections 1 and 12, T.4N., 

R.3W., B.M., and Sections 6 and 7, T.4N., R.2W., B.M., from which the 1/4 
corner common to said Sections 1 and 12 bears South 89°44'07" West, 2,702.83 
feet; thence on south boundary line of said Section 1, South 89°44'07" West, 
575.94 feet to the REAL POINT OF BEGINNING; 
 
 thence continuing South 89°44'07" West, 199.43 feet to the southerly 
extension of the east boundary line of Wellstone Subdivision as filed in Book 39 
of Plats at Page 42, records Canyon County, Idaho;  
 

thence on said east boundary line and the southerly extension thereof and 
the east boundary line of Sherwood Estates Subdivision as filed in Book 37 of 
Plats at Page 28, records of Canyon County, Idaho, North 00°21'31" East, 
1,327.36 feet to the north boundary line of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 
of said Section 1; 
 

thence on said north boundary line coincident with the south boundary line 
of Nottingham Greens Subdivision No. 2 as filed in Book 32 of Plats at Page 18 
and westerly boundary line of Westwood Subdivision as filed in Book 39 of Plats 
at Page 5, records of Canyon County, Idaho, North 89°43'55" East, 384.41 feet 
to the Northwest corner of Lot 14, Block 3 of said Westwood Subdivision; 
 
 thence continuing on said the westerly boundary line the following two (2) 
courses and distances: 
 

South 01°46'43" West, 330.83 feet; 
 
South 04°34'57" West, 316.66 feet; 

 
thence continuing on said the westerly boundary line and the westerly 

boundary line of The Cottages Subdivision as filed in Book 42 of Plats at Page 
36, records of Canyon County, Idaho the following two (2) courses and 
distances: 
 
 
 
 



 

Development Agreement – Reed’s Landing Subdivision –Exhibit A Rev. 7-21-22   
4878-2520-1450, v. 2 

 
 
South 04°40'35" West, 210.93 feet; 
 
South 03°08'47" West, 18.19 feet; 

 
thence leaving said westerly boundary line, North 88°25'59" West, 81.98 

feet; 
 
 thence South 03°00'38" West, 215.09 feet; 
 
 thence South 48°54'27" West, 50.44 feet; 
 
 thence South 02°52'52" West, 168.00 feet to the north right-of-way line of 
W. Main Street (S.H. 44); 
 

thence leaving said north right-of-way line, South 00°15'53" East, 40.00 
feet to the REAL POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
Containing 421,497 square feet or 9.68 acres, more or less. 
 
End of Description. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Development Agreement – Reed’s Landing Subdivision –Exhibit A Rev. 7-21-22   
4878-2520-1450, v. 2 

 
 

SHERWOOD 
ESTATES SUB. 

© 

WESTWOOD SUB. 

WELLSTONE SUB. 

SCALE: 1•·• 150' 

W. 3RD ST. N 

SY08'47"W 
18.19' 

N88"25'59"W 
81.98' 

I THE COTTAGES 
SUB. 

O 75 150 300 S01 5'53"E 
. 40.00' 

1927.45' 199.43'_,_/-<.a-- 575.94' ::-¾ S.l S.S 

s.12 . .. .. -S89"44'07"W-2702.83' st9~7"W RE~~ ;OlNT . . . ~-~~----. ~-
7
·~s.12 · S.7 

. . . . BASIS OF BEARING w. MAIN ST. (S.H. 44) . . or BEGINNING 

IDAHO 
SURVEY =~-=• --GROUP, LLC 

ANNEXA TION EXHIBIT FOR 

880 MAIN STREET 
A PORTl<:N lil,.00($ 6, 7 ~ I) 8, HAWTHOAA Pl.AT Of WIOOL(T()N LVNI; IN ™E SC 
1/4 Of 1'HE SE t/4 (Y SEClk>N 1, T,4N .. ru w_ 8.M.. CN(~ COl.tll"t'. IOAMO 

JC8 NO. 

...... ,. 
l0/2J/2021 



 

Development Agreement – Reed’s Landing Subdivision –Exhibit B Rev. 7-21-22   
4878-2520-1450, v. 2 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Approved Concept Plan 
 

 
 

.. --

• 
"' 

- -

""' ' • C, 

• 

"' 

• 
co~~R]~ i.o·: 

IC~4!)2 SF 
2 42 M:R::S -· 

--------------~ --. -:.._ -·: . 
,u.,..,uu, .. .-u~ 

1:- "'"' .. " " ~ .. "'' '"" • a-:v• ~ 
" 

• ., 

• . , 
J, 

/) 
" 

---:~ . 

1I 

• '!;' 

• 
,, 

? 
.,. ,,. ...... , ~,:ctr 

• ., 

~ • ~ 
/1 '""" 

• I .,. 
l '·'"""""" ~~1}' UI 



 

Development Agreement – Reed’s Landing Subdivision –Exhibit C Rev. 7-21-22   
4878-2520-1450, v. 2 

EXHIBIT C 
 

Townhome Concept Elevations 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Reed’s Landing Elevation Examples 
 

 
 

 



rstewart
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT "C"




rstewart
Typewritten Text
Public Comments





South 2 Northwest LLC (an Idaho Limited Liability Company) 

City of Middleton 

P. 0. Box "E" 
198 SW 3rd Avenue 

Ontario, Oregon 97914-0106 
Office: (541) 889-3147/Salem, OR: 503-930-9304 cell/text 
July 16, 2022 

P.O. Box 487, 1103 W. Main Street 
Middleton, ID 83644 

In re: Annexation/Rezone - Reed's Landing Subdivision 
To Whom it may Concern: 

My name is R. Thon1as Butler-the Managing Member of 
South 2 Northwest LLC owning commercial and residential 
property located at 903 West Main Street, Middleton, Idaho. 

South 2 Northwest LLC has no objections to the proposal 
coming before the public on Wednesday August 3, 2022. We 
commend BST DEV LLC! 

We do, however express concern that our Mill Ditch and 
Canyon Hills irrigation water rights and duty of irrigation waters 
being delivered from the canal north of this proposed 
subdivision and passing through much of this subdivision to the 
south ( crossing underneath Hwy. 44) and then south to the north 
berm of The Hartley(?) Canal as it enters onto our property to 
provide our duty of irrigation water (approx. 3Aofwater right). 

We'd like assurance that there will be no interruption of our 
ability to continue this vital water delivery to our parcels. 

Please confirm with the developers and written assurances 
to vouch safe these water rigb.ts d water delivery concerns. 

Your very 

mas Butler, LLC Managing Member 



rstewart
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT "D"




rstewart
Typewritten Text
            Agency Comments






To Whom It May Concern: 
RE: Growth in Middleton, Idaho 

• 

GM 
PARK&REC. 

DISTRICT 
GMPRD Directors 
Elizabeth Weaver, President 

MikeOkamura, VicePresident 
Jon Roth, Treasurer 

Deborah Sandbor8h .. Director 
Rand1J Powell, Director 

On behalf of Greater Middleton Parks & Recreation District Board of Directors, we wanted to 
reach out and let the you know that GMPRD is taking a stance on the growth happening in 
Middleton and the surrounding areas. 

We are opposed to any further developments coming into Middleton at this time. Not only are 
the parks and recreation districts affected, but the school district and cemetery district as well, 
are all struggling to keep up with the growth. The legislature has not added parks and recreation 
districts, nor school or cemetery districts to the legal verbiage, allowing the impact fee funding 
to help incur the costs from the additional growth happening around the city. 

We are seeing high numbers of registrations at our sporting events coming from out of state. We 
have multiple sports clubs and recreation programs needing grass space to play on. We are 
using an outdated building to play sports in one gym and could use at least two more gyms. We 
are also seeing higher vandalism this year. We have already spent over $5,000 dollars on new 
camera systems at our parks and buildings to try to keep up with the increase in crime in our 
little town. Last year we were at 419% over budget for vandalism - spending almost $900 
dollars on repairs. This year alone we are already at 110% of our increased vandalism budget, 
spending over $550 dollars on repairs thus far. However, in 2019 we only used 12.9% of our 
vandalism repairs budget. Spending only $25 dollars on repairs. These numbers alone speak 
VOLUMES as to what is happening in our area and the negative impact our growth will continue 
to have, especially on our youth. Having positive sports programs, open play space, and local 
community classes helps keep kids out of trouble. We are outgrowing our resources at a record 
pace! 

In order for growth to continue and to gain our support, developers will have to step up in some 
way to aid these growth-related issues and problems. 

Thank you for listening to our concerns. 

Best Regards, 
GMPRD B d of Directors 

310 N. Hawthorne Ave. Middleton, Ida.ho B3044 
Ph.# 208-585-3461 FAX: 208-585-6198 
5mprdjulie @5mo.il.com www-t3mprd.or8 



Boise Office 
1101 W. River St. 
Suite no 
Boise, Idaho 83702 
Tel. (208) 629-7447 

Challis Office 
1301 E. Main Ave. 
P.O. Box36 

___ s c--, _) 

Challis, Idaho 83226 
Tel. (208) 879-4488 SAWTOOTH LAW 
Twin Falls Office 
213 Canyon Crest Drive 
Suite 200 
Twin Falls, Idaho 83301 
Tel. (208) 969-9585 

Fax (all offices) 
(208) 629-7559 

City of Middleton 

Attn: Roberta Stewart 

P.O. Box487 

Middleton, Idaho 83644 

OFFICES, PLLC 

Monday, May 09, 2022 

Re: Reed's Landing Subdivision 

Dear Ms. Stewart: 

David P. Claibome 

S. Bryce Farris 

EvanT.Roth 

Daniel V. Steenson 

AndrewJ, Waldera 

Brian A. Faria 

Patxi Larrocea-Phillips 

John A. Richards 

Matthew A, Stunen 

Katie L. Vandenberg-Vam 
Vliet 

James R. Bennetts 
(rerired) 

The Canyon Hill Ditch Company, the Middleton Mill Ditch Company and Middleton Irrigation 

Association (collectively referred to as "Ditch Companies") have ditches and easements that run through 

or abuts this property. The easement is 25 feet each side from the top of bank. The developer must 

contact the Ditch Companies' attorneys, Sawtooth Law Offices, PLLC, for approval before any 

encroachment, change of easement, or drainage discharge into Ditch Companies' facilities occur. The 

Ditch Companies must review drainage plans and construction plans prior to any approval. 

The Ditch Companies generally require a License Agreement prior to any approval for the 

following reasons: 

1. Relocation of a facility which would also require a new easement and 

relinquishment of the old easement once the relocation has been completed. 

2. Piping of a facility. 

3. Encroachment on a facility with gas, water and sewer tines, utility lines, roadways, 

bridges or any other structures. 

4. Drainage discharges into any facilities. 

Also, please be advised that the Ditch Companies do not approve of trees within their easements. 

Therefore, any existing trees within easement will need to be removed. On occasion, the Ditch Companies 

may make an exception on a case-by-case basis, which requires the developers/owners to obtain written 

permission from the Ditch Companies for existing trees to remain. 

-www.sawtoothlaw.com 



hliw.. 

SAWTOOTH LAW 
Offlct:S..l"'\J.C 

Please contact me if you have any questions. 

SBF:krk 

cc: Canyon Hill Ditch Company/MM-Ml 

Yours very truly, 

/ 

~,t-ri~~ f-~ 
S. Bryce Farris 

--Zc::.:..---- -

www.sawtoothlaw.com 



 
 

 

		Middleton	School	District	#134	
Every	Child	Learning	Every	Day	

 

 
 
July 26, 2022 
 
 
RE:  Reed’s Landing 
 
Mayor Rule and City Council Members, 
 
I wanted to share with you as a group that I was able to meet with developers of the 
Reed’s Landing project in Middleton.  During that meeting, Steve and Taylor Schmidt, 
along with Hethe Clark were very supportive of the school district and the requests 
we had made.   
 
We walked through the concerns we had for safe routes to school and they were able 
to assure us of the abilities of their project to tie into existing sidewalk networks so 
that potential students who live in the area will be able to walk to Heights and/or the 
middle school.  We also addressed bus access for high school aged students who 
potentially could live in the area and have no concerns regarding the ability of a 
school bus to navigate the necessary areas.  
 
As we have mentioned previously, we are supportive of increased commercial 
options and the infrastructure and stability that they bring to our community.  In 
addition, we are supportive of reasonable numbers of entry level homes for new 
families, as we feel that will be beneficial for many of our staff members. 
 
We feel that Reed’s Landing developers have made a good faith effort to address the 
needs of the school district.  We appreciate the efforts by city Planning and Zoning 
members to certify that school district needs are addressed by new developers and 
hope that support will continue. 
 
Please reach out if you have any further questions. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
Marc C. Gee 
Superintendent 
Middleton School District 
mgee@msd134.org 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Marc Gee 
Superintendent 

 
Lisa Pennington 

Assistant Superintendent 
 

Alicia Krantz 
Business Manager/Treasurer 

 
Paige Goodson 

Director of Curriculum and 
Assessment 

 
Sharlea Watkins 

Director of Special Services 
 

Nick Davis 
Network Administrator 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

5 South Viking Avenue 
Middleton, ID 83644 

(208) 585-3027 
msd134.org 

VIKINGS 

LJMLJ 



 
 

 

		Middleton	School	District	#134	
Every	Child	Learning	Every	Day	

 

Middleton School District #134  

City of Middleton--Public Hearing Notice Response 
General Response for All New Development 

Middleton School District is currently experiencing significant growth in its student 
population.  As it is now, we have 2 of our 3 elementary schools over capacity (2 
portables at Mill Creek, 3 portables at Heights Elementary) with more coming.  We 
are nearing capacity, but have not superseded at this point, at our high school and 
middle school.  As it stands now there is a need for additional facilities in our school 
district, primarily at the elementary grades.  However, we have significant concerns of 
the continued growth and our ability to meet the future facility needs of our district 
at the secondary level (Middleton Middle School and Middleton High School). 

We are in process of having a demographic study performed for our school district 
boundaries and preliminary data suggests that for every new home we could expect 
between 0.5 and 0.7 (with an average of .569) students to come to our school.  That 
is the factor/rate we use to make our projection of student impact for each 
development. 

We encourage the city to be judicious in their approval process recognizing that each 
new development brings new students to our school and will increase the burden 
placed on taxpayers within the school district.  New facilities, primarily an elementary 
school, are needed now, but additional students could continue to increase that 
need.   As a school district, we support any kind of pause that could be taken on these 
processes and the formation of a community council that would assist in the strategic 
planning for the growth in our district. 

Reed’s Landing Subdivision 
Elementary students living in the proposed areas as planned would be in the 
attendance zone for Middleton Heights Elementary School.  With 37 lots, we would 
anticipate, upon completion, an increase of approximately 21 students between 
Heights Elementary, Middleton Middle School, and Middleton High School.  See 
above statement for impact on district resources. 

Bussing services would most likely not be provided to families in this area for 
elementary and middle school students because of its proximity to Heights 
Elementary and Middle School.  We would ask that the council ensure that 
appropriate and safe sidewalk access to existing sidewalk network be required so that 
elementary students are able to safely walk to school.  Bussing would be provided to 
the high school with our current Safety Bussing Plan, though it is within a range that 
could change based on continued development within the community.  

As a district we are supportive of the responsible development of commercial 
properties within the community and the accompanying infrastructure. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Marc Gee 
Superintendent 

 
Lisa Pennington 

Assistant Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

5 South Viking Avenue 
Middleton, ID 83644 

(208) 585-3027 
msd134.org 



rstewart
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT "E"






rstewart
Typewritten Text
Engineering & Planner Comments






5605 South I 0th Ave.• Caldwell, Idaho 83607 • 208.453.2028 

July 28, 2022 

TO: Roberta Stewart, Planner 

FROM: Civil Dynamics PC, City Engineer \ 
1 

_ p n 14 J 

Cc: Travis Grenz, PE- HECO Enginee~s 

Amy Woodruff, PE Q~)( rr 
RE: Reed's Landing Subdivision - Preliminary Plat Recommendation of Approval 

Thank you for the opportunity to review the above referenced preliminary plat submittal. 

We recommend Mayor and City Council approve the preliminary plat. 

Reed's Landing Subdivision - Preliminary Plat 1 



~ Civil ~ 
DynamiCP 

March 18, 2022 

TO: 

FROM: 

Roberta Stewart, Planner ~ 

Civil Dynamics PC, City Engineer - (.J!l. 
Amy Woodruff, PE ~ 

RE: REEDS LANDING SUBDIVISION 

Thank you for the opportunity to review the above referenced preliminary plat submittal. 

Request the applicant review MCC 5-4-4 and confirm in writing to the City that each item listed has been 
included on the preliminary plat submittal. 

MCC 5-4-4.2. a. Please add bearing and distance to section corner, quarter corner or monument of record. 

MCC 5-4-4.2. c. Adding phasing plan if applicable or note all lots developed in one phase. \ 
MCC 5-4-4.2. f. Revise topography to clearly show existing. 

1. Show existing topography including SH44. 
2. Dimension and clearly identify every lot. Add lot and block numbers. 
3. Add benchmark information. 

MCC 5-4-4.2. h. 
1. Dimension existing rights of way and clearly label/name. 
2. Show improvements on SH44. 

MCC 5-4-4.2. i. Label owners adjacent to boundary. 

MCC 5-4-4.2 a and I. The boundary is required to be surveyed and stamped by PLS including ties to corners. 
Label boundary. 

MCC 5-4-4.2. n 
1. Show hydrants. 
2. Add note hydrant location and configuration to be reviewed and approved by Middleton Rural Fire 

Protection District. 
3. Streetlights required every 400ft and at intersections. 

MCC 5-4-4.3. a 
1. Label/identify all sewer- existing and proposed. 400 ft is maximum spacing between manholes. 
2. Extend an 8" sewer main in 20 ft easement south to the commercial lot or sewer commercial lot to 

SH44. 
3. Add flow directional arrows. 

MCC 5-4-4.3. b 
1. Water corridor is north and east, sewer is south and west. 

Reeds Landing Subdivision - Preliminary Plat 1 



~Civil~ 
DynamiCP 

2. Show fully the water connection to existing in 3rd Street and Shire Street. Valves at every leg. Label 
both existing and proposed line sizes. Label water main in SH44. 

3. How does the commercial area receive water service? 
4. What is the line west of the parcel? No water in that area. 

MCC 5-4-4.3.c 
1. Stormwater. Plan to manage a 100 year/1 hour storm using retention facilities only. No 

subsurface. The front half of the lot C value is 0.60, the rights of way/impervious (all) are 0.95 - use 
a composite of both. All stormwater management facilities require pretreatment, all infrastructure 
to be shown on preliminary plat. Stormwater facilities are owned by HOA and the provisions for 
maintenance laid out in CCRs. Identify lots to be used for stormwater management and show 
pretreatment. 

1. Add a note: exterior boundary is required to be fenced in accordance with approved fencing plan. 

2. Correct street names. Street is east/west. Avenue is north/south. Cul-de-sac is Court. 

3. Add centerline radii and intersection radii. 

4. Remove the parking spaces from adjacent to Horsetail and develop them out of the right of way if 
parking is desired. 

5. Provide pedestrian access to SH44 through commercial lot. 

6. Identify all lots to be held in common or non-residential, the use and ownership. 

7. Note 7. Delete. 

8. Note 6 and Note 13. Combine. Expand to address Idaho Code 31-3805. Identify the irrigation 
district. Show the irrigation system layout and point of diversion/pump station location. 

9. Note 16. If wells or septic are present, identify. 

10. Add note regarding easements. Show existing easements. Review attached Schedule B excerpt 
and identify easement areas on the plat. 

11. Show mail box/USPS location. 

12. Develop sidewalks each side of Horsetail. 

13. Add typical street section. 

14. Confirm in writing with Idaho Transportation Department access for the commercial lot. 

15. Provide access to commercial area from the north. 

Reeds Landing Subdivision - Preliminary Plat 2 



14. Provisions, reservations and restrictions as shown by the several contracts between the United 
States of America and Black Canyon Irrigation District, and the amendments thereto, or between 
the present owner or past owners of the real property herein described and the Black Canyon 
Irrigation District or the United States of America, whether said contracts be of record in the 
office of the Recorder of Canyon County, Idaho, or on file with the Secretary of Black Canyon 
Irrigation District. 

15. Ditch, road and public utility easements as the same may exist over said premises. 

16. Rights of the public in and to that portion of the premises lying within West Main Street, also 
known as Highway 44. 

17. Right-of-way for John B. Smith Lateral and the rights of access thereto for maintenance of said 
lateral. 

18. An easement for the purpose shown below and rights incidental thereto as set forth in document: 
Granted To: Idaho Power Company 
Purpose: Public Utilities 
Recorded: January 21, 1992 
Instrument No.: 9201219 

19. Terms, provisions, covenants, conditions, definitions, options, obligations and restrictions, 
contained in a document 
Purpose: Agreement for Sanitary Sewer Easement 
Recorded: April 22, 2005 
Instrument No.: 200521623 

20. Easements reservations and dedications, as shown on record of survey. 
Recorded: December 20, 2007 
Instrument No.: 2007081965 

21. An easement for the purpose shown below and rights incidental thereto as set forth in a 
document: 
Granted To: City of Middleton, a municipal corporation 
Purpose: for installation of sidewalks and related improvements, including but not limited to the 
relocation of utilities, irrigation, drainage, fences and vegetation as needed. 
Recorded : September 9, 2013 
Instrument No.: 2013-041556 

22. Easements reservations and dedications, as shown on record of survey. 
Recorded: March 5, 2014 
Instrument No.: 2014-007955 

23. Terms, provisions, covenants, conditions, definitions, options, obligations and restrictions, 
contained in a document 
Purpose: Consent 
Recorded: July 26, 2017 
Instrument No.: 2017-031144 

24. Rights, interests or claims which may exist or arise by reason of the following matters disclosed 
by an inspection or survey: 
a. Any rights and/or interest of adjacent prope1ty owners, any easement and/or agreement for the 
maintenance thereof for a shared driveway. 

25. An easement for the purpose shown below and rights incidental thereto as set fo1th in a 
document: 
Granted To: Gordon Reed and Penny Read, husband and wife, their heirs, successors, assigns, 
purchasers, or transferees of any kind 
Purpose: A Non-Exclusive perpetual access easement for utilities, ingress and egress, for 
pedestrian travel and vehicle travel 
Recorded: July 9, 2019 
Instrument No. : 2019-030440 



April 20, 2022 

TO: Roberta Stewart, Planner 

FROM: Civil Dynamics PC, City Engine,{1 . l- ,;,vl. Q !J;J,,-
Amy Woodruff, PE ~(J '/fl 

RE: REEDS LANDING SUBDIVISION 

~ Civil ~ 
Dynami~ 

Thank you for the opportunity to review the above referenced preliminary plat submittal. 

MCC 5-4-4.2. a. Please add bearing and distance to section corner, quarter corner or monument of record. 
What is basis of bearing - where to where? 

MCC 5-4-4.2. i. Label owners adjacent to boundary. 

MCC 5-4-4.2 a and I. The boundary is required to be surveyed and stamped by PLS including ties to corners. 
Label boundary. 

MCC 5-4-4.2. n 
1. Hydrant spacing per MRFPD. 
2. Add note regarding fiber Installation . 

MCC 5-4-4.3. a 
1. Extend an 8" sewer main in 20 ft easement south to the commercial lot or sewer commercial lot to 

SH44. The commercial lot is required to have sewer. It may take both. 

MCC 5-4-4.3. b 
1. How does the commercial area receive water service? Need to extend an 8" main from Horsetail 
2. What is the line west of the parcel? No water in that area. 

MCC 5-4-4.3.c 
1. Need stormwater management plan per code. Contributing areas, volume calculations. 
2. Is the stormwater inlet to LllBl at the project high point? 
3. Locate O/S boxes adjacent to the rights of way. For proximity to clean and inspect. 

1. Dimension and clearly identify every lot. Number lots consistently clockwise. No Block 4 or Block 5. 
All lots are consecutive in that area. 

2. Why is the fence offset from north boundary? Irrigation ditch not identified. What is 12" irrigation 
north of boundary if there is a ditch in 15 ft area? 

3. Minimum centerline radii is 90ft. 

4. Provide pedestrian access to SH44 through commercial lot. 

Reeds Landing Subdivision - Preliminary Plat 1 



~Civil~ 
Dynami~ 

5. Note 6 and Note 26. Combine. Expand to address Idaho Code 31-3805b. Identify the irrigation 
district and whether lots are subject to assessment. Irrigation cannot locate in the rights of way. 

6. Note 16. If wells or septic are present, identify. How does Reed parcel water and sewer now if not 
septic? 

7. Confirm in writing with Idaho Transportation Department access for the commercial lot. This a 
condition of preliminary plat. Phase 2 will not go through hearing so the access needs to be 
established at this time. 

8. Provide access to commercial area from the north. This is required. How do Ll and L2 BS access? 

9. Note 24: delete. Show easements on the actual plat and label instrument#. I don't need 
easement location on adjacent parcels. 

10. Water and sewer should be roadway, not under curb/gutter section. Revisit linework where 
needed. 

11. Revisit dimensioning Block 4. 

12. Coordinate with Planners (Roberta) regarding base flood elevations and whether needed for 
preliminary plat. 

13. Before resubmitting a 3rd time, print the plat and review the notes above against the printed 
version. 

Reeds Landing Subdivision - Preliminary Plat 2 



~ Civil ~ 
DynamiCP 

May 4, 2022 

TO: Roberta Stewart, Planner 

FROM: Civil Dynamics PC, City Engine(! \ . J .,.J 'J1 
Amy Woodruff, PE ~~ .;r-

RE: REEDS LANDING SUBDIVISION - 3rd Review 

Thank you for the opportunity to review the above referenced preliminary plat submittal. 

MCC 5-4-4.2. a. Please add bearing and distance to section corner, quarter corner or monument of record. 
What is basis of bearing - where to where? 

MCC 5-4-4.2 a and I. The boundary is required to be surveyed and stamped by PLS including ties to corners. 
Label boundary. 

MCC 5-4-4.3. a 
1. Extend an 8" sewer main in 20 ft easement south to the commercial lot or sewer commercial lot to 

SH44. The commercial lot is required to have sewer. You will need to show the sewer - presumed 
to be in the 18ft sewer easement if it is in place. Add invert elevations. 

2. Why is the water in Lionheart shown as existing? 

MCC 5-4-4.3.c 
1. The stormwater management will need to be calculated and developed per code. No revision 

needed but the submittal doesn't match the city's requirement. 
3. Is the stormwater inlet to L11B1 at the project high point? 
4. Add 20ft easement to west side L1B1 and L1B4 for the stormwater pipe and box 

1. Dimension and clearly identify every lot. Number lots consistently clockwise. There is no Block 4 or 
Block 5. All lots are consecutive and will be Block 3. 

2. Why is the fence offset from north boundary? Why are two fences shown in 15ft easement area? 
Irrigation ditch not identified. What is 12" irrigation north of boundary if there is a ditch in 15 ft 
area? 

3. Minimum centerline radii is 90ft. LABEL CENTERLINE. Revise radii if not 90ft. 

4. Note 6 and Note 26. Combine. Expand to address Idaho Code 31-3805b. Identify the irrigation 
district and whether lots are subject to assessment. Irrigation cannot locate in the rights of way. 

5. Note 13. If wells or septic are present, identify. How does Reed parcel water and sewer now if not 
septic? 

6. Confirm in writing with Idaho Transportation Department access for the commercial lot. This a 
condition of preliminary plat. Phase 2 will not go through hearing so the access needs to be 
established at this time. 

Reeds Landing Subdivision - Preliminary Plat 1 



7. How do Ll and L2 BS access? 

~Civil~ 
DynamiCP 

8. Water and sewer should be roadway, not under curb/gutter section. Revisit linework where 
needed. The configuration shown near L9B3 is not approvable. 

9. Revisit dimensioning Block 4. The dimensioning is not approvable as submitted. 

New comments: 

Dimension culdesac. Geometry not approvable as shown. 

Note 3. All lots are not residential. The table in lower right needs moved up and larger so it is 
legible. Identify by L/B the common lots to be used for stormwater management and common lots 
- other. 

Add a typical section for Horsetail south of intersection. 

What is Joan Reed callout in the SH44 right of way? 

The 12ft easement on west boundary of L1B1 isnt large enough. 

The street names are so small they are not legible. 

Reeds Landing Subdivision - Preliminary Plat 2 



 

CITY OF MIDDLETON 
P.O. Box 487     1103 W Main Street, Middleton, ID  83644 

Tele (208) 585-3133     Fax (208) 585-9601 
citmid@middletonidaho.us  www.middleton.id.gov 

 
 
 
 
 

Reed’s Landing Subdivision – Planner Comments 
(Review of Preliminary Plat received November 18, 2021) 

 
 
March 23, 2022 
 
 
 
 

1. Townhomes are not an “allowed” use in the M-F zone. (See MCC 5-4-1, Table 1 “single 
family-attached).  Instead, they require a special use permit.  Therefore, we need to add a 
special use permit application to your application packet.  It has a $550 application fee. 
Please remit that payment to the City at your very earliest convenience. 

2. I will begin the draft of your Development Agreement. It will be pretty simple and streamlined.  
Basically it will set forth the zoning and a concept plan that you will have to build to.  The 
concept plan will be your pre-plat.  However, I want to add a provision regarding the non-
conforming use created by Mr. Reed’s home in the C-3 lot. The DA will provide that the home 
and outbuildings can remain in the commercial zone, but the City will not allow any intensity 
or other residential permits on that lot.  In other words, the non-conforming use can remain 
on the lot so long as absolutely nothing changes. For instance, the owner cannot apply for a 
permit to build an accessory building because that will intensify the non-conforming 
residential use. Also, we are consulting with our attorney to determine if we can restrict the 
sale of the non-conforming residential lot to another residential user. If so, this would mean 
that once Mr. Reed vacates his home, the lot can only be sold and used for a commercial 
purpose.  I’ll send that DA to you soon. 

3. Looks like you already reserved Papyrus Street with the County.  Please get the name 
changed to Papyrus “Avenue” since it runs north to south.  Also, revise the pre-plat to show 
the correct spelling of the Avenue.  It is “Papyrus” not “Papyrous”.  

4. Change Horsetail Street to Horsetail “Court” since it is a cul-de-sac.   
5. Change “3rd Street” to match the existing street name of Lionheart Street to the west. We 

have an awkward transition to Huckleberry Street at that same location. The City will change 
Huckleberry street to Lionheart Street so there will be only one street name in that area. That 
won’t be your problem. Just our problem. 

6. Please contact ITD and request information on what type of frontage improvements they 
require for Hwy 44, then have them pass that information on to us. 

7. Provide evidence that you have a proper approach permit from ITD for the commercial lot. 
8. You may want to consider creating at least two or maybe three lots out of the single 

commercial lot in the C-3 zone. Just create three parcels in any fashion and then plan on 
moving the parcel boundaries around via a lot line adjustment when you figure out what the 
commercial users will be.  You have to stub sewer and water to each lot, so create the lots 
toward the northern or southern border depending on whatever is the easiest. This just gives 
you flexibility in the future without having to do a resubdivision of the commercial lot.  There 



 
 
 
 

2 
 

is no minimum lot size in the C-3 zone so it is easy to create dummy lots that will be useful 
for future lot line adjustments.    See snippet. 

                                                 
9. Show street section on the pre-plat.  All your streets are the 50’ local roadway section found 

in the appendix to the Supplement to ISPWC.  You can find the ISPWC Supplement on our 
website under the “Government” tab. 

10. Add lot width dimensions to all lots. We need to ensure that all frontage widths match the 
dimensions found in MCC 5-4-1, Table 2.  R-3 lots must be 75’ at the front set back line.  
Townhome lots must be a minimum of 20’ wide.  

11. Add lot square footage to each lot.  Do not put the information in a table. Add it to every 
single lot.  R-3 lots must be a minimum of  8000 s.f.  Townhome lots must be a minimum of 
1600 sf. 

12. You will need to have a lot and block for each parcel. Currently  you have the lots, but I 
cannot find any “block” designations. 

13. The commercial lot needs both a lot number and a block number. 
14. We’ll need to ask for a waiver to the code standards to put the perimeter fence on the rear 

boundary of lots flanking the ditch easement.  Add a note as follows:  “Waiver requested for 
requirement that fencing be located on subdivision perimeter boundary (MCC 5-4-11-2) in 
order to accommodate ditch easement.”  

15. You are required to call out all common lots and clarify their purpose if they involve utilities or 
drainage.  Your Note 3 is not calling these out very well.  Re-Do.  We can’t check the accuracy 
because the block designations are not clear. 

16. And to note 3 language that states who owns the common lots.  Usually the HOA owns all 
common lots. 

17. Show location of proposed mailbox. 
18. Delete note 7 regarding right to farm. 
19. Change note 7 to state “Building setbacks and dimensional standards shall be in 

accordance with the City of Middleton’s zoning code that is in effect at the time of building 
permit issuance.”   

20. I think note 14 regarding floodplain zone may be inaccurate. You’re in zone AE – 100 year 
floodplain.  Please double-check. 

21. Remove Note 15. There is a waiver regarding fencing. 
22. Add note that sanitary sewer service will be provided by City of Middleton. 

-



 
 
 
 

3 
 

23. Work with Amy on a note regarding stormwater management and the new responsibilities of 
the HOA under the City’s MS4 permit. 

24. Add a note:  “Sewer and water capacity will be reserved at the time City approves the 
construction drawings.”  

25. Add note: “All lots have a permanent easement for public utilities and pedestrian walkways 
over the 10’ adjacent to any public right of way. This easement shall not preclude the 
construction of hard-surfaced driveways and walkways to each lot.“ 

26. Add note: “Unless otherwise shown and dimensioned, all lots are hereby designated as 
having a permanent easement for public utilities, drainage, and irrigation over the 5-feet 
adjacent to any interior side lot line and over 10-feet adjacent to any rear lot line or 
subdivision boundary.” 

27. Add note: “Mailbox cluster to be installed by owner as shown on preliminary plat.” 
28. Put the revision date on the revised preliminary plat you will be submitting. 

 
 
 

Roberta L. Stewart 
Middleton Planning & Zoning Director 
 



 

CITY OF MIDDLETON 
P.O. Box 487     1103 W Main Street, Middleton, ID  83644 

Tele (208) 585-3133     Fax (208) 585-9601 
citmid@middletonidaho.us  www.middleton.id.gov 

 
 

Reed’s Landing Subdivision – Planner Comments 
(Review of revised Preliminary Plat received on 4/12/2022) 

 
 
April 19, 2022 
 

1. Show the 75’ wide frontage at the 25’ setback line for Lots 3, 4, and 5 Block 2.  It should 
look like this below.  Not sure what widths really are, but they need to be a minimum of 75’. 

 
 

2. Please fix erroneous frontage number on Lot 7, Block 2.  It’s probably not 68.77’.  Looks like 
it’s 89.2’   You can get to the 75’ frontage minimum by measuring at the 25’ front setback 
line. 

              
 

3. Add the frontage widths on lots 7 and 8, Block 3.  If you can’t get to at least 20’, you can 
measure from 20’ front setback line to get a wider measurement. 
 

 

Miooi°EtoN 
I· I 

Established 1910 

* 

~I 
- \. ,.,.: , u.., _ _____ "' a.a,. 

L:UMMUN 
-~-.-LANDSCAPE 

LOT _ 

BLOCK 2 



 
 
 
 

2 
 

4. Delete Footnote 11. It is duplicative of note 8. 
5. Delete either note 7 or 13 on irrigation facility ownership. They are duplicative. Ask Amy 

which one she prefers. My guess in #13 is the best version. 
6. Add note: “CC&Rs to contain provision requiring HOA to maintain 15’ wide irrigation 

easement area between rear fences on lots 1 – 4, Block 2 and the canal/ditch.” 
7. Please continue to work with ITD to determine what frontage improvements and possible 

right of way they want on the frontage of Hwy 44. 
8. Also, continue to keep City Planner and City Engineer apprised of your efforts to get a proper 

approach permit from ITD for commercial lots. 
9. Put the revision date on the revised preliminary plat you will be submitting. 
10. I’m assuming there is only 1 phase.  I can’t see phasing lines, but I may not be looking 

correctly at the pre-plat.  
11. Transfer the entirety of Lot R177900011 for HWY 44 Right of Way.  Currently Joan Reed is 

the owner of that .24 acre lot. Just deeding the portion in front of the subdivision will not be 
enough, and it will make a non-conforming lot of the portion in front of the lot to the east.  
Consult with Amy Woodruff on the best way to get that done. 

 
 
 
 

Roberta L. Stewart 
Middleton Planning & Zoning Director 



From: Roberta Stewart
To: Taylor Schmidt; jessec@hecoengineers.com
Cc: Amy Woodruff
Subject: Another little clean-up for Reed"s Landing
Date: Monday, April 25, 2022 2:43:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

Hey Taylor and Jesse:  I need you to remove the note on the Reed’s Landing preliminary plat that
states “commercial access and landscape improvements to be completed during development of
commercial lots.”

 
It does not look like you have a phasing plan, so that means all frontage improvements,
infrastructure, and landscaping have to be done prior to getting final plat approval for the entire
project.  You can’t cherry pick portions of the plat and indicate that infrastructure will be installed at
a later date. It needs to be tied to a final plat.
 
Even if you change the commercial plat into Phase 2, you will only have 2 years from final plat for
phase 1 to bring phase 2 to final plat.  This will be a little troublesome if the Reed family stays on
site.  If they intend to stay on site more than 4 years, then the infrastructure improvements on the
commercial parcels will have to be completed around them.  I’m not sure how that would work?
They will have to allow the asphalt pathway connecting to Hwy 44 cross their non-conforming
residential lot.  Additionally, they will have to allow Hwy 44 improvements to occur in front of their
home.   
 
Right now the pre-plat before the City looks like you have only 1 phase, so all the Hwy 44 frontage
work and pathways will have to be completed before final plat.  Even if you break down the plat into
two phases, the note about completing landscaping and access at a later date does not fit in with the
procedures set forth in the code and needs to be removed.  That infrastructure work will be tied to
phase 2 final plat under those circumstances.
 
  Thanks,
 

Roberta L. Stewart
 
PLANNING & ZONING OFFICIAL
City of Middleton, Planning & Zoning
1103 W. Main St.
P.O. Box 487
Middleton, ID 83644
 

I"~ ii I!::! 
~ 
(/) 

40' STAlE HI( 
44 ROW 

~ L3 11~111 I 

mailto:rstewart@middletoncity.com
mailto:TaylorSchmidt208@outlook.com
mailto:jessec@hecoengineers.com
mailto:amy@civildynamics.net

Established 1910 ‘





T 7
\ { COMMERCIAL ACCESS AND unﬁqu ;

™ TS 70 BE,
% DEVE.OPMENT/ COMi MERCIA(J

‘WT

///////4 Vs sy 4






 

CITY OF MIDDLETON 
P.O. Box 487     1103 W Main Street, Middleton, ID  83644 

Tele (208) 585-3133     Fax (208) 585-9601 
citmid@middletonidaho.us  www.middleton.id.gov 

 
 

Reed’s Landing Subdivision – Planner Comments 
(Review of revised Preliminary Plat dated 4/27/2022) 

 
 
May 2, 2022 
 

1. I think you’re going to need to get the entire plat on at least one page.  I’ll wait to see what 
Amy says about this, and I’ll defer to her opinion.  

2. Update the Land Use Summary on the pre-plat to reflect exactly what square footage is 
dedicated to each zone. 

3. Update the Land Use Summary to break down individually the number of townhome lots, 
common lots, commercial lots, and single family lots. 

4. You will need to change the annexation/rezone survey data and exhibits to reflect the revised 
boundaries of the M-F zone and C-3 zone now that the cul de sac has been enlarged. 

5. Still need traffic study update. 
 
 

Roberta L. Stewart 
Middleton Planning & Zoning Director 



rstewart
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT "F"




rstewart
Typewritten Text
                    P&Z Commission's FCO/FCR





Middleton Planning & Zoning Commission 
Findings of Facts, Conclusions of Law, Recommendation & Order 

In the Matter of the applications of Taylor Schmidt/SST DEV LLC for annexation/rezone, 
preliminary plat, development agreement and special use permit with respect to the Reed's 
Landing Subdivision located at 880 W. Main Street and 0 Hwy 44 (Tax Parcel Nos. R17900010 
and R17900011): 

A. Findings of Fact: 

1. Hearing Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of May 9, 2022, which Report is 
attached hereto as Exhibit "A' and incorporated herein by this reference. 

2. Process Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of May 9, 2022, Exhibit "A". 

3. Application and Property Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of May 9, 2022, 
Exhibit "A". 

4. Required Findings per Middleton City Code 1-14-2(E)(7), Idaho State Statue Title 67, 
Chapter 65, Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction and Middleton Supplement 
thereto, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3 & 5-4 and Idaho Code Title 67, 
Chapter 65 & Title 50, Chapters 2 and 13: See Staff Report for the hearing date of May 9, 
2022, Exhibit "A". 

B. Concluslons of Law: 

1. That the City of Middleton has exercised the powers conferred upon it by the "Local Land 
Use Planning Act of 1975,u codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (I.C. §67-6503). 

2. That due consideration has been given to the comments received from the governmental 
subdivisions providing services in the Clty of Middleton planning jurisdiction, comments 
received from individuals of the public, and comments from City Planning Staff and City 
Engineer. 

3. That notice of the application and public hearing was given according to law. 

4. That Planning and Zoning Commission's public hearing was conducted according to law, 
and the City has kept a record of the application and related documents. 

5. That codes and standards pertinent to the application are the Idaho Standards for Public 
Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works 
Construction, and Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4 and Idaho Code 
Title 67, Chapter 65 and Idaho Code Title 50, chapters 2 and 13. 

6. That public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not impose 
expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed. 

1 



C. Decision & Recommendation: 

Pursuant to the Planning & Zoning Commission's authority as provided in Middleton City Code 
1-5-5, and based upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, it is hereby 
recommended that: 

1. City Council approve the application of Taylor Schmit/SST DEV LLC for 
Annexation/Rezone to C-3, M-F and R-3 subject to the conditions of approval set forth in 
the Staff Report for the May 9, 2022, public hearing. 

2. City Councll approve the application of Taylor Schmidt/BST DEV LLC for Development 
Agreement subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the May 9, 
2022, public hearing. 

3. City Council approve the application of Taylor Schmidt/SST DEV LLC for preliminary plat 
subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the May 9, 2022, public 
hearing. 

D. Decision & Order: 

Pursuant to the Planning & Zoning Commission's authority as provided in Middleton City Code 
1-5-5, and based upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, it is hereby 
Ordered that: 

1. The application of Taylor SchmidUBST DEV LLC for Special Use Permit to construct 
townhomes be approved subject to the following conditions: 

a. Developer/Owner meet with the staff of Middleton School District 134 to determine if 
there are any measures or actions Developer/Owner can take to mitigate any impacts 
on the school district. 

b. No windows shall be located on the 2nd floor rear of the townhomes located in Block 
three on the east boundary of the project. 

c. Approval is subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the 
May 9, 2022, public hearing. 

2. The application of Taylor Schmidt/BST DEV LLC for waiver of perimeter fencing 
requirement (MCC 5-4-11-2) is approved subject to the condition that the HOA maintain 
the swath of land between the rear fences and the canal/ditch as set forth in the conditions 
of approval of the Staff Report for May 9, 2022. 

----WRITTEN RECOMMENDATION AND ORDER APPROVED ON: ...J '--~-<- /...3 2022. 

/ 

rpc;::;;;?~_---­
Rayvy_a~fa&man 
Planning and Zoning Commission 

2 



Attest 

Roberta Stewart 
Planning and Zoning Official 

Please take notice that pursuant to MCC 1-14-2(E)(10), applicant shall have 14 days a~er a 
signed final decision to request reconsideration by the final-decision maker. Such request 
must identify specific deficiencies in the final decision. Failure to request reconsideration 
may invalidate a subsequent judicial appeal. Additionally, pursuant to Idaho State Statute 
67-6521, any affected person aggrieved by a final decision may, within 28 days after all 
remedies have been exhausted under local ordinances, seek judicial review as provided in 
chapter 52, Title 67. 

Additionally, please take notice that Applicant has a right to request a regulatory taking 
analysis pursuant to Idaho State Statute section 67-8003. 

3 



S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

SS

REED'S LANDING SUBDIVISION
PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR

20300P
R

O
FE

SSIONA L    ENGINEER

S TAT E   O F   I DAH O

LICENSED

R
EE

D
'S

 L
A

N
D

IN
G

 S
U

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N

PR
EL

IM
IN

A
R

Y 
PL

A
T

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
M

ID
D

LE
TO

N
,

C
A

N
YO

N
 C

O
U

N
TY

, I
D

A
H

O

LEGEND

PRELIMINARY PLAT

LAYOUT

C1.00

B
A

S
IS

 O
F

 B
E

A
R

IN
G

N
89°44'07"E

 1351.40'

PROJECT
LOCATION

A PARCEL OF LAND SITUATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, RANGE 3 WEST. BOISE MERIDIAN, 
CITY OF MIDDLETON CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO. 

-2022-

EXISTING 1 O" 
SAN. SEWER 

SURVEYOR'S STAMP 

C ti 

J 

EXISTING 
FENCE TO 

REMAIN 

EXISTING 
12• GIRR 

TO BE PIPED 
SEE NOTE 30 

POINT OF 
DIVERSION 

EXISTING FENCE TO 
BE REMOVED FROM 
IRRIGATION 
DISTRICT EASEMENT WESTWOOD 

SUBDIVISION 

ZONE R-3 
TOTAL 
ACREAGE: 4.09 

ZONE X: NO BFE 

ROURKE YEAKLEY 
393 N MAGNOLIA 
PL 

CARRIE BROOKS 
389 N MAGNOLIA 
PL 

VIRGINIA 
MOBERLY 
367 N MAGNOLIA 
PL 

SUSAN WINDER 
345 N MAGNOLIA 
PL. 

.ERALD LOVE 
323 N MAGNOLIA 
PL 

15' IRRIGATION .. 
EASEMENT ----136.22' _----

BLOCK 2 

101.63' 

2 
8670 S.F. b 
0.20 AC. 0 

iri ao 
NEW PROPOSED 
FENCE 
102.06' 

1 
8764 S.F. ~ 
0.20 AC. 10 
20' IRRIGATION ao 

1 EASEMENT 
,'f' "' -102.50•- - -

•45• 43•w 330:-83' · 

98.60' 91.45' 

ENCHMARK 
ISLED 'X' IN BSW 
VD88 - ' 

"t.4• 6' 89.02' 

~ COMMON LANDSCAPE 
LOT 

5 °'--- 6 8136 S.F. "! 8655 S.F. 
0.19 AC. ~ 0.20 AC. 

'ls\1---76.39' --i 

54.70' 89.57' 

b 
<O 
iri 
0) 

52.95' ,,,.-69.89' 

3 ~ 
8638 S.F. ad 
0.20 AC. r-

,.; 
~ 

120.55' 

b 2 
N 9118 S.F. 
10 0.21 AC. r- ffi~ iz 

-----~~:=;--~~ 
120.57' g cn 

4 
12326 S.F. 
0.28 AC. 

BL 

LOT 

7 
8651 S.F. 
0.20 AC. 

30.33' 

UMP HOUSE (/l i'.5 

t: 1 ~ 18 
...,: 9388 S.F. l ~ 
r- 0.22 AC. 

COMM~100.03' 

STORM 
DRAINAGE 

rr= -
II 2719i S.F. 

~ _j62 AC • 

--------- -

b 
U) 
I') 
0) 

53.22' 

SHERWOOD ESTATES 
SUBDIVISION 

/ 
ZONE: R-3 

KATHLENE MCKEEVER 
27 SHIRE ST 

-----ci,---'=====:;;aiii-'='=~ ----i-,--------r-

CONNECT TO 
EXISTING SSM 
RIM: 2405.74 
t BOTTOM: 2 1.62 

JEFFERY CLAYPOOL 
276 SOUTHWELL CT 

ZONE AE: 
2405' BFE 
2407' MIN. FF 

CONNECT TO 
EXISTING 8" 

WATER MAIN 

ZONE: R-3 

Ss~ 

ZONE: MF 

AUDRA VAN 50' HUCKLEBERRY 
VLIET l-t""t:F"'-iJ1- STREET ROW 

OLIA 0 3= STEPHANIE 

® SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE 

® VALVE ... FIRE HYDRANT 

@I 
WATER MANHOLE 

Ill CURB INLET 

~ SAND AND GREASE lRAP 

eCJ SlREET LIGHT 

e WATER METER 

n STUB-OUT 

ml GRAVITY IRRIGATION BOX 

ZONE MF 
TOTAL 
ACREAGE: 2.98 

PL 299 N MAGNOLIA ERICA LAPOSSE 

X 

-----

l"W 

.... 
--------

-12:"aa-

THE COTTAGES 
SUBDIVISION 

FENCE 

CENTERLINE 

LOT LINE 

8" WATER LINE 

10" SEWER LINE 

EASEMENT 

12" GRAVITY 
IRRIGATION 

4" PRESSURE 
IRRIGATION 

LAND USE SUMMARY 

TOTAL AREA: 
TOTAL LOTS: 
RESIDENTIAL LOTS: 
COMMON AREA LOTS: 

WITH SWALES: 

OTHER: 

9.45 AC. 
43 LOTS 
37 LOTS 
6 LOTS 
3 LOTS 
LOT 5 BLOCK 1 
LOT 9 BLOCK 3 
LOT 11 BLOCK 3 
3 LOTS 
LOT 9 BLOCK 2 
LOT 1 BLOCK 3 
LOT 19 BLOCK 3 

COMMERCIAL AREA: 2.42 AC. 
OPEN SP ACE AREA: 44992 SQ. FT. 
OPEN SPACE AREA PERCENTAGE: 11,C 

305 N MAGN l LESTELLE-VEHNEKAMP 

PL 297 N MAGNOLIA ZONE: MF 
1 PL 

ZONE: C-3 EXISTING SSMH 
RIM: 2402.28 

t INV: 2393.88 

93.21' 

116.72' 

ZONE: MF 

CONNECT TO 
EXISTING 8" 
WATER MAIN 

EXISTING SSMH 

1024 S.F •. --i<c----­
.. 0.02 AC. ~O~ 210_93,,-X--s:::::-----I_ 

. VERONICA KELESKE 
821 LIONHEART ST. 

ZONE: MF 
COMMON LANDSCAPE 
LOT 

JERE IAH FIELDING 
1024 W MAIN ST. 

---

MICHAEL RENK 
12106 W MAIN 
ST MICHAEL RANK 

SUBDIVISION 
-~ 

x------------­
x-------------X 

FITNESS CENTER LLC 
1008 W MAIN ST 

T PHASE 2 18' SANITARY j 
WELLSTONE COMMERCIAL SEWER EASEMENT 

C-3 

SUBDIVISION INSlRUMENT fl: 200521623 I 
I 
I 
I 

SECT. SECT. 7 
SECT. 1 SECT. 12 

I 

~I 

>-
~ 

o. I 
Le c., 

I 

~I 
<C I 

~I 

CONNECT TO 
EXISTING 8" I 
WATER LINE I 

/~ I I 
I I 

11-----tn 

i--~ ---tt-- 50' SHIRE STREET ROW -:___ ___ t=...:_-l.=E_-_:2=3:::.99=: • .LO~-=-•--/ ~ 1------'--,-f--50' LIONHEART SlREET ROW \-------~ -----~~--G--------GJ GOLDEN WILLOW I 
INVESTMENTS Lif 
1002 W MAIN S I 

APPROXIMATE FLOOD ZONE TEMPORA Y WATER LINE CAP 
(TO BE FINISHED PHASE 2) BOUNDARY LINE 

~ ~~ 50' 0 50' 1 0 ' PHASE 1 

I 
I 
I 

I 

I 
I 

o; 
u: z 

0 IQ F z 

Ill~ 
c.. .... 
a:: 2 
(.) 2 

U) 0 
U) 0 z LLJ IQ 

0 Cl a:: z .... 

:c~ 
U) .... z 
5 2 z 
LLJ ~ s 
a:: 0 t ~ u 0 

>- ~ ~ ID N 

~ ~ ~ 
< ~ r-
Cl ' ~ d 
z 

THIS DOCUMENT AND THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN 
MAY NOT BE COPIED OR REPRODUCED WITHOUT EXPRESS 

WRITTEN PERMISSION OF HECO ENGINEERS. 

UNAUTHORIZED DISCLOSURE OR CONSTRUCTION USE ARE 
PROHIBITED BY COPYRIGHT LAW. 

ORIGINAL DOCUMENTS STORED AT: 
HECO ENGINEERS CORPORATE OFFICE 

32 N. MAIN, 
PAYETTE, IDAHO 

PROJECT NO.: PR21-0363 

DESIGNED BY: T. GRENZ 

DRAWN BY: T. GRENZ 

DWG QC BY: J. WARD 

DESIGN QC BY: J. EIXENBERGER 

g "ll o: ______ __,,.R~ES.....,IDEN-llAI..~-'\ J- • • -- L ___ __:::============::....:. _ _.:'.._ ____________________ .=_ ___________ ~--~-~ --------:._ _______________________________________________________ ...,L ______________ __. ~£g 
SHEET 1 OF 2 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE: MF

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE: C-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE: MF

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE: C-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE: R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE: MF

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE MF TOTAL ACREAGE:2.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE C-3 TOTAL ACREAGE:2.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE: R-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE: MF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHIRE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIONHEART STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORSETAIL COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAPYRUS AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE R-3 TOTAL ACREAGE:4.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE X: NO BFE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE:  2405' BFE 2407' MIN. FF

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE HIGHWAY 44

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND USE SUMMARY TOTAL AREA:    9.45 AC. 9.45 AC. TOTAL LOTS:    43 LOTS 43 LOTS RESIDENTIAL LOTS:   37 LOTS 37 LOTS COMMON AREA LOTS:   6 LOTS 6 LOTS WITH SWALES:   3 LOTS 3 LOTS LOT 5 BLOCK 1 LOT 9 BLOCK 3 LOT 11 BLOCK 3 OTHER:    3 LOTS 3 LOTS LOT 9 BLOCK 2 LOT 1 BLOCK 3 LOT 19 BLOCK 3 COMMERCIAL AREA:   2.42 AC. 2.42 AC. OPEN SPACE AREA:  44992 SQ. FT.  44992 SQ. FT. OPEN SPACE AREA PERCENTAGE: 11% 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG QC BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN QC BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DOCUMENT AND THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN MAY NOT BE COPIED OR REPRODUCED WITHOUT EXPRESS WRITTEN PERMISSION OF HECO ENGINEERS. UNAUTHORIZED DISCLOSURE OR CONSTRUCTION USE ARE PROHIBITED BY COPYRIGHT LAW. ORIGINAL DOCUMENTS STORED AT: HECO ENGINEERS CORPORATE OFFICE 32 N. MAIN, PAYETTE, IDAHO

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR21-0363

AutoCAD SHX Text
T. GRENZ

AutoCAD SHX Text
T. GRENZ

AutoCAD SHX Text
J. WARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
J. EIXENBERGER

AutoCAD SHX Text
A PARCEL OF LAND SITUATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, RANGE 3 WEST. BOISE MERIDIAN, CITY OF MIDDLETON CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO. -2022-

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE COTTAGES SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
WESTWOOD SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTTINGHAM GREENS SUBDIVISION NO. 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHERWOOD ESTATES SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELLSTONE SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON STORM DRAINAGE LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON LANDSCAPE LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON STORM DRAINAGE LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK CHISLED 'X' IN BSW ELEV. (NAVD88)= 2404.44'

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON LANDSCAPE LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAILBOX CLUSTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON LANDSCAPE LOTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE VALVE FIRE HYDRANT WATER MANHOLE CURB INLET SAND AND GREASE TRAP STREET LIGHT WATER METER STUB-OUT GRAVITY IRRIGATION BOX FENCE  CENTERLINE LOT LINE 8" WATER LINE 10" SEWER LINE EASEMENT 12" GRAVITY  IRRIGATION 4" PRESSURE  IRRIGATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WMTR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECT TO EXISTING SSMH RIM: 2405.74   BOTTOM: 2401.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECT TO EXISTING SSMH RIM: 2403.96'   BOTTOM: 2397.74'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SSMH   I.E -2399.09'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 6" SAN. SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 10" SAN. SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECT TO  EXISTING 8"  WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECT TO EXISTING 8" WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF  DIVERSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUMP HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/11/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZM

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROURKE YEAKLEY 393 N MAGNOLIA PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARRIE BROOKS 389 N MAGNOLIA PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VIRGINIA MOBERLY 367 N MAGNOLIA PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUSAN WINDER 345 N MAGNOLIA PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JERALD LOVE 323 N MAGNOLIA PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUDRA VAN VLIET 305 N MAGNOLIA PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPHANIE LESTELLE-VEHNEKAMP 299 N MAGNOLIA PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ERICA LAPOSSE 297 N MAGNOLIA PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LARRY R CUPP 406 GARDEN COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDON HELGESON 405 GARDEN COURT

AutoCAD SHX Text
KATHLENE MCKEEVER 827 SHIRE ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
JEFFERY CLAYPOOL 276 SOUTHWELL CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DARRYL HUDGENS JR  250 SOUTHWELL CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
JASON GREEN 224 SOUTHWELL CT

AutoCAD SHX Text
IDAHO CONFERENCE OF SEVENTH DAY ADVENTISTS 421 CEMETERY RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHAEL RENK 12106 W MAIN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTTINGHAM GREENS HOA INC 0 MARIAN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/27/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY/PLANNER COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TG

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
File Location: g:\clients\pr\pr21-0363\design\civil\pr21-0363 preliminary plat 7-22.dwg g:\clients\pr\pr21-0363\design\civil\pr21-0363 preliminary plat 7-22.dwg Plotted By: elliot stauffer elliot stauffer Date Plotted: Thursday, July 28 2022 at 11:17 AMThursday, July 28 2022 at 11:17 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
76.38'

AutoCAD SHX Text
83.10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FENCE TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 12" GIRR  TO BE PIPED SEE NOTE 30 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW PROPOSED  FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 1 RESIDENTIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BERM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALKING PATHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECT TO EXISTING 8" WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE FLOOD ZONE BOUNDARY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING 5' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WELL TO BE ABANDONED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 2 COMMERCIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHAEL RANK SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE COTTAGES SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERONICA KELESKE 821 LIONHEART ST. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
JEREMIAH FIELDING  1024 W MAIN ST. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
M AND C GROW PROPERTIES LLC  1020 W MAIN ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
H30 LLC 1012 W  MAIN ST 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FITNESS CENTER LLC 1008 W MAIN ST 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOLDEN WILLOW INVESTMENTS LLC 1002 W MAIN ST 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY WALKING  PATH TO SH44

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SEPTIC DRAINFIELD  TO BE ABANDONED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SEPTIC DRAINFIELD TO BE ABANDONED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SEPTIC DRAINFIELD TO BE ABANDONED

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW SSMH INV: 2393.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'X30'  OPTIONAL INGRESS/EGRESS EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SSMH RIM: 2402.28   INV: 2393.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECT TO EXISTING 8" WATER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEMETERY RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. MAGNOLIA PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIONHEART ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHIRE ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HUCKLEBERRY ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. MAIN ST./STATE HIGHWAY 44

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHER RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHERWOOD RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. HALVERSON ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALIANT ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCORD ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CASTLE ROCK AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAIRHAVEN RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARDEN CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECT. 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECT. 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECT. 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECT. 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
E. 1/16

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW SSMH INV: 2393.54'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FENCE TO BE REMOVED FROM  IRRIGATION  DISTRICT EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY WATER LINE CAP (TO BE FINISHED PHASE 2) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYOR'S STAMP



Curve Table

20300

REED'S LANDING SUBDIVISION
PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR

 NOTES:

LINE TABLE

PRELIMINARY PLAT

NOTES & DETAILS

C1.01

1 50' ROAD SECTION
SCALE:  NTS 2 37' ROAD SECTION

SCALE:  NTS

A PARCEL OF LAND SITUATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, 
RANGE 3 WEST. BOISE MERIDIAN, CITY OF MIDDLETON CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO. 

1. CONTOUR AND SPOT ELEVATION DATA IS REFERENCED TO NAVO '88 DATUM. 

2. ALL STREETS PROPOSED IN TI·IIS DEVELOPMENT ARE PUBLIC STREETS AND SHALL 
BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CITY OF MIDDLETON STANDARDS FOR 
PUBLIC STREETS. 

3. BLOCK 1, LOT 5; BLOCK 3 LOT 9 AND 13 ARE COMMON LOTS TO BE USED FOR 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT AND SUBJECT TO A BLANKET UTILITY AND STORMWATER 
EASEMENT. BLOCK 2 LOT 9; BLOCK 3, LOT 1 AND LOT 21 ARE COMMON LOTS. 
BLOCK 3 LOTS 10-12 ARE COMMERCIAL. 

4. STORMWATER RUN-OFF GENERATED ON TI·IIS SITE SHALL HAVE A QUALITY CONTROL 
TREAlMENT PRIOR TO BEING CONVEYED TO ONSITE STORAGE FACILITIES. 

5. PUBLIC UTILITIES SHALL INCLUDE WATER, SEWER, ELECTRIC POWER, NATURAL GAS, 
TELEPHONE, CABLE TELEVISION, AND FIBER. FIBER SHALL BE EITHER INSTALLED OR 
CONDUIT SHALL BE PROVIDED FOR FUTURE INSTALLATION. 

6. BUILDING SETBACKS AND DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
THE CITY OF MIDDLETON'S ZONING CODE THAT IS IN EFFECT AT THE TIME OF 
BUILDING PERMIT ISSUANCE" 

7. DOMESTIC AND FIRE PROTECTION WATER SHALL BE PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF 
MIDDLETON. 

8. IRRIGATION DITCHES THROUGH THE PROJECT SHALL BE PIPED WHERE THEY CROSS 
ROADWAYS WITH ALL STRUCTURES LOCATED BEYOND ANY PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY. 
ALL IRRIGATION AND DRAINAGE FACILITIES SHALL BE LOCATED OUTSIDE OF THE 
RIGHT-OF-WAY. 

9. ANY RE-SUBDIVISION OF THIS PLAT SHALL COMPLY WITH THE APPLICABLE ZONING 
REGULATIONS IN AFFECT AT THE TIME OF THE RE-SUBDIVISION. 

10.. THE OWNER WILL PROVIDE IRRIGATION WATER TO EACH LOT THROUGH A 
PRESSURIZED IRRIGATION SYSTEM, TO BE OWNED AND MAINTAINED BY THE REED'S 
LANDING SUBDIVISION HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE IDAHO 
CODE SECTION 31-3805(1)(8). ALL LOTS WILL BE SUBJECT TO ASSESSMENTS OF 
THE MIDDLETON MILL DITCH IRRIGATION DISTRICT. 

11. THE NORTHERN PORTIONS OF BLOCKS 1 AND 2 ARE WITHIN ZONE X, AND THE 
SOUTHERN PORTIONS OF BLOCKS 1 AND 2 AND ALL OF BLOCK 3 IS WITHIN FLOOD 
ZONE AE OF THE FLOOD INSURANCE RA TE MAP NO. 16027C0253G, COMMUNITY 
PANEL NO. 0253 G WHICH BEAR AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF 06/07/2019 AND IS NOT 
IN A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA. 

12. ALL EXISTING WELLS SHALL BE ABANDONED PER IDWR REGULATIONS. ALL SEPTIC 
SYSTEMS SHALL BE COMPLETELY REMOVED AND THE AREA RECOMPACTED PER 
GEOTECHNICAL REPORT. 

13. UTILITIES SHOWN ARE BASED ON THE BEST AVAILABLE INFORMATION. FINAL DESIGN 
MAY VARY SLIGHTLY TO ACCOMMODATE FACTORS NOT KNOWN AT THE TIME THIS 
PRELIMINARY PLAT WAS PREPARED. FINAL DESIGN SHALL MEET ALL CITY OF 
MIDDLETON REQUIREMENTS. 

14. SANITARY SEWER SERVICE WILL BE PROVIDED BY CITY OF MIDDLETON. 

15. SEWER AND WATER CAPACITY WILL BE RESERVED AT THE TIME CITY APPROVES THE 
CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS AND IS SYSTEM CAPACITY DEPENDENT. 

-2022-

16. ALL LOTS HAVE A PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES AND PEDESTRIAN 
WALKWAYS OVER THE 10' ADJACENT TO ANY PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY. THIS 
EASEMENT SHALL NOT PRECLUDE THE CONSTRUCTION OF HARD-SURFACED 
DRIVEWAYS AND WALKWAYS TO EACH LOT. 

17. UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN AND DIMENSIONED, ALL LOTS ARE HEREBY DESIGNATED 
AS HAVING A PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES, DRAINAGE, AND 
IRRIGATION OVER THE 5-FEET ADJACENT TO ANY INTERIOR SIDE LOT LINE (WITH 
EXCEPTION TO TOWNHOME LOTS) AND OVER 10-FEET ADJACENT TO ANY REAR LOT 
LINE OR SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY. 

18. MAILBOX CLUSTER TO BE INSTALLED BY OWNER AS SHOWN ON PRELIMINARY PLAT. 

19. HYDRANT LOCATION AND CONFIGURATION TO BE REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY 
MIDDLETON RURAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT. 

20.. WAIVER REQUESTED FOR REQUIREMENT THAT FENCING BE LOCATED ON SUBDIVISION 
PERIMETER BOUNDARY (MCC 5-4-11-2) IN ORDER TO ACCOMMODATE DITCH. 

22. NEW 15' IRRIGATION EASEMENT LOCATED ON NORTH SIDE OF BLOCK 2. 

23. CC&RS TO CONTAIN PROVISION REQUIRING HOA TO MAINTAIN 15' WIDE IRRIGATION 
EASEMENT AREA BETWEEN REAR FENCES ON LOTS 1-4, BLOCK 2 AND THE 
CANAL/DITCH. 

24. THERE IS A "BLANKET" RIGHT OF WAY ACROSS LOT 9, BLOCK 3 IN THE EVENT ITD 
DENIES ACCESS 

TO THE COMMERCIAL LOT AND ACCESS NEEDS TO PROCEED THROUGH THE COMMON 
LOT AND 

RESIDENTIAL AREA. 

25. PARCEL NO. R177900011 IS OWNED BY JOAN REED AND IS TO BE DEDICATED TO 
IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARlMENT OR CITY OF MIDDLETON AT FINAL PLAT. 

26. SEWER PIPE WILL BE REQUIRED TO BE C-900 PIPE AND/OR FILL PLACED ACROSS 
THE SITE TO ACHIEVE AT LEAST 3FT OF COVER. 

27. EXISTING STRUCTURES WILL BE REMOVED AS A CONDITION OF FINAL PLAT UNLESS 
ALL CODE REQUIREMENTS INCLUDING SETBACKS AND DIMENSIONS ARE MET. 

28. THE HOME OWNER'S ASSOCIATION {HOA), OWNS AND MANAGES THE COMMON AREAS 
WHICH INCLUDES STORMWATER FACILITIES. A PLAN FOR OPERATION, MAINTENANCE, 
AND REPAIR OF STORMWATER FACILITIES {O&M PLAN) WILL BE PREPARED FOR ALL 
STORMWATER FACILITIES MAINTAINED BY THE HOA. THE O&M PLAN SHALL BE 
RECORDED WITH THE DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS, AND RESTRICTIONS 
(CC&Rs). THE O&M PLANS SHALL BE USED FOR MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION OF 
THE STORMWATER FACILITY. 

29. COMMERCIAL ACCESS TO SH-44 AND LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS TO BE COMPLETED 
DURING PHASE 2 DEVELOPMENT. 

30. EXISTING 12" IRRIGATION DITCH TO BE PIPED AT TIME OF CONSTRUCTION. 

CONCRETE SIDEWALK WITH 
FIBER MESH, 5" THICKNESS 

ITEM 7O6.4.1.E.1 

3" OF PLANT MIX PAVEMENT 
ITEM 81O.4.1.A.1 

CONCRETE SIDEWALK WITH 
FIBER MESH, 5" THICKNESS 

ITEM 7O6.4.1.E.1 
4" OF CRUSHED AGGREGATE 

BASE TYPE 1, ITEM 8O2.4.1.A.1 

4" OF CRUSHED AGGREGATE 
BASE TYPE 1, ITEM 8O2.4.1.A.1 

6" OF CRUSHED AGGREGATE BASE TYPE 1, 
ITEM 8O2.4.1.A.1 

15" OF UNCRUSHED AGGREGATE SUBBASE, 
ITEM 8O1.4.1.A.1 

STANDARD 3" ROLLED CURB & 
GUTTER, ITEM 7O6.4.1.A.1 

CURVE 

C1 

C2 

C3 

C4 

C5 

C6 

C7 

CB 

C9 

C10 

C11 

C12 

C13 

C14 

C15 

C16 

C17 

C18 

C19 

C20 

C21 

C22 

LENGTH 

120.82' 

120.82' 

120.82' 

104.71' 

36.95' 

41.74' 

29.15' 

29.15' 

11.84' 

32.91' 

33.94' 

18.96' 

33.94' 

46.82' 

125.73' 

77. 73' 

77. 73' 

106.14' 

106.14' 

106.14' 

41.96' 

41.96' 

RADIUS DELTA CHORD BEARING 

75.00' 092.30 N44'24'21"W 

75.00' 092.30 N44'24'21"W 

75.00' 092.30 N44'24'21"W 

65.00' 092.30 S44'24'23"E 

25.00' 084.68 S45"57'14"W 

25.00' 095.66 N44i3'10"W 

20.00' 083.52 N46i1'28"E 

20.00' 083 .. 52 N46i1'28"E 

53.00' 012.80 N10"49'54"E 

53.00' 035.58 N35"01 '17"E 

53.00' 036.69 N71 '09'31 "E 

25.00' 043.46 N20'59'54"W 

53.00' 036.69 N71 '09'31 "E 

50.00' 053.65 N62'40' 46"E 

50.00' 144.08 S72"06'25"E 

50.00' 089.08 S44'28'16"W 

so.co· 089.08 S44'28'16"W 

71.50' 085.05 S46"58'39"W 

71.50' 085.05 S46"58'39"W 

71.50' 085.05 S46"58'39"W 

25.00' 096.17 S43"38'03"E 

25.00' 096.17 S43"38'03"E 

3" OF PLANT MIX PAVEMENT 
ITEM 81O.4.1.A.1 

CHORD LENGTH 

108.17' 

108.17' 

108.17' 

93.75' 

33.67' 

37.06' 

26.64' 

26.64' 

11.81' 

32.39' 

33.36' 

18.51' 

33.36' 

45.13' 

95.13' 

70.14' 

70.14' 

96.66' 

96.66' 

96.66' 

37.21' 

37.21' 

6" OF CRUSHED AGGREGATE BASE TYPE 1, 
ITEM 8O2.4.1.A.1 
15" OF UNCRUSHED AGGREGATE SUBBASE, 
ITEM 8O1.4.1.A.1 

STANDARD 3" ROLLED CURB & 
GUTTER, ITEM 7O6.4.1.A.1 

LINE BEARING LENGTH 

L-1 S3"08'47" 18.1900 

L-2 S48'54'27" 50.4400 

L-3 Noi5•53•w 40.0000 

o; 
u~ 
w! 
:c~ 

(/) 
z 
0 
ui 
5 
LL.I 
a:: 

z 
0 
F a.. 
a:: u 
(/) 
LL.I 
Cl 

d 
z 

I!! z 
i..J 
::ii 
::ii 
0 
u 

I!! 0::: 
ffi i..J z ::ii z 
::ii ~ 8 ? ~ 
u u 

THIS DOCUMENT AND THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN 
MAY NOT BE COPIED OR REPRODUCED \\1THOUT EXPRESS 

WRITTEN PERMISSION OF HECO ENGINEERS. 

UNAUTHORIZED DISCLOSURE OR CONSTRUCTION USE ARE 
PROHIBITED BY COPYRIGHT LAW. 

ORIGINAL DOCUMENTS STORED AT: 
HECO ENGINEERS CORPORA lE OFFICE 

32 N. MAIN, 
PAYETTE. IDAHO 

z 
0 -U) -> -C 
m 
=> 
U) 

(!) 0 
z :I: 

<C - ~c 
C I- z_ 

0 ~ z <C 
I- ~ ...J 

<( D.. ~z 
...J ~ C ::::> co 
U) <C -o z :E: - LL z C -::!!l: oo w -...J >> w w I- z 
0::: 0::: -<C 

D.. 00 

PROJECT NO.: PR21-0363 

DESIGNED BY: T. GRENZ 

DRAWN BY: T. GRENZ 

DWG QC BY: J. WARD 

DESIGN QC BY: J. EIXENBERGER 

SHEET 2 OF 2 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" OF PLANT MIX PAVEMENT ITEM 810.4.1.A.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" OF CRUSHED AGGREGATE BASE TYPE 1, ITEM 802.4.1.A.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
15" OF UNCRUSHED AGGREGATE SUBBASE, ITEM 801.4.1.A.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE SIDEWALK WITH FIBER MESH, 5" THICKNESS ITEM 706.4.1.E.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" OF CRUSHED AGGREGATE BASE TYPE 1, ITEM 802.4.1.A.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD 3" ROLLED CURB & GUTTER, ITEM 706.4.1.A.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" OF PLANT MIX PAVEMENT ITEM 810.4.1.A.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" OF CRUSHED AGGREGATE BASE TYPE 1, ITEM 802.4.1.A.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
15" OF UNCRUSHED AGGREGATE SUBBASE, ITEM 801.4.1.A.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE SIDEWALK WITH FIBER MESH, 5" THICKNESS ITEM 706.4.1.E.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" OF CRUSHED AGGREGATE BASE TYPE 1, ITEM 802.4.1.A.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD 3" ROLLED CURB & GUTTER, ITEM 706.4.1.A.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG QC BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN QC BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DOCUMENT AND THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN MAY NOT BE COPIED OR REPRODUCED WITHOUT EXPRESS WRITTEN PERMISSION OF HECO ENGINEERS. UNAUTHORIZED DISCLOSURE OR CONSTRUCTION USE ARE PROHIBITED BY COPYRIGHT LAW. ORIGINAL DOCUMENTS STORED AT: HECO ENGINEERS CORPORATE OFFICE 32 N. MAIN, PAYETTE, IDAHO

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR21-0363

AutoCAD SHX Text
T. GRENZ

AutoCAD SHX Text
T. GRENZ

AutoCAD SHX Text
J. WARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
J. EIXENBERGER

AutoCAD SHX Text
A PARCEL OF LAND SITUATED IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, RANGE 3 WEST. BOISE MERIDIAN, CITY OF MIDDLETON CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO. -2022-

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. CONTOUR AND SPOT ELEVATION DATA IS REFERENCED TO NAVD '88 DATUM. CONTOUR AND SPOT ELEVATION DATA IS REFERENCED TO NAVD '88 DATUM. 2. ALL STREETS PROPOSED IN THIS DEVELOPMENT ARE PUBLIC STREETS AND SHALL ALL STREETS PROPOSED IN THIS DEVELOPMENT ARE PUBLIC STREETS AND SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CITY OF MIDDLETON STANDARDS FOR PUBLIC STREETS. 3. BLOCK 1, LOT 5; BLOCK 3 LOT 9 AND 13 ARE COMMON LOTS TO BE USED FOR BLOCK 1, LOT 5; BLOCK 3 LOT 9 AND 13 ARE COMMON LOTS TO BE USED FOR STORMWATER MANAGEMENT AND SUBJECT TO A BLANKET UTILITY AND STORMWATER EASEMENT. BLOCK 2 LOT 9; BLOCK 3, LOT 1 AND LOT 21 ARE COMMON LOTS. BLOCK 3 LOTS 10-12 ARE COMMERCIAL.  4. STORMWATER RUN-OFF GENERATED ON THIS SITE SHALL HAVE A QUALITY CONTROL STORMWATER RUN-OFF GENERATED ON THIS SITE SHALL HAVE A QUALITY CONTROL TREATMENT PRIOR TO BEING CONVEYED TO ONSITE STORAGE FACILITIES. 5. PUBLIC UTILITIES SHALL INCLUDE WATER, SEWER, ELECTRIC POWER, NATURAL GAS, PUBLIC UTILITIES SHALL INCLUDE WATER, SEWER, ELECTRIC POWER, NATURAL GAS, TELEPHONE, CABLE TELEVISION, AND FIBER. FIBER SHALL BE EITHER INSTALLED OR CONDUIT SHALL BE PROVIDED FOR FUTURE INSTALLATION. 6. BUILDING SETBACKS AND DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH BUILDING SETBACKS AND DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CITY OF MIDDLETON'S ZONING CODE THAT IS IN EFFECT AT THE TIME OF BUILDING PERMIT ISSUANCE" 7. DOMESTIC AND FIRE PROTECTION WATER SHALL BE PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF DOMESTIC AND FIRE PROTECTION WATER SHALL BE PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF MIDDLETON. 8. IRRIGATION DITCHES THROUGH THE PROJECT SHALL BE PIPED WHERE THEY CROSS IRRIGATION DITCHES THROUGH THE PROJECT SHALL BE PIPED WHERE THEY CROSS ROADWAYS WITH ALL STRUCTURES LOCATED BEYOND ANY PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY. ALL IRRIGATION AND DRAINAGE FACILITIES SHALL BE LOCATED OUTSIDE OF THE RIGHT-OF-WAY. 9. ANY RE-SUBDIVISION OF THIS PLAT SHALL COMPLY WITH THE APPLICABLE ZONING ANY RE-SUBDIVISION OF THIS PLAT SHALL COMPLY WITH THE APPLICABLE ZONING REGULATIONS IN AFFECT AT THE TIME OF THE RE-SUBDIVISION. 10. THE OWNER WILL PROVIDE IRRIGATION WATER TO EACH LOT THROUGH A THE OWNER WILL PROVIDE IRRIGATION WATER TO EACH LOT THROUGH A PRESSURIZED IRRIGATION SYSTEM, TO BE OWNED AND MAINTAINED BY THE REED'S LANDING SUBDIVISION HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE IDAHO CODE SECTION 31-3805(1)(B). ALL LOTS WILL BE SUBJECT TO ASSESSMENTS OF THE MIDDLETON MILL DITCH IRRIGATION DISTRICT. 11. THE NORTHERN PORTIONS OF BLOCKS 1 AND 2 ARE WITHIN ZONE X, AND THE THE NORTHERN PORTIONS OF BLOCKS 1 AND 2 ARE WITHIN ZONE X, AND THE SOUTHERN PORTIONS OF BLOCKS 1 AND 2 AND ALL OF BLOCK 3 IS WITHIN FLOOD ZONE AE OF THE FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP NO. 16027C0253G, COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 0253 G WHICH BEAR AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF 06/07/2019 AND IS NOT IN A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA. 12. ALL EXISTING WELLS SHALL BE ABANDONED PER IDWR REGULATIONS. ALL SEPTIC ALL EXISTING WELLS SHALL BE ABANDONED PER IDWR REGULATIONS. ALL SEPTIC SYSTEMS SHALL BE COMPLETELY REMOVED AND THE AREA RECOMPACTED PER GEOTECHNICAL REPORT. 13. UTILITIES SHOWN ARE BASED ON THE BEST AVAILABLE INFORMATION. FINAL DESIGN UTILITIES SHOWN ARE BASED ON THE BEST AVAILABLE INFORMATION. FINAL DESIGN MAY VARY SLIGHTLY TO ACCOMMODATE FACTORS NOT KNOWN AT THE TIME THIS PRELIMINARY PLAT WAS PREPARED. FINAL DESIGN SHALL MEET ALL CITY OF MIDDLETON REQUIREMENTS. 14. SANITARY SEWER SERVICE WILL BE PROVIDED BY CITY OF MIDDLETON. SANITARY SEWER SERVICE WILL BE PROVIDED BY CITY OF MIDDLETON. 15. SEWER AND WATER CAPACITY WILL BE RESERVED AT THE TIME CITY APPROVES THE SEWER AND WATER CAPACITY WILL BE RESERVED AT THE TIME CITY APPROVES THE CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS AND IS SYSTEM CAPACITY DEPENDENT.  16. ALL LOTS HAVE A PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES AND PEDESTRIAN ALL LOTS HAVE A PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES AND PEDESTRIAN WALKWAYS OVER THE 10' ADJACENT TO ANY PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY. THIS EASEMENT SHALL NOT PRECLUDE THE CONSTRUCTION OF HARD-SURFACED DRIVEWAYS AND WALKWAYS TO EACH LOT. 17. UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN AND DIMENSIONED, ALL LOTS ARE HEREBY DESIGNATED UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN AND DIMENSIONED, ALL LOTS ARE HEREBY DESIGNATED AS HAVING A PERMANENT EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES, DRAINAGE, AND IRRIGATION OVER THE 5-FEET ADJACENT TO ANY INTERIOR SIDE LOT LINE (WITH EXCEPTION TO TOWNHOME LOTS) AND OVER 10-FEET ADJACENT TO ANY REAR LOT LINE OR SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY. 18. MAILBOX CLUSTER TO BE INSTALLED BY OWNER AS SHOWN ON PRELIMINARY PLAT. MAILBOX CLUSTER TO BE INSTALLED BY OWNER AS SHOWN ON PRELIMINARY PLAT. 19. HYDRANT LOCATION AND CONFIGURATION TO BE REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY HYDRANT LOCATION AND CONFIGURATION TO BE REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY MIDDLETON RURAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT. 20. WAIVER REQUESTED FOR REQUIREMENT THAT FENCING BE LOCATED ON SUBDIVISION WAIVER REQUESTED FOR REQUIREMENT THAT FENCING BE LOCATED ON SUBDIVISION PERIMETER BOUNDARY (MCC 5-4-11-2) IN ORDER TO ACCOMMODATE DITCH.  22.  NEW 15' IRRIGATION EASEMENT LOCATED ON NORTH SIDE OF BLOCK 2. NEW 15' IRRIGATION EASEMENT LOCATED ON NORTH SIDE OF BLOCK 2.  23.  CC&RS TO CONTAIN PROVISION REQUIRING HOA TO MAINTAIN 15' WIDE IRRIGATION CC&RS TO CONTAIN PROVISION REQUIRING HOA TO MAINTAIN 15' WIDE IRRIGATION EASEMENT AREA BETWEEN REAR FENCES ON LOTS 1-4, BLOCK 2 AND THE CANAL/DITCH.  24. THERE IS A "BLANKET" RIGHT OF WAY ACROSS LOT 9, BLOCK 3 IN THE EVENT ITD DENIES ACCESS      TO THE COMMERCIAL LOT AND ACCESS NEEDS TO PROCEED THROUGH THE COMMON LOT AND      RESIDENTIAL AREA.  25. PARCEL NO. R177900011 IS OWNED BY JOAN REED AND IS TO BE DEDICATED TO IDAHO TRANSPORTATION DEPARTMENT OR CITY OF MIDDLETON AT FINAL PLAT.   26. SEWER PIPE WILL BE REQUIRED TO BE C-900 PIPE AND/OR FILL PLACED ACROSS THE SITE TO ACHIEVE AT LEAST 3FT OF COVER.  27. EXISTING STRUCTURES WILL BE REMOVED AS A CONDITION OF FINAL PLAT UNLESS ALL CODE REQUIREMENTS INCLUDING SETBACKS AND DIMENSIONS ARE MET.  28. THE HOME OWNER'S ASSOCIATION (HOA), OWNS AND MANAGES THE COMMON AREAS WHICH INCLUDES STORMWATER FACILITIES. A PLAN FOR OPERATION, MAINTENANCE, AND REPAIR OF STORMWATER FACILITIES (O&M PLAN) WILL BE PREPARED FOR ALL STORMWATER FACILITIES MAINTAINED BY THE HOA. THE O&M PLAN SHALL BE RECORDED WITH THE DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS, AND RESTRICTIONS (CC&Rs). THE O&M PLANS SHALL BE USED FOR MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION OF THE STORMWATER FACILITY.  29. COMMERCIAL ACCESS TO SH-44 AND LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS TO BE COMPLETED DURING  PHASE 2 DEVELOPMENT. PHASE 2 DEVELOPMENT. 30. EXISTING 12" IRRIGATION DITCH TO BE PIPED AT TIME OF CONSTRUCTION. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
L-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
S3°08'47"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.1900

AutoCAD SHX Text
L-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S48°54'27"

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.4400

AutoCAD SHX Text
L-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
N0°15'53"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.0000

AutoCAD SHX Text
File Location: g:\clients\pr\pr21-0363\design\civil\pr21-0363 preliminary plat 7-22.dwg g:\clients\pr\pr21-0363\design\civil\pr21-0363 preliminary plat 7-22.dwg Plotted By: elliot stauffer elliot stauffer Date Plotted: Thursday, July 28 2022 at 11:17 AMThursday, July 28 2022 at 11:17 AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/11/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZM

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/27/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY/PLANNER COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TG

AutoCAD SHX Text
2



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9  



 

Ordinance No. 669   Page 1 
 

 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 669 
Reed’s Landing Subdivision Annexation – 880 W. Main St. (Parcel No. 1790001) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, 
ANNEXING TO THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
SITUATED IN THE UNINCORPORATED AREA OF CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO, AND 
CONTIGUOUS TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, 
IDAHO; ESTABLISHING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF SAID REAL 
PROPERTY AS 2.35 ACRES TO C-3 (HEAVY COMMERCIAL), 2.98 ACRES TO M-F 
(MULTI-FAMILY) AND 4.09 ACRES TO R-3 (SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL); 
DIRECTING THAT COPIES OF THIS ORDINANCE BE FILED AS PROVIDED BY 
LAW; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

BE IT ORDAINED, BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MIDDLETON, COUNTY OF CANYON, STATE OF IDAHO:  

Section 1. That the Middleton City Council, upon recommendation of the Planning & 
Zoning Commission, and following the public notice and hearing procedures set forth in the Local 
Land Use Planning Act and Middleton City Code Title 1, Chapter 14, approved the Reed’s Landing 
Subdivision Annexation and Rezone at a public hearing held on August 3, 2022.  

Section 2. The following described property, commonly known as 880 W. Main Street 
(Tax Parcel R1790001), comprising approximately 9.6 acres, more or less, is contiguous to the 
City of Middleton, Idaho, and the applicant has requested that said following described property 
should be annexed into the City of Middleton as C-3 (Heavy Residential), M-F (Multi-Family) and 
R-3 (Single Family Residential):  

 
Legal description and sketch exhibit of perimeter boundary of all property 
being annexed is attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” and incorporated herein by 
this reference as if set forth in full. 
 
Section 3.  That the above-described property is hereby annexed into the corporate limits 

of the City of Middleton and zoned as follows: 2.35 C-3 (Heavy Commercial), 2.98 acres as M-F 
(Multi-Family) and 2.98 acres as R-3 (Single Family Residential). 

Legal description and sketch exhibit for property zoned C-3 is attached hereto as 
Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein by this reference as if set forth in full. 

Legal description and sketch exhibit for property zoned M-F is attached hereto as 
Exhibit “C” and incorporated herein by this reference as if set forth in full. 

Legal description and sketch exhibit for property zoned R-3 is attached hereto as 
Exhibit “D” and incorporated herein by this reference as if set forth in full. 

 



 

Ordinance No. 669   Page 2 
 

 

Section 4.  That the City Engineer and the Planning & Zoning Director of the City of 
Middleton, Idaho, are hereby instructed to so designate the same above described property on the 
official zoning map and other area maps of the City of Middleton, Idaho as lying within the city 
limits and zoned C-3, M-F and R-3 as set forth in Section 3 respectively.  

Section 5. All ordinances, resolutions, orders or parts thereof in conflict herewith are 
hereby repealed, rescinded and annulled.  

Section 6. This ordinance shall be in full force and in effect from and after its passage, 
approval and publication, according to law.  

Section 7. The Clerk of the City of Middleton, Idaho shall, within 10 days following the 
effective date of this ordinance, duly file a certified copy of this ordinance and a map prepared in 
a draftsman-like manner plainly and clearly designating the boundaries of the City of Middleton, 
including the land herein annexed, with the following officials of the County of Canyon, State of 
Idaho, to-wit: the Recorder, Auditor, Treasurer and Assessor and shall file simultaneously a 
certified copy of this ordinance with the State Tax Commission of the State of Idaho, all in 
compliance with Idaho Code § 63-215.  

PASSED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, this ___th 
day of _________________, 2022.  
 

APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, this 
____day of ________________, 2022. 
 
       Attest: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ ________________________________________________ 
Steven J. Rule      Middleton City Clerk 
Mayor, City of Middleton 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Ordinance No. 669   Page 3 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Legal Description of Perimeter Boundary of Annexed Property 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Annexation Description for 
880 W. Main Street 
October 23, 2021 

A portion of Blocks 6, 7 and 8, Hawthorn Plat of Middleton as filed in Book 3 of 
Plats at Page 22, records of Canyon County, Idaho, lying in the Southeast 1/4 of the 
Southeast 1/4 of Section 1, Township 4 North, Range 3 West, Boise Meridian, Canyon 
County, Idaho more particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at the Section corner common to Sections 1 and 12, T.4N., 
R.3W., B.M., and Sections 6 and 7, T.4N., R.2W., B.M., from which the 1/4 corner 
common to said Sections 1 and 12 bears South 89°44'07" West, 2,702.83 feet; thence 
on south boundary line of said Section 1, South 89°44'07" West, 575.94 feet to the 
REAL POINT OF BEGINNING; 

thence continuing South 89°44'07" West, 199.43 feet to the southerly extension 
of the east boundary line of Wellstone Subdivision as filed in Book 39 of Plats at Page 
42, records Canyon County, Idaho; 

thence on said east boundary line and the southerly extension thereof and the 
east boundary line of Sherwood Estates Subdivision as filed in Book 37 of Plats at 
Page 28, records of Canyon County, Idaho, North 00°21 '31" East, 1,327.36 feet to the 
north boundary line of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 1; 

thence on said north boundary line coincident with the south boundary line of 
Nottingham Greens Subdivision No. 2 as filed in Book 32 of Plats at Page 18 and 
westerly boundary line of Westwood Subdivision as filed in Book 39 of Plats at Page 5, 
records of Canyon County, Idaho, North 89°43'55" East, 384.41 feet to the Northwest 
corner of Lot 14, Block 3 of said Westwood Subdivision; 

thence continuing on said the westerly boundary line the following two (2) 
courses and distances: 

South 01 °46'43" West, 330.83 feet; 

South 04°34'57" West, 316.66 feet; 

thence continuing on said the westerly boundary line and the westerly boundary 
line of The Cottages Subdivision as filed in Book 42 of Plats at Page 36, records of 
Canyon County, Idaho the following two (2) courses and distances: 

Page 1 of 2 



South 04°40'35" West, 210.93 feet; 

South 03°08'47" West, 18.19 feet; 

thence leaving said westerly boundary line, North 88°25'59" West, 81.98 feet; 

thence South 03°00'38" West, 215.09 feet; 

thence South 48°54'27" West, 50.44 feet; 

thence South 02°52'52" West, 168.00 feet to the north right-of-way line of W. 
Main Street (S.H. 44); 

thence leaving said north right-of-way line, South 00°15'53" East, 40.00 feet to 
the REAL POINT OF BEGINNING. 

Containing 421,497 square feet or 9.68 acres, more or less. 

End of Description. 

Page 2 of 2 



SHERWOOD 
ESTATES SUB. 

W. 3RD ST. N 

WELLSTONE SUB. 

SCALE: 1 "= 150' 

0 75 150 300 

S.1 1114.. - ___ 1927.45' ~t-sa-9·44•orw -21-02-.-a-3•-•"'"-'-
.... BASIS OF BEARING W. MAIN ST. 

10 23 2021 11:59:25 AM 

9955 W. EMERALD ST. 
BOISE, IDAHO 83704 
(208) 846-8570 

t') 
Ol 
ci 
~ 
3: • I[) 
t') 

0 

WESTWOOD SUB. 

W. 3RD ST. N 

:- - - -- - - -- - - -
Cl) 

/<,;,j.__-S3°08' 4 7"W 
/&'-~'--:::.,A 18.19' 

N88·25•59"w 
81.98' 

l THE COTTAGES 
SUB. 

S48°54'27"w 
50.44' 

ANNEXATION EXHIBIT FOR 

880 MAIN STREET 

JOB NO. 

21-294 

SHEET NO. 

1 

IDAHO 
SURVEY 
GROUP, LLC A PORTION BLOCKS 6, 7 AND 8, HAWTHORN PLAT OF MIDDLETON LYING IN THE SE 

1/4 OF THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 1, T.4N., R.3W., B.M., CANYON COUNTY, IDAHO 
DWG. DATE 

10/23/2021 



Scale: 1 inch= 200 feet 

n89°43'55"e 
384.41 

.s: 
N 

co !fl 
CO N 
,- '!' 
~ 
"' 

199.43 ~ 
---s"'"8 ... 9° ... 44"""00""7""""w--"' 

? 
0) C0 
o"' 
·O 

IOO 

NM 
~ 

8 

File: 880 Main St Annex Ex.ndp 

J: 
co ;;... 
co !fl 

. '<t 
co"' ,- 0 

C'l '<t 
0 

? 
"'IC) 
0) !" 
·O 

o'<t 

~~ 
0 

"' 

"' 

Tract 1: 9.6761 Acres (421493 Sq. Feet), Closure: s19.1340w 0.01 ft. (1/297864), Perimeter=3343 ft. 

01 s89.4407w 199.43 10 s48.5427w 50.44 
02 n00.2131 e 1327 .36 11 s02.5252w 168 
03 n89.4355e 384.41 12 s00.1553e 40 
04 s01.4643w 330.83 
05 s04.3457w 316.66 
06 s04.4035w 210.93 
07 s03.0847w 18.19 
08 n88.2559w 81.98 

10/23/2021 



 

Ordinance No. 669   Page 4 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

Legal Description of Property zoned C-3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Description for 
C-3 Zone 

June 1, 2022 

A portion of Blocks 6 and 7, Hawthorn Plat of Middleton as filed in Book 3 of 
Plats at Page 22, records of Canyon County, Idaho, lying in the Southeast 1/4 of the 
Southeast 1/4 of Section 1, Township 4 North, Range 3 West, Boise Meridian, City of 
Middleton, Canyon County, Idaho more particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at the Section corner common to Sections 1 and 12, T.4N., 
R.3W., B.M., and Sections 6 and 7, T.4N., R.2W., B.M., from which the 1/4 corner 
common to said Sections 1 and 12 bears South 89°44'07" West, 2,702.83 feet; thence 
on south boundary line of said Section 1, South 89°44'07" West, 575.94 feet to the 
REAL POINT OF BEGINNING. 

thence continuing, South 89°44'07" West, 199.43 feet to the southerly 
extension of the east boundary line of Wellstone Subdivision as filed in Book 39 of 
Plats at Page 42, records Canyon County, Idaho; 

thence on said east boundary line and the southerly extension thereof, North 
00°21 '31" East, 502.95 feet; 

thence leaving said east boundary line, North 89°33'57" East, 10.17 feet; 

thence 123.88 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 50.00 
feet, a central angle of 141 °57'16" and a long chord which bears South 73°10'07" East, 
94.54 feet; 

thence North 35°51 '15" East, 27.65 feet; 

thence 46.82 feet along the arc of curve to the right having a radius of 50.00 
feet, a central angle of 53°39'03" and a long chord which bears North 62°40'46" East, 
45.13 feet; 

thence North 89°30' 18" East, 38.33 feet; 

thence 16.67 feet along the arc of curve to the left having a radius of 53.00 feet, 
a central angle of 18°01 '24" and a long chord which bears North 80°29'36" East, 16.60 
feet; 

Page 1 of 2 



thence 18.97 feet along the arc of a non-tangent curve to the right having a 
radius of 25.00 feet, a central angle of 43°28'27" and a long chord which bears South 
21 °22'42" East, 18.52 feet; 

thence South 00°21 '31" West, 46.96 feet; 

thence South 88°25'59" East, 35.76 feet; 

thence South 03°00'38" West, 215.09 feet; 

thence South 48°54'27" West, 50.44 feet; 

thence South 02°52'52" West, 168.00 feet to the north right-of-way line of W. 
Main Street (S.H. 44); 

thence leaving said north right-of-way line, South 0°15'53" East, 40.00 feet to 
the REAL POINT OF BEGINNING. 

Containing 2.542 acres, more or less. 

End of Description. 

Page 2 of 2 



~N~-
~ SCALE: 1"=100' 

0 25 50 100 

Wellstone 
Sub. 

LINE TABLE 

LINE BEARING LENGTH 

L1 N89'33'57"E 10.17 

L2 N35'51'15"E 27.65 

L3 N89'30'18"E 38.33 

200 

CURVE 

C1 

C2 

C3 

C4 

880 Main St 21-294 dw Zan in MF-CJ Ex.dw 6 1 2022 10:49: 48 AM 

IDAHO 
9955 W. EMERALD ST. SURVEY BOISE, IDAHO83704 
(2081846-8570 

GROUP, LLC 

LENGTH 

123.88 

46.82 

16.67 

18.97 

RADIUS 

50.00 

50.00 

53.00 

25.00 

CURVE TABLE 

DELTA 

141'57'16" 

53'39'03" 

18'01'24" 

43'28'27" 

CHORD BRG. 

S73'10'07"E 

N62'40'46"E 

N80'29'36"E 

S21 '22' 42"E 

I 

I 

I 

I 

S0'21'31"W I 

CHORD DIST. 

94.54 

45.13 

16.60 

18.52 

46.96' l---'---------

S88"25'59"E I 
35.76' 

ti:,-~(l!.. __ _ 

\ 

I 

S48'54'27"W I 

50.44• I 

S0'15'53"E 
40.00' 

Exhibit Map For 
C-3 ZONE 

Reed's Landin Subdivision 

The Cottages 
Sub. 

• I • 
3: I 3: 
~ N 

I 
ci a:: 

JOB NO. 

21-294 

SHEET NO. 

1 
A portion of Blocks 6 and 7, Hawthorn Plat of Middleton, lying In the SE1/4 of 
the SE1/4 of Section 1, T.4N., R.3W., City of Middleton, Canyon County, Idaho 

OWG. CATE 

6/1/2022 



 

Ordinance No. 669   Page 5 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 
 
 

Legal Description of Property Zoned M-F 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Description for 
M-F Zone 

June 1, 2022 

A portion of Blocks 6 and 7, Hawthorn Plat of Middleton as filed in Book 3 of 
Plats at Page 22, records of Canyon County, Idaho, lying in the Southeast 1/4 of the 
Southeast 1/4 of Section 1, Township 4 North, Range 3 West, Boise Meridian, City of 
Middleton, Canyon County, Idaho more particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at the Section corner common to Sections 1 and 12, T.4N., 
R.3W., B.M., and Sections 6 and 7, T.4N., R.2W., B.M., from which the 1/4 corner 
common to said Sections 1 and 12 bears South 89°44'07" West, 2,702.83 feet; thence 
on south boundary line of said Section 1, South 89°44'07" West, 775.38 to the 
southerly extension of the east boundary line of Wellstone Subdivision as filed in Book 
39 of Plats at Page 42, records Canyon County, Idaho; thence on said east boundary 
line and the southerly extension thereof, North 00°21 '31" East, 502.95 feet to the 
REAL POINT OF BEGINNING. 

thence continuing on said east boundary line and the east boundary line of 
Sherwood Estates Subdivision as filed in Book 37 of Plats at Page 28, records of 
Canyon County, Idaho, North 00°21'31" East, 392.08 feet; 

thence leaving said east boundary line, North 87°54'21" East, 250.83 feet; 

thence South 03°36'58" West, 143.57 feet; 

thence North 88°13'44" East, 116.54 feet to the west boundary line of 
Westwood Subdivision as filed in Book 39 of Plats at Page 5, records of Canyon 
County, Idaho; 

thence on said west boundary line, South 04°34'57" West, 81.95 feet; 

thence continuing on said the west boundary line and the west boundary line of 
The Cottages Subdivision as filed in Book 42 of Plats at Page 36, records of Canyon 
County, Idaho, South 04°40'35" West, 210.93 feet; 

thence continuing on said west boundary line of The Cottages Subdivision, 
South 03°08'47" West, 18.19 feet; 

thence leaving said west boundary line, North 88°25'59" West, 117.74 feet; 

thence North 00°21 '31" East, 46.96 feet; 

Page 1 of 2 



thence 18.97 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 25.00 
feet, a central angle of 43°28'27" and a long chord which bears North 21 °22'42" West, 
18.52 feet; 

thence 16.67 feet along the arc of curve to the right having a radius of 53.00 
feet, a central angle of 18°01 '24" and a long chord which bears South 80°29'36" West, 
16.60 feet; 

thence South 89°30'18" West, 38.33 feet; 

thence 46.82 feet along the arc of curve to the left having a radius of 50.00 feet, 
a central angle of 53°39'03" and a long chord which bears South 62°40'46" West, 
45.13 feet; 

thence South 35°51'15" West, 27.65 feet; 

thence 123.88 feet along the arc of curve to the right having a radius of 50.00 
feet, a central angle of 141 °57'16" and a long chord which bears North 73°10'07" West, 
94.54 feet; 

thence South 89°33'57" West, 10.17 feet to the REAL POINT OF BEGINNING. 

Containing 3.041 acres, more or less. 

End of Description. 

Page 2 of 2 



<o-S-C_A_L-E:_1'_'=_1_0_0'--

0 25 50 100 200 

LINE TABLE 

LINE BEARING LENGTH 

L1 S89"30'18"W 38.33 

L2 S35"51 '15"W 27.65 

L3 S89"33'57"W 10.17 

Sherwood Estates 
Sub. 

Wellstone 
Sub. 

W. 3rd St. N. 

Real Point of 
Beginning 

• I 

~I 

- ~1 
~I 

r<i I 

ti 
I 

CURVE 

C1 

C2 

C3 

C4 

LENGTH RADIUS 

18.97 25.00 

16.67 53.00 

46.82 50.00 

123.88 50.00 

CURVE TABLE 

DELTA CHORD BRG. CHORD DIST. 

43°28'27" N21 °22' 42"W 18.52 

18"01 '24" S80"29'36"W 16.60 

53·39'03" S62"40'46"W 45.13 

141°57'16" N73"10'07"W 94.54 

W. 3rd St. N. 
~ 
1---·· -----

I.I[)~ v . 
!') co 
v 
(/) 

Westwood 
Sub. 

-~ 
N0"21'31"E 

46.96' 
/,:Jr-.... N_8-f--8"~ ~ ::.:~-~;~ages 

I ~18.19 
117.74 

I 

:I: :I: 
I") N 

~L 

~-~--.--1927~45' 

£i I £i 

t. w_. _M_ain __ s_t._(_s.H. 44) s 1 

1 

s 6 - ---¾---: • .ll---. -
.............. 

775.38' ... __ ..... · · S.12 S.7 

. . . . S89"44'07"W 2702.83' ...... · · · · · · · ... . .. . . . 
· · · · · · Basis of Bearing 

880 Moin St 21-294 dw Zanin MF-C3 Ex.dw 6 1 2022 11:42:26 AM 

IDAHO 
SURVEY 
GROUP, LLC 

9955 W. EMERALD ST. 
BOISE. IDAHO 83704 
(208) 846-8570 

Exhibit Map For 
M-F ZONE 

Reed's Landin Subdivision 
A portion of Blocks 6 and 7, Hawthorn Plat of Middleton, lying In the SE1/4 of 
the SE1/4 of Section 1, T.4N., R.3W., City of Middleton, Canyon County, Idaho 

JOB NO. 
21-294 

SHEET NO. 

1 
DWG. DATE 

6/1/2022 



 

Ordinance No. 669   Page 6 
 

 
EXHIBIT “D” 

 
Legal Description of Property Zoned R-3 



Description for 
R-3 Zone 

June 1, 2022 

A portion of Blocks 6, 7 and 8, Hawthorn Plat of Middleton as filed in Book 3 of 
Plats at Page 22, records of Canyon County, Idaho, lying in the Southeast 1/4 of the 
Southeast 1/4 of Section 1, Township 4 North, Range 3 West, Boise Meridian, City of 
Middleton, Canyon County, Idaho more particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at the Section corner common to Sections 1 and 12, T.4N., 
R.3W., B.M., and Sections 6 and 7, T.4N., R.2W., B.M., from which the 1/4 corner 
common to said Sections 1 and 12 bears South 89°44'07" West, 2,702.83 feet; thence 
on south boundary line of said Section 1, South 89°44'07" West, 775.38 feet to the 
southerly extension of the east boundary line of Wellstone Subdivision as filed in Book 
39 of Plats at Page 42, records Canyon County, Idaho, thence on said east boundary 
line and the southerly extension thereof and the east boundary line of Sherwood 
Estates Subdivision as filed in Book 37 of Plats at Page 28, records of Canyon County, 
Idaho, North 00°21'31" East, 895.03 feet to the REAL POINT OF BEGINNING; 

thence continuing North 00°21 '31" East, 432.33 feet to the north boundary line 
of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 1; 

thence on said north boundary line coincident with the south boundary line of 
Nottingham Greens Subdivision No. 2 as filed in Book 32 of Plats at Page 18 and 
westerly boundary line of Westwood Subdivision as filed in Book 39 of Plats at Page 5, 
records of Canyon County, Idaho, North 89°43'55" East, 384.41 feet to the Northwest 
corner of Lot 14, Block 3 of said Westwood Subdivision; 

thence continuing on said the westerly boundary line the following two (2) 
courses and distances: 

South 01 °46'43" West, 330.83 feet; 

South 04°34'57" West, 234.71 feet; 

thence leaving the westerly boundary line, South 88°13'44" West, 116.54 feet; 

Page 1 of 2 



thence North 03°36'58" East, 143.57 feet; 

thence South 87°54'21" West, 250.83 feet to the REAL POINT OF 
BEGINNING. 

Containing 4.093 acres, more or less. 

End of Description. 

Page 2 of 2 



SHIRE ST. 

SHERWOOD 
ESTATES SUB. 

REAL POINT 
OF BEGINNING 

W. 3RD ST. N 

WELLSTONE SUB. 

SCALE: 1 "= 150' 

0 75 150 300 

N3°36'58"E 
143.57' 

WESTWOOD SUB. 

W. 3RD ST. N 

THE COTTAGES 
SUB. 

S.1 ~ - ______ _]~27.45• t _____ ------'-- _____S\, S.1 S.6 

~~ S89"44'07"W 2702.83' sa9·44'07"w 775.38' - - - ----.. \J- - - S.12~ S.7 
...... BASIS OF BEARING ................... W. MAIN ST. (S.H. 44) .................... · 

680 Main St 21-294 dw ANNEX BA 

IDAHO 
SURVEY 
GROUP, LLC 

9955 W. EMERALD ST. 
BOISE, IDAHO 83704 
(208) 846-8570 

Exhibit Map For 
R-3 ZONE 

Reed's Landin Subdivision 
A portion of Blocks 6, 7 and 8, Hawthom Plat of Middleton, lying In the SE1/4 of 

the SE1/4 of Section 1, T.4N., R.3W., City of Middleton, Canyon County, Idaho 

JOB NO. 
21-294 

SHEET NO. 

1 
OWG. DATE 

6/1/2022 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10 



 
 
 
 
 

1 
 

 

                            Middleton City Council 
                 Findings of Facts, Conclusions of Law, & Order 
 
 

 

 

                          
 
 
 
 
In the Matter of the applications of Taylor Schmidt/BST DEV LLC for annexation/rezone, 
preliminary plat, and development agreement with respect to the Reed’s Landing Subdivision 
located at 880 W. Main Street (Tax Parcel No. R17900010): 

 
A. Findings of Fact:   

 
1. Hearing Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of August 3, 2022, which Report is 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A’ and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

2. Process Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of August 3, 2022, Exhibit “A”. 
 

3. Application and Property Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of August 3, 2022, 
Exhibit “A”. 
 

4. Required Findings per Middleton City Code 1-14-2(E)(7), Idaho State Statue Title 67, 
Chapter 65, Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction and Middleton Supplement 
thereto, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3 & 5-4 and Idaho Code Title 67, 
Chapter 65 & Title 50, Chapters 2 and 13:  See Staff Report for the hearing date of May 9, 
2022, Exhibit “A”. 

 
B. Conclusions of Law: 

 
1. That the City of Middleton has exercised the powers conferred upon it by the “Local Land 

Use Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (I.C. §67-6503). 
 

2. That due consideration has been given to the comments received from the governmental 
subdivisions providing services in the City of Middleton planning jurisdiction, comments 
received from individuals of the public, and comments from City Planning Staff and City 
Engineer. 
 

3. That notice of the application and public hearing was given according to law.   
 

4. That City Council’s public hearing was conducted according to law, and the City has kept a 
record of the application and related documents.  
 

5. That codes and standards pertinent to the application are the Idaho Standards for Public 
Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works 
Construction, and Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4 and Idaho Code 
Title 67, Chapter 65 and Idaho Code Title 50, chapters 2 and 13. 
 

6. That public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not impose 
expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed.  

 



             
        

2 
 

C. Decision & Order: 
 

Pursuant to the City Council’s authority as provided in Middleton City Code 1-5-2, and based 
upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, it is hereby ordered that: 
 
1. The application of Taylor Schmit/BST DEV LLC for Annexation and Rezone to C-3, M-F 

and R-3 is approved subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for 
the August 3, 2022, public hearing. 

 
2. The application of Taylor Schmidt/BST DEV LLC for Development Agreement is approved 

subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the August 3, 2022, 
public hearing. 

 
3.  The application of Taylor Schmidt/BST DEV LLC for preliminary plat is approved subject to 

the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the August 3, 2022, public 
hearing. 
 

 
WRITTEN ORDER APPROVED ON: _________________, 2022. 
 
 
 
            
      Steven J. Rule 
      Mayor, City of Middleton  
 
 
Attest: 
 
      
Roberta Stewart 
Planning and Zoning Official 
 
 
Please take notice that pursuant to MCC 1-14-2(E)(10), applicant shall have 14 days after a 
signed final decision to request reconsideration by the final-decision maker. Such request 
must identify specific deficiencies in the final decision. Failure to request reconsideration 
may invalidate a subsequent judicial appeal. Additionally, pursuant to Idaho State Statute 
67-6521, any affected person aggrieved by a final decision may, within 28 days after all 
remedies have been exhausted under local ordinances, seek judicial review as provided in 
chapter 52, Title 67.  

 
Additionally, please take notice that Applicant has a right to request a regulatory taking 
analysis pursuant to Idaho State Statute section 67-8003.  
 
 

https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title67/T67CH80/SECT67-8003

	1a.) Minutes 7-20-22.pdf
	1d.) 22-07-20 2022 Roadway Markings Proposal.pdf
	City of Middleton - 2022 Roadway Markings
	City of Middleton - 2022 Roadway Markings - Exhibit

	W. Highlands #15 - Final Plat.pdf
	21-04  West Highlands Ranch Subd No 15-PLATFRONT CLINT
	Sheets and Views
	PLATFRONT CLINT


	21-04  West Highlands Ranch Subd No 15-SHEET 2
	Sheets and Views
	SHEET 2


	21-04  West Highlands Ranch Subd No 15-PLATBACK CLINT
	Sheets and Views
	PLATBACK CLINT


	21-04  West Highlands Ranch Subd No 15-PLATBACK SIGNATURES
	Sheets and Views
	PLATBACK SIGNATURES
	OLE1



	21-04  West Highlands Ranch Subd No 15-PLATFRONT CLINT.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	PLATFRONT CLINT
	OLE1



	21-04  West Highlands Ranch Subd No 15-SHEET 2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	SHEET 2
	OLE1



	21-04  West Highlands Ranch Subd No 15-SHEET 2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	SHEET 2
	OLE1
	OLE2



	21-04  West Highlands Ranch Subd No 15-PLATFRONT CLINT.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	PLATFRONT CLINT
	OLE1



	21-04  West Highlands Ranch Subd No 15-SHEET 2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	SHEET 2
	OLE1



	21-04  West Highlands Ranch Subd No 15-PLATFRONT CLINT.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	PLATFRONT CLINT
	OLE1




	Quarry Staff Report - CC-appendix added.pdf
	QUARRY EAST SUBDIVISION
	Snapshot Summary
	A. City Council Public Hearing Date: July 20, 2022
	B. Project Description: A 55+ resort style community involving 640 residential lots, one mini-self storage lot, 67 common area lots, 37 shared driveway lots, and nine private road lots located at 21500 Middleton Road and 11436 Lincoln Road (Tax Parcel...
	The proposed amenities include three large lakes encompassing over 62 acres, beaches, clubhouse, swimming pool, picnic areas, and six pickleball courts.
	Quarry East subdivision is a “sister” subdivision to another subdivision proposal known as “Quarry West”. This second subdivision is proposed for a location immediately west of The Quarry East.  The Quarry West also has preliminary plat/annexation app...
	The Quarry West proposal includes 297 single family home sites on 150 acres. Developer is not proposing a private and gated 55+ community for Quarry West.
	C. Application Requests: Applicant has four applications before City Council: (1) annexation and rezone to M-U (“Mixed Use”), (2) preliminary plat, (3) Development Agreement, and (4) Comprehensive Plan Map amendment to change the “Residential” use on ...
	Applicant applied to Planning & Zoning for a special use permit to construct duplex homes and a mini-self storage facility in the proposed M-U Zone.  The Commission approved the requests subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Rep...
	The final application is an administrative floodplain application that covers a handful of lots along the eastern boundary of the project parcel.  Any approval of the other applications should be conditioned upon completion of all comments from the Ci...
	D. Current Zoning & Property Condition:  The project property is located in Canyon County, and it is zoned Agricultural, C-1 “Neighborhood Commercial,” and M-1 “Light Industrial.”
	The site is currently vacant land, but it was the location of a quarry operation at one time, which accounts for the three large “lakes” already on site.
	The area surrounding the project site is primarily industrial property, but there are also agricultural parcels and vacant lots nearby. Caldwell City limits are on the south side of the Quarry subdivision, and it shares the subdivision’s southern bord...
	The City’s Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map shows that industrial use is planned for the property to the east and north.  Residential use is planned for the property to the west.  Caldwell planning documents indicate that residential uses are pl...
	E. City Services:  City water and sewer are located immediately east of the project in Middleton Road.
	If approved, the proposed Development Agreement will require Developer to construct a sewer lift station on its project site and also expand an existing lift station known as the Boise River lift station.  Developer will construct or expand these impr...
	Another proposed term in the Development Agreement will require Developer to extend a second water line under, over, or through the Boise River in order to create a water loop system necessary to extend water to the project.  As with sewer, Developer ...
	F. Traffic, Access & Streets:
	1. Private Streets:  The City code does not contemplate private streets.  Streets built inside City limits are owned, repaired and maintained by the City.  Developer is requesting that all the streets inside Quarry East be “private” streets that are o...
	2. Frontage Construction: S. Middleton Road and Lincoln Road front the project site. Developer will be required to construct the ½ road frontage improvements along Middleton Road and Lincoln Road. The improvement to Lincoln Road will be at Developer’s...
	3. Access & Intersection Controls:  There are two planned accesses to the project. The main access will be at Middleton Road and Quarry St., and the second will be located at Lincoln Road and Hammerstone Avenue.
	During the initial stages of the project, access will be through the Middleton Road/Quarry St. access.  Left and right turn lanes will be sufficient to handle the traffic during that time period. However, as phases are developed and residents move in,...
	Pursuant to the 2016 Middleton Road Corridor Study, there is a multi-lane roundabout planned at the approximate location of the Quarry St., entrance on Middleton Road. A second multi-lane roundabout is planned about ½ mile to the south at the intersec...
	The most efficient and cost-effective way to get the roundabout constructed at Middleton Rd., and Quarry St., is by having Developer construct the roundabout rather than waiting for the City of Middleton and/or CHD4 to build the roundabout through the...
	The City may not be able to obtain the right of way for the roundabout prior to 100 building permits; however, some type of intersection control will still be required to ensure safe access off of Middleton Road on to Quarry Street.  Therefore, the pr...
	As to the second roundabout located at Middleton Road and the southern leg of Lincoln Road, that roundabout will be built sometime in the future through the Mid-Star program and/or through the collaboration of CHD4, Caldwell, Canyon County and/or Midd...
	The proposed Development Agreement provides that when the Developer constructs the access on to Lincoln Road, the Developer shall be required to design and construct a traffic signal at Middleton Road and Lincoln Road.  It shall remain in place until ...
	The final intersection to consider is the turn lane required for entrance into the proposed Mini storage facility at the north end of the Quarry project.  Per the proposed Development Agreement, City and/or CHD4 will determine, before Phase 10, what t...
	Applicant completed a Traffic Study. The Traffic Study does not recommend any mitigation measures that are not already contemplated by the City.
	Middleton requires development to pay for itself so the taxpayers will not be burdened with the cost.  Therefore, Developer will be required to pay a Transportation Impact fee per the Mid-Star CIP program. The fee is $5050 per residential lot, which a...
	For pro-rata traffic fees pursuant to MCC 4-5-3, Developer shall pay an additional $456,355.00, making Developer’s total contribution to future road improvements $3,688,355.00.
	H. Fire District:  The subject property is in the Caldwell Fire District.  On March 8, 2022, Fire Marshal Alan Perry submitted comments indicating general approval of the project so long as Developer complies with the 2018 International Fire Code.  (S...
	I. Schools:  The Quarry East is located in the Vallivue School District.
	J. Annexation and Rezone: Applicant is requesting that the entire 237-acre project be annexed into the City of Middleton with a zone change to Mixed Use “M-U”.  Mixed Use zoning is designed to accommodate a variety of uses such as commercial uses comb...
	There are three findings that must be made before Annexation can be approved: (1) the property must be contiguous to City limits (2) City services such as sewer and water can be extended to serve the site, and (3) the annexation is deemed to be an ord...
	An application for rezone requires two findings before the Council can approve the application: (1) the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s delivery of services and (2) the rezone request is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan. (Idaho ...
	FINDINGS:
	Planning Staff finds that Applicant’s project meets all three findings for annexation: (1) the property is contiguous and (2) sewer and water are available and can be extended to the site.  Additionally, current capacity analyses contemplate sufficien...
	As to finding #3, the annexation is an orderly and economical extension of City services for the following reasons: (1) the Developer will be constructing needed road improvements and intersection controls on Middleton Road sooner than would occur thr...
	On the flip side, potential adverse impacts to be considered are (1) increased traffic congestion, (2) over-crowding, (3) pressure imposed upon City services like sewer, water, fire protection and police and (4) loss of rural property.
	As to the rezone application, Planning Staff finds that the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s ability to deliver sewer and water as already noted above.  Additionally, Developer will bear the cost of impacting city services by paying impact ...
	Finally, as will be shown below in the section regarding the Comprehensive Plan, the rezone is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan
	K. Preliminary Plat Application: The preliminary plat shows 10 phases for development. (A full copy of the proposed preliminary plat is attached to this staff report as Exhibit “A”.)
	Before the Council can approve the preliminary plat, it must find that the preliminary plat complies with all Middleton City codes and standards. However, Middleton City Code section 1-15-2 allows the governing bodies to waive specific codes and stand...
	The preliminary plat application does not comply with all Middleton City codes and standards. However, Applicant is requesting “waivers” or “exceptions” to the code under MCC 1-15-2.
	Directly below is an itemization of all waiver requests. (More detailed descriptions of each waiver request can be found at Exhibits “F” and “G” to the proposed Development Agreement, which is attached to this staff report as Exhibit “B”.) Planning St...
	As to waiver requests regarding legal issues such as bonding or platting procedures, City attorney has reviewed the requests and worked with Staff and the developer to refine the requests to an acceptable level.
	However, there is one waiver request City Staff did not review, negotiate or otherwise try to change. That is item #1 below regarding setbacks and lot dimensions.  None of these proposed waivers pose a danger or particular technical concern, so Staff ...
	Waiver Requests:
	1. Setbacks & Dimensions (MCC 5-4-1, Table 2):  Minimum standards for lot dimensions and setbacks are set forth in MCC 5-4-1, Table 2.  Developer is requesting that the annexed project be zoned Mixed Use (M-U).  The dimensions and setbacks for M-U are...
	M-U Setbacks & Dimensions
	Front setback- 20’                           Street-side setback – 20’
	Rear setback – 20’      Minimum lot size – 6000 sf
	Interior Side setback– 12’     Minimum lot width – 50’
	[Setbacks for R-3 may also be seen in the chart directly above.]
	In the current application, Applicant is requesting the following narrower setbacks and lot sizes:
	2. Private Streets: City Code does not allow Private Roads other than small private lanes (or shared driveways) that can accommodate up to four homes. Allowing private streets will be an exception to the Code.
	3. Driveways and Frontage (MCC 4-1-1.H & Supplement to ISPWC): Applicant is requesting an exception to the requirement that all lots front a “public road”.  Because the roads within the subdivision are requested to be “private,” this code section will...
	4. Roadway width & gutters (MCC 5-4-10-2.D.2 & Supplement to ISPWC):  City Code requires local public right-of-way/roads to be 50’ wide. Developer is requesting a narrower width of 47’, and a narrower width from back of curb to back of curb of 33’, so...
	5. Cul de sac length (MCC 5-4-10-2.E):  Per the code, cul de sac roads cannot exceed 600’.  Because of the large lakes and narrow channels created by the lakes, Developer is requesting that the cul de sac maximum length be extended to 1000’.
	6. Radius turns (MCC 5-4-10-2.H.2):  Code allows radius turns of 90’.  Developer is requesting radius turns as low as 45’.  Caldwell Fire’s final approval will require Applicant to provide an auto-turn analysis to prove that all radius turns can accom...
	7. Block lengths (MCC 5-4-10-3.A.1): This code prevents any long linear block lengths extending past 1100’.  Because the large lakes create peninsula-like strips of land, Developer is requesting that the block length maximum be expanded to 1700’.
	8. Dead-end Roads (MCC 5-4-10-2.F): Code prohibits dead end roads, but due to the extensive use of private lanes, which are allowed, Developer has created a few short dead-end roads.
	9. Tree Planting (Supplement to ISPWC):  Developer is requesting that it be allowed to plant trees within 3’ from a sidewalk with a root barrier and 4’ from sidewalk without a root barrier.
	11. Street lights & Street Signs (Supplement to ISPWC):  Developer is requesting that alternative styles for street lights and street signs be allowed on the private streets for aesthetic purposes.
	12. Timing for final plat approval & DA Termination (MCC 5-4-4.F):  Under the current code, Developers may take up to four years to obtain final plat approval for their first phase in order to avoid the nullification of their preliminary plat.  Quarry...
	13. Amendments to Pre-Plat (MCC 5-4-4): If a Developer desires to change an approved preliminary plat in any way, Developer must go through the public hearing procedures for preliminary plat.  Developer is requesting a waiver to this requirement so De...
	The request is based upon the fact that this large subdivision may take 10 or more years to develop, and a minimal amount of flexibility will help Developer and City to efficiently and economically negotiate those minor changes. If the Planning & Zoni...
	14. Model Home Building Permits: Building Permits are not issued until after final plat is approved. However, Developer is seeking authorization to obtain building permits for up to 10 model homes prior to final plat approval. This will allow Develope...
	15. Bonding: (MCC 5-4-7.A.3) Currently, the code allows bonding for only landscaping and irrigation improvements and only during inclement weather. Fencing has generally been considered part of the landscaping.  Developer is requesting that it be allo...
	16. ITD Proportionate Share Fee $456,335.00:  ITD reviewed both the Quarry East and Quarry West preliminary plats and determined that the Developer should pay $456,335.00 towards the improvements at Hwy 20/26 and Middleton Road due to the adverse impa...
	Findings:
	Planning Staff finds that the preliminary plat does not comply with standards and requirements of the Middleton City Code, but the Council may still approve the preliminary plat if requested waivers from the code are approved through the preliminary p...
	L. Development Agreement:  Developer has submitted an application for Development Agreement to accompany its application for Annexation/Rezone.  (See full copy of the Development Agreement attached to this staff report as Exhibit “B”.)
	Applicant has used the City’s form for the DA, and has added the following provisions to Article III:
	1. Various Waivers: All the variances or waivers from City Code noted in the preliminary plat section above are individually set forth in the DA as permissible waivers from code.
	2.  Concept Plan: A concept plan shall be attached to the DA. The future development must be built substantially consistent with the concept plan.
	3. Concept Renderings: Concept renderings of home styles and community amenities shall be attached as exhibits along with Design Guidelines that set forth minimum standards for design and quality.  The standards show a higher quality building product ...
	4. Amenities: DA requires that Developer build the following amenities: (1) community swimming pool, six pickleball courts, picnic area and community beaches prior to the issuance of the 134th building permits and (2) the clubhouse amenity shall be bu...
	5. 55+ Community: The community shall remain a 55+ community as allowed by Federal Code and State Statute.  The requirement shall be set forth in the recorded CC&Rs.
	6. Allowed Uses: although the M-U zone allows a large number of different commercial and residential uses, the DA will limit Applicant to only these uses: (1) single family residential, (2) duplex residential, (3) model complex and sales office/market...
	7. Mini-Storage: the storage facility must undergo the Design Review process before a building permit will be issued.  The mini-storage buildings may only be single story buildings.
	8. Private Streets Reserve Study: Because the private streets and stormwater facilities will be maintained and repaired by the HOA, City will require Developer to submit a reserve study at each phase final plat to show that sufficient money will be co...
	9. Emergency Access/Service:  Developer/HOA will ensure that the private streets are accessible to emergency services and other public services.
	10. Sewer & Water improvements: As already discussed above, Developer shall extend city sewer and water to the site and possibly improve utility facilities over and above what is required to serve Quarry East. The DA provides that any improvements ove...
	The DA further states that the sewer and water utilities are public and Developer/Owner shall grant an easement to City to access the utilities for repair and maintenance.
	11. Natural Gas: DA provides that Developer will extend natural gas service to the project site.
	12. Urban Renewal Revenue Allocation Area:  Developer and City agree that Developer may seek reimbursement from the Urban Renewal District for public infrastructure.  If reimbursement is granted by the Urban Renewal District, then Developer is not ent...
	13. Road/Frontage Improvements: DA requires Developer to construct all code required frontage improvements, including the potential roundabout/traffic signals at Lincoln & Middleton Road and at the Quarry entrance.  The DA sets forth the timing and pr...
	14. Notice of surrounding industrial use:  Developer shall place language in every purchase agreement and in the CC&Rs notifying prospective purchasers that the City’s planning documents show industrial uses to the north and east of the project.  This...
	A copy of the proposed Development Agreement is attached as Exhibit “B”.
	M. Comprehensive Plan & Land Use Map Amendment:  The vast majority of Applicant’s project complies with the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map because 9/10th of the parcel is dedicated to residential use and the FLUM shows residential use at tha...
	Pursuant to MCC 1-14-3, an application for Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment cannot be approved without a finding that the proposed amendment is “in harmony” with the Comprehensive Plan.
	Finding:
	Planning Staff finds that the proposed change from “Residential” to “Industrial” on the Future Land Use Map is in harmony with the Comprehensive Plan because the location of the changed designation directly abuts the industrial park located at Bass La...
	The use also complies with Goal 4 of the Comprehensive Plan to use space for privacy considerations and to allow mixed use in appropriate locations. The storage facility will undergo design review and will create a more attractive buffer between the m...
	Applicant’s other applications require a finding that the project complies with the Goals, Objectives, and Strategies of the 2019 Middleton Comprehensive Plan.
	Planning Staff finds that the proposed project complies with the following goals:
	a. Goal 1: the project is a new development that helps extend city services in an environmentally and fiscally-responsible manner.
	b. Goals 3 and 23: The project provides safe vehicle and pedestrian facilities in light of the street improvements and sidewalks shown on the preliminary plat.
	c. Goal 4: The project will establish a good quality of life with development that pays through impact fees and property taxes for the public services it receives when infrastructure is installed. Additionally, recreational activities and quality lots...
	d. Goal 5: “…[e]ncourage[s] annexation of property whose property tax revenue and other benefits match or exceed the cost to provide public services.”  This project will generate a great deal of property tax income that will exceed the services receiv...
	e. Goal 6:  the project promotes the goal to “expand water, sewer, and road systems in an orderly manner consistent with population growth in the City”.
	f. Goal 7: The commercial/industrial storage facility promotes economic growth.
	g. Goal 10: Project provides open space and pathways that connect to a pedestrian system and provide outdoor recreational activities.
	h. Goal 11: Project provides a variety of housing types and lot sizes for residents.
	N. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  None.
	O. Comments from Agencies: CHD4 submitted five comment responses dated 11/29/2021, 6/1/2021, 2/4/2022, 3/24/2022, and 4/11/2022.  Caldwell Fire Department submitted a response dated 2/14/2022 and comment letter received 3/8/2022.  On March 29, 2022, G...
	P. Comments from City Engineer and Planning Staff: Copies of Engineering and planning staff comments are attached as Exhibit “D”.
	Q. Applicant Information:  Application was accepted March 1, 2021. Applicants are M3 Companies and JUB Engineers; 2760 W. Excursion Lane, Meridian, Id. 208.376.7330.
	R. Notices & Neighborhood Meeting:    Dates:
	Newspaper Notification     5/29/2022
	Radius notification mailed to
	Adjacent landowners within 500’    5/31/2022
	Circulation to Agencies     5/27/2022
	Sign Posting property     5/27/2022
	Neighborhood Meeting     6/30/2021 & 7/13/2020
	(Applications were tabled at the 6/15/2022 City Council meeting due to moratorium.)
	S. Applicable Codes and Standards:
	Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-16, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4, and Idaho Code Title 67, Chapter 65 & Title 50, Chapters 2 and 13.
	T. Planning & Zoning Recommendations & Approvals:  The Planning & Zoning Commission considered the Quarry East applications at the April 11, 2022, public hearing.  The Commission approved applicant’s special use permit applications to construct duplex...
	The Commission further recommended that City Council approve the applications for (1) annexation/rezone, (2) development agreement, (3) preliminary plat, and (4) comprehensive plan map amendment subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the S...
	U. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:
	City Council’s decisions and order on the four applications before the Council must be based upon findings of facts and conclusions of law.
	As to Findings of Facts, Planning staff has set forth findings of facts above in parentheses.  If the Council agrees with these findings of facts and further agrees with the general facts presented at the public hearing, then the Council may create a ...
	As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that City Council has the authority to hear these applications and to approve or deny the applications, with or without conditions.  Additionally, Planning Staff notes that all public notice requirements ...
	Applications for Annexation/Rezone, Preliminary Plat, Development Agreement, & Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment: If the Council chooses to approve these four applications based upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, then Planning Sta...
	1. City sewer and water facilities to be extended to the Project site.
	2. Developer to comply with all provisions and terms set forth in the Development Agreement City Council approves during the public hearing on the matter.
	3. Developer to install landscaping per landscape plan submitted December 2021, including traffic buffer and berm as required by MCC 5-4-10-6 and set forth in the approved preliminary plat.
	4. All City Engineering comments are to be completed and approved.
	5. All Planner comments are to be completed and approved
	6. Developer to comply with all FEMA, Middleton floodplain code, and Floodplain Administrator requirements.
	7. All Caldwell Fire Department comments are to be completed and approved.
	8. The access to the mini-storage lot and facility is conditioned on City and CHD4 determining an appropriate access, which may include right in/right out only access.
	9. Apply a street name and install a sign for the private lane on Lot 118, Block 3 for addressing purposes.
	10. Sewer and Water capacity to be reserved at the time City approves the construction drawings for each phase.
	Finally, if the Council denies any of the four applications, then pursuant to Middleton City Code 1-14(E)(8), the Council should state on the record what Applicant can do, if anything, to gain approval of the application(s).
	Prepared by Middleton Planning & Zoning Director, Roberta Stewart  Dated: 7/6/2022
	EXHIBIT “A”
	Proposed Preliminary Plat
	EXHIBIT “B”
	Proposed Development Agreement
	EXHIBIT “C”
	Agency Comments
	EXHIBIT “D”
	Engineering & Planner Comments
	EXHIBIT “E”
	P&Z Commission FCR & Order

	Quarry Staff Report - CC.pdf
	QUARRY EAST SUBDIVISION
	Snapshot Summary
	A. City Council Public Hearing Date: July 20, 2022
	B. Project Description: A 55+ resort style community involving 640 residential lots, one mini-self storage lot, 67 common area lots, 37 shared driveway lots, and nine private road lots located at 21500 Middleton Road and 11436 Lincoln Road (Tax Parcel...
	The proposed amenities include three large lakes encompassing over 62 acres, beaches, clubhouse, swimming pool, picnic areas, and six pickleball courts.
	Quarry East subdivision is a “sister” subdivision to another subdivision proposal known as “Quarry West”. This second subdivision is proposed for a location immediately west of The Quarry East.  The Quarry West also has preliminary plat/annexation app...
	The Quarry West proposal includes 297 single family home sites on 150 acres. Developer is not proposing a private and gated 55+ community for Quarry West.
	C. Application Requests: Applicant has four applications before City Council: (1) annexation and rezone to M-U (“Mixed Use”), (2) preliminary plat, (3) Development Agreement, and (4) Comprehensive Plan Map amendment to change the “Residential” use on ...
	Applicant applied to Planning & Zoning for a special use permit to construct duplex homes and a mini-self storage facility in the proposed M-U Zone.  The Commission approved the requests subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Rep...
	The final application is an administrative floodplain application that covers a handful of lots along the eastern boundary of the project parcel.  Any approval of the other applications should be conditioned upon completion of all comments from the Ci...
	D. Current Zoning & Property Condition:  The project property is located in Canyon County, and it is zoned Agricultural, C-1 “Neighborhood Commercial,” and M-1 “Light Industrial.”
	The site is currently vacant land, but it was the location of a quarry operation at one time, which accounts for the three large “lakes” already on site.
	The area surrounding the project site is primarily industrial property, but there are also agricultural parcels and vacant lots nearby. Caldwell City limits are on the south side of the Quarry subdivision, and it shares the subdivision’s southern bord...
	The City’s Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map shows that industrial use is planned for the property to the east and north.  Residential use is planned for the property to the west.  Caldwell planning documents indicate that residential uses are pl...
	E. City Services:  City water and sewer are located immediately east of the project in Middleton Road.
	If approved, the proposed Development Agreement will require Developer to construct a sewer lift station on its project site and also expand an existing lift station known as the Boise River lift station.  Developer will construct or expand these impr...
	Another proposed term in the Development Agreement will require Developer to extend a second water line under, over, or through the Boise River in order to create a water loop system necessary to extend water to the project.  As with sewer, Developer ...
	F. Traffic, Access & Streets:
	1. Private Streets:  The City code does not contemplate private streets.  Streets built inside City limits are owned, repaired and maintained by the City.  Developer is requesting that all the streets inside Quarry East be “private” streets that are o...
	2. Frontage Construction: S. Middleton Road and Lincoln Road front the project site. Developer will be required to construct the ½ road frontage improvements along Middleton Road and Lincoln Road. The improvement to Lincoln Road will be at Developer’s...
	3. Access & Intersection Controls:  There are two planned accesses to the project. The main access will be at Middleton Road and Quarry St., and the second will be located at Lincoln Road and Hammerstone Avenue.
	During the initial stages of the project, access will be through the Middleton Road/Quarry St. access.  Left and right turn lanes will be sufficient to handle the traffic during that time period. However, as phases are developed and residents move in,...
	Pursuant to the 2016 Middleton Road Corridor Study, there is a multi-lane roundabout planned at the approximate location of the Quarry St., entrance on Middleton Road. A second multi-lane roundabout is planned about ½ mile to the south at the intersec...
	The most efficient and cost-effective way to get the roundabout constructed at Middleton Rd., and Quarry St., is by having Developer construct the roundabout rather than waiting for the City of Middleton and/or CHD4 to build the roundabout through the...
	The City may not be able to obtain the right of way for the roundabout prior to 100 building permits; however, some type of intersection control will still be required to ensure safe access off of Middleton Road on to Quarry Street.  Therefore, the pr...
	As to the second roundabout located at Middleton Road and the southern leg of Lincoln Road, that roundabout will be built sometime in the future through the Mid-Star program and/or through the collaboration of CHD4, Caldwell, Canyon County and/or Midd...
	The proposed Development Agreement provides that when the Developer constructs the access on to Lincoln Road, the Developer shall be required to design and construct a traffic signal at Middleton Road and Lincoln Road.  It shall remain in place until ...
	The final intersection to consider is the turn lane required for entrance into the proposed Mini storage facility at the north end of the Quarry project.  Per the proposed Development Agreement, City and/or CHD4 will determine, before Phase 10, what t...
	Applicant completed a Traffic Study. The Traffic Study does not recommend any mitigation measures that are not already contemplated by the City.
	Middleton requires development to pay for itself so the taxpayers will not be burdened with the cost.  Therefore, Developer will be required to pay a Transportation Impact fee per the Mid-Star CIP program. The fee is $5050 per residential lot, which a...
	For pro-rata traffic fees pursuant to MCC 4-5-3, Developer shall pay an additional $456,355.00, making Developer’s total contribution to future road improvements $3,688,355.00.
	H. Fire District:  The subject property is in the Caldwell Fire District.  On March 8, 2022, Fire Marshal Alan Perry submitted comments indicating general approval of the project so long as Developer complies with the 2018 International Fire Code.  (S...
	I. Schools:  The Quarry East is located in the Vallivue School District.
	J. Annexation and Rezone: Applicant is requesting that the entire 237-acre project be annexed into the City of Middleton with a zone change to Mixed Use “M-U”.  Mixed Use zoning is designed to accommodate a variety of uses such as commercial uses comb...
	There are three findings that must be made before Annexation can be approved: (1) the property must be contiguous to City limits (2) City services such as sewer and water can be extended to serve the site, and (3) the annexation is deemed to be an ord...
	An application for rezone requires two findings before the Council can approve the application: (1) the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s delivery of services and (2) the rezone request is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan. (Idaho ...
	FINDINGS:
	Planning Staff finds that Applicant’s project meets all three findings for annexation: (1) the property is contiguous and (2) sewer and water are available and can be extended to the site.  Additionally, current capacity analyses contemplate sufficien...
	As to finding #3, the annexation is an orderly and economical extension of City services for the following reasons: (1) the Developer will be constructing needed road improvements and intersection controls on Middleton Road sooner than would occur thr...
	On the flip side, potential adverse impacts to be considered are (1) increased traffic congestion, (2) over-crowding, (3) pressure imposed upon City services like sewer, water, fire protection and police and (4) loss of rural property.
	As to the rezone application, Planning Staff finds that the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s ability to deliver sewer and water as already noted above.  Additionally, Developer will bear the cost of impacting city services by paying impact ...
	Finally, as will be shown below in the section regarding the Comprehensive Plan, the rezone is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan
	K. Preliminary Plat Application: The preliminary plat shows 10 phases for development. (A full copy of the proposed preliminary plat is attached to this staff report as Exhibit “A”.)
	Before the Council can approve the preliminary plat, it must find that the preliminary plat complies with all Middleton City codes and standards. However, Middleton City Code section 1-15-2 allows the governing bodies to waive specific codes and stand...
	The preliminary plat application does not comply with all Middleton City codes and standards. However, Applicant is requesting “waivers” or “exceptions” to the code under MCC 1-15-2.
	Directly below is an itemization of all waiver requests. (More detailed descriptions of each waiver request can be found at Exhibits “F” and “G” to the proposed Development Agreement, which is attached to this staff report as Exhibit “B”.) Planning St...
	As to waiver requests regarding legal issues such as bonding or platting procedures, City attorney has reviewed the requests and worked with Staff and the developer to refine the requests to an acceptable level.
	However, there is one waiver request City Staff did not review, negotiate or otherwise try to change. That is item #1 below regarding setbacks and lot dimensions.  None of these proposed waivers pose a danger or particular technical concern, so Staff ...
	Waiver Requests:
	1. Setbacks & Dimensions (MCC 5-4-1, Table 2):  Minimum standards for lot dimensions and setbacks are set forth in MCC 5-4-1, Table 2.  Developer is requesting that the annexed project be zoned Mixed Use (M-U).  The dimensions and setbacks for M-U are...
	M-U Setbacks & Dimensions
	Front setback- 20’                           Street-side setback – 20’
	Rear setback – 20’      Minimum lot size – 6000 sf
	Interior Side setback– 12’     Minimum lot width – 50’
	[Setbacks for R-3 may also be seen in the chart directly above.]
	In the current application, Applicant is requesting the following narrower setbacks and lot sizes:
	2. Private Streets: City Code does not allow Private Roads other than small private lanes (or shared driveways) that can accommodate up to four homes. Allowing private streets will be an exception to the Code.
	3. Driveways and Frontage (MCC 4-1-1.H & Supplement to ISPWC): Applicant is requesting an exception to the requirement that all lots front a “public road”.  Because the roads within the subdivision are requested to be “private,” this code section will...
	4. Roadway width & gutters (MCC 5-4-10-2.D.2 & Supplement to ISPWC):  City Code requires local public right-of-way/roads to be 50’ wide. Developer is requesting a narrower width of 47’, and a narrower width from back of curb to back of curb of 33’, so...
	5. Cul de sac length (MCC 5-4-10-2.E):  Per the code, cul de sac roads cannot exceed 600’.  Because of the large lakes and narrow channels created by the lakes, Developer is requesting that the cul de sac maximum length be extended to 1000’.
	6. Radius turns (MCC 5-4-10-2.H.2):  Code allows radius turns of 90’.  Developer is requesting radius turns as low as 45’.  Caldwell Fire’s final approval will require Applicant to provide an auto-turn analysis to prove that all radius turns can accom...
	7. Block lengths (MCC 5-4-10-3.A.1): This code prevents any long linear block lengths extending past 1100’.  Because the large lakes create peninsula-like strips of land, Developer is requesting that the block length maximum be expanded to 1700’.
	8. Dead-end Roads (MCC 5-4-10-2.F): Code prohibits dead end roads, but due to the extensive use of private lanes, which are allowed, Developer has created a few short dead-end roads.
	9. Tree Planting (Supplement to ISPWC):  Developer is requesting that it be allowed to plant trees within 3’ from a sidewalk with a root barrier and 4’ from sidewalk without a root barrier.
	11. Street lights & Street Signs (Supplement to ISPWC):  Developer is requesting that alternative styles for street lights and street signs be allowed on the private streets for aesthetic purposes.
	12. Timing for final plat approval & DA Termination (MCC 5-4-4.F):  Under the current code, Developers may take up to four years to obtain final plat approval for their first phase in order to avoid the nullification of their preliminary plat.  Quarry...
	13. Amendments to Pre-Plat (MCC 5-4-4): If a Developer desires to change an approved preliminary plat in any way, Developer must go through the public hearing procedures for preliminary plat.  Developer is requesting a waiver to this requirement so De...
	The request is based upon the fact that this large subdivision may take 10 or more years to develop, and a minimal amount of flexibility will help Developer and City to efficiently and economically negotiate those minor changes. If the Planning & Zoni...
	14. Model Home Building Permits: Building Permits are not issued until after final plat is approved. However, Developer is seeking authorization to obtain building permits for up to 10 model homes prior to final plat approval. This will allow Develope...
	15. Bonding: (MCC 5-4-7.A.3) Currently, the code allows bonding for only landscaping and irrigation improvements and only during inclement weather. Fencing has generally been considered part of the landscaping.  Developer is requesting that it be allo...
	16. ITD Proportionate Share Fee $456,335.00:  ITD reviewed both the Quarry East and Quarry West preliminary plats and determined that the Developer should pay $456,335.00 towards the improvements at Hwy 20/26 and Middleton Road due to the adverse impa...
	Findings:
	Planning Staff finds that the preliminary plat does not comply with standards and requirements of the Middleton City Code, but the Council may still approve the preliminary plat if requested waivers from the code are approved through the preliminary p...
	L. Development Agreement:  Developer has submitted an application for Development Agreement to accompany its application for Annexation/Rezone.  (See full copy of the Development Agreement attached to this staff report as Exhibit “B”.)
	Applicant has used the City’s form for the DA, and has added the following provisions to Article III:
	1. Various Waivers: All the variances or waivers from City Code noted in the preliminary plat section above are individually set forth in the DA as permissible waivers from code.
	2.  Concept Plan: A concept plan shall be attached to the DA. The future development must be built substantially consistent with the concept plan.
	3. Concept Renderings: Concept renderings of home styles and community amenities shall be attached as exhibits along with Design Guidelines that set forth minimum standards for design and quality.  The standards show a higher quality building product ...
	4. Amenities: DA requires that Developer build the following amenities: (1) community swimming pool, six pickleball courts, picnic area and community beaches prior to the issuance of the 134th building permits and (2) the clubhouse amenity shall be bu...
	5. 55+ Community: The community shall remain a 55+ community as allowed by Federal Code and State Statute.  The requirement shall be set forth in the recorded CC&Rs.
	6. Allowed Uses: although the M-U zone allows a large number of different commercial and residential uses, the DA will limit Applicant to only these uses: (1) single family residential, (2) duplex residential, (3) model complex and sales office/market...
	7. Mini-Storage: the storage facility must undergo the Design Review process before a building permit will be issued.  The mini-storage buildings may only be single story buildings.
	8. Private Streets Reserve Study: Because the private streets and stormwater facilities will be maintained and repaired by the HOA, City will require Developer to submit a reserve study at each phase final plat to show that sufficient money will be co...
	9. Emergency Access/Service:  Developer/HOA will ensure that the private streets are accessible to emergency services and other public services.
	10. Sewer & Water improvements: As already discussed above, Developer shall extend city sewer and water to the site and possibly improve utility facilities over and above what is required to serve Quarry East. The DA provides that any improvements ove...
	The DA further states that the sewer and water utilities are public and Developer/Owner shall grant an easement to City to access the utilities for repair and maintenance.
	11. Natural Gas: DA provides that Developer will extend natural gas service to the project site.
	12. Urban Renewal Revenue Allocation Area:  Developer and City agree that Developer may seek reimbursement from the Urban Renewal District for public infrastructure.  If reimbursement is granted by the Urban Renewal District, then Developer is not ent...
	13. Road/Frontage Improvements: DA requires Developer to construct all code required frontage improvements, including the potential roundabout/traffic signals at Lincoln & Middleton Road and at the Quarry entrance.  The DA sets forth the timing and pr...
	14. Notice of surrounding industrial use:  Developer shall place language in every purchase agreement and in the CC&Rs notifying prospective purchasers that the City’s planning documents show industrial uses to the north and east of the project.  This...
	A copy of the proposed Development Agreement is attached as Exhibit “B”.
	M. Comprehensive Plan & Land Use Map Amendment:  The vast majority of Applicant’s project complies with the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map because 9/10th of the parcel is dedicated to residential use and the FLUM shows residential use at tha...
	Pursuant to MCC 1-14-3, an application for Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment cannot be approved without a finding that the proposed amendment is “in harmony” with the Comprehensive Plan.
	Finding:
	Planning Staff finds that the proposed change from “Residential” to “Industrial” on the Future Land Use Map is in harmony with the Comprehensive Plan because the location of the changed designation directly abuts the industrial park located at Bass La...
	The use also complies with Goal 4 of the Comprehensive Plan to use space for privacy considerations and to allow mixed use in appropriate locations. The storage facility will undergo design review and will create a more attractive buffer between the m...
	Applicant’s other applications require a finding that the project complies with the Goals, Objectives, and Strategies of the 2019 Middleton Comprehensive Plan.
	Planning Staff finds that the proposed project complies with the following goals:
	a. Goal 1: the project is a new development that helps extend city services in an environmentally and fiscally-responsible manner.
	b. Goals 3 and 23: The project provides safe vehicle and pedestrian facilities in light of the street improvements and sidewalks shown on the preliminary plat.
	c. Goal 4: The project will establish a good quality of life with development that pays through impact fees and property taxes for the public services it receives when infrastructure is installed. Additionally, recreational activities and quality lots...
	d. Goal 5: “…[e]ncourage[s] annexation of property whose property tax revenue and other benefits match or exceed the cost to provide public services.”  This project will generate a great deal of property tax income that will exceed the services receiv...
	e. Goal 6:  the project promotes the goal to “expand water, sewer, and road systems in an orderly manner consistent with population growth in the City”.
	f. Goal 7: The commercial/industrial storage facility promotes economic growth.
	g. Goal 10: Project provides open space and pathways that connect to a pedestrian system and provide outdoor recreational activities.
	h. Goal 11: Project provides a variety of housing types and lot sizes for residents.
	N. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  None.
	O. Comments from Agencies: CHD4 submitted five comment responses dated 11/29/2021, 6/1/2021, 2/4/2022, 3/24/2022, and 4/11/2022.  Caldwell Fire Department submitted a response dated 2/14/2022 and comment letter received 3/8/2022.  On March 29, 2022, G...
	P. Comments from City Engineer and Planning Staff: Copies of Engineering and planning staff comments are attached as Exhibit “D”.
	Q. Applicant Information:  Application was accepted March 1, 2021. Applicants are M3 Companies and JUB Engineers; 2760 W. Excursion Lane, Meridian, Id. 208.376.7330.
	R. Notices & Neighborhood Meeting:    Dates:
	Newspaper Notification     5/29/2022
	Radius notification mailed to
	Adjacent landowners within 500’    5/31/2022
	Circulation to Agencies     5/27/2022
	Sign Posting property     5/27/2022
	Neighborhood Meeting     6/30/2021 & 7/13/2020
	(Applications were tabled at the 6/15/2022 City Council meeting due to moratorium.)
	S. Applicable Codes and Standards:
	Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-16, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4, and Idaho Code Title 67, Chapter 65 & Title 50, Chapters 2 and 13.
	T. Planning & Zoning Recommendations & Approvals:  The Planning & Zoning Commission considered the Quarry East applications at the April 11, 2022, public hearing.  The Commission approved applicant’s special use permit applications to construct duplex...
	The Commission further recommended that City Council approve the applications for (1) annexation/rezone, (2) development agreement, (3) preliminary plat, and (4) comprehensive plan map amendment subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the S...
	U. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:
	City Council’s decisions and order on the four applications before the Council must be based upon findings of facts and conclusions of law.
	As to Findings of Facts, Planning staff has set forth findings of facts above in parentheses.  If the Council agrees with these findings of facts and further agrees with the general facts presented at the public hearing, then the Council may create a ...
	As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that City Council has the authority to hear these applications and to approve or deny the applications, with or without conditions.  Additionally, Planning Staff notes that all public notice requirements ...
	Applications for Annexation/Rezone, Preliminary Plat, Development Agreement, & Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment: If the Council chooses to approve these four applications based upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, then Planning Sta...
	1. City sewer and water facilities to be extended to the Project site.
	2. Developer to comply with all provisions and terms set forth in the Development Agreement City Council approves during the public hearing on the matter.
	3. Developer to install landscaping per updated landscape plan submitted June 30, 2022, including traffic buffer and berm as required by MCC 5-4-10-6 and set forth in the approved preliminary plat.
	4. All City Engineering comments are to be completed and approved.
	5. All Planner comments are to be completed and approved
	6. Developer to comply with all FEMA, Middleton floodplain code, and Floodplain Administrator requirements.
	7. All Caldwell Fire Department comments are to be completed and approved.
	8. The access to the mini-storage lot and facility is conditioned on City and CHD4 determining an appropriate access, which may include right in/right out only access.
	9. Apply a street name and install a sign for the private lane on Lot 118, Block 3 for addressing purposes.
	10. Sewer and Water capacity to be reserved at the time City approves the construction drawings for each phase.
	Finally, if the Council denies any of the four applications, then pursuant to Middleton City Code 1-14(E)(8), the Council should state on the record what Applicant can do, if anything, to gain approval of the application(s).
	Prepared by Middleton Planning & Zoning Director, Roberta Stewart  Dated: 7/6/2022
	EXHIBIT “A”
	Proposed Preliminary Plat
	EXHIBIT “B”
	Proposed Development Agreement
	EXHIBIT “C”
	Agency Comments
	EXHIBIT “D”
	Engineering & Planner Comments
	EXHIBIT “E”
	P&Z Commission FCR & Order


	Quarry Staff Report - CC.pdf
	QUARRY EAST SUBDIVISION
	Snapshot Summary
	A. City Council Public Hearing Date: July 20, 2022
	B. Project Description: A 55+ resort style community involving 640 residential lots, one mini-self storage lot, 67 common area lots, 37 shared driveway lots, and nine private road lots located at 21500 Middleton Road and 11436 Lincoln Road (Tax Parcel...
	The proposed amenities include three large lakes encompassing over 62 acres, beaches, clubhouse, swimming pool, picnic areas, and six pickleball courts.
	Quarry East subdivision is a “sister” subdivision to another subdivision proposal known as “Quarry West”. This second subdivision is proposed for a location immediately west of The Quarry East.  The Quarry West also has preliminary plat/annexation app...
	The Quarry West proposal includes 297 single family home sites on 150 acres. Developer is not proposing a private and gated 55+ community for Quarry West.
	C. Application Requests: Applicant has four applications before City Council: (1) annexation and rezone to M-U (“Mixed Use”), (2) preliminary plat, (3) Development Agreement, and (4) Comprehensive Plan Map amendment to change the “Residential” use on ...
	Applicant applied to Planning & Zoning for a special use permit to construct duplex homes and a mini-self storage facility in the proposed M-U Zone.  The Commission approved the requests subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Rep...
	The final application is an administrative floodplain application that covers a handful of lots along the eastern boundary of the project parcel.  Any approval of the other applications should be conditioned upon completion of all comments from the Ci...
	D. Current Zoning & Property Condition:  The project property is located in Canyon County, and it is zoned Agricultural, C-1 “Neighborhood Commercial,” and M-1 “Light Industrial.”
	The site is currently vacant land, but it was the location of a quarry operation at one time, which accounts for the three large “lakes” already on site.
	The area surrounding the project site is primarily industrial property, but there are also agricultural parcels and vacant lots nearby. Caldwell City limits are on the south side of the Quarry subdivision, and it shares the subdivision’s southern bord...
	The City’s Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map shows that industrial use is planned for the property to the east and north.  Residential use is planned for the property to the west.  Caldwell planning documents indicate that residential uses are pl...
	E. City Services:  City water and sewer are located immediately east of the project in Middleton Road.
	If approved, the proposed Development Agreement will require Developer to construct a sewer lift station on its project site and also expand an existing lift station known as the Boise River lift station.  Developer will construct or expand these impr...
	Another proposed term in the Development Agreement will require Developer to extend a second water line under, over, or through the Boise River in order to create a water loop system necessary to extend water to the project.  As with sewer, Developer ...
	F. Traffic, Access & Streets:
	1. Private Streets:  The City code does not contemplate private streets.  Streets built inside City limits are owned, repaired and maintained by the City.  Developer is requesting that all the streets inside Quarry East be “private” streets that are o...
	2. Frontage Construction: S. Middleton Road and Lincoln Road front the project site. Developer will be required to construct the ½ road frontage improvements along Middleton Road and Lincoln Road. The improvement to Lincoln Road will be at Developer’s...
	3. Access & Intersection Controls:  There are two planned accesses to the project. The main access will be at Middleton Road and Quarry St., and the second will be located at Lincoln Road and Hammerstone Avenue.
	During the initial stages of the project, access will be through the Middleton Road/Quarry St. access.  Left and right turn lanes will be sufficient to handle the traffic during that time period. However, as phases are developed and residents move in,...
	Pursuant to the 2016 Middleton Road Corridor Study, there is a multi-lane roundabout planned at the approximate location of the Quarry St., entrance on Middleton Road. A second multi-lane roundabout is planned about ½ mile to the south at the intersec...
	The most efficient and cost-effective way to get the roundabout constructed at Middleton Rd., and Quarry St., is by having Developer construct the roundabout rather than waiting for the City of Middleton and/or CHD4 to build the roundabout through the...
	The City may not be able to obtain the right of way for the roundabout prior to 100 building permits; however, some type of intersection control will still be required to ensure safe access off of Middleton Road on to Quarry Street.  Therefore, the pr...
	As to the second roundabout located at Middleton Road and the southern leg of Lincoln Road, that roundabout will be built sometime in the future through the Mid-Star program and/or through the collaboration of CHD4, Caldwell, Canyon County and/or Midd...
	The proposed Development Agreement provides that when the Developer constructs the access on to Lincoln Road, the Developer shall be required to design and construct a traffic signal at Middleton Road and Lincoln Road.  It shall remain in place until ...
	The final intersection to consider is the turn lane required for entrance into the proposed Mini storage facility at the north end of the Quarry project.  Per the proposed Development Agreement, City and/or CHD4 will determine, before Phase 10, what t...
	Applicant completed a Traffic Study. The Traffic Study does not recommend any mitigation measures that are not already contemplated by the City.
	Middleton requires development to pay for itself so the taxpayers will not be burdened with the cost.  Therefore, Developer will be required to pay a Transportation Impact fee per the Mid-Star CIP program. The fee is $5050 per residential lot, which a...
	For pro-rata traffic fees pursuant to MCC 4-5-3, Developer shall pay an additional $456,355.00, making Developer’s total contribution to future road improvements $3,688,355.00.
	H. Fire District:  The subject property is in the Caldwell Fire District.  On March 8, 2022, Fire Marshal Alan Perry submitted comments indicating general approval of the project so long as Developer complies with the 2018 International Fire Code.  (S...
	I. Schools:  The Quarry East is located in the Vallivue School District.
	J. Annexation and Rezone: Applicant is requesting that the entire 237-acre project be annexed into the City of Middleton with a zone change to Mixed Use “M-U”.  Mixed Use zoning is designed to accommodate a variety of uses such as commercial uses comb...
	There are three findings that must be made before Annexation can be approved: (1) the property must be contiguous to City limits (2) City services such as sewer and water can be extended to serve the site, and (3) the annexation is deemed to be an ord...
	An application for rezone requires two findings before the Council can approve the application: (1) the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s delivery of services and (2) the rezone request is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan. (Idaho ...
	FINDINGS:
	Planning Staff finds that Applicant’s project meets all three findings for annexation: (1) the property is contiguous and (2) sewer and water are available and can be extended to the site.  Additionally, current capacity analyses contemplate sufficien...
	As to finding #3, the annexation is an orderly and economical extension of City services for the following reasons: (1) the Developer will be constructing needed road improvements and intersection controls on Middleton Road sooner than would occur thr...
	On the flip side, potential adverse impacts to be considered are (1) increased traffic congestion, (2) over-crowding, (3) pressure imposed upon City services like sewer, water, fire protection and police and (4) loss of rural property.
	As to the rezone application, Planning Staff finds that the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s ability to deliver sewer and water as already noted above.  Additionally, Developer will bear the cost of impacting city services by paying impact ...
	Finally, as will be shown below in the section regarding the Comprehensive Plan, the rezone is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan
	K. Preliminary Plat Application: The preliminary plat shows 10 phases for development. (A full copy of the proposed preliminary plat is attached to this staff report as Exhibit “A”.)
	Before the Council can approve the preliminary plat, it must find that the preliminary plat complies with all Middleton City codes and standards. However, Middleton City Code section 1-15-2 allows the governing bodies to waive specific codes and stand...
	The preliminary plat application does not comply with all Middleton City codes and standards. However, Applicant is requesting “waivers” or “exceptions” to the code under MCC 1-15-2.
	Directly below is an itemization of all waiver requests. (More detailed descriptions of each waiver request can be found at Exhibits “F” and “G” to the proposed Development Agreement, which is attached to this staff report as Exhibit “B”.) Planning St...
	As to waiver requests regarding legal issues such as bonding or platting procedures, City attorney has reviewed the requests and worked with Staff and the developer to refine the requests to an acceptable level.
	However, there is one waiver request City Staff did not review, negotiate or otherwise try to change. That is item #1 below regarding setbacks and lot dimensions.  None of these proposed waivers pose a danger or particular technical concern, so Staff ...
	Waiver Requests:
	1. Setbacks & Dimensions (MCC 5-4-1, Table 2):  Minimum standards for lot dimensions and setbacks are set forth in MCC 5-4-1, Table 2.  Developer is requesting that the annexed project be zoned Mixed Use (M-U).  The dimensions and setbacks for M-U are...
	M-U Setbacks & Dimensions
	Front setback- 20’                           Street-side setback – 20’
	Rear setback – 20’      Minimum lot size – 6000 sf
	Interior Side setback– 12’     Minimum lot width – 50’
	[Setbacks for R-3 may also be seen in the chart directly above.]
	In the current application, Applicant is requesting the following narrower setbacks and lot sizes:
	2. Private Streets: City Code does not allow Private Roads other than small private lanes (or shared driveways) that can accommodate up to four homes. Allowing private streets will be an exception to the Code.
	3. Driveways and Frontage (MCC 4-1-1.H & Supplement to ISPWC): Applicant is requesting an exception to the requirement that all lots front a “public road”.  Because the roads within the subdivision are requested to be “private,” this code section will...
	4. Roadway width & gutters (MCC 5-4-10-2.D.2 & Supplement to ISPWC):  City Code requires local public right-of-way/roads to be 50’ wide. Developer is requesting a narrower width of 47’, and a narrower width from back of curb to back of curb of 33’, so...
	5. Cul de sac length (MCC 5-4-10-2.E):  Per the code, cul de sac roads cannot exceed 600’.  Because of the large lakes and narrow channels created by the lakes, Developer is requesting that the cul de sac maximum length be extended to 1000’.
	6. Radius turns (MCC 5-4-10-2.H.2):  Code allows radius turns of 90’.  Developer is requesting radius turns as low as 45’.  Caldwell Fire’s final approval will require Applicant to provide an auto-turn analysis to prove that all radius turns can accom...
	7. Block lengths (MCC 5-4-10-3.A.1): This code prevents any long linear block lengths extending past 1100’.  Because the large lakes create peninsula-like strips of land, Developer is requesting that the block length maximum be expanded to 1700’.
	8. Dead-end Roads (MCC 5-4-10-2.F): Code prohibits dead end roads, but due to the extensive use of private lanes, which are allowed, Developer has created a few short dead-end roads.
	9. Tree Planting (Supplement to ISPWC):  Developer is requesting that it be allowed to plant trees within 3’ from a sidewalk with a root barrier and 4’ from sidewalk without a root barrier.
	11. Street lights & Street Signs (Supplement to ISPWC):  Developer is requesting that alternative styles for street lights and street signs be allowed on the private streets for aesthetic purposes.
	12. Timing for final plat approval & DA Termination (MCC 5-4-4.F):  Under the current code, Developers may take up to four years to obtain final plat approval for their first phase in order to avoid the nullification of their preliminary plat.  Quarry...
	13. Amendments to Pre-Plat (MCC 5-4-4): If a Developer desires to change an approved preliminary plat in any way, Developer must go through the public hearing procedures for preliminary plat.  Developer is requesting a waiver to this requirement so De...
	The request is based upon the fact that this large subdivision may take 10 or more years to develop, and a minimal amount of flexibility will help Developer and City to efficiently and economically negotiate those minor changes. If the Planning & Zoni...
	14. Model Home Building Permits: Building Permits are not issued until after final plat is approved. However, Developer is seeking authorization to obtain building permits for up to 10 model homes prior to final plat approval. This will allow Develope...
	15. Bonding: (MCC 5-4-7.A.3) Currently, the code allows bonding for only landscaping and irrigation improvements and only during inclement weather. Fencing has generally been considered part of the landscaping.  Developer is requesting that it be allo...
	16. ITD Proportionate Share Fee $456,335.00:  ITD reviewed both the Quarry East and Quarry West preliminary plats and determined that the Developer should pay $456,335.00 towards the improvements at Hwy 20/26 and Middleton Road due to the adverse impa...
	Findings:
	Planning Staff finds that the preliminary plat does not comply with standards and requirements of the Middleton City Code, but the Council may still approve the preliminary plat if requested waivers from the code are approved through the preliminary p...
	L. Development Agreement:  Developer has submitted an application for Development Agreement to accompany its application for Annexation/Rezone.  (See full copy of the Development Agreement attached to this staff report as Exhibit “B”.)
	Applicant has used the City’s form for the DA, and has added the following provisions to Article III:
	1. Various Waivers: All the variances or waivers from City Code noted in the preliminary plat section above are individually set forth in the DA as permissible waivers from code.
	2.  Concept Plan: A concept plan shall be attached to the DA. The future development must be built substantially consistent with the concept plan.
	3. Concept Renderings: Concept renderings of home styles and community amenities shall be attached as exhibits along with Design Guidelines that set forth minimum standards for design and quality.  The standards show a higher quality building product ...
	4. Amenities: DA requires that Developer build the following amenities: (1) community swimming pool, six pickleball courts, picnic area and community beaches prior to the issuance of the 134th building permits and (2) the clubhouse amenity shall be bu...
	5. 55+ Community: The community shall remain a 55+ community as allowed by Federal Code and State Statute.  The requirement shall be set forth in the recorded CC&Rs.
	6. Allowed Uses: although the M-U zone allows a large number of different commercial and residential uses, the DA will limit Applicant to only these uses: (1) single family residential, (2) duplex residential, (3) model complex and sales office/market...
	7. Mini-Storage: the storage facility must undergo the Design Review process before a building permit will be issued.  The mini-storage buildings may only be single story buildings.
	8. Private Streets Reserve Study: Because the private streets and stormwater facilities will be maintained and repaired by the HOA, City will require Developer to submit a reserve study at each phase final plat to show that sufficient money will be co...
	9. Emergency Access/Service:  Developer/HOA will ensure that the private streets are accessible to emergency services and other public services.
	10. Sewer & Water improvements: As already discussed above, Developer shall extend city sewer and water to the site and possibly improve utility facilities over and above what is required to serve Quarry East. The DA provides that any improvements ove...
	The DA further states that the sewer and water utilities are public and Developer/Owner shall grant an easement to City to access the utilities for repair and maintenance.
	11. Natural Gas: DA provides that Developer will extend natural gas service to the project site.
	12. Urban Renewal Revenue Allocation Area:  Developer and City agree that Developer may seek reimbursement from the Urban Renewal District for public infrastructure.  If reimbursement is granted by the Urban Renewal District, then Developer is not ent...
	13. Road/Frontage Improvements: DA requires Developer to construct all code required frontage improvements, including the potential roundabout/traffic signals at Lincoln & Middleton Road and at the Quarry entrance.  The DA sets forth the timing and pr...
	14. Notice of surrounding industrial use:  Developer shall place language in every purchase agreement and in the CC&Rs notifying prospective purchasers that the City’s planning documents show industrial uses to the north and east of the project.  This...
	A copy of the proposed Development Agreement is attached as Exhibit “B”.
	M. Comprehensive Plan & Land Use Map Amendment:  The vast majority of Applicant’s project complies with the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map because 9/10th of the parcel is dedicated to residential use and the FLUM shows residential use at tha...
	A full copy of the proposed FLUM is attached to this Staff Report as Exhibit “F”.
	Pursuant to MCC 1-14-3, an application for Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment cannot be approved without a finding that the proposed amendment is “in harmony” with the Comprehensive Plan.
	Finding:
	Planning Staff finds that the proposed change from “Residential” to “Industrial” on the Future Land Use Map is in harmony with the Comprehensive Plan because the location of the changed designation directly abuts the industrial park located at Bass La...
	The use also complies with Goal 4 of the Comprehensive Plan to use space for privacy considerations and to allow mixed use in appropriate locations. The storage facility will undergo design review and will create a more attractive buffer between the m...
	Applicant’s other applications require a finding that the project complies with the Goals, Objectives, and Strategies of the 2019 Middleton Comprehensive Plan.
	Planning Staff finds that the proposed project complies with the following goals:
	a. Goal 1: the project is a new development that helps extend city services in an environmentally and fiscally-responsible manner.
	b. Goals 3 and 23: The project provides safe vehicle and pedestrian facilities in light of the street improvements and sidewalks shown on the preliminary plat.
	c. Goal 4: The project will establish a good quality of life with development that pays through impact fees and property taxes for the public services it receives when infrastructure is installed. Additionally, recreational activities and quality lots...
	d. Goal 5: “…[e]ncourage[s] annexation of property whose property tax revenue and other benefits match or exceed the cost to provide public services.”  This project will generate a great deal of property tax income that will exceed the services receiv...
	e. Goal 6:  the project promotes the goal to “expand water, sewer, and road systems in an orderly manner consistent with population growth in the City”.
	f. Goal 7: The commercial/industrial storage facility promotes economic growth.
	g. Goal 10: Project provides open space and pathways that connect to a pedestrian system and provide outdoor recreational activities.
	h. Goal 11: Project provides a variety of housing types and lot sizes for residents.
	N. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  None.
	O. Comments from Agencies: CHD4 submitted five comment responses dated 11/29/2021, 6/1/2021, 2/4/2022, 3/24/2022, and 4/11/2022.  Caldwell Fire Department submitted a response dated 2/14/2022 and comment letter received 3/8/2022.  On March 29, 2022, G...
	P. Comments from City Engineer and Planning Staff: Copies of Engineering and planning staff comments are attached as Exhibit “D”.
	Q. Applicant Information:  Application was accepted March 1, 2021. Applicants are M3 Companies and JUB Engineers; 2760 W. Excursion Lane, Meridian, Id. 208.376.7330.
	R. Notices & Neighborhood Meeting:    Dates:
	Newspaper Notification     5/29/2022
	Radius notification mailed to
	Adjacent landowners within 500’    5/31/2022
	Circulation to Agencies     5/27/2022
	Sign Posting property     5/27/2022
	Neighborhood Meeting     6/30/2021 & 7/13/2020
	(Applications were tabled at the 6/15/2022 City Council meeting due to moratorium.)
	S. Applicable Codes and Standards:
	Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-16, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4, and Idaho Code Title 67, Chapter 65 & Title 50, Chapters 2 and 13.
	T. Planning & Zoning Recommendations & Approvals:  The Planning & Zoning Commission considered the Quarry East applications at the April 11, 2022, public hearing.  The Commission approved applicant’s special use permit applications to construct duplex...
	The Commission further recommended that City Council approve the applications for (1) annexation/rezone, (2) development agreement, (3) preliminary plat, and (4) comprehensive plan map amendment subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the S...
	U. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:
	City Council’s decisions and order on the four applications before the Council must be based upon findings of facts and conclusions of law.
	As to Findings of Facts, Planning staff has set forth findings of facts above in parentheses.  If the Council agrees with these findings of facts and further agrees with the general facts presented at the public hearing, then the Council may create a ...
	As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that City Council has the authority to hear these applications and to approve or deny the applications, with or without conditions.  Additionally, Planning Staff notes that all public notice requirements ...
	Applications for Annexation/Rezone, Preliminary Plat, Development Agreement, & Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment: If the Council chooses to approve these four applications based upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, then Planning Sta...
	1. City sewer and water facilities to be extended to the Project site.
	2. Developer to comply with all provisions and terms set forth in the Development Agreement City Council approves during the public hearing on the matter.
	3. Developer to install landscaping per updated landscape plan submitted June 30, 2022, including traffic buffer and berm as required by MCC 5-4-10-6 and set forth in the approved preliminary plat.
	4. All City Engineering comments are to be completed and approved.
	5. All Planner comments are to be completed and approved
	6. Developer to comply with all FEMA, Middleton floodplain code, and Floodplain Administrator requirements.
	7. All Caldwell Fire Department comments are to be completed and approved.
	8. The access to the mini-storage lot and facility is conditioned on City and CHD4 determining an appropriate access, which may include right in/right out only access.
	9. Apply a street name and install a sign for the private lane on Lot 118, Block 3 for addressing purposes.
	10. Sewer and Water capacity to be reserved at the time City approves the construction drawings for each phase.
	Finally, if the Council denies any of the four applications, then pursuant to Middleton City Code 1-14(E)(8), the Council should state on the record what Applicant can do, if anything, to gain approval of the application(s).
	Prepared by Middleton Planning & Zoning Director, Roberta Stewart  Dated: 7/13/2022


	Blank Page
	Quarry Staff Report - CC.pdf
	QUARRY EAST SUBDIVISION
	Snapshot Summary
	A. City Council Public Hearing Date: July 20, 2022
	B. Project Description: A 55+ resort style community involving 640 residential lots, one mini-self storage lot, 67 common area lots, 37 shared driveway lots, and nine private road lots located at 21500 Middleton Road and 11436 Lincoln Road (Tax Parcel...
	The proposed amenities include three large lakes encompassing over 62 acres, beaches, clubhouse, swimming pool, picnic areas, and six pickleball courts.
	Quarry East subdivision is a “sister” subdivision to another subdivision proposal known as “Quarry West”. This second subdivision is proposed for a location immediately west of The Quarry East.  The Quarry West also has preliminary plat/annexation app...
	The Quarry West proposal includes 297 single family home sites on 150 acres. Developer is not proposing a private and gated 55+ community for Quarry West.
	C. Application Requests: Applicant has four applications before City Council: (1) annexation and rezone to M-U (“Mixed Use”), (2) preliminary plat, (3) Development Agreement, and (4) Comprehensive Plan Map amendment to change the “Residential” use on ...
	Applicant applied to Planning & Zoning for a special use permit to construct duplex homes and a mini-self storage facility in the proposed M-U Zone.  The Commission approved the requests subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Rep...
	The final application is an administrative floodplain application that covers a handful of lots along the eastern boundary of the project parcel.  Any approval of the other applications should be conditioned upon completion of all comments from the Ci...
	D. Current Zoning & Property Condition:  The project property is located in Canyon County, and it is zoned Agricultural, C-1 “Neighborhood Commercial,” and M-1 “Light Industrial.”
	The site is currently vacant land, but it was the location of a quarry operation at one time, which accounts for the three large “lakes” already on site.
	The area surrounding the project site is primarily industrial property, but there are also agricultural parcels and vacant lots nearby. Caldwell City limits are on the south side of the Quarry subdivision, and it shares the subdivision’s southern bord...
	The City’s Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map shows that industrial use is planned for the property to the east and north.  Residential use is planned for the property to the west.  Caldwell planning documents indicate that residential uses are pl...
	E. City Services:  City water and sewer are located immediately east of the project in Middleton Road.
	If approved, the proposed Development Agreement will require Developer to construct a sewer lift station on its project site and also expand an existing lift station known as the Boise River lift station.  Developer will construct or expand these impr...
	Another proposed term in the Development Agreement will require Developer to extend a second water line under, over, or through the Boise River in order to create a water loop system necessary to extend water to the project.  As with sewer, Developer ...
	F. Traffic, Access & Streets:
	1. Private Streets:  The City code does not contemplate private streets.  Streets built inside City limits are owned, repaired and maintained by the City.  Developer is requesting that all the streets inside Quarry East be “private” streets that are o...
	2. Frontage Construction: S. Middleton Road and Lincoln Road front the project site. Developer will be required to construct the ½ road frontage improvements along Middleton Road and Lincoln Road. The improvement to Lincoln Road will be at Developer’s...
	3. Access & Intersection Controls:  There are two planned accesses to the project. The main access will be at Middleton Road and Quarry St., and the second will be located at Lincoln Road and Hammerstone Avenue.
	During the initial stages of the project, access will be through the Middleton Road/Quarry St. access.  Left and right turn lanes will be sufficient to handle the traffic during that time period. However, as phases are developed and residents move in,...
	Pursuant to the 2016 Middleton Road Corridor Study, there is a multi-lane roundabout planned at the approximate location of the Quarry St., entrance on Middleton Road. A second multi-lane roundabout is planned about ½ mile to the south at the intersec...
	The most efficient and cost-effective way to get the roundabout constructed at Middleton Rd., and Quarry St., is by having Developer construct the roundabout rather than waiting for the City of Middleton and/or CHD4 to build the roundabout through the...
	The City may not be able to obtain the right of way for the roundabout prior to 100 building permits; however, some type of intersection control will still be required to ensure safe access off of Middleton Road on to Quarry Street.  Therefore, the pr...
	As to the second roundabout located at Middleton Road and the southern leg of Lincoln Road, that roundabout will be built sometime in the future through the Mid-Star program and/or through the collaboration of CHD4, Caldwell, Canyon County and/or Midd...
	The proposed Development Agreement provides that when the Developer constructs the access on to Lincoln Road, the Developer shall be required to design and construct a traffic signal at Middleton Road and Lincoln Road.  It shall remain in place until ...
	The final intersection to consider is the turn lane required for entrance into the proposed Mini storage facility at the north end of the Quarry project.  Per the proposed Development Agreement, City and/or CHD4 will determine, before Phase 10, what t...
	Applicant completed a Traffic Study. The Traffic Study does not recommend any mitigation measures that are not already contemplated by the City.
	Middleton requires development to pay for itself so the taxpayers will not be burdened with the cost.  Therefore, Developer will be required to pay a Transportation Impact fee per the Mid-Star CIP program. The fee is $5050 per residential lot, which a...
	For pro-rata traffic fees pursuant to MCC 4-5-3, Developer shall pay an additional $456,355.00, making Developer’s total contribution to future road improvements $3,688,355.00.
	H. Fire District:  The subject property is in the Caldwell Fire District.  On March 8, 2022, Fire Marshal Alan Perry submitted comments indicating general approval of the project so long as Developer complies with the 2018 International Fire Code.  (S...
	I. Schools:  The Quarry East is located in the Vallivue School District.
	J. Annexation and Rezone: Applicant is requesting that the entire 237-acre project be annexed into the City of Middleton with a zone change to Mixed Use “M-U”.  Mixed Use zoning is designed to accommodate a variety of uses such as commercial uses comb...
	There are three findings that must be made before Annexation can be approved: (1) the property must be contiguous to City limits (2) City services such as sewer and water can be extended to serve the site, and (3) the annexation is deemed to be an ord...
	An application for rezone requires two findings before the Council can approve the application: (1) the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s delivery of services and (2) the rezone request is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan. (Idaho ...
	FINDINGS:
	Planning Staff finds that Applicant’s project meets all three findings for annexation: (1) the property is contiguous and (2) sewer and water are available and can be extended to the site.  Additionally, current capacity analyses contemplate sufficien...
	As to finding #3, the annexation is an orderly and economical extension of City services for the following reasons: (1) the Developer will be constructing needed road improvements and intersection controls on Middleton Road sooner than would occur thr...
	On the flip side, potential adverse impacts to be considered are (1) increased traffic congestion, (2) over-crowding, (3) pressure imposed upon City services like sewer, water, fire protection and police and (4) loss of rural property.
	As to the rezone application, Planning Staff finds that the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s ability to deliver sewer and water as already noted above.  Additionally, Developer will bear the cost of impacting city services by paying impact ...
	Finally, as will be shown below in the section regarding the Comprehensive Plan, the rezone is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan
	K. Preliminary Plat Application: The preliminary plat shows 10 phases for development. (A full copy of the proposed preliminary plat is attached to this staff report as Exhibit “A”.)
	Before the Council can approve the preliminary plat, it must find that the preliminary plat complies with all Middleton City codes and standards. However, Middleton City Code section 1-15-2 allows the governing bodies to waive specific codes and stand...
	The preliminary plat application does not comply with all Middleton City codes and standards. However, Applicant is requesting “waivers” or “exceptions” to the code under MCC 1-15-2.
	Directly below is an itemization of all waiver requests. (More detailed descriptions of each waiver request can be found at Exhibits “F” and “G” to the proposed Development Agreement, which is attached to this staff report as Exhibit “B”.) Planning St...
	As to waiver requests regarding legal issues such as bonding or platting procedures, City attorney has reviewed the requests and worked with Staff and the developer to refine the requests to an acceptable level.
	However, there is one waiver request City Staff did not review, negotiate or otherwise try to change. That is item #1 below regarding setbacks and lot dimensions.  None of these proposed waivers pose a danger or particular technical concern, so Staff ...
	Waiver Requests:
	1. Setbacks & Dimensions (MCC 5-4-1, Table 2):  Minimum standards for lot dimensions and setbacks are set forth in MCC 5-4-1, Table 2.  Developer is requesting that the annexed project be zoned Mixed Use (M-U).  The dimensions and setbacks for M-U are...
	M-U Setbacks & Dimensions
	Front setback- 20’                           Street-side setback – 20’
	Rear setback – 20’      Minimum lot size – 6000 sf
	Interior Side setback– 12’     Minimum lot width – 50’
	[Setbacks for R-3 may also be seen in the chart directly above.]
	In the current application, Applicant is requesting the following narrower setbacks and lot sizes:
	2. Private Streets: City Code does not allow Private Roads other than small private lanes (or shared driveways) that can accommodate up to four homes. Allowing private streets will be an exception to the Code.
	3. Driveways and Frontage (MCC 4-1-1.H & Supplement to ISPWC): Applicant is requesting an exception to the requirement that all lots front a “public road”.  Because the roads within the subdivision are requested to be “private,” this code section will...
	4. Roadway width & gutters (MCC 5-4-10-2.D.2 & Supplement to ISPWC):  City Code requires local public right-of-way/roads to be 50’ wide. Developer is requesting a narrower width of 47’, and a narrower width from back of curb to back of curb of 33’, so...
	5. Cul de sac length (MCC 5-4-10-2.E):  Per the code, cul de sac roads cannot exceed 600’.  Because of the large lakes and narrow channels created by the lakes, Developer is requesting that the cul de sac maximum length be extended to 1000’.
	6. Radius turns (MCC 5-4-10-2.H.2):  Code allows radius turns of 90’.  Developer is requesting radius turns as low as 45’.  Caldwell Fire’s final approval will require Applicant to provide an auto-turn analysis to prove that all radius turns can accom...
	7. Block lengths (MCC 5-4-10-3.A.1): This code prevents any long linear block lengths extending past 1100’.  Because the large lakes create peninsula-like strips of land, Developer is requesting that the block length maximum be expanded to 1700’.
	8. Dead-end Roads (MCC 5-4-10-2.F): Code prohibits dead end roads, but due to the extensive use of private lanes, which are allowed, Developer has created a few short dead-end roads.
	9. Tree Planting (Supplement to ISPWC):  Developer is requesting that it be allowed to plant trees within 3’ from a sidewalk with a root barrier and 4’ from sidewalk without a root barrier.
	11. Street lights & Street Signs (Supplement to ISPWC):  Developer is requesting that alternative styles for street lights and street signs be allowed on the private streets for aesthetic purposes.
	12. Timing for final plat approval & DA Termination (MCC 5-4-4.F):  Under the current code, Developers may take up to four years to obtain final plat approval for their first phase in order to avoid the nullification of their preliminary plat.  Quarry...
	13. Amendments to Pre-Plat (MCC 5-4-4): If a Developer desires to change an approved preliminary plat in any way, Developer must go through the public hearing procedures for preliminary plat.  Developer is requesting a waiver to this requirement so De...
	The request is based upon the fact that this large subdivision may take 10 or more years to develop, and a minimal amount of flexibility will help Developer and City to efficiently and economically negotiate those minor changes. If the Planning & Zoni...
	14. Model Home Building Permits: Building Permits are not issued until after final plat is approved. However, Developer is seeking authorization to obtain building permits for up to 10 model homes prior to final plat approval. This will allow Develope...
	15. Bonding: (MCC 5-4-7.A.3) Currently, the code allows bonding for only landscaping and irrigation improvements and only during inclement weather. Fencing has generally been considered part of the landscaping.  Developer is requesting that it be allo...
	16. ITD Proportionate Share Fee $456,335.00:  ITD reviewed both the Quarry East and Quarry West preliminary plats and determined that the Developer should pay $456,335.00 towards the improvements at Hwy 20/26 and Middleton Road due to the adverse impa...
	Findings:
	Planning Staff finds that the preliminary plat does not comply with standards and requirements of the Middleton City Code, but the Council may still approve the preliminary plat if requested waivers from the code are approved through the preliminary p...
	L. Development Agreement:  Developer has submitted an application for Development Agreement to accompany its application for Annexation/Rezone.  (See full copy of the Development Agreement attached to this staff report as Exhibit “B”.)
	Applicant has used the City’s form for the DA, and has added the following provisions to Article III:
	1. Various Waivers: All the variances or waivers from City Code noted in the preliminary plat section above are individually set forth in the DA as permissible waivers from code.
	2.  Concept Plan: A concept plan shall be attached to the DA. The future development must be built substantially consistent with the concept plan.
	3. Concept Renderings: Concept renderings of home styles and community amenities shall be attached as exhibits along with Design Guidelines that set forth minimum standards for design and quality.  The standards show a higher quality building product ...
	4. Amenities: DA requires that Developer build the following amenities: (1) community swimming pool, six pickleball courts, picnic area and community beaches prior to the issuance of the 134th building permits and (2) the clubhouse amenity shall be bu...
	5. 55+ Community: The community shall remain a 55+ community as allowed by Federal Code and State Statute.  The requirement shall be set forth in the recorded CC&Rs.
	6. Allowed Uses: although the M-U zone allows a large number of different commercial and residential uses, the DA will limit Applicant to only these uses: (1) single family residential, (2) duplex residential, (3) model complex and sales office/market...
	7. Mini-Storage: the storage facility must undergo the Design Review process before a building permit will be issued.  The mini-storage buildings may only be single story buildings.
	8. Private Streets Reserve Study: Because the private streets and stormwater facilities will be maintained and repaired by the HOA, City will require Developer to submit a reserve study at each phase final plat to show that sufficient money will be co...
	9. Emergency Access/Service:  Developer/HOA will ensure that the private streets are accessible to emergency services and other public services.
	10. Sewer & Water improvements: As already discussed above, Developer shall extend city sewer and water to the site and possibly improve utility facilities over and above what is required to serve Quarry East. The DA provides that any improvements ove...
	The DA further states that the sewer and water utilities are public and Developer/Owner shall grant an easement to City to access the utilities for repair and maintenance.
	11. Natural Gas: DA provides that Developer will extend natural gas service to the project site.
	12. Urban Renewal Revenue Allocation Area:  Developer and City agree that Developer may seek reimbursement from the Urban Renewal District for public infrastructure.  If reimbursement is granted by the Urban Renewal District, then Developer is not ent...
	13. Road/Frontage Improvements: DA requires Developer to construct all code required frontage improvements, including the potential roundabout/traffic signals at Lincoln & Middleton Road and at the Quarry entrance.  The DA sets forth the timing and pr...
	14. Notice of surrounding industrial use:  Developer shall place language in every purchase agreement and in the CC&Rs notifying prospective purchasers that the City’s planning documents show industrial uses to the north and east of the project.  This...
	A copy of the proposed Development Agreement is attached as Exhibit “B”.
	M. Comprehensive Plan & Land Use Map Amendment:  The vast majority of Applicant’s project complies with the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map because 9/10th of the parcel is dedicated to residential use and the FLUM shows residential use at tha...
	A full copy of the proposed FLUM is attached to this Staff Report as Exhibit “F”.
	Pursuant to MCC 1-14-3, an application for Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment cannot be approved without a finding that the proposed amendment is “in harmony” with the Comprehensive Plan.
	Finding:
	Planning Staff finds that the proposed change from “Residential” to “Industrial” on the Future Land Use Map is in harmony with the Comprehensive Plan because the location of the changed designation directly abuts the industrial park located at Bass La...
	The use also complies with Goal 4 of the Comprehensive Plan to use space for privacy considerations and to allow mixed use in appropriate locations. The storage facility will undergo design review and will create a more attractive buffer between the m...
	Applicant’s other applications require a finding that the project complies with the Goals, Objectives, and Strategies of the 2019 Middleton Comprehensive Plan.
	Planning Staff finds that the proposed project complies with the following goals:
	a. Goal 1: the project is a new development that helps extend city services in an environmentally and fiscally-responsible manner.
	b. Goals 3 and 23: The project provides safe vehicle and pedestrian facilities in light of the street improvements and sidewalks shown on the preliminary plat.
	c. Goal 4: The project will establish a good quality of life with development that pays through impact fees and property taxes for the public services it receives when infrastructure is installed. Additionally, recreational activities and quality lots...
	d. Goal 5: “…[e]ncourage[s] annexation of property whose property tax revenue and other benefits match or exceed the cost to provide public services.”  This project will generate a great deal of property tax income that will exceed the services receiv...
	e. Goal 6:  the project promotes the goal to “expand water, sewer, and road systems in an orderly manner consistent with population growth in the City”.
	f. Goal 7: The commercial/industrial storage facility promotes economic growth.
	g. Goal 10: Project provides open space and pathways that connect to a pedestrian system and provide outdoor recreational activities.
	h. Goal 11: Project provides a variety of housing types and lot sizes for residents.
	N. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  None.
	O. Comments from Agencies: CHD4 submitted five comment responses dated 11/29/2021, 6/1/2021, 2/4/2022, 3/24/2022, and 4/11/2022.  Caldwell Fire Department submitted a response dated 2/14/2022 and comment letter received 3/8/2022.  On March 29, 2022, G...
	P. Comments from City Engineer and Planning Staff: Copies of Engineering and planning staff comments are attached as Exhibit “D”.
	Q. Applicant Information:  Application was accepted March 1, 2021. Applicants are M3 Companies and JUB Engineers; 2760 W. Excursion Lane, Meridian, Id. 208.376.7330.
	R. Notices & Neighborhood Meeting:    Dates:
	Newspaper Notification     5/29/2022
	Radius notification mailed to
	Adjacent landowners within 500’    5/31/2022
	Circulation to Agencies     5/27/2022
	Sign Posting property     5/27/2022
	Neighborhood Meeting     6/30/2021 & 7/13/2020
	(Applications were tabled at the 6/15/2022 City Council meeting due to moratorium.)
	S. Applicable Codes and Standards:
	Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-16, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4, and Idaho Code Title 67, Chapter 65 & Title 50, Chapters 2 and 13.
	T. Planning & Zoning Recommendations & Approvals:  The Planning & Zoning Commission considered the Quarry East applications at the April 11, 2022, public hearing.  The Commission approved applicant’s special use permit applications to construct duplex...
	The Commission further recommended that City Council approve the applications for (1) annexation/rezone, (2) development agreement, (3) preliminary plat, and (4) comprehensive plan map amendment subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the S...
	U. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:
	City Council’s decisions and order on the four applications before the Council must be based upon findings of facts and conclusions of law.
	As to Findings of Facts, Planning staff has set forth findings of facts above in parentheses.  If the Council agrees with these findings of facts and further agrees with the general facts presented at the public hearing, then the Council may create a ...
	As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that City Council has the authority to hear these applications and to approve or deny the applications, with or without conditions.  Additionally, Planning Staff notes that all public notice requirements ...
	Applications for Annexation/Rezone, Preliminary Plat, Development Agreement, & Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment: If the Council chooses to approve these four applications based upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, then Planning Sta...
	1. City sewer and water facilities to be extended to the Project site.
	2. Developer to provide City with a stamped copy of the approved preliminary plat.
	3. Developer to comply with all provisions and terms set forth in the Development Agreement City Council approves during the public hearing on the matter.
	4. Developer to install landscaping per updated landscape plan submitted June 30, 2022, including traffic buffer and berm as required by MCC 5-4-10-6 and set forth in the approved preliminary plat.
	5. All City Engineering comments are to be completed and approved.
	6. All Planner comments are to be completed and approved
	7. Developer to comply with all FEMA, Middleton floodplain code, and Floodplain Administrator requirements.
	8. All Caldwell Fire Department comments are to be completed and approved.
	9. The access to the mini-storage lot and facility is conditioned on City and CHD4 determining an appropriate access, which may include right in/right out only access.
	10. Apply a street name and install a sign for the private lane on Lot 118, Block 3 for addressing purposes.
	11. Sewer and Water capacity to be reserved at the time City approves the construction drawings for each phase.
	Finally, if the Council denies any of the four applications, then pursuant to Middleton City Code 1-14(E)(8), the Council should state on the record what Applicant can do, if anything, to gain approval of the application(s).
	Prepared by Middleton Planning & Zoning Director, Roberta Stewart  Dated: 7/13/2022



	ADP57C8.tmp
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25
	Slide Number 26
	Slide Number 27
	Slide Number 28
	Slide Number 29

	ADP5B7F.tmp
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16


	1d.) Channel Crossing - FCO.pdf
	A. Findings of Fact:
	1. Hearing Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of July 20, 2022, which Report is attached hereto as Exhibit “A’ and incorporated herein by this reference.
	2. Process Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of July 20, 2022, Exhibit “A”.
	3. Application and Property Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of July 20, 2022, Exhibit “A”.
	4. Required Findings per Middleton City Code 1-14-2(E)(7), Idaho State Statue Title 67, Chapter 65, Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction and Middleton Supplement thereto, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3 & 5-4 and Idaho Code Titl...
	B. Conclusions of Law:
	1. That the City of Middleton has exercised the powers conferred upon it by the “Local Land Use Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (I.C. §67-6503).
	2. That due consideration has been given to the comments received from the governmental subdivisions providing services in the City of Middleton planning jurisdiction, comments received from individuals of the public, and comments from City Planning S...
	3. That notice of the application and public hearing was given according to law.
	4. That City Council’s public hearing was conducted according to law, and the City has kept a record of the application and related documents.
	5. That codes and standards pertinent to the application are the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, and Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4 a...

	6. That public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not impose expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed.
	C. Decision & Order:
	Pursuant to the City Council’s authority as provided in Middleton City Code 1-5-2, and based upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, it is hereby Ordered that:
	1. The application of Middleton Rivers, LLC and Jay Gibbons/South, Beck & Baird for preliminary plat is approved subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the July 20, 2022, hearing.
	Please take notice that pursuant to MCC 1-14-2(E)(10), applicant shall have 14 days after a signed final decision to request reconsideration by the final-decision maker. Such request must identify specific deficiencies in the final decision. Failure t...
	Additionally, please take notice that Applicant has a right to request a regulatory taking analysis pursuant to Idaho State Statute section 67-8003.

	4.) Supplemental Quarry Staff Report - CC.pdf
	QUARRY EAST SUBDIVISION
	Snapshot Summary
	A. Continued City Council Hearing Date:  August 3, 2022
	B. Project Description & Applications: A 55+ resort style community involving 640 residential lots, one mini-self storage lot, 67 common area lots, 37 shared driveway lots, and nine private road lots located at 21500 Middleton Road and 11436 Lincoln R...
	Applicant has four applications before City Council: (1) annexation and rezone to M-U (“Mixed Use”), (2) preliminary plat, (3) Development Agreement, and (4) Comprehensive Plan Map amendment to change the “Residential” use on the Future Land Use Map t...
	C. Development Agreement:  At the July 20, 2022 public hearing on the applications, Council requested Staff and Developer to make two changes to the proposed Development Agreement (“DA”).  The hearing was continued to August 3, 2022 to give Staff time...
	1. In section 3.4 of the original draft, Developer is not required to complete the water line bore under the Boise River until approval of final plat for Phase 2 of the project.  The newly revised DA ties completion of the water bore to a specific num...
	2. In section 3.11 of the previous DA, Developer was allowed to pay the Traffic pro-rata fee of $456,335 by phase rather than paying up front at Phase 1 final plat approval.  The revised DA provides that Developer will pay the pro-rata fee for all lot...
	Prepared by Middleton Planning & Zoning Director, Roberta Stewart  Dated: 7/28/2022

	Blank Page
	Final Draft Quarry DA for 8-3-2022 CC Mtg.pdf
	Exhibits.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



	5.) Ordinance 664 - Quarry Annexation.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO. 664
	See legal description attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof by this reference.
	PASSED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, this ___ day of ___________, 2022.
	APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF MIDDLETON, IDAHO, this ____ day of _________, 2022.
	Attest:
	__________________________   ____________________________
	Steven J. Rule      Becky Crofts Mayor, City of Middleton    City Clerk
	EXHIBIT A


	7.) Quarry East FCO - CC.pdf
	In the Matter of the applications of M3 and JUB Engineers for annexation/rezone, preliminary plat, development agreement, and comprehensive plan map amendment with respect to the Quarry East Subdivision located at 21500 Middleton Road and 11436 Lincol...
	A. Findings of Fact:
	1. Hearing Facts: See Staff Reports for the hearing dates of July 20, 2022 and August 3, 2022, which Reports are attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and “B”, respectively, and incorporated herein by this reference.
	2. Process Facts: See Staff Reports for the hearing dates of July 20, 2022 and August 3, 2022 (Exhibits “A” and “B”).
	3. Application and Property Facts: See Staff Reports for the hearing dates of July 20, 2022 and August 3, 2022, Exhibits “A” and “B”.
	4. Required Findings per Middleton City Code 1-14-2(E)(7), Idaho State Statue Title 67, Chapter 65, Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction and Middleton Supplement thereto, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3 & 5-4 and Idaho Code Titl...
	B. Conclusions of Law:
	1. That the City of Middleton has exercised the powers conferred upon it by the “Local Land Use Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (I.C. §67-6503).
	2. That due consideration has been given to the comments received from the governmental subdivisions providing services in the City of Middleton planning jurisdiction, comments received from individuals of the public, and comments from City Planning S...
	3. That notice of the application and public hearing was given according to law.
	4. That City Council’s public hearing was conducted according to law, and the City has kept a record of the application and related documents.
	5. That codes and standards pertinent to the application are the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, and Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4 a...

	6. That public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not impose expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed.
	C. Decision & Order:
	Pursuant to the City Council’s authority as provided in Middleton City Code 1-5-2, and based upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, it is hereby ordered that:
	1. The application of M3 and JUB Engineers for Annexation and Rezone to Mixed Use (M-U) is approved, subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the July 20, 2022, public hearing (Exhibit “A”).
	2. The application of M3 and JUB Engineers for Development Agreement is approved subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the July 20, 2022, public hearing.
	3.  The application of M3 and JUB Engineers for preliminary plat is approved subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the July 20, 2022, public hearing.
	4.  The application of M3 and JUB Engineers for Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment is approved subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the July 20, 2022, public hearing.
	Please take notice that pursuant to MCC 1-14-2(E)(10), applicant shall have 14 days after a signed final decision to request reconsideration by the final-decision maker. Such request must identify specific deficiencies in the final decision. Failure t...

	8.) Reed's Landing CC Staff Report.pdf
	Reed’s Landing Subdivision
	Snapshot Summary
	A. City Council Hearing: August 3, 2022
	B. Project Description: Applications by Taylor Schmidt/BST DEV LLC for annexation/rezone, preliminary plat, and development agreement with respect to the Reed’s Landing Subdivision located at 880 W. Main Street (Tax Parcel No. R17900010).
	The proposed preliminary plat consists of three commercial lots, 12 single family residential lots, 25 townhome lots on approximately 9.7 acres of land zoned Canyon County Agricultural.
	C. Application Requests:  Applicant is requesting annexation and zone changes from Canyon County “Agricultural” to City of Middleton C-3 “Heavy Commercial” (2.35 acres”), M-F “Multi-Family” (2.98 acres) and R-3 “Single Family Residential (4.09 acres)....
	D. Current Zoning & Property Condition:  The property is currently Canyon County property zoned Agricultural, and the project is an infill project surrounded entirely by property within City limits.  The northern half of the parcel is surrounded entir...
	E. City Services:  City water and sewer are accessible to the project. The utilities are located in Shire St., Huckleberry St., and Lionheart St., immediately adjacent to the Project parcel.
	F. Traffic, Access & Streets:
	Access to the residential part of the subdivision will be through Lionheart Street and Huckleberry Street.  Access to the commercial lots will be off of Hwy 44.
	ITD has had the Reed’s Landing Subdivision under review for a number of months. Once ITD submits its comments, Developer will be required to improve, at its own cost, all Hwy 44 frontage improvements required by ITD and the City of Middleton.
	Developer has submitted a traffic study for the project. It revealed that the project will have “minimal impact” upon the roadways and intersections.  Frontage improvements and striping should “fully mitigate” the impact of the project, according to t...
	Middleton requires Development “to pay for itself” so the taxpayers will not be burdened with the cost of developing roads and infrastructure.  In light of this, Developer/builders will pay $186,850 in Mid-Star Transportation Impact Fees by the time a...
	H. Annexation and Rezone:  Applicant is requesting that the nine acre in-fill project be annexed into the City of Middleton with a zone change to C-3 “Heavy Commercial” (approx. 2.5 acres), M-F “Multi-Family” for the townhomes (approx. 3 acres) and R-...
	There are three findings that must be made before Annexation can be approved: (1) the property must be contiguous to City limits (2) City services such as sewer and water can be extended to serve the site, and (3) the annexation is deemed to be an ord...
	An application for rezone requires two findings before the Commission can recommend approval: (1) the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s delivery of services and (2) the rezone request is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan. (Idaho Co...
	FINDINGS:
	Planning Staff finds that Applicant’s project meets all three findings for annexation.  First, the property is contiguous and surrounded on all four sides by City property. Second, sewer and water are available and can be extended to the site as alrea...
	As to the rezone application, Planning Staff finds that the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s ability to deliver sewer and water as already noted above.  Additionally, Developer will bear the cost of impacting city services by paying impact ...
	Finally, as will be shown below in the section regarding the Comprehensive Plan, the rezone is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan
	I. Preliminary Plat Application:
	The preliminary plat shows two phases of development. The Multi-Family and R-3 zones comprise Phase 1. The three commercial lots comprise Phase 2.
	[A full copy of the proposed preliminary plat is attached as Exhibit “A”.]
	The plat complies with all Middleton codes and standards with one exception: (1) Developer is seeking a waiver to allow “perimeter” fencing to be set back from the perimeter on lots 1 – 4, Block 2 to allow unobstructed access to the ditch easement in ...
	Middleton governing bodies are allowed to grant exceptions or waivers to the code during the preliminary plat process (MCC 1-15-2).  The proposed fencing waiver is a reasonable request because the ditch easement needs to be accommodated. However, a co...
	Of Note, City Engineer, Amy Woodruff, has issued a letter indicating compliance with City Code, and she recommended approval of the preliminary plat.
	Findings:
	Planning Staff finds that the preliminary plat complies with dimensional standards and requirements of the Middleton City Code, ISPWC, Supplement to ISPWC, and Idaho State Code except for the fence waiver noted above.
	J. Development Agreement:  Applications for annexation/rezone are generally accompanied by an application for Development Agreement (“DA”). Attached as Exhibit “B” is the proposed Development Agreement.  The Developer has used the City’s DA form, and ...
	1. Developer will develop the community and townhomes generally consistent with the concept site plan and elevation renderings attached to the DA.
	2. The differing styles of townhomes shall undergo design review pursuant to MCC 1-15-8.
	3. Developer shall construct the following amenities: park with benches and playground, and shade structure with at least 2 picnic tables.
	4. Developer shall cause the entire .24 acre parcel fronting Hwy 44 to be dedicated to ITD or the City of Middleton for right of way when Phase two is constructed.
	5. The Reed’s home on the commercial lots shall be deemed a non-conforming use. They may remain on site and use the commercial parcels for residential purposes, but they may not apply to the City for any improvement permits that would increase the non...
	6. Developers will have two years to obtain final plat approval for Phase 1. Developer may seek two 1-year extensions, thereby allowing a total of 4 years to bring Phase 1 to final plat approval.  After Phase 1 final plat, Developer will have two year...
	7. If ITD denies access on to Hwy 44 for the commercial lots, Developer will create an access connection between the residential parcels and the commercial parcels via Horsetail Court.
	8. Developer to grant a cross-access easement for vehicle and pedestrian traffic across the commercial lots to ensure that no lots are landlocked if ITD does not permit access off Hwy 44.
	9. Developer shall construct a temporary 5’ wide asphalt pathway across the commercial lot to connect the residential lots to Hwy 44.  Public access shall be granted via a temporary public access easement. Once the commercial lots are developed, the p...
	//  //
	//  //
	K. Comprehensive Plan & Land Use Map:  Applicant’s project complies with the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map because the proposed zones correlate with the “Commercial” and “Mixed-Use” uses shown on the Comprehensive Plan Map.
	Additionally, Applicant’s project complies with the Goals, Objectives, and Strategies of the 2019 Middleton Comprehensive Plan as follows:
	a. Goals 3 and 23: The project provides safe vehicle and pedestrian facilities in light of the street improvements, pathways and sidewalks shown on the preliminary plat.
	b. Goal 4: The project will establish a good quality of life with development that pays through impact fees and property taxes for the public services it receives when infrastructure is installed. Quality lots for residential use also increase the qua...
	c. Goal 6: Water, sewer, and road systems have been expanded in an orderly manner consistent with population growth.
	d. Goal 7: the project promotes commercial development and employment opportunities.
	e. Goal 8: the project establishes a new commercial area without detracting from existing businesses.
	f. Goal 10: Project provides playgrounds, pathways and outdoor recreational activities.
	g. Goal 11: The housing type matches the residents’ lifestyle in the area the project is located.
	L. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  Letter received from Thomas Butler on July 20, 2022. (Copy of letter is attached as Exhibit “C”).
	M. Comments from Agencies:  City received the following comment letters from agencies: Greater Middleton Parks & Recreation letter delivered on 4/22/2022; Canyon Hill Ditch Co., letter dated 5/9/2022; and Middleton School District #134 letters dated 5...
	N. Comments from City Engineer and Planning Staff:   Copies of Engineering and planning comments are attached as Exhibit “E”.
	O. Applicant Information:  Application was accepted on November 16, 2021. Applicant is Taylor Schmidt/BST DEV LLC 1016 W. Sanetta St., Nampa, ID 83651.
	P. Notices & Neighborhood Meeting:    Dates:
	Newspaper Notification     7/17/2022
	Radius notice to adjacent landowners   7/14/2022
	Circulation to Agencies     7/12/2022
	Sign Posting property     7/15/2022
	Neighborhood Meeting     9/8/2021 & 10/18/2022
	Q. Applicable Codes and Standards:
	Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-16, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4, and Idaho Code Title 67, Chapter 65 & Title 50, Chapters 2 and 13.
	R. Planning & Zoning Recommendation:  The Planning & Zoning Commission considered the project applications at a public hearing on May 9, 2022.  The Commission is responsible for issuing a final order on the application for a special use permit (SUP) t...
	The townhome concept considered in the application is shown below.
	The Commission further recommended approval of Developer’s applications for Annexation/Rezone, Development Agreement, and Preliminary Plat subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report. (A copy of the Commission’s Recommendation ...
	S. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:
	Per State law and the Middleton City Code, any final order or recommendation must be based upon findings of facts and conclusions of law.
	As to Findings of Facts, Planning Staff has set forth findings of facts above in parentheses.  If the Council agrees with those findings of facts and further agrees with the general facts presented at the public hearing, then the Council may simply ma...
	As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that the City Council has the authority to hear these applications and to approve or deny the applications, with or without conditions of approval.  Additionally, Planning Staff notes that all public noti...
	Annexation/rezone, Preliminary Plat, and Development Agreement Applications: If the Council is inclined to approve the applications for annexation/rezone, preliminary plat, and development agreement based upon the above findings of facts and conclusio...
	1. City municipal domestic water, fire flow and sanitary sewer services are to be extended to serve the subdivision.
	2. Developer to comply with all terms of the Development Agreement approved by City Council for the project.
	3. All landscaping and amenities to be installed in compliance with submitted landscape plan dated 4/11/2022.
	4. Developer to construct, at its own cost, all frontage improvements to Hwy 44 if required by ITD and the City of Middleton.
	5. Developer to obtain a proper approach permit from ITD for the commercial parcel access prior to final plat approval for Phase 2. If ITD will not issue an approach permit, Developer to create a street or drive aisle off of Horsetail Court to provide...
	6. Developer shall create a plan for operation, maintenance and repair of stormwater facilities (O&M Plan) contained on the project site.  The O&M Plan shall be recorded with the CC&Rs.  Developer and/or HOA must maintain and operate the subdivision s...
	7. Owner/Developer to pay the City required pro-rata traffic fee in the amount of $77,567 prior to Phase 1 final plat approval (MCC 5-4-3).
	8. All City Engineer review comments are to be completed and approved.
	9. All Planner comments are to be completed and approved.
	10. All requirements of the Middleton Rural Fire District are to be completed and approved.
	11. Developer/Owner to comply with all FEMA, Middleton City Code Floodplain Rules, and Floodplain Administrator requirements.
	12. The Homeowners’ Association’s CC&Rs shall mandate that the HOA is responsible for maintaining the ditch easement strip of ground sandwiched between the canal and the rear fence line of Lots 1-4, Block 2.
	13.  Sewer and water capacity to be reserved at the time City approves the construction drawings for the project.
	Finally, if the Council denies the special use permit application and/or recommends denial of the remaining applications, then pursuant to Middleton City Code 1-14(E)(8), the Council should state on the record what Applicant can do, if anything, to ga...
	Prepared by Roberta Stewart         Dated: 7/29/2022 Planning & Zoning Director

	exhibits.pdf
	Reed’s Landing Subdivision
	Snapshot Summary
	A. Planning & Zoning Commission Hearing Date: May 9, 2022
	B. Project Description: Applications by Taylor Schmidt/BST DEV LLC for annexation/rezone, preliminary plat, development agreement, and special use permit with respect to the Reed’s Landing Subdivision located at 880 W. Main Street and 0 Hwy 44 (Tax Pa...
	The proposed preliminary plat consists of three commercial lots, 12 single family residential lots, 25 townhome lots on approximately 9.7 acres of land zoned Canyon County Agricultural.
	C. Application Requests:  Applicant is requesting annexation and zone changes from Canyon County “Agricultural” to City of Middleton C-3 “Heavy Commercial” (2.35 acres”), M-F “Multi-Family” (2.98 acres) and R-3 “Single Family Residential (4.09 acres)....
	D. Current Zoning & Property Condition:  The property is currently Canyon County property zoned Agricultural, and the project is an infill project surrounded entirely by property within City limits.  The northern half of the parcel is surrounded entir...
	E. City Services:  City water and sewer are accessible to the project. The utilities are located in Shire St., Huckleberry St., and Lionheart St., immediately adjacent to the Project parcel.
	F. Traffic, Access & Streets:
	Access to the residential part of the subdivision will be through Lionheart Street and Huckleberry Street.  Access to the commercial lots will be off of Hwy 44.
	ITD has had the Reed’s Landing Subdivision under review for a number of months. Once ITD submits its comments, Developer will be required to improve, at its own cost, all Hwy 44 frontage improvements required by ITD and the City of Middleton.
	Developer has submitted a traffic study for the project. It revealed that the project will have “minimal impact” upon the roadways and intersections.  Frontage improvements and striping should “fully mitigate” the impact of the project, according to t...
	Middleton requires Development “to pay for itself” so the taxpayers will not be burdened with the cost of developing roads and infrastructure.  In light of this, Developer/builders will pay $186,850 in Mid-Star Transportation Impact Fees by the time a...
	Finally, Developer will also be required to pay pro-rata traffic fees pursuant to MCC 5-4-3.  The analysis for those fees will not be completed until the Traffic Impact Study is updated. Payment of the fees should be made a condition of preliminary pl...
	H. Annexation and Rezone:  Applicant is requesting that the nine acre in-fill project be annexed into the City of Middleton with a zone change to C-3 “Heavy Commercial” (approx. 2.5 acres), M-F “Multi-Family” for the townhomes (approx. 3 acres) and R-...
	There are three findings that must be made before Annexation can be approved: (1) the property must be contiguous to City limits (2) City services such as sewer and water can be extended to serve the site, and (3) the annexation is deemed to be an ord...
	An application for rezone requires two findings before the Commission can recommend approval: (1) the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s delivery of services and (2) the rezone request is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan. (Idaho Co...
	FINDINGS:
	Planning Staff finds that Applicant’s project meets all three findings for annexation.  First, the property is contiguous and surrounded on all four sides by City property. Second, sewer and water are available and can be extended to the site as alrea...
	As to the rezone application, Planning Staff finds that the rezone will not adversely affect the City’s ability to deliver sewer and water as already noted above.  Additionally, Developer will bear the cost of impacting city services by paying impact ...
	Finally, as will be shown below in the section regarding the Comprehensive Plan, the rezone is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan
	I. Preliminary Plat Application:
	The preliminary plat shows two phases of development. The Multi-Family and R-3 zones comprise Phase 1. The three commercial lots comprise Phase 2.
	[A full copy of the proposed preliminary plat is attached as Exhibit “A”.]
	The plat complies with all Middleton codes and standards with one exception: (1) Developer is seeking a waiver to allow “perimeter” fencing to be set back from the perimeter on lots 1 – 4, Block 2 to allow unobstructed access to the ditch easement in ...
	Middleton governing bodies are allowed to grant exceptions or waivers to the code during the preliminary plat process (MCC 1-15-2).  The proposed fencing waiver is a reasonable request because the ditch easement needs to be accommodated. However, a co...
	Findings:
	Planning Staff finds that the preliminary plat complies with dimensional standards and requirements of the Middleton City Code, ISPWC, Supplement to ISPWC, and Idaho State Code except for the fence waiver noted above.
	J. Development Agreement:  Applications for annexation/rezone are generally accompanied by an application for Development Agreement (“DA”). Attached as Exhibit “B” is the proposed Development Agreement.  The Developer has used the City’s DA form, and ...
	1. Developer will develop the community and townhomes generally consistent with the concept plans attached to the DA.
	2. The differing styles of townhomes shall undergo design review pursuant to MCC 1-15-8.
	3. Developer shall construct the following amenities: park with benches and playground, and shade structure with at least 2 picnic tables.
	4. Developer shall dedicate the entire .24 acre parcel fronting Hwy 44 to ITD for right of way.
	5. The Reed’s home on the commercial lots shall be deemed a non-conforming use. They may remain on site and use the commercial parcels for residential purposes, but they may not apply to the City for any improvement permits that would increase the non...
	6. Developers will have two years to obtain final plat approval for Phase 1. Developer may seek two 1-year extensions, thereby allowing a total of 4 years to bring Phase 1 to final plat approval.  After Phase 1 final plat, Developer will have two year...
	7. If ITD denies access on to Hwy 44 for the commercial lots, Developer will create an access connection between the residential parcels and the commercial parcels on Lot 9, Block 3 or Lot 9, Block 4.
	8. Developer to grant a cross-access easement for vehicle and pedestrian traffic across the commercial lots to ensure that no lots are landlocked.
	9. Developer shall construct a temporary 5’ wide asphalt pathway across the commercial lot to connect the residential lots to Hwy 44.  Public access shall be granted via a temporary public access easement. Once the commercial lots are developed, the p...
	K. Special Use Permit: Townhome construction is allowed in the M-F zone with a special use permit.  Developer has submitted concept renderings of the Townhome structures planned for the site.  (See renderings attached as Exhibit “C”.)
	Findings: Planning Staff finds that Applicant’s request for special use permit to construct townhomes meets the four required findings for approval:
	(1) The townhomes are not “an incompatible or unreasonable use” for the area. This location is sandwiched between commercial uses and higher density R-4 single family uses.  Townhomes complement such a mixture of uses and help with the transition betw...
	L. Comprehensive Plan & Land Use Map:  Applicant’s project complies with the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map because the proposed zones correlate with the “Commercial” and “Mixed-Use” uses shown on the Comprehensive Plan Map.
	Additionally, Applicant’s project complies with the Goals, Objectives, and Strategies of the 2019 Middleton Comprehensive Plan as follows:
	a. Goals 3 and 23: The project provides safe vehicle and pedestrian facilities in light of the street improvements, pathways and sidewalks shown on the preliminary plat.
	b. Goal 4: The project will establish a good quality of life with development that pays through impact fees and property taxes for the public services it receives when infrastructure is installed. Quality lots for residential use also increase the qua...
	c. Goal 6: Water, sewer, and road systems have been expanded in an orderly manner consistent with population growth.
	d. Goal 7: the project promotes commercial development and employment opportunities.
	e. Goal 8: the project establishes a new commercial area without detracting from existing businesses.
	f. Goal 10: Project provides playgrounds, pathways and outdoor recreational activities.
	g. Goal 11: The housing type matches the residents’ lifestyle in the area the project is located.
	M. Comments Received from Surrounding Landowners:  The City has not received any comments from the public.
	N. Comments from Agencies:  On April 22, 2022, the City received a comment letter from Greater Middleton Parks & Recreation objecting to the subdivision project. (Copies of Agency comments are attached as Exhibit “D”.)
	O. Comments from City Engineer and Planning Staff:   Copies of Engineering and planning comments are attached as Exhibit “E”.
	P. Applicant Information:  Application was accepted on November 16, 2021. Applicant is Taylor Schmidt/BST DEV LLC 1016 W. Sanetta St., Nampa, ID 83651.
	Q. Notices & Neighborhood Meeting:    Dates:
	Newspaper Notification     4/24/2022
	Radius notice to adjacent landowners   4/22/2022
	Circulation to Agencies     4/22/2022
	Sign Posting property     4/22/2022
	Neighborhood Meeting     9/8/2021 & 10/18/2022
	R. Applicable Codes and Standards:
	Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-16, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4, and Idaho Code Title 67, Chapter 65 & Title 50, Chapters 2 and 13.
	S. Conclusions and Recommended Conditions of Approval:
	The Planning & Zoning Commission is the governing body responsible for approving or denying the application for special use permit.  As to the applications for annexation/rezone, preliminary plat, and development agreement, the Commission is tasked wi...
	Per State law and the Middleton City Code, any final order or recommendation must be based upon findings of facts and conclusions of law.
	As to Findings of Facts, Planning Staff has set forth findings of facts above in parentheses.  If the Commission agrees with those findings of facts and further agrees with the general facts presented at the public hearing, then the Commission may sim...
	As to Conclusions of Law, Planning Staff finds that the Planning & Zoning Commission has the authority to hear these applications and to approve or deny the special use permit application and recommend approval or denial of the other three application...
	Special Use Permit Application: If the Commission is inclined to approve the Special Use Permit Application, Staff recommends the following conditions of approval:
	1. Developer to comply with all provisions in the Development Agreement approved for this project.
	Annexation/rezone, Preliminary Plat, and Development Agreement Applications: If the Commission is inclined to recommend approval of the annexation/rezone, preliminary plat, and development agreement applications based upon the above findings of facts ...
	1. City municipal domestic water, fire flow and sanitary sewer services are to be extended to serve the subdivision.
	2. Developer to comply with all terms of the Development Agreement approved for the project.
	3. Developer to construct, at its own cost, all frontage improvements to Hwy 44 required by ITD and the City of Middleton.
	4. Developer shall obtain a proper approach permit from ITD for the commercial parcel access prior to final plat approval for Phase 2.
	5. Developer/Reeds shall dedicate all .24 acres of Tax Parcel 17900011 to ITD as public right of way.
	6. Owner/Developer to pay all City required pro-rata share traffic fees as required by MCC 5-4-3 prior to approval of final plat for Phase 1.
	7. All City Engineer review comments are to be completed and approved.
	8. All Planner comments are to be completed and approved.
	9. All Floodplain administrator comments are to be completed and approved.
	10. All requirements of the Middleton Rural Fire District are to be completed and approved.
	11. The Homeowners’ Association’s CC&Rs shall mandate that the HOA is responsible for maintaining the ditch easement strip of ground sandwiched between the canal and the rear fence line of Lots 1-4, Lot 2.
	12.  Sewer and water capacity to be reserved at the time City approves the construction drawings for the project.
	Finally, if the Commission denies the special use permit application and/or recommends denial of the remaining applications, then pursuant to Middleton City Code 1-14(E)(8), the Commission should state on the record what Applicant can do, if anything,...
	Prepared by Roberta Stewart         Dated: 5/2/2022 Planning & Zoning Director

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Blank Page

	8.) Reed's Landing Preliminary Plat.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	LAYOUT
	NOTES & DETAILS


	10.) Reed's Landing Proposed  FCO.pdf
	In the Matter of the applications of Taylor Schmidt/BST DEV LLC for annexation/rezone, preliminary plat, and development agreement with respect to the Reed’s Landing Subdivision located at 880 W. Main Street (Tax Parcel No. R17900010):
	A. Findings of Fact:
	1. Hearing Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of August 3, 2022, which Report is attached hereto as Exhibit “A’ and incorporated herein by this reference.
	2. Process Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of August 3, 2022, Exhibit “A”.
	3. Application and Property Facts: See Staff Report for the hearing date of August 3, 2022, Exhibit “A”.
	4. Required Findings per Middleton City Code 1-14-2(E)(7), Idaho State Statue Title 67, Chapter 65, Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction and Middleton Supplement thereto, Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3 & 5-4 and Idaho Code Titl...
	B. Conclusions of Law:
	1. That the City of Middleton has exercised the powers conferred upon it by the “Local Land Use Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (I.C. §67-6503).
	2. That due consideration has been given to the comments received from the governmental subdivisions providing services in the City of Middleton planning jurisdiction, comments received from individuals of the public, and comments from City Planning S...
	3. That notice of the application and public hearing was given according to law.
	4. That City Council’s public hearing was conducted according to law, and the City has kept a record of the application and related documents.
	5. That codes and standards pertinent to the application are the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, the Middleton Supplement to the Idaho Standards for Public Works Construction, and Middleton City Code 1-14, 1-15, 5-1, 5-2, 5-3, and 5-4 a...

	6. That public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not impose expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed.
	C. Decision & Order:
	Pursuant to the City Council’s authority as provided in Middleton City Code 1-5-2, and based upon the above Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law, it is hereby ordered that:
	1. The application of Taylor Schmit/BST DEV LLC for Annexation and Rezone to C-3, M-F and R-3 is approved subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the August 3, 2022, public hearing.
	2. The application of Taylor Schmidt/BST DEV LLC for Development Agreement is approved subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the August 3, 2022, public hearing.
	3.  The application of Taylor Schmidt/BST DEV LLC for preliminary plat is approved subject to the conditions of approval set forth in the Staff Report for the August 3, 2022, public hearing.
	Please take notice that pursuant to MCC 1-14-2(E)(10), applicant shall have 14 days after a signed final decision to request reconsideration by the final-decision maker. Such request must identify specific deficiencies in the final decision. Failure t...
	Additionally, please take notice that Applicant has a right to request a regulatory taking analysis pursuant to Idaho State Statute section 67-8003.




